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Notice

In this registration document (hereinafter red $dte “Registration Documeéint the terms “INSIDE
Securé or the “Company refer to INSIDE Secure, a Frenslciété anonymgoint stock company)
with a Management Board and a Supervisory Board,tha registered office located at rue de la
Carriére de Bachasson — CS 70025 — Arteparc Bammas$3590 Meyreuil, France. The Company is
registered with the Trade and Companies Registdixaen-Provence, France under number 399 275
395. The term “Group” refers to the group of comparcomprised of the Company and all of its
consolidated subsidiaries and equity interests.

A glossary providing the definitions of the termsed in this Registration Document can be found in
Chapter 26.

Disclaimer

Information pertaining to the market and competitio

This Registration Document and, in particular, Gha® entitled “Business Overview” contains

information related to the markets in which the @radoes business and its competitive market
position. This information originates, in particyldrom studies carried out by external sources.
Publicly available information that the Company siders reliable has not been verified by an
independent expert and the Company cannot guarémiée third party using different methods to

collect, analyze, or calculate the market inforamativould obtain the same results.

Forward-looking statements

This Registration Document contains statementsimgléo the outlook and development of the Group.
These statements are sometimes identified by teeoluthe future or conditional tense or terms of a
forward-looking nature such as “consider”, “envisgg‘think”, “have as an objective”, “expect”,
“intend”, “should”, “aim to”, “estimate”, “believe” “desire”, “could”, or, where applicable, the
negative form of these terms or any other variansimilar terminology. Such information is not
historic data and should not be interpreted asasamtiee that the facts and data given will occuchS
information is based on data, assumptions and at&srnthat the Group considers reasonable. It is
subject to change and may be modified by unceitainparticularly those relating to the economic,
financial, competitive and regulatory environmesiich information is mentioned in various sections
of this Registration Document and contains datatedl to the intentions, estimates and objectives of
the Group, particularly concerning the market inickhit operates and its strategy, growth income,
financial position, cash flows and forecasts. Thewhrd-looking information mentioned in this
Registration Document is provided solely as of dla¢e of this Registration Document. The Group
operates in a constantly evolving competitive eswinent. It therefore cannot anticipate all thegjsk
uncertainties or other factors that could affectitisiness, their potential impact on its busimeghe
extent to which the occurrence of a risk or comtidmaof risks could have results materially diffiere
from those mentioned in any forward-looking statatagas none of this forward-looking information
constitutes a guarantee of actual results.

Risk factors

Investors are invited to carefully read the risktéas described in Chapter 4 entitled “Risk factafs
this Registration Document before making any inwesit decision. The materialization of some or all
of these risks could potentially have a significadterse effect on the business activities, firenci
position, income, or outlook of the Group. In adiif other risks — either not yet identified, or
considered by the Group as immaterial as of the dfthis Registration Document — could also have
a significant adverse impact.



Cross-Reference Table

The cross-reference table below identifies the rinfdion in this Registration Document that
constitutes the half-year financial report (Artidlet51-1-2 Il of the French Monetary and Financial
Code and Article 222-4 of the AMF's General Regolas).

Half-year Financial Report Registration Document
1. Full version of the financial statements for the Refer to section 20.6.1 of the Registration
most recent half-year Document]

Refer to sections 9.1, 9.2.3, 10.1 and 10.2.2 of

2. Half-year Business Report the Registration Document

3. A statement from the physical persons who acgept

responsibility for the information contained in the Refer to section 1.2 of the Registratjon

Half-year Financial Report Document
4° The statutory auditors’ Report based on a lichite Refer to section 20.6.2 of the Registratjon
review of the aforementioned financial statements Document




1. PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

1.1 Person responsible for the Registration Document

Rémy de Tonnac, Chairman of the Management Board.

1.2 Statement from the person responsible for the Redigtion Document

After having taken all reasonable measures thetdtereby certify that the information contained in
this Registration Document is, to my knowledge,uaate and true and that no information has been
omitted that would cause a change in its scopéaificance.

| further certify that the full version of the fineial statements for the past half-year was, to my
knowledge, prepared in accordance with applicaldeoanting standards and provides a true

representation of the Company’s assets, finanaisitipn, and income and of all the companies

included in its scope of consolidation, and that dttached Half-year Business Report providesea tru

account of the significant events that occurred t¢ive course of the first six months of the fisgadr,

of their impact on the financial statements, of thajor transactions that occurred between related
parties, as well as a description of the most 8t risks and main uncertainties of which to be

aware during the remaining six months of the figezlr.

| have received a completion-of-work lettéet{re de fin de travayxfrom the statutory auditors in
which they indicate that they have checked therinédion relating to the financial condition and
financial statements included in this Registratidocument and that they have read the entire
document.

Signed in Meyreuil, France, on September 11, 2014

Rémy de Tonnac
Chairman of the Management Board

13 Person responsible for the financial information

Richard Vacher Detourniére

General Manager & Chief Financial Officer

Address: rue de la Carriére de Bachasson — CS 70@2teparc Bachasson — 13590 Meyreuil, France
Email: contactinvestisseurs@insidesecure.com



2. STATUTORY AUDITORS
2.1 Permanent statutory auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit SA

Represented by Philippe Willemin, Partner

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit is a member of @menpagnie régionale des commissaires aux
comptegFrench regional association of auditors) of Vdiesj France

63, rue de Villiers, 92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine, Franc

Date of initial appointment: June 19, 2007

Expiration date of the current appointment: follogriithe Annual Shareholders’ Meeting convened to
approve the financial statements of the fiscal yrated December 31, 2018.

Antoine Olanda

38, parc du Golf, 13856 Aix-en-Provence Cedex anke

Date of initial appointment: May 11, 2011

Expiration date of the current appointment: follogithe Annual Shareholders’ Meeting convened to
approve the financial statements of the fiscal yrated December 31, 2016.

2.2 Alternate statutory auditors

Anik Chaumartin

63, rue de Villiers, 92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine

Date of initial appointment: June 19, 2013

Expiration date of the current appointment: follogithe Annual Shareholders’ Meeting convened to
approve the financial statements of the fiscal yrated December 31, 2018.

Member of the PricewaterhouseCoopers professiatalark

Christian Davoult

Le Ponant Littoral, batiment A, 7, avenue André §3m, 13016 Marseille, France

Date of initial appointment: May 11, 2011

Expiration date of the current appointment: follogithe Annual Shareholders’ Meeting convened to
approve the financial statements of the fiscal yrated December 31, 2016.



3. SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The selected financial information provided in tt@hapter 3 originates from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the fiscahrgeended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
presented in section 20.1 entitlddiStorical Financial Informatiofi of this Registration Document, as
well as the consolidated financial information loé tGroup for the first half-year of 2014, preserited
section 20.6 entitledifiterim Financial Informatioh of this Registration Document.

This financial information must be read in tandemhwi) the analysis of the Group’s income and
financial condition, presented in Chapter 9 of Registration Document and (ii) the analysis of the
Group’s cash and equity, presented in Chapter 1@eoRegistration Document.

The Group has elected the US Dollar (or “$”") asspreation currency of its consolidated financial
statements. The US Dollar is the functional curyeoicthe Company, and the currency in which the
majority of its transactions are denominated. this main currency used for the Group’s transastion
and within the semiconductor industry in transatdibetween customers and suppliers.

The exchange rates of the US Dollar against the Eur“€”, or “EUR”), the main currency used by
the Group after the US Dollar, are as follows foz fiscal years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and
2013 and for the half-years ended June 30, 2012@ah4:

Dollar / Euro December 31,2011 December 31,2012 Ded®r 31, 2013 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014
Closing rate 1.2939 1.3194 1.3791 1.3080 1.3658
Average rate 1.3917 1.2858 1.3282 1.3135 1.3705

(Please also refer to Note 2.1 of the Notes ta@hmup’s consolidated financial statements presented
in section 20.1 entitledHistorical Financial Informatioti of this Registration Document for further
information.)

The scope of consolidation of the Group is detailedNote 31 of the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements presented in section 20.ltlewti'Historical Financial Informatiofi of the
Registration Document.

The Group operates in relation to two operatingms=gs: (i) Mobile Security and (ii) Secure
Payments. This organization, presented in Chaptef the Registration Document, constitutes the
basis for the Group’s internal reporting.

Excerpts from the consolidated financial informatian for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2011, 2012 and 2013 and for the first half-years @013 and 2014 (in accordance with IFRS)

Selected financial information from the consolidhitecome statement:

Year ended December 31 6-month period ended June 30
(audited figures) (unaudited figures)

(in thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013 2013 2014
Revenue 151,468 122,047 154,623 70,765 64,247
Adjusted gross profit’ 42,412 31,439 60,26 26,850 37,822
Adjusted gross profit as a % of revenue 28% 26% 39% 38% 59%
Adjusted operating inconfé (16,052) (30,095) (2,952) (6,313) 3,240
Operating income (24,462) (37,278) (27,766) (20,559) (5,699)
Net income (23,033) (37,485) (27,56) (21,002) (5,477)
eBITDA © (12,242) (25,123) 2,793 (3,542) 5,627
EBITDA as a % of revenue -8% -21% 2% -5% 9%

W The adjusted gross profit is defined as gross prodifore (i) the amortization of intangible assersd masks related to business
combinations, (i) any potential goodwill impairnteriii) share-based payments expense, and (iv}reearring costs associated with

business combinations and acquisitions completetidoroup.

@ The adjusted operating income/(loss) is definedgarating income/(loss) before (i) the amortizatiof intangible assets and masks
related to business combinations, (i) any potdrdi@odwill impairment, (iii) share-based paymenipense and (iv) non-recurring costs
associated with business combinations and acomisitcompleted by the Group.

© EBITDA is defined as the adjusted operating ind¢loes) before any amortization and impairment latesl to business combinations.
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Earnings from operating segments:

Year ended December 31

6-month period ended June 30

(audited figures) (unaudited figures)
(in thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013 2013 2014
Mobile Security:
Revenue 47,961 43,828 73,797 26,473 32,750
Adjusted gross profit 10,317 12,680 36,459 13,797 28,444
Adjusted gross profit as a % of revenue 22% 29% 49% 52% 87%
Adjusted operating income (17,258) (30,92) (6,676) (9,619) 6,749
EBITDA (16,762) (28,985) (5,653) (9,101) 7,201
Secure Transactions:
Revenue 103,507 78,219 80,826 44,292 29,984
Adjusted gross profit 34,771 20,995 26,336 14,463 7,865
Adjusted gross profit as a % of revenue 34% 27% 33% 33% 26%
Adjusted operating income 3,882 3,062 5,895 4,493 (5,504)
EBITDA 7,196 6,099 10,616 6,745 (3,570)
Selected financial information from the consolidbl@lance sheet:
Year ended December 31 6-month period ended June 30
(audited figures) (unaudited figures)

(in thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013 2013 2014
Non-current assets 34,227 86,177 83,282 83,711 93,625

Cash and cash equivalents 20,940 66,321 40,213 41,846 38,771

Other current assets 52,678 40,626 40,591 50,948 30,209
Current assets 73,618 106,947 80,804 92,794 68,980
Total assets 107,845 193,124 164,086 176,505 162,605
Equity 57,595 121,726 95,947 100,707 90,580
Non-current liabilities 14,708 22,729 20,012 21,243 35,278
Current liabilties 35,542 48,669 48,127 54,554 36,747
Total equity and liabilities 107,845 193,124 164,086 176,505 162,605

Selected financial information from the consolidbtash flows statement:

Year ended December 31 6-month period ended June 30
(audited figures) (unaudited figures)
(in thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013 2013 2014
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1478 20,940 66,321 66,321 40,213
Net cash generated/ (used) in operating activities (11,011) (12,508) (17,082) (15,399) 3,489
Net cash used in investing activities (7,993) (48,509) (15,075) (8,545) (15,361)
Net cash generated by / (used) in financing a@vit (965) 106,604 6,026 477) 10,283
Effect of rate fluctuatioty’ (269) (206) 23 (53) 147
Cash, cash equivalents at end of the year 20,940 6313 40,213 41,846 38,771

W Element with no impact on the cash position, amsdlteng from the conversion into US Dollars of camominated in other
currencies

Tables presenting reconciliations between the dmeded income statement figures in this document
and the adjusted financial aggregates as definedeatfor the 2011, 2012, and 2013 fiscal years, are
provided in Note 6 of the Notes to the Group’s @didsited Financial Statements in section 20.1
entitled “Historical Financial Information” and, rfahe half-years ended June 30, 2013 and 2014, in
Note 26 of the Notes to the Half-year Financialt&tents in section 20.6.1 entitled “Interim
Financial Information” of this Registration Docunten
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4. RISK FACTORS

Investors should consider all of the informatiomtadned in this Registration Document, including th
risk factors described in the following chapterfdpe they decide to acquire or subscribe Company
shares. While preparing the Registration DocuntéetCompany conducted a review of the risks that
could have a significant adverse impact on the @rits business activities, its financial condition
income, future outlook, or its ability to achiews objectives, and considers that the most sigmnific
risks are those described herein.

However, it is possible that other risks — eitherrently unknown or of which the materialization is
not considered likely at the filing date of thisgrgration Document — could nonetheless exist and
have a material adverse effect on the Group, inless activities, financial condition, income, or
future outlook were they to materialize.

4.1. Risks associated with the Group’s business and indtry
The semiconductor industry has historically experiaced significant fluctuations.

The semiconductor industry is cyclical. In addittonchanges in the general economic climate, which
can result in imbalances between supply and demansl,subject to rapid technological changes,
which create growth in demand for new productsofeéld by a period of slower growth once these
new products are widely adopted by the market. Sibeer rate of growth typically continues until
the next technological development, at which pthietpattern begins again.

This cyclical nature of the industry affects theo@y in the following three ways:

— any decrease in demand for the products marketeékebgsroup has an adverse impact on
its business activities, its revenues, its cashditiom and, as a result, its financial
condition;

— a significant portion of the Group’s costs is fixaad a significant portion of its variable
costs is committed through advance payments onefigagies. As such, the Group may not
be able to adjust its expenses rapidly enough teebfany unanticipated shortfall in
revenue following a shift to a new phase in theettggment cycle. This would have an
adverse impact on the Group’s margins, operatiognre, cash and financial condition;
and

— furthermore, the Group does not own any manufaggucapacity, resulting in a reliance
on subcontractors for the manufacturing, assembsting and shipping of its products.
During periods of high demand, competition for @&sceo the services of these
subcontractors increases. When the cycle shiftsdamend slows, such subcontractors
may decide to reduce the amount of their capaoitgdjust for this market change. As
such, the Group may experience difficulty in obitagnaccess to the manufacturing
services it relies on to achieve its sales prapestior it may be subjected to price
increases imposed by its subcontractors. This wdalde an adverse impact on the
Group’s revenues, margins, operating income, cadHiaancial condition.

The terms of the contracts governing the relatigpssibetween the Group and its customers and
subcontractors only partially allow the Group tmtpct itself against exposure to these risks (for
further information, refer in particular to the Bens entitled “The Group subcontracts the
manufacturing, assembly, testing and shippingsopibducts to third parties and one such thirdypart
could fail to fulfill its obligations to meet deadés and comply with specified conditions” and “The
Group’s customers could cancel their orders, chamgejuantity ordered, or delay their production”).
The Group could be unable to accurately estimateddmand for its products and, as a result, either
be unable to use its inventory or, conversely, rible to satisfy the orders placed by its customers
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The Group operates in a very competitive environmenand must contend with competitors that
are larger than the Group. If the Group were no lormger competitive vis-a-vis other market
players, it could fail to increase and/or maintainits market share or the amount of revenues it
generates.

Some of the Group’s competitors have longer opsgatiistories in the sector, with access to

significantly greater resources, have more estaddisreputations and a larger base of existing
customers than those of the Group. Their long-ésteal positions in these markets have enabled
them to forge strong relationships with their castos, which could be an advantage for them notably
due to their access to information about marketdseand future demand. The significant resources
available to more sizeable competitors enable tteebe more reactive in competing for technology,

benefit from economies of scale, expand their pbotiof products and benefit from higher credililit

in front of existing and potential customers of t@eoup. Lastly, some competitors may offer

customers bundled solutions with complementary petsl or have the ability to adopt a more

aggressive pricing policy. This could affect the@y’s ability to gain or maintain its market share.

Due to the very competitive environment of the semductor sector and to the high costs associated
with the design and manufacturing of semiconducttiie industry demonstrates a trend toward
consolidation, which heightens the risk describeova. This trend toward consolidation is evidenced,
in particular, by transactions involving large canes acquiring smaller ones. This trend is expecte
to continue in the future.

In the markets to which it targets its semicondyctoftware, and intellectual property productg th
Group competes with companies such as, in particNl&P Semiconductors, Infineon Technologies,
STMicroelectronics, Samsung Electronics, Discratixl Arxan. In the markets to which it targets its
embedded security software, the Group competes authpanies that are, as of now, smaller and
lesser known. Other companies could enter intoctlicempetition with the Group if they were to
develop their own technology or enter into licegsagreements with third parties for technology,
software and intellectual property.

The Group’s competitiveness depends on severarfancluding:

- its ability to predict market needs (particularly lentifying new ones) and to develop
products to successfully meet them;

- its ability to deliver products in large volumes atimely basis at competitive prices;

- its ability to accurately understand the price poiand performance metrics of competing
products in the market;

- its products’ performance and cost-effectivenekive to those of its competitors;

- its ability to maintain and develop relations withkey customers; and

- its ability to conform to industry standards wtdleveloping new and proprietary technologies
to offer products and features previously not adé in the payments market, in particular.

If the Group were unable to remain competitive agiaits current or future competitors, or if it
contends with market rivals that are more succéssfa result of, in particular, their larger sittés
will adversely impact its market shares, reventierancial condition and development.

The Group could be unsuccessful in developing anaéking new products on a timely and cost-
effective basis or in penetrating new markets.

The markets in which the Group conducts its busiresivities, as well as those markets it targats,
characterized by rapidly changing technologies emdistry standards, technological obsolescence
and frequent product introductions. They are alsaracterized by intense price competition, the
introduction of new products being a distinguishiiagtor enabling companies to demand higher
prices. Therefore, in order to protect its markesifion, the Group must be able to predict
technological changes and design, develop, maresapport new products and enhancements on a
timely and cost-effective basis.
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The development of technologies and new marketpbbelucts is complex and usually requires
significant long-term investments. The Group cowdperience delays in completing these
developments and, as a result, find itself attemgptio penetrate the market with an obsolete
technology or one in which a competitor is alreagdyy well established. The Group could even
develop products based on a standard that is t#lynaot retained by the industry. Furthermore, the
Group’s development costs could be excessive cadpar the price at which the Group would be
able to market its products. These types of rigkhey were to materialize, would have an adverse
impact on the Group’s business activities, reverfigsncial condition and future development.

The development of the security solutions (hardwarand software) of the Group depends on the
overall development of the market for mobile and nevork security systems, on it being accepted
by users, as well as on customer demand.

The market for the Group’s mobile and network siggwwolutions (hardware and software) depends
on, in particular:

- the perceived ability of its products and servitmeaddress real customer problems,

- the perceived quality, price, user friendliness arteroperability of its products and services
as compared to those of its competitors,

- the market’'s perception of how easy or difficultigtfor the Group to deploy its products,
especially in complex network environments,

- the continued evolution of electronic commerce gghble means of conducting business,

- market acceptance and use of new technologiestandasds,

- the public’s perception of the need for secureted@ic commerce and communications over
both wired and mobile networks,

- the ability of the Group to effectively adapt tethace of technological change, and

- general economic conditions, which among othergsirinfluence how much money the
customers and potential customers of the Grougvéiieg to spend on such technology.

If the Group were unable to face such circumstgnitesevenues, income, financial condition and
development would be negatively affected.

The success of the Group is dependent, in particulaon an increase in demand for the supply of
embedded security solutions.

The customers of the Group can postpone the puecisasp using, or decide not to renew the use
license for the Group’s embedded security soluti@m&l some customers of the Group could also
decide to terminate licensing contracts at any .tilffee contracts signed with the customers of the
Group generally provide for basic licensing riglscess fees for technologies and/or fees estatlish
on a per unit basis, usage fees or a percentagevehues for solutions that integrate the Group’s
technology, as well as service and maintenance feegrtain number of key contracts also provide
for capped fees whenever the volume of sales ammealiny certain customers exceeds set thresholds.
Consequently, a portion of the revenues of the lisunot recurrent, which makes them harder to
predict. Since the levels of expenditures rely @mtn the projections of future revenues, andesinc
expenditures are, for the most part, fixed in thersrun, the Group could be unable to adjust its
spending fast enough in order to offset an unexgedtop in revenues, which could have an adverse
impact on its income, its financial condition ateldevelopment.

The success of the Group will depend, in particularon the timely market introduction of new
security solutions with new or improved functionalties.

The future financial performance of the Group widpend, in particular, on its ability to meet the
needs and specifications of its customers by inipgoits mobile and network security solutions and
by developing solutions with new and improved fiumaalities. The Group allocates significant
resources to the identification of new market teeadd to the development of solutions in order to
anticipate the demand for security solutions. Havegustomers could lose interest in the solutadins
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the Group, which makes the Group unable to guasahis the demand for its solutions will continue
to develop as projected. The Group must develop s@wtions and improve existing solutions in
order to meet the rapidly evolving needs of custasmEhe success of new functionalities is dependent
on several factors, including their timely introtioo to the market and their market acceptance. The
Group could be unable to improve its existing sohg or to develop new solutions, or be unable to
introduce these solutions to the market in a tinfalshion. The Group could face delays in the
development and market introduction of its solutiowhich could render them obsolete or unsellable
once introduced. Customers could also postponehechases in order to wait for the introductidén o
new solutions. If the Group’s solutions are notsidared competitive, in particular if it is unalie
improve on existing solutions or to introduce nave®in a timely fashion, the Group could no longer
be perceived as a leader in its field, its repatatnight be negatively impacted, the value of renld
could be diminished, and its financial performamauld be adversely affected. In addition,
uncertainties regarding the time frame of availgbidnd the nature of the functionalities of new
solutions could result in an increase in reseancthdevelopment expenses with no assurance of future
revenues.

Such circumstances would have an adverse impattieorevenues of the Group and, in so doing, on
its income, its financial condition and its devetamt.

The development the Group’s NFC technology-relatetiusiness activities depends on the overall
development of the NFC applications market and itsacceptance by end-users, as well as on
customer demand.

Historically, the strategy rolled out by the Gromp the NFC applications market relies on the stle o
semiconductors and, more recently, on the monaiizatf the Group’s NFC technology and its
portfolio of NFC patents via licensing programs,tba one hand, and on the sale of secure contactles
semiconductor solutions that terminals equippedh WEC technology can read (as a mean to help
fight counterfeiting, for example), on the othentlaTo date, NFC technology has not been widely
adopted by mobile operators, mobile handset andwoar electronics manufacturers. In addition, the
infrastructure that would enable NFC technologyb® used for multiple applications, including
payments, has not yet been widely deployed throutgve world.

Furthermore, there are some existing and emerdiamative technologies that are also available and
could be preferred to the NFC solutions offeredtiy Group. Solutions including short message
service (SMS) and online payment websites alreatt ® enable payments to be made from mobile
devices (telephones, tablets and laptop computersexample). In peer-to-peer communications,
existing wireless technologies such as wireless-Lakd Bluetooth can enable direct communication
and data transfer between mobile devices.

Additionally, in many countries the use of contastl technology for applications such as payments or
public transportation is not yet widespread.

NFC technology or the NFC applications market cdaitito develop or develop more slowly than
expected. Products developed by the Group andratteg NFC technology could potentially fail to
meet market demands (particularly if consumergeltectant to adopt the technology), or simply not
be adopted by the Group’s customers on a suffigidarge scale. Under these circumstances,
significant investments in time and resources catechiby the Group to this technology could be lost,
in full or in part, and the development of the Gupits business activities and financial condition
could be affected.

15



The Group could be unable to follow the North Amean market's migration toward the EMV
standard

The North American market’s adoption of the EMVnstard could take longer than expected and the
Group could be unable to follow this migration. Tdmutions developed by the Group could not be
accepted by the North American market or such woistcould fail to be adopted on a wide scale.
This could have an adverse impact on the Grougusiness activities, financial condition, income

and its development.

The Group could fail to monetize its patents portftio.

One of the Group’s areas of development focusesmonetizing its patents portfolio or other
intellectual property rights, which could result ine Group’s execution of licensing agreements,
particularly when it holds intellectual propertghis it deems significant, such as some of itsiate
in the NFC field.

For example, in June 2012 the Group announcedatireh of an NFC patents licensing program with
France Brevets (additional information can be foom@hapter 22 of this Registration Document).

However, the Group could face challenges in implging this strategy. In particular, the Group
cannot guarantee with any certainty that its sgrat@imed at growing the value of its intellectual
property rights will result in the execution ofditsing agreements or that, if they were executesh s
agreements will meet revenue forecasts, that ttou@s contractual partners will not violate such
agreements or that the Group will find the rightusons to such violations were they to occur. In
addition, it is possible that third parties agawsich legal action has been taken in connectiah wi
alleged violations of these patents or intellecralperty rights will dispute the legitimacy of $uc
action, its enforceability or the validity of thigihts in question. This could have an adverse impac
the Group, its business activities, financial ctiodi income and its development.

Historically, the average selling price of the Grop’s semiconductor products have tended to
decrease over time. This trend could become more gnounced in the future.

The semiconductor industry is characterized byificgamt sales price erosion, which is particularly
acute once a product has been on the market foe sone and as volumes increase over time.
Therefore, the average selling price for semicotafusolutions is on a downward historical trend.
Although this trend is generally slowed down orreeéfset by the introduction of new generations of
products integrating several functionalities, iulcbbecome more pronounced in the future and the
Group could be unable to offset this drop in priaéh an increase in volume or the development of
new or enhanced semiconductor solutions on a tiraety cost-effective basis, or even to reduce its
costs, which would prove particularly difficult csidering the Group is entirely dependent on
subcontractors for the manufacturing, assemblytinggsand shipping of its products. Even if the
Group were able to achieve either of these goailg, rasulting improvements still might not be
sufficient to offset the decrease in prices.

These events, if they were to materialize, wouldehan adverse impact on the Group’s gross margin
and, therefore, on its income, financial conditiord development.

The Group could face higher costs for the manufacting of its products and be unable to pass
such higher costs on to its customers.

The semiconductor business is characterized byioggmmpetitive pricing pressure from customers
and competitors, generating a limited capacityasspthe increase in the cost of the Group’s preduct
to its customers. Consequently, any increase inmhaufacturing costs of the Group’s products,
whether related to adverse purchase prices, yisldragpancies or other factors, could reduce the
Group’s gross profit margin and operating incomee Group and its subcontractors have entered into
framework supply agreements, which often provideafo annual price negotiation. Consequently, the
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Group could be unable to either obtain price redust or to predict or prevent price increases
imposed by its suppliers, in particular due to thet that the Group relies on a limited number of
suppliers for the manufacturing, assembly, testing) shipping of its products.

These events, if they were to materialize, wouldehan adverse impact on the Group’s gross margin
and, therefore, on its income, financial conditiord development.

Most markets in which the Group operates are charaerized by large customers with significant
market share and buying power who may use a numbesf companies to develop and provide
semiconductors, which perform similar functions aghe Group’s products.

Several of the Group’s targeted markets, partibuléne security solutions market for mobile
handsets, payment cards and conditional access frarBay TV, are characterized by the presence of
sizeable customers with significant market shackekarying power.

In some markets where the number of customersiselil or where customers use several suppliers,
the Group’s competitors could increase their volsiteethe Group’s detriment, which could lead the
Group’s customers to seek to renegotiate the finanonditions of their contracts to their advamtag

These types of events, if they were to materialveyld have an adverse impact on the Group, its
business activities, financial condition, incomel a@evelopment.

The Group is dependent on certifications from third parties, such as Visa and MasterCard, in
order to sell its solutions for integration in someapplications, and could prove unable to obtain
or, as the case may be, lose these certifications.

The sale of some of the Group’s solutions requicempliance with standards and protocols
established by third parties and, in some instarecesrtification from those parties, granted foee
years and based on evaluations conducted by indepttaboratories. Although the Group considers,
as of the date of the Registration Document, tharet is a low risk that all or part of these
certifications will not be renewed or be obtaingdhis were to happen it could prevent the Group
from selling some of its solutions insofar as tfi@jed to secure the required certification andaas
result, would have an adverse impact on the Gritgippusiness activities, financial condition, in@m
and development.

The Group could experience setbacks in transitionigg to more advanced wafer fabrication
process technologies or in achieving higher leveld product integration in the design of its
semiconductors.

In order to secure and improve its competitivenéss,Group intends to continue to invest in the
development of increasingly “smaller geometriagt to achieve higher levels of design integration.
These ongoing efforts require the Group to regulanlange the manufacturing processes applied by
its foundry partners for its semiconductor solusiolmhe Group could experience setbacks and delays
as a result of its reliance on foundries to endarsg integrate new production processes. The Group
cannot guarantee that its contracted foundriessaiest and assembly subcontractors will be able to
effectively manage the transition to new processe they failed to do so, that it would be alde

find new subcontractors able to successfully coteplas transition. If the subcontractors upon whic
the Group relies are not able to complete thissitem toward smaller geometries on a timely basis,

if the Group is not able to achieve a higher lefahtegration in the design of its products otSdo
achieve this level of integration on a timely ba#igs could have an adverse impact on the Grasp, i
business activities, revenues, income, financiatltmn and development.
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4.2. Risks associated with the lack of ownership of anpdustrial infrastructure

The Group outsources the manufacturing, assemblygsting and shipping of its products to third
parties and one such third party could fail to fulill its obligations in a timely manner and in
compliance with set specifications.

The Group outsources the manufacturing, assemésting and shipping of its products to third
parties. As such, the Group relies on its supplierterms of quantity, quality, yield and costs of
services and products. The Group cannot maint@rséime level of oversight and control over these
outsourced operations as it would if these oparatiere carried out internally.

The Group relies on a limited number of suppliénsaddition, with respect to the manufacturing
process of its products, the Group typically opgawith just a single foundry, even though several
foundries can be qualified per category of produisssuch, the leading supplier of the Group,ofs t
five suppliers and its top ten suppliers, represe@27%, 61% and 71% of its purchases in fiscal year
2013 respectively, and 28%, 56% and 67% of its lpases in fiscal year 2012, respectively. The
supply agreements existing between the Group anohédin partners are usually signed for three to
five years and are, for the most part, renewaldiiyeevery year. If one of these partners decitied
terminate its relationship with the Group, to smm agreement with a competitor, or to change the
guantities it delivers to the Group or the conaisiaunder which the deliveries are made, this could
affect the Group’s ability to deliver its produdesits customers in a timely manner and in suffitie
volume, which would impact the Group’s sales anuhaige its business relations.

Any one of these events would have an adverse impathe business activities of the Group, its
revenues, results, financial condition and develkapm

On September 28, 2010, within the context of treuasition of the SMS business of Atmel Corp., the
Company entered into a supply agreement with LFouibusset SAS, modified by amendment
dated March 19, 2012, under the terms of which @mnpany undertakes to purchase, at pre-
determined prices, a minimum annual number of vgadietil September 30, 2014, while the Company
retains priority access to the manufacturing cdpisi of LFoundry. As of December 31, 2013, all of
the commitments have been met. Furthermore, in 2008, LFoundry Rousset SAS was subject to
recovery proceedingsrgdressement judiciaijethat led to court-ordered liquidation proceedings
(liquidation judiciaire in December 2013, and the aforementioned compaased all business
activities. During 2013, the Company found a qigdifalternate supplier with which it began doing
business, as a result of the difficulties LFounldousset SAS was experiencing.

If the foundries the Group relies on for the manufaturing of its products fail to provide
satisfactory levels of output or quality, the Groups reputation and its customer relationships
could be negatively affected.

The Group does not own any industrial facilitigs.droducts are manufactured, assembled and tested
by subcontractors, mainly by Global Foundries, TSM@8d UMC. Minor deviations in the
manufacturing process can result in substantiakedses in yields and in some cases, cause
production to be suspended. Changes in the manufagiprocess or the inadvertent use of defective
materials by the Group’s foundries can trigger@eyimanufacturing defects or result in lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields or unacceptabtéopmance.

Most of these problems are difficult to detectmiearly stage of the manufacturing process andicoul
be time consuming and expensive to correct. A fopmehich provides insufficient output levels, or
the existence of defects, integration problemstber performance-related problems associated with
the manufacturing of semiconductors could, in adudito its direct impact on sales and revenues,
damage the Group with respect to its customerioalstiips, tarnish its reputation or require theupro

to pay damages to its customers. If the Group’s®untpactors are not able to provide acceptable
products, the Group will have to find other subcactiors, which could take time and carry additional
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costs. These risks are increased for certain ptedac which the Group currently has only one
supplier.

These types of events, if they were to materiaizeuld have an adverse impact on the Group’s
business activities, revenues, results, financatiion and development.

4.3. Risks associated with the Group’s types of customer

The Group’s customers could decide not to integratéhe Group’s semiconductor solutions in
their products or their products could fail to be wmmercially successful.

The Group sells semiconductor solutions to origegiipment manufacturers (or “OEMs”) and to

smart card manufacturers who integrate them intir tproducts and also to original design

manufacturers (or “ODMSs”) that integrate the Graupemiconductor solutions in the products they
provide to OEMs. As such, the Group relies on OEMd smart card manufacturers to continue to
integrate its semiconductor solutions in their dimas of commercialized products.

First, the Group must invest a substantial amofieapital in the development of new semiconductor
solutions, with no guarantee that customers wilkcdethem and integrate them in their products
(which, if selected and integrated by customersults in a “design win”). Achieving design wins is
all the more important given that it is typicallery difficult for a customer to switch suppliers of
semiconductor solutions. An absence of design wiasefore would have an adverse impact on the
Group’s revenues, results and financial condition.

Once they are selected, the Group’s semiconductotians are usually integrated into the customers’
products at the design stage, before such produeténtroduced to the market. The Group has no
guarantee that the products marketed by its cusgm# attain commercial success. In addition, if
the Group’s semiconductor solutions contain defaffiscting their performance or their compliance
with certification standards after they have beslacted and integrated in the products of the Gsoup
customers, not only would the sales of these prsdioe directly and adversely affected, but such
customers could refuse to consider the Group’s gmmuctor solutions when they design new
products. If the Group’s semiconductor solutionsndd meet the expectations of its customers, or if
the products marketed by the Group’s customerddaiheet the expectations of their own customers
or are not accepted by consumers, the revenuestsrasd financial condition of the Group would be
harmed.

The Group generates a significant portion of its reenues through a limited number of
customers. The Group could fail to retain its key uastomers or to expand its business
relationships.

A significant portion of the Group’s total revenigeattributable to a limited number of customerd an
the Group anticipates that this could continue ¢othe case. These customers may decide not to
purchase the Group’s semiconductor solutions atalburchase fewer semiconductor solutions than
they did in the past or to alter the terms on wtliledy purchase its products. Insofar as a customer
represents a significant percentage of the Graagteunts receivable, the Group is exposed to she ri
of insolvency or late payment from any one of thé&®.of the date of this report, the amount of bad
debt is not significant (also see Note 14 of theedo the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Group for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013).

The top customer of the Group, its top five custaneand its top ten customers represented,
respectively, 29%, 54%, and 67% of its revenueshiehalf-year ended June 30, 2014, 23%, 49% and
64% of its revenues for fiscal year 2013, and 36%8p and 83% of its revenues for fiscal year 2012.
The loss of any key customer, a significant de@dasrevenues, or any issue with collection of
receivables from customers could impact the Grofipancial condition and the operating income.
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The Group’s customers could cancel their orders, @nge the quantities ordered, or delay their
production. The Group could be unable to accuratelyestimate the demand for its products and,
as such, either be unable to sell its inventory orconversely, be unable to satisfy customer's
orders.

The Group and its customers have not signed ang-term purchase agreements for committed
gquantities. All sales are made on a purchase draksis, which allows its customers to cancel, amend
or delay product purchase commitments with littteno notice to the Group and without penalty.
Given that production lead times often exceed timoumt of time required to fulfill orders, the
manufacturing process often begins in advance agdrer relying on an imperfect demand forecast for
every customer to project volumes and product e Group’s forecasts depend on the accuracy of
the forecasts prepared by its customers, changesiket conditions, changes in the Group’s product
order mix and demand for the products marketedtbyglstomers. Excessively optimistic forecasts,
obsolete forecasts due to changes in market conditior cancelled or delayed orders could
significantly impact the Group by triggering a sedddrop in revenues while the corresponding
production costs have already been incurred, anltré@s excessive or obsolete inventory that the
Group may not be able to clear.

Conversely, in the past, customers have sometinfestantially increased the size of their orderfwit
limited notice. If the Group were not able to aetaly predict this change and, therefore, not e ab
to meet the demands of its customers by the satlideacustomers could cancel their orders and
request damages or approach other competitoredardupply.

Any one of these events would have an adverse ingrathe Group’s business activities, revenues,
income, cash condition and, therefore, its findrmadition.

The Group provides solutions that offer its customes security features that third parties may
attempt to circumvent.

The Group’s core business is to provide semicomdsicisoftware and, more generally, platforms

intended to protect the integrity of the productserating functionality, the information stored hifit

the product and any communication within it. Theetutions are central to protecting the revenues,
business models and/or interests of the Group’someys. For example, such solutions include
preventing fraudulent bank payment card transastiprotecting national borders, ensuring that only
customers who pay for television content are altbw receive it and maintaining the security of

confidential information.

Considerable efforts can be deployed by those atiaghto breach the security of systems within
which the Group’s solutions are integrated. Anycgssful breach of the security of the Group’s
products or of the systems within which they aredgrated (whether or not due to a breach in the
security of the Group’s products) could cause fomnor other damage to the Group’s customers,
which would damage the reputation and the busiaetbgties of the Group.

The high level of complexity of the Group’s semicatuctor solutions could lead to unforeseen
delays or expenses as a result of undetected degect faulty design.

The Group’s semiconductor solutions are highly clemm@nd could contain defects or design errors
that, if significant, could impair their performanor prevent compliance with industry standards. If
such a situation were to occur, the Group couldrmble to correct these defects within a reasonable
time. Correcting these errors could cause delapsdduction or generate significant costs. Thik i$s
even more significant given that the Group outsesirthe manufacturing, assembly, testing and
shipping of its products to third parties and, ashs cannot maintain the same level of oversiglt an
control over these outsourced operations as iddbtihese operations were carried out internally.

If the design defects of the products marketedhsy Group are not identified until after they are
introduced to the market, additional costs couldimeurred due to product recalls, repairs and
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replacements. In addition, the Group typically pdeg one to three-year warranties on its products.
Therefore, the Group could be required to issuandg on its products and might face claims for
damages filed by its customers.

The occurrence of any one of these events woul@ lasvadverse impact on the Group’s business
activities, results, financial condition and deyateent.

4.4, Risks associated with intellectual property

The Group relies, to a large extent, on the excluse exploitation rights it holds in connection
with its intellectual property. However, for each d these rights, the Group could be unable to
secure the necessary scope of protection to guaraeta competitive advantage.

The Group relies, to a large extent, on its intdllal property rights in order to protect its protu
and technologies from misappropriation by others.

The Group, like other filers or requesters of letetlual property rights, could experience setbacks
obtaining patents, registering trademarks, or $egusther intellectual property rights. The issuanc
of a patent or the registering of a trademark, eatter a Patent or Trademark Office reviews the
request, does not absolutely guarantee either at&lity or enforceability. Indeed, the Group’s
competitors could, at any time, successfully disptlte issuance, validity or enforceability of the
Group’s patents, patents requests, registerednyadis or registered trademark requests in court or
the context of other proceedings that could, basethe ruling relative to said disputes, preveeirth
issuance, lead to their revocation or invalidatmmreduce their scope, or make it possible for
competitors to circumvent them.

In addition, to date the Group has not filed patgpplications or applications for other intelledtua
property rights in all countries in which it condsidts business. The Group’s ability to protect its
intellectual property rights represents a significexpense associated with, in particular, patent
application filing and patent renewal fees, compéna paid to inventors and the management of its
other intellectual property rights, thereby leadithg Group to study and select, on a case-by-case
basis, the States in which protection is requdstesed on its plans for each patent.

Consequently, the rights obtained could prove figaht to either ensure adequate protection or
secure a competitive advantage. In particular@ieup cannot guarantee that:

- the Group will be able to develop patentable kn@amh

- the know-how developed by the Group will be pateleta

- requesting patents, trademark registrations, agioioig other intellectual property rights of
the Group that are under review will effectivelysult in the issuance of certificates or that
such certificates, should they be issued, will cdlie same scope as that initially requested;

- the patents issued and trademarks registered inGtloep’s name, as well as the other
intellectual property rights it has been granted|, mot be disputed, invalidated, revoked or
circumvented, or will not be subject to a reduciioscope;

- the protection granted under the terms of the Gsoypatents, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights is and will remain btbenough to protect it from its competitors
and from the patents or other intellectual propeigits held by third parties and covering
similar technologies;

- employees of the Group will not claim rights, extanpensation or a fair price for inventions
or other creations in which they participated.

Situations the Group might face, which may prevefibom securing intellectual property rights fds i
know-how, its distinguishing features and/or iteatrons, or which may prevent it from peacefully
taking full advantage of them, could have an advengpact on the Group, its business activities,
financial condition, income and its development.
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In addition, the Group could be asked to grantnies on its patents in connection with its
participation in various standard-setting orgarizet.

The Group may decide to take legal action.

Third parties could use or attempt to use elemehthie Group’s know-how for which it holds an
intellectual property right, which would be detrintal to the Group and, as a result, could lead the
Group to taking legal action to enforce compliangigh its rights. However, the detection of
counterfeits is a difficult task and the Group aatrive absolutely certain that it will successfidiyoid
breaches and unauthorized uses of its know-howaiticular in foreign countries where its rightse ar
potentially not as extensive as they are elsewlmgreyen non-existent, or where a violation is amt
easy to detect.

In the context of its strategy aimed at increasiregvalue of its patents and other intellectuapprty
rights, the Group or its exclusive licensees (mealso refer to Chapter 20.8 of this Registration
Document for further information) can take legati@t against third parties to enforce compliance
with the Group’s patents. Therefore, the Group oarguarantee that either itself or its exclusive
licensees will not attempt to take new legal or mistrative action in order to enforce the monopoly
granted under the terms of its intellectual propeights (particularly its patents) and that, feliag
such actions, its intellectual property rights waidit be revoked, invalidated or reduced in scope.

Any dispute could result in significant expendisiend ultimately fail to secure the desired pridect
or sanction, which could have an adverse impacthen Group, its business activities, financial
condition, income and its development.

Legal action may be taken against the Group.

To this day, and insofar as possible, the Groupioas to conduct the preliminary research it deems
necessary for identifying potential pre-existinghts and, as a result, limit the risk for any disgu
prior to investing in introducing its various pradsi to the market.

However, it is possible that pre-existing third tggpratents or other intellectual property rightsyma
exist that could enable their holders to file aalegjaim for patent infringement against the Graitg,
industrial partners or its customers.

As such, the persons or legal entities to whichGheup has granted licenses or provided products or
services could be involved in litigation concernitig violation of patents or rights held by third
parties, in connection with such licenses, prodoctservices. Some of the Group’s customers have
already received notifications in writing from tthiparties seeking to enforce their alleged propnet
rights over certain technologies and recommendiiag) the Group’s customers obtain a license from
such third parties. In accordance with the termghefcontracts it has signed with its customers and
industrial partners, the Group could be requiredefend and compensate its customers or industrial
partners in the event that any legal action is na&gainst them based on an alleged violation of
intellectual property rights held by third partiés,connection with the Group’s patents, produgts o
services.

Therefore, the Group cannot guarantee with anyairgyt that its products do not infringe upon or
violate third party patents or other third partteitectual property rights, or that the industrgrstards
implemented by the Group do not violate third paidiats.

Any legal claim filed against the Group, irrespeetiof its ultimate resolution, could result in
significant expenditures as well as tarnish theupi® reputation and negatively affect its financial
condition. Indeed, if such legal actions were topoiesued to the full extent of the law, the Group
could be forced to:
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- stop selling or using the product(s) that dejgndn the disputed intellectual property in a
given geographic area, which could in turn redteesdvenue,

- secure a license from the holder of such intall@l property rights, which may not be granted
or granted under unfavorable conditions,

- amend the design of its products or servicesoortrademark infringement claims, rename its
products in order to avoid violating any third parttellectual property rights.

Such disputes could also hinder the Group’s busiaesvities or those of its customers or induktria
partners and, as a result, trigger a decreaseeisdles of its technologies and products. Thisdcoul
have an adverse impact on the Group, its businetbgtias, financial condition, income and its
development.

Limitations on the protection of the Group’s trade secrets and know-how.

It is also important for the Group to safeguardirgiathe unauthorized use and disclosure of its
confidential information and trade secrets.

While conducting its business activities, the Graopst often grant third party access to sensitive
information, which may or may not be patent pratdctin such cases, the Group enters into non-
disclosure agreements with these third partiesriteroto ensure that the latter undertake not to
misappropriate this information, engage in its uhatized use, or share this information with third

parties. Indeed, these non-patented and/or nom{pdle proprietary technologies, processes, know-
how and data are viewed as trade secrets that thepGims to protect via such non-disclosure
agreements.

However, these non-disclosure agreements only dGffeted protection and could fail to prevent a
third party’s unauthorized use of the Group’s tedbgies. Therefore, the Group cannot guarantee that
such third parties will comply with said agreemethst it will be informed in the event of a viatat

of said agreements or even that the compensatioaytpotentially receive will be sufficient enough
to offset the loss incurred, if only due to the amtoof time needed to secure such compensation.

Therefore, such access to its sensitive informaiias the Group at risk of seeing third parties€gp

the benefits from the intellectual property rightarering elements of the Group’s know-how, (i) fai

to maintain the confidentiality of the Group’s patble and non-patentable know-how, (iii) disclose
the Group’s trade secrets to its competitors or s&8d trade secrets to develop rival technologies
and/or (iv) violate said agreements, while leawimg Group without any adequate response to counter
such violations.

Consequently, the Group’s rights over its tradeetecand know-how may not provide the desired
protection against its competitors and the Groumoaguarantee with any certainty:

- that its know-how and trade secrets will not usrped, circumvented, shared without its
consent or used;

- that the Group’s competitors have not alreadyettgned know-how that is analogous or similar
in nature or purpose to those developed by the [ r@ud

- that no contractual partner or third party wéhp the benefits from intellectual property rights
associated with the Group’s inventions, knowledgmoome.

The materialization of all or part of these risksuld have an adverse impact on the Group, its
business activities, financial condition, incomel &s development.
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4.5. Legal Risks

To the Group’s knowledge, there are no other gavent, legal or arbitration proceedings, including
any proceedings that are either pending or thredtghat are expected to have or have had, inabie p
12 months, a significant adverse effect on the Gompr Group’s financial condition or profitability
(please also refer to Chapter 20.8 of this Redistrddocument for further information).

4.6. Financial Risks
4.6.1. Risks associated with currency exchange rates

A significant portion of the Group’s revenues andts payments made to suppliers are expressed
in U.S. dollars, while a large portion of its operting expenses and a number of its assets and
liabilities are expressed in other currencies, maiy in euros.

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. Dolahich is also the currency used to present its
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Group’sssaal, likewise, the payments made to its major
suppliers are, for the most part, expressed in D@&lars while a large portion of its operating
expenses and a portion of its assets and liabilgre expressed in other currencies, mainly inseuro
and to a smaller extent in British sterling. Congsgly, the Group’s operating income and cash flows
are subject to fluctuations due to changes in goreurrency exchange rates, primarily the U.S. &oll
to Euro exchange rate. For example, in the evextttie Euro/Dollar exchange rate fluctuates within
range of + 10% to — 10%, the Group estimates thatipact, in absolute terms and before any
currency hedging, would have been $216 thousandsooperating income and adjusted operating
income and $291 thousand on its shareholders’etprithe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. In
order to mitigate this risk, since 2009 the Growgs implemented an foreign exchange rate risk
hedging policy for these currencies for the purpo$emaintaining its profitability and its cash
condition. However, the Group cannot guarantee that risk coverage policy will protect it
efficiently from any fluctuations in exchange ra{ptease also refer to Note 3.1(a) entitled “Cutyen
Exchange Risk” of the Notes to the Consolidatedaiaml Statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013).

46.2. Credit risks, interest rate risks, and risks asgediwith cash management

As of the date of this report, the Group has notrexted any significant financial debt and, theref
believes that it is not exposed to a significask lssociated with interest rate fluctuations. Hawe
the Group plans to diversify its sources of finagcin the future by gradually relying on bank loans
which could result in exposure to this risk in theure.

The Group uses a conservative approach in its neamexgt of available cash. Cash and cash
equivalents include available cash and currennfifa instruments held by the Group (which, for the
most part, are French monetary SICA\B®¢iété d’Investissement & Capital Variglide open-ended
collective investment schemes), and time deposits)of December 31, 2013, available cash and
investment securities held by the Group were mamlgsted in financial instruments with maturities
of less than 12 months.

4.6.3. Risks associated with off-balance sheet commitment

The total amount of off-balance sheet commitmenth® Group as of December 31, 2013 was $5.9
million (against $28.7 million as of December 3012). These off-balance sheet commitments are
described in Note 33 of the Notes to the Consadi&inancial Statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013 and mainly correspond to commitrassociated with operating leases. The
Group’s main off-balance sheet commitment corredpdrto a commitment to purchase a minimum
number of wafers from LFoundry over an initial 4&mth period as from the acquisition date. As of
December 31, 2013, all commitments were met in. fidl addition, LFoundry discontinued all
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business activities and court-ordered liquidationcpedings grocédure de liquidation judiciaije
were brought against it in December 2013.

4.6.4. History of operating losses — Risks associated piitiiected losses
The Group has a history of operating losses that oéd continue.

The Group has accumulated losses over time andbmamnable to achieve or sustain profitability in
the future.

The Group was established in 1995 and has beermrimguosses since that time. Net losses rose to
$37.5 million in 2012 and to $27.6 million in 2018s of December 31, 2013, accumulated losses
since June 2005, the date on which the Group daoig its share capital reduction followed by a

share capital increase in the amount of €1 milleere $161.6 million.

In order to develop its products and ensure tisabuisiness expands, the Group believes significant
investment will be necessary, including researath development expenses and business, marketing
and administrative expenses. As a publicly tradedpmany, the Group will also incur additional legal
and accounting fees, as well as other expensesnnection with its listing on the stock exchange.
Furthermore, the Group could face unforeseen setb@omplications or shipment delays that may
generate additional expenses. As a result of thesktional expenses, the Group would have to
achieve and maintain higher revenues in orderatept its profitability. The positive growth treid
recent years may not be sustainable. AccordinglyGroup could be unable to ensure or maintain the
profitability of its business and, as such, couwdtmue to incur significant losses in the future.

4.6.5. Risks associated with fluctuations in the Compamgsenues and operating
income

Fluctuations in quarterly or annual revenues and oprating income, as well as difficulties in
forecasting them could cause the market price of thGroup’s shares to fall.

Historically, the Group’s revenues and operatingome have fluctuated significantly and are

expected to continue to do so in the future. A®sult, the comparison of revenue and operating
income over successive periods is not a reliablthodefor predicting future performance. In the

future, the Group’s revenues and operating incomédcbe insufficient to meet the projections of

market analysts and investors, which could caus@tice of the Company’s Shares to drop.

4.6.6. Risks associated with the absence of dividendibligtons in the near future
The Company has never paid dividends and does nolgm to do so in the near future.

To date, the Company has not paid out any dividémdts shareholders and does not intend to do so
in the near future. Unless the general sharehodldersting decides otherwise, it is expected that an
potential dividends will be reinvested in the Comypa

4.6.7.  Liquidity risks — Future equity capital requiremeind additional financing

The Group could be required to increase its shareapital or to seek additional financing in
order to ensure its continued development.

Since its creation, the Company has financed it®ldpment through equity, by carrying out share
capital increases targeted at venture capital famdsindustrial partners and, in February 2012hén
context of a public offering carried out in conjtina with the admission of its shares on the Euxbne
regulated stock exchange in Paris, France. Thepanas never relied on any significant bank loans.
Consequently, the Group believes that it is notoerg to a liquidity risk associated with acceletate
repayment requirements that may be contained taindsank loans.
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The Group conducted a specific review of its ligtyidisk and believes that it will be able to medt
of its upcoming payment obligations for the nextlive months.

The Group will continue to require financing in erdo develop its technologies, market its products
and carry out potential external growth transactidonder these conditions, it is possible that the
Group will not generate enough operating cash ftovenable it to self-finance its growth, which

would require the Group to seek other sources mdniting, in particular through share capital
increases or, more generally, calls for tenders.

The level of financing required and its allocatiower time depends on factors that the Group
generally cannot control, such as:

- higher costs and slower progress than those pedgjefiir its research and development
programs;

- expenses incurred in connection with preparingydil protecting and preserving its patents
and other intellectual property rights;

- spending required to meet the technological devednis in the market and to ensure the
manufacturing and marketing of the Group’s produss|

- new opportunities for developing new products oguatng technologies, products or
companies.

The Group may be unable to secure additional daphan it is needed and this capital may not be
available under terms acceptable to the Grouphdfrequired funds were not available, the Group
could be required to:

- postpone, reduce, or cancel research programs;

- secure funds through industrial partnership agredsrthat may force the Group to waive the
rights it holds over some of its technologies adurcts; or

- grant licenses or execute agreements under termsdld be less favorable to the Group
than those it could have obtained in a differemitext.

In addition, insofar as the Group raises capitaduh the issuance of new shares, the equity sttere
of its shareholders could be subject to dilutioebDfinancing, assuming it is available, could dso
costly and require the Group to comply with resitrec covenants. If one or more of these risks were
to materialize, it could have a significant advdarspact on the Group, its business activities, rfaial
condition, results, development, future outlookponrthe market price of the Company’s shares.

Lastly, over the course of the fougbarter of 2011, the Group signed factoring comsracEuros and
U.S. dollars with Natixis Factor, including a guatee fund and featuring an underlying credit
insurance contract. The contract, which coveredhaial two-year period, was extended a third year
over the course of fiscal year 2013 and is, upgiration, automatically renewable for an indefinite
term. Since the risk associated with recoveringaheceivables is now transferred to Natixis Factor
the receivables sold under this factoring prograenre longer accounted for in the Group’s balance
sheet. As of December 31, 2013, the receivable$ wele financed in the amount of $4.5 million
(against $12.3 million as of December 31, 2012)e Términation of these contracts could have an
adverse impact on the financial position of theupro

4.6.8. Risk associated with dilution

The Group could, in the future, issue new shares asther equity-linked financial instruments in
order to finance its development, or as part of itemployee and management incentives policies.

As indicated above in “— Liquidity risks — Futureuty capital requirements and additional

financing”, the Company may issue new shares or eguity-linked financial instrumenta order to
finance its development.
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In addition, within the context of its employee amdnagement incentive policies, the Company has
consistently, throughout its history, issued ornggd warrantsljons de souscription d’actionsr
“BSA(s)”), stock options and free shares. As sunhthe event that all the equity-linked financial
instrumentsare exercised in full and that all free shares tbhatain subject to a vesting period are
effectively acquired, 1,840,360 new shares woulisbeed, resulting in the dilution of approximately
5.4% of the current share capital (which represemtsfully diluted” share capital of EUR
14,376,683.20, split up into 35,941,708 sharesg Tompany will continue to issue or grant new
equity-linked financial instruments.

The equity interest of shareholders will be diluésda result of such transactions.
4.6.9. TaxRisks
4.6.9.1. Risks associated with the French research taxtcredi

In order to finance its business activities, themPany has opted for the French tax regime of the
Research Tax CrediC¢édit d'imp6t rechercher “CIR”), which consists of offering a tax creda
companies making significant investment in researdhdevelopment. CIR research expenses eligible
for the tax credit for research include, in patécu wages and salaries, consumables, services
outsourced to certified research institutions (jubk private) and expenses related to intellectual
property. The CIR for the 2013, 2012, and 2011afisears was equal to US$ 8.6 million, US$ 8.2
million, and US$ 7.1 million, respectively.

Even though the Group complies with the requireseagarding record-keeping and eligibility of
research expenses, the tax authorities may nelesthdecide to challenge the methods of calculation
used to determine the research and developmenhsapeeclared by the Company or to suspend the
CIR due to a change in regulations. If this weredour, it could have a significant adverse impact

the Group’s financial condition and development.

4.6.9.2. Tax loss carryforwards

The tax loss carryforwards of the Company were etpu&€153.4 million as of December 31, 2013
(against €125 million as of December 31, 2012)piimciple, these tax loss carryforwards can be
carried over indefinitely under the conditions atiéle 209-I paragraph 3 of the French General Tax
Code. However, this carryover right can be questioim the event that the interested company were
restructured or forced to change its business ¢th sun extent that it would qualify as a “profound
change” in business activities within the meanihéuicle 221-5 of the French General Tax Code, as
construed by the tax authorities. No deferred &setihas been recognized as a tax loss carryfarward
As of the date of this report, the Group cannotguize that the tax authorities will not attemptise

this provision as a basis to challenge its rightato loss carryforwards. If such a challenge were t
occur, it could have an adverse impact on the Gribaipesults, financial condition and development.

4.6.9.3. Risks associated with the Group’s internationairimsses

The Group conducts its business activities in maoyntries, and mainly in Europe, the Asia Pacific
region and in North America. As such, 90% and 86%he Group’s revenues were generated in
foreign countries in fiscal years 2013 and 2018peetively.

Due to this international presence, the Group jestt to taxation in many jurisdictions. The overal
tax liability borne by the Group in such jurisdarts depends, in particular, on the legal interfimia
of local tax regulations, on international tax tres, on the fiscal policy enforced in each of thes
jurisdictions and on the applicable transfer pgcpolicy. Changes in these tax regulations coulgha
an adverse impact on the Company’s overall taxliiplband its subsidiaries and, as such, on its
results, financial condition and development.
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The Group relies on the guidelines establishechbyQECD, particularly in terms of transfer pricing.
In so doing, the Group undertakes to review thegss of determination of these prices in an eftort
ensure the security of completed transactions. Kewes of the date of this report, the Group canno
guarantee that the tax authorities in the releyanmgdictions will not seek to challenge its tragisf
pricing policy. Such a challenge could have a Sicguit adverse impact on the Company'’s overall tax
liability and that of its subsidiaries and, consemjly, on its results, its financial condition aitsl
development.

4.7. Risks associated with the Group’s organizational sticture
4.7.1. Risks of dependence on key employees
The Group could lose key personnel and be unable aitract new qualified employees.

The Group’s future success will depend, in partjterability to attract, retain and motivate highly
qualified management, research and developmentesring and sales and marketing personnel. The
Group’s employees in research and developmentgeptea particularly significant asset as they are
the source of its innovations. The Group also plansecruit additional design and applications
engineers. The Group could fail to retain or att@oough technical and engineering personnel to
achieve its growth plans. Additionally, in orderdrpand its customer base and increase its sales to
existing customers, the Group will need to hireigaithl qualified sales personnel. Competitionha t
recruitment of qualified employees is intense, gitkee lack of qualified people in the Group’s secto
and the Group could be unable to retain or attrean.

If the Group were unable to recruit and train diedi employees quickly, its growth would be
affected. In addition, if the Group were unablerétain its existing employees, ensuring its future
development would be difficult. This would haveadverse impact on the Group’s business activities,
revenues, financial condition and future outlook.

4.7.2. Risks associated with growth management
The Group could be unable to successfully integratecquired companies and businesses.

The development of the Group relies on, in pardcuihe acquisition of additional companies and/or
businesses. The Group is unable to guarantee tbeessful integration of recently acquired
companies and businesses, the integration of &sraicd staff and, lastly, the projected impacuechs
synergies. Although the Group conducts due diligemork and takes integration steps prior to
completion of the acquisition, it could be confredht in particular, with integration problems and
difficulties establishing synergies, on both themional and staff levels, with events challengimg
liability of the Company, as a result of, in pautar, a higher number of labor or intellectual prap
disputes, with the loss of long-term customershlie failure to achieve the objectives set withie
context of its acquisitions, and with difficulti@nsuring there is no interruption in the provisan
services to customers of acquired businesses.

These types of events, if they were to materializeuld have an adverse impact on the Group’s
business activities, results, financial conditionl @evelopment.

In particular, the Group completed three acquisgisince 2010:
» Secure Microcontroller Solutions

On September 30, 2010, the Group completed thesitiga of the Secure Microcontroller Solutions
business of Atmel Corp (“SMS”).
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There is a risk of impairment of the assets acduimeghe context of the takeover of the SMS busines
that have been accounted for at fair value in torsOlidated Financial Statements (in particulag, th
acquired patents, masks and goodwill totaling #teamount of $9.9 million as of December 31, 2013
— please refer to Note 5 of the Notes to the Cadesteld Financial Statements established as of
December 31, 2013).

« Embedded Security Solutions
On December 1, 2012, the Group acquired Embeddeati8eSolutions (“ESS”).

In addition to the risks associated with the int#ign of ESS, there is a risk of impairment of &sse
acquired in the context of the acquisition of tHf&SEbusiness, which were accounted for at their fair
value in the consolidated financial statementsti@darly the intangible assets and goodwill stated
therein for a total amount of $34.6 million as ad@mber 31, 2013 — please also refer to Note Beof t
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementbkstted as of December 31, 2013).

+ Metaforic

On April 5, 2014, the Group acquired Metaforic frmenture capital funds for $11.6 million, which
was paid in cash on the date the transaction waspleted. In 2015, the Group could pay a
complementary amount of up to $4.5 million, proddeachieves certain business objectives in 2014.
Based in Scotland, Metaforic also operates in tiieo8 Valley in California. It is a leader in the
development of software obfuscation technologied ancryption-related security software for a
variety of industries, including the mobile paymant mobile banking markets.

In addition to the risks associated with Metafaicitegration, the acquired assets are also exgosed
an impairment risk.

Future acquisitions of companies, businesses, asser technologies could lead to difficulties in
integrating new entities, occupy the time and atteion of the management team and distract it
from the Group’s core business, dilute the equity bldings of existing shareholders or adversely
impact the Group’s financial results.

Within the framework of its external growth strateghe Group could seek to acquire additional
companies, businesses, or technologies in ordepmtinue developing its own business activities,
improve its competitiveness in its market or peatetnew markets. The Group cannot guarantee that
opportunities for acquisitions will be available thiat the acquisitions the Company may undertake
will be profitable and/or reach their expected objees. Furthermore, the completion of such
acquisitions may generate difficulties integratimgw entities, mobilize the management team and
distract it from the Group’s core business, dilthe equity holdings of existing shareholders or
adversely impact the Group’s financial results agisuch, have a significant adverse impact on the
Group.

If the Group fails to successfully manage its devepment, it could be unable to execute its
business plan and its income could be affected acdmgly.

The Group’s future income mainly depends on itditglio successfully manage its development and
growth.

In order to remain competitive and manage its dgraknt, the Group must constantly improve its

equipment and technologies and deploy significdfarts in terms of research and development,

requiring not only significant investments in thigea, but also investments in sales and marketing.
The Group could also be forced to make such investenbefore some of the benefits expected from
them can be attained. The return on investmentdceitiher be lower, or achieved more slowly than

expected, or not materialize at all, which couldatesely affect the Group’s operating income.
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In addition, the Group must constantly seek to ad@pmanagement policies, its administrative,
financial, and operating tools and systems, as aglits control processes. It must also adapt its
structure to the changes in technologies and tedgetarkets and, more generally, to changes in its
strategy, and recruit and train qualified staff.

If the Group is unable to efficiently manage itwelepment, it could be unable to take advantage of
market opportunities or to develop the productsrtiaeket is expecting, it could fail to maintain the
quality of its products, be unable to execute isitess plan, and be unable to adapt itself quickly
enough to its technological, competitive, and magrevironments. Any of these events, if they were
to materialize, would have an adverse impact ort@p, its business activities, financial conditio
results and development.

4.7.3. Risks associated with the restructuring of the @Grou

On March 6, 2013, INSIDE Secure announced the kngcof a plan to reorganize its worldwide
business activities. This plan must lower its ofiegaexpenses (in the context of the shift in the
Group’s strategic priorities for each of its maseby reducing its administrative and sales costs,
refocusing is research and development activitied enproving its operating efficiency. As of
December 31, 2013, INSIDE Secure finalized itsfgtadluction plan, which was rolled out both in
France and in select foreign subsidiaries.

If the expected future savings generated fromrémssructuring were lower than anticipated and & th
Group were unable to implement and maintain arciefit structure that were well-adapted to the
strategic and business challenges it faces, itamig financial condition, and development would be
adversely impacted.

4.7.4. Regulatory Risks

Because the Group provides cryptology solutions anservices, its takeover, the acquisition of all
or part of one of its business lines, or the crosyy of a threshold of one third of its share capital
could, among other things, require the prior authoization of governmental authorities.

The Group provides cryptology solutions and sesiides a result, pursuant to the provisions of the
French Monetary and Financial Code, a takeoveh@ef@ompany (within the meaning of Article L.
233-3 of the French Commercial Code) or the dioeghdirect acquisition of all or part of a busises
line of the Group by (i) a physical person than@ a citizen of a Member State of the European
Community (“EC"), or of a State party to the agresmon the European Economic Area that has
signed aconvention d'assistance administratiggmnvention on mutual administrative assistancéf wi
France, or an employee of a company with registeezdiquarters located in one of these States, or a
physical person with French citizenship that isaoésident of such States, in accordance witlclarti

R. 153-2 of the French Monetary and Financial C@&Non EC Investor”) or (ii) a physical person
that is a citizen of a Member State of the Europ@ammunity (“EC”), or of another State party to the
agreement on the European Economic Area that hasaiaconvention d’assistance administrative
(convention on mutual administrative assistanceh Wwirance, or an employee of a company with
registered headquarters located in one of thedesStar a physical person with French citizenshét t

is a resident of such States, in accordance wititl&R. 153-4 of the French Monetary and Financial
Code (an “EC investor”), could be subject to thempauthorization of the French minister resporesibl
for the French economy (pursuant to the terms dfcler L.151-3 of the French Monetary and
Financial Code). Similarly, the acquisition of mdhan 33.33% of the Company’s share capital by a
Non EC Investor could also be subject to prior arifation of the French minister responsible fa th
French economy. Prior authorization from the gomernts of other countries could also be required
for similar reasons. There is no guarantee thaetlagithorizations would be granted or that, if traén
the terms of such authorizations would not discgerrany potential acquirers. The existence of such
conditions precedent to an acquisition of the Camgpeould have an adverse impact on its share
price.
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4.8. Risks associated with the environment

The Group’s business activities are subject to cemtn environmental regulations regarding the
use of hazardous substances and the managementtsfiaste.

The Group’s business activity is subject to the Bo#lrective Restriction of the use of certain
hazardous substances in electrical and electrogigiggnen} (2002/95/EC) restricting the use of six
substances harmful to human health and the enveontrthat may be included in the chemical
composition of electric or electronic equipmentnedy four heavy metals (Hg, Pb, Cd and CrVI) and
two flame retardants (PBB and PBDE). Although threup does not manufacture its own products,
the Group ensures, to the extent possible, thasuppliers and subcontractors comply with this
directive. In this context, all of the Group’s sobtractors provide their ROHS reports on the prgluc
they deliver.

REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and restiie of Chemicalgis a French regulation
(CE No. 1907/2006) allowing for the identificatitmough registration and gradual elimination of the
most hazardous chemical substances (the substaetfe or in mixtures and products). Its mission is
to develop a better understanding of the uses efmatal substances produced or imported into the
European Union and to control the risks associafiéid their use. Under REACH, the Group imports
and introduces “articles” to the market that camtegrtain substances not intended to be discarded
under normal or reasonably predictable conditiord aonversely, does not market any “substance”,
or “mixture”, within the meaning of the REACH regtibns. The Group is therefore exempt from the
applicable filing requirements. REACH regulationsoarequire the disclosure of information to
customers in the event that SVHCSubstances of Very High Concerre found in an article in
concentrations higher than 0.1% of their mass.uffdlfits obligations, the Group regularly chedke
SVHC candidate list updated by the European Chdmiggency (ECHA) and takes all necessary
measures to confirm the compliance of its supplierder to ensure that the products it introduoes
the market do not contain such substances in ctnatiems higher than the set level. The Group also
verifies the SVHC list as included in Appendix Xbf REACH in order to ensure that the Group’s
products are not exposed to the risk of being bémoen the market.

The directiveDéchets d'équipements électriques et électronidd@82/96/CE) (directive on waste
electrical and electronic equipment, or “WEEE")ssébrth that the producers are responsible for
organizing and financing the collection, treatmantl valuation of their products at the end of their
life cycle. In order to avoid the risk of any radtpollution, a specialized third party company
reprocesses all of the waste from equipment andugts. In addition, whenever necessary, the Group
reprocesses wafers and masks via outsourcinghiodgpiarty service provider.

Compliance with these regulations is expensive amgd restrictions in addition to these regulations
would generate additional costs for the Group. Harrhore, the regulations are complex and any
violation by the Group could lead to payment okfiror penalties or trigger liability claims agaiitst
These events, if they were to materialize, wouldehan adverse impact on the Group’s financial
condition and development.

4.9, Other risks

Some natural disasters, such as floods, earthquék@samis, or volcano eruptions, could cause
damage to the industrial equipment of the supptiemshom the Group outsources the manufacturing,
assembly, or testing of its products and could atagse damage to the direct or indirect suppliérs o
these subcontractors. It could disrupt operaticasise delays in the production and delivery of its
products or trigger expenses due to repair, replang or other needs. For example, most of the
Group’s semiconductors are manufactured and asesdnhlyl subcontractors located in Asia. The risk
associated with earthquakes and tsunamis in thismrés significant due to the geographic proximity
of major seismic fault lines to the location of tplants of the Group’s subcontractors and to the
location of their own suppliers. Even if these ptanwere not directly affected, a major natural stisa
would undoubtedly impact the industry’s supply atistribution chains. Any disruptions resulting
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from these events could cause significant delaysarproduction or shipping of the Group’s products
as well as significant increases in shipping castil the Group is able to transfer the manufaouri
assembly, testing and shipping of its products fthenaffected subcontractor to another one.

Such events, if they were to materialize, wouldehawn adverse impact on the Group’s business
activities, results, financial condition and deymteent.

4.10. Changes in legislation and tax and regulatory polies

The Group’s business activities are subject tortble of a change in legislation, tax policies or
regulations. These changes could have a signifieaverse impact on the Group, its business,
financial condition, results, development and fatautlook.

4.11. Insurance and risk coverage

The Group has secured insurance policies with uarniesurance companies in order to cover all of the
significant risks it is exposed to. Most of theiks are covered by insurance policies subscribed i
France. The Group also has specific and/or locakm@me in order to comply with regulations
applicable in certain locations.

These insurance policies are reviewed on a refpalsis and adjusted, as the case may be, in order to
account for a change in revenues, in businessitasivexercised, and in the risks the various
companies of the Group are exposed to.

In addition, the Group has implemented internalvengative mechanisms aimed at maintaining
operations and limiting the impact of a significdoss in the event of a major disaster. As such,
several secure data backup systems have been jmléide to protect source codes and all of the
electronic data kept on servers and workstatiotiseadffices of the various entities of the Group.

4.12. Insurance policies
In 2013, the Group recorded an amount of EUR 4844hAnd for all of its insurance policies.

In the 2013 fiscal year, the amount of insurandeies applicable to the entire Group can be broken
down in the following way per major risk category:

- All of the companies of the Group benefit from aatrance policy covering their professional
civil liability and the products, representing EURS5 million in aggregate guaranteed
coverage.

- An insurance policy also covers the civil liabiligssociated with the operation of the
Company and of its subsidiaries, representing EWRmMllion in aggregate guaranteed
coverage, and a professional multi-risk insuranakécy (which covers operating losses and
damages to goods) representing EUR 94 million gregate guaranteed coverage (sum of all
ceilings set per claim).

- The Group also took out an insurance policy cowgtire risks associated with the liability of
the directors and corporate officers of the Compamy its subsidiaries, representing EUR 20
million in aggregate guaranteed coverage for 2013.

The Group also benefits from an insurance policyedag the transportation of its staff and its

merchandise, as well as the IT-related risks basedhe overall value of its IT equipment. The

amounts borne by the Company and its subsidiaritssrespect to local insurance plans that comply
with legal and regulatory requirements applicalieeach country must also be added to these
insurance totals.
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5. INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
5.1 History and Development of the Company

5.1.1 Legal and business name of the Company
The Company’s legal name is “INSIDE Secure”. Theislen to change its name from “INSIDE
Contactless” to “INSIDE Secure” was made at therd&btdinary Shareholders’ Meeting dated
November 15, 2010.

5.1.2 Place of registration and number
The Company is registered with the Trade and CoiepaRegistry registre du commerce et des
sociétéy of Aix-en-Provence, France, under the registratiomber 399 275 395.

5.1.3 Date of incorporation and term
The Company was incorporated on November 30, 1804 period of 99 years beginning on the day
of its registration in the Trade and Companies &egi or December 29, 1994 and, barring early
liquidation or extension, ending on December 28320

5.1.4 Registered office of the Company, legal form, andegning law
The Company is incorporated under the form of a¢hisociété anonyme a directoire et a conseil de
surveillance(joint stock company with a Management Board ar#lpervisory Board) governed by

French law and operating pursuant to articles b-28t seq.of the French Commercial Code.

The registered office of the Company is locatedRa¢ de la Carriere de Bachasson — CS 70025 —
Arteparc Bachasson — 13590 Meyreuil, France.

The contact information for the Company is thedwiing:

Email: info@insidefr.com
Website: www.insidesecure.com
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5.1.5 Key events in the development of the Company’sriass activities
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5.2 Investments

5.2.1 Main investments carried out in the last threedlisears
In addition to the capital expenditures associatitd research and development and the acquisition o
companies or businesses, the Group’s investments mainly aimed at acquiring various tangible

property, licenses, and software as well as atal@ing some R&D expenditures.

The Group’s capital expenditures (excluding actjoiss of companies and businesses) over the
course of the past three fiscal years can be brd&em as follows:

(in thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Purchase of property and equipment 4,367 2,119 4,556
Purchase of intangible assets 1,029 2,718 1,101
Capitalized development costs 1,188 973 3,402
Total 6,584 5,810 9,059

Industrial investments

Since the Group does not have a manufacturing essjnt does not need to invest in manufacturing
and assembly.

The Group also subcontracts the testing of wafedschips to third party partners, located mainly in
Asia. Generally, the subcontractors own the prodhacidling equipment. However, the Company is
sometimes required to purchase and keep testingragat, in particular to comply with the security
processes associated with the Group’s targetedatsafik particular the payment cards market).

In addition, for the purposes of its research aetletbpment and the management of industrial
preproduction, the Group owns a testing center piatotypes and preproduction models on its
worksite in Meyreuil. Historically, the assets adated with these investments are funded through
equity financing.

Lastly, in 2013, within the context of its corparatestructuring project, the Company decided to
consolidate the three operating worksites locatedhe Aix-en-Provence region into one single
worksite. Therefore, the Company made significamt-recurring expenditures in order to prepare and
equip the building, in particular investments itvmark and computer data storage.

Portfolio of mask sets

Part of the Group’s research and development siesvtonsist in the development of semiconductors.
The tangible result of this development is a sehafks used by the third party foundries that suppl
the Company. During the research and developmeaseyhexpenses committed are recorded as
expenses for the fiscal year, which is the sameeearding the sets of masks developed before the
industrialization of products.

Technology licenses

Throughout its development, in addition to its lietetual property, the Group relies on technologg a

intellectual property rights licensed by third pest This is the case, in particular, for some
technologies integrated into its semiconductorsvai as for the systems and the design of its
software. Typically, licensing agreements are naeitessive and granted in exchange for the payment
of fees calculated based on the Group’s sales wduwnin exchange for a fixed amount paid for upon
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execution. In this latter case, the licenses aatedtin the balance sheet (as intangible assetk) an
amortized over the term of the license or, shoultkishorter, its economic life term as estimated b
the Company.

Over the past three years, intangible investmeepsesented were mainly comprised of licenses
signed with ARM Limited relative to microprocessor cores and with Sili@iarage Technology (or
“SST”, a subsidiary of Microchip Technology Incélative to flash memory technology. The Group
uses these technologies in order to develop nedupts without being responsible for designing the
entire microcontroller and its embedded memory.

Acquisitions of companies and businesses

In the context of its development, the Group alsquares companies and businesses. These past three
years, the Group has made the following acquisition

Embedded Security Solutions (“ESS”)

On December 1, 2012, the Group acquired the Emloe8eéeurity Solutions (“ESS”). ESS designs
and develops encryption-related security hardwatedleéctual property (IP) and software for a variet
of industries, including the mobile and networkintarkets. Its revenues are generated through
licenses, royalties, services and maintenance feesrder to acquire the ESS business, INSIDE
Secure paid out US$ 46.8 million, net of cash aegliPlease also refer to Note 5 of the Notesdo th
Consolidated Financial Statements for further imfation.

Metaforic

On April 5, 2014, the Group agreed to pay ventagital funds US$ 11.6 million to acquire 100% of
the shares comprising the share capital of Metafditnis amount was paid in cash upon execution of
the transaction, and in 2015 the Group may pay xirman additional amount of US$ 4.5 million
based on reaching certain business targets s20iet. Based in Scotland with additional worksites i
California’s Silicon Valley, Metaforic specialize the development of software obfuscation
technologies and encryption-related security saiwar a variety of industries and, in particulénre
mobile payment and mobile banking markets.

(please also refer to section 6.1.4 entitled “Asijigins”, to Note 5 of the Notes to the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements in section 20titled “Historical financial information”, and to
Note 7 of the Notes to the Group’s Half-year Coitsteéd Financial Statements in section 20.6
entitled “Interim financial information” of this Rgstration Document).

5.2.2 Main current investments

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetiite Group has not undertaken any investment it
deems either significant or outside the normal sewf its business.

5.2.3 Main future investments
As of the filing date of this Registration Documeihie Group’s management body have made no firm

commitment pertaining to significant investmentsimvestments outside the normal course of its
business.

1 ARM Limited is the world leader in the developmefisemiconductor IP blocks and, in particular, oigessor cores for
embedded systems (mobile telephones, in particular)
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6. BUSINESS
6.1 General overview
6.1.1 Presentation and history

INSIDE Secure designs, develops and sells embesiel@drity systems for smartphones, tablets, and
other devices connected to the Internet, in or@ratect transactions, content, and communications

The Group sells:

» semiconductor hardware solutions that, in particuiategrate secure microcontrollers and
electronic solutions enabling secure data storage,

» software, particularly embedded software providimg secure management and communication of
data as well as cryptography algorithms, and,

 intellectual property blocks that its customersegmate into the semiconductor platforms of its
customers.

These solutions rely on the Group’s know-how imerof analog and digital semiconductor design
and embedded software, as well as its expertigharsoftware design of security and certification
applications.

The Group is built around two complementary divisionamely the Mobile Security and Secure
Transactions divisions, both of which rely on arsdaplatform for research and development,
intellectual property, industrial operations, teicahsupport, and sales:

» the Mobile Security division, which applies all tife Group’s expertise to all of the security
associated with mobile communication, and offersomprehensive range of embedded security
solutions for mobile devices. This range include$tveare, hardware, as well as intellectual
property able to meet the growing need for secwsdlutions on all mobile platforms, thereby
securing mobile payments, content protection, feaes and data storage. This represents a
potential market of US$ 1.5 billiénand

» the Secure Transactions division, which combinksfahe Group’s expertise in security with all
of the transactions occurring in the universe &iggl via connected machines, the Internet of
things, smart cards, and identification and paynsehitions. This represents a potential market of
several billion U.S Dollar’s since over 16 billion devices are currently cartied to the Internét
This operating division develops custom solutioal/ing on secure microcontrollers, secured
embedded software, and related services.

Historically focused on microcontrollers developteiNSIDE Secure has gradually expanded its
offer to include intellectual property and softwaBince 2012, this expansion has grown larger bad t
Group intends to continue in that direction.

As such, INSIDE Secure is the only market playenusianeously offering hardware-only-based
solutions (based on secure microcontrollers), saftvwonly-based solutions, and a combination of both
hardware and software, in addition to a broad let&lal property solutions portfolio.

2 sourceINSIDE Secure estimates, July 2014
% Source INSIDE Secure estimates, July 2014
* SourceiMS Research, August 2012
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In 2013, the Group generated US$ 154.6 millionamenue. Over 300 million devices integrating
INSIDE Secure products (hardware, software, an@t@)sold annually throughout the world.

As of July 31, 2014, the Group employed 338 persorisurope, Asia, and the United States, and
owns nearly 700 patents representing approxima@Qypatent families.

With respect to the microcontrollers designed e @roup, INSIDE Secure operates according to a
fabless model in which the manufacturing, assemhbly] testing are subcontracted to external
partners, including foundries (companies speciaizn the manufacturing of semiconductors for third

parties).

6.1.2 Key business strengths

INSIDE Secure has, to its knowledge, the most ceimpmsive security solution on the market,
combining hardware, software, and IP blocks. Timabées the Company to be a key partner, able to
meet all of its customers’ security needs for aypetof mobile or connected device, and to offetesta
of-the-art solutions adapted to all applications.

Mainly intended for the mobile and connected dewvicarket, its solutions and technologies are
designed to meet current and future security requénts while adapting to architectural and
certification challenges.

The Company is uniquely positioned to provide sohd for not only the three key mobile security
market drivers, namely:

» Enterprise Secure Access,
» Digital Entertainment Content Protection, and
» Financial Services and Mobile Payment,

but also for the anti-counterfeiting and InternieThings markets..

Due to its long-standing experience in the securigrket, INSIDE Secure has developed first-rate
expertise in the field. The Company offers manyified products and works closely with certificatio
authorities and bodies. It has also fostered ainnbvative tradition in microcontroller architeots
and RF/analog design, while acquiring a deep utalgisg of both its customers’ needs and security
certifications, which it has relied on to shape theection of security solutions for embedded
environments. The Group’s policy has been instruaién securing its large patents portfolio, which
currently includes approximately 700 patents.

6.1.3 Growth strategy
INSIDE Secure’s strategy is currently focused ameagng four main areas:

* To become a key player in the mobile security ityu@vobile Security division),

» To establish a presence in the emerging Intern&hofgs and anti-counterfeiting markets (Secure
Transactions division),

» To establish a strong market position in the Uniftdtes as the country’s payment industry
migrates to the EMV standard (Secure Transactiosisiah), and

* Leverage and monetize its technology and intelidgbuoperty rights, particularly those based on
the NFC technology (Mobile Security division).

For each of these strategic areas, INSIDE Secuotesds to systematically explore the best approach
allowing it to optimize how it meets customer neadsd the return on investments and on capital. As
such, and as has been done in the past, the Compaimgains a process of analysis aimed at
selecting, for each major investment, the bestaar between internal developments, partnerships
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and, as the case may be, targeted acquistions,comaination of these means, while taking into
consideration the fast changing ecosystem in wiielGroup operates.

a) To become a key player in the mobile security inddisy

All types of mobile devices have a need for seguttiSIDE Secure offers a comprehensive range of
products (hardware, software, and IP) that meetribeds of its customers and are designed to
overcome upcoming architectural and certificatistantinuities.

As such, the Group aims to develop its productroifgin order to support the development of the
three main uses its technologies have establishtgbimobile security market, namely:

» the secure access to companies’ systems througBrihg Your Own Device or “BYOD” trend
(via Virtual Private Networks or “VPN(s)”, for exaie),

» Digital Entertainment Content Protection (via DajjiRights Management or “DRM”), and
» Financial service and mobile payment (via Host G&railation or “HCE").

Relying on its expertise and technology, the Grplgns to contribute to the definition of future
standards in mobile security, of hew mobile seguatchitectures and certification schemes. In
particular, INSIDE Secure is convinced that theligpfion processor (or host processor) will become
the “heart” of mobile security and is developingraduct strategy based on that assumption.

b) To establish a presence in the emerging Internet dfhings and anti-counterfeiting
markets

The Internet of Things and anti-counterfeiting nedsk are booming. The ability to connect,
communicate with, authenticate, and remotely manageinnumerable number of networked,
automated devices and equipment via the Interrtsédeming pervasive, from the factory floor to the
hospital operating room to the residential basepsend regardless of whether the connected thiag is
fridge or a wine bottle. The 2 main challengessa®eurity and privacy.

For example, according to market anal}s28% of the wine sold throughout the world is deufeit.
Some statistiésshow that this number could be as high as 50%iimesAsian countries, especially for
high-end French wines. In the spirits market, iessimated that 25%of European imports in some
Asian countries are counterfeit, which serves asfpthat refilling empty high-end bottles is novweth
gold standard for counterfeiters, which is espéctalie in China, the number one red wine consumer
in the world. As such, an empty bottle of grand kaffitte could, on average, sell for US$ 450. In
order to counter this phenomenon, INSIDE Securethedelgian company Selinko joined forces to
develop a solution that combines an authenticatechanism with the deactivation of the tag when
the bottle is opened. The chip confirms that thesake on the bottle has not been tampered with and
that the cork has not been removed.

® Source: Robert Taylor, Wine Spectator, Novembe2p13

® Source: Jim Boyce, Matured two years: Nick Bartimamvestigation of fake wine, other IPR issue€inina,
June 3, 2012, http://www.grapewallofchina.com/206233/matured-two-years-nick-bartmans-investigatién
fake-wine-other-ipr-issues-in-china/ and http:#irh.china.org.cn/business/txt/2011-
12/05/content_24079033.htm

" Source: Spirits Europe, http://www.spirits.eu/pabe?id=80&parent_id=30
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Generally, INSIDE Secure develops and sells a rarigeardware and software solutions aimed at
securing and protecting the privacy:of

» Communication, in order to enable information exgebetween devices,

» Sensors, in order to capture and represent thagahygorld in the digital world

» Actuators, to perform actions in the physical waridggered in the digital world (thermostats or
garage door remote controls, for example),

» Identification, to bring unique physical object mdiéication to the digital world (as an anti-
counterfeiting measure, for example),

» Storage for data collected from sensors, identificaand tracking systems,

» Devices for interaction with humans in the physwwalld (access control, for example),

* Processing systems used in data mining and serands

» Localization and tracking for physical world lo@atidetermination and movement.

c) To establish a strong market position in the UnitedStates as the country migrates to
the EMV standard

Relying on its experience in Europe, the Middle tE#sia, and Latin America, INSIDE Secure
intends to position itself in the North Americanniet as the latter migrates to the EMV standard, du
to its long working history in the North Americaortactless payment industry.

Initiated by Visa and MasterCard, and in orderightf against soaring fraud, the payments industry i
the United States has decided to migrate towardhttve secure EMV (Europay MasterCard Visa)
standard. As a result, a number of financial ingths began issuing EMV smartcards in the context
of a specific launch of this standard on US teryity the end of 2015, the cost of fraud resulting
from transactions carried out via payment methbds do not comply with the EMV standard will be
charged to the bank that failed to complete itsratign (either the user’'s bank/card or the vendor’'s
bank/reader). As from that date, the various pkyell have no other choice than to use cardsdhat
compatible with the EMV standard.

INSIDE Secure has developed a new range of prodbatsis specifically adapted to this standard.
The products have delivered encouraging perfornsgaaoe, in particular, faster card personalization
than its competitors.

d) Leverage and monetize its technology and intellectih property rights, particularly
those based on the NFC technology

As a pioneer of the NFC technology, INSIDE Secuomsaders that it owns several key NFC
technology patents. In June 2012, the Group anmaltiee launch of a plan to license part of its NFC
patents in partnership with France Brevets (a Eemopinvestment fund specialized in patent
promotion and monetization).

According to the terms of this agreement, Franay@ts is in charge of all operations associateld wit
the NFC licensing program, and liaise with manufeats of NFC devices and, in particular, mobile
devices.

The growing penetration of NFC technologies in gptanes (now a de-facto feature) and positive
progress in implementing the program should geaeravenues starting in 2014. In that respect,
France brevets announced on August 18, 2014, iekeuted a NFC patent license agreement with the
Korean mobile handset maker LG Electronics (LG)pad of the NFC license program managed by
France Brevets, which includes INSIDE Secure’s Na&nts.

8 Source: Security and Privacy Challenges in therivet of Things, Christoph P. Mayer, 2009.
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In June 2014, the extension of the license INSIDEEUSe had initially granted Intel, and its
development into a broader and fully paid-up li@eapon execution, as well as the transfer of INSIDE
Secure’s next generation NFC modem technologytt, lare further examples of this strategy aimed
at monetizing and growing the value of the Grol=C technology and intellectual property rights.

6.1.4 Acquisitions

In addition to its organic development strategySINE Secure has for long been committed to a
targeted acquisitions policy. Since 2010, INSIDE®8e has completed three acquisitions consistent
with the strategic development of its range of eddleel security solutions.

* The acquisition of Atmel's SMS (Secure MicroconeolSolutions) business in September 2010
contributed complementary technologies to its seauicrocontrollers operations, including in
certified environments.

* The acquisition of Authentec’s Embedded Securitjuttans (ESS) division in December 2012
enabled INSIDE Secure to acquire further expentbdle broadening its intellectual property,
software and services portfolio, by relying notyooh a secure element, but also by enhancing the
security of the application processor (or “hostoggsor”).

» In April 2014, the acquisition of Metaforic, a coany specialized in the development of software
obfuscation technologies and encryption-relatedurityc software for a variety of industries,
expands the portfolio of solutions of INSIDE SecsiMobile Security division.

Due to these acquisitions, INSIDE Secure belieweswns the most comprehensive range of
embedded security products in these markets. Pldaseaefer to section 5.2 entitled “Investments”,
Note 5 of the Group’s Notes to the Consolidatedifamal Statements included in section 20.1 entitled
“Historical Financial Information”, and Note 7 dfig Group’s Notes to the Consolidated Half-year
Financial Statements included in section 20.6 ledtit‘Interim Financial Information” of this
Registration Document.

6.2 Principal markets
6.2.1 Overview

INSIDE Secure’s embedded security solutions ardt lmio devices early on in the electronic
equipment and applications’ design process in oragmovide security to the transfer and exchange
content, transactions, and communications.

The substantial growth observed in the global ntafee mobile devices, including smartphones,
tablets, and handheld computing devices and tiseis,.creates a tremendous opportunity for INSIDE
Secure. As a matter of fact, all of these prodootsdd potentially require security to protect thehite
transactions they complete and the content they. Adgs relates to the development of streaming
technologies, which revolutionizes the way in whilsh consumer can access audio and video content,
problems associated with the security of compamiedile financial services, mobile payments, or the
booming Internet of Things.
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6.2.2 Mobile security
As presented below, security and privacy requirdmare omnipresent in the use of mobile devices.
Being able to implement the best security cond#ipassible within a mobile device requires expertis
in various fields: systems and hardware, softwamne, IP blocks.

Anatomy of a Hacked Mobile Device: How a hacker can profit from your smartphone
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* Source - Sophostobs
*Source : 2013 Cost of Dafo Breach Study, Poneman Insfitue
? Spurce -What's the Wiorst LS. Cify for Smartphone Thed®, Mashobile

The Company believes that this represents a patantirket of US$ 1.2 billion in 2034assuming
that, on the one hand, 1.2 billion connected mobéeices (Smartphone and Tablet) are sold per
year® (a 40% increase from 2012 to 28%3and that, on the other hand, an average budget of
approximately one US Dollar is allocated to seguut each device.

° Source: INSIDE Secure estimates, July 2014
1 Source: Gartner, February 2014
" Source: Gartner, February 20Bmartphones et Tablettes 2013
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The Group has identified three business segmeivisgidemand in this marke

» Providing security to professional access to bissieg as a result of the trend toward the “B
Your Own Device” or BYOD model

* DRM Content Proteatin, ant
» Security needs in the financial services industrgluding mobile payment and th-wallet.

M Payment
e-government

e 3 ) «0»

VPN Secure ) Application
communication R

DRM Content
Protection

6.2.3 Secure transactio

The secure transactions market includes severtdrelift market segments and application fie
requiring a foundation of statd#-the-art knowledge on which INSIDE Secure has builteitpertise
By launching a full range of secure microcontr@|eiNSIDE Secure decided to focus its proc
offering on several of these market segments|ustrihited belov
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The Companyconsiders that this represents an aggregate amodahtial market of over US$
billion™. It also estimates that, overall, this potentiatket will grow by 10% per ye:

6.2.3.1 Secure Internet of Thin

* Internet of Things
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“As from the day it was created, the Internet gaad unsuspected success and spread througho
world. Recently, major technological breakthrougtesiuce the amount of resources used
miniaturize the devices communicating on the Irgeridf, until now, the Internet was resen
exclusively for intezonnecting computers, telephones, or tablets, thesfenological advances ha
created a world in which one could imagine conmegtany type of object to the network. 1
revolution has been dubbed the “Internet of Thin

There are two main types obnnected devices. “Passive” devices typically agag (RFID chip ol
barcode) for identification purposes and, when seh with a mobile reader, offer access
information via a computer application. “Active” diees embed technologies able to conthem to
the Internet (a GSM module for the mobile netwdhk-Fi, Ethernet, Bluetooth, or Ic-energy
technologies).

According to Cisco, one of the global leaders itwek equipment, in 2008 the number of dev
connected to the Internet exceeded tlumber of persons on Earth. By 2020, it projectst
approximately 50 billion devices will be connectedan average of 6 to 7 devices per person.
network equipment provider estimates the valudefimternet of Things market will total US$ 1
trillion from 2013 to 2022.

One of the Internet of Things’ most significant ltéveages is security. The use of open technolc
allows for interoperability while also exposing ebjf to attack. This is why the security must b
integral part of the systns’ design in order to minimize risk. Thankfullye most sophisticate
computer security mechanisms developed until nawbeaadapted to the Internet of Things. Like
new technology, the Internet of Things can be fegimg, however the potentiaontributions to
society cannot be underestimate*?

This description of the security challenges assediavith connected devices is well aligned and
foundation for INSIDE Secure’s vision. The Groupeimds to rely on its technologies and k-how

2 5ource: INSIDE Secure estimates, July =
13 Source: Yannick Isellovacces— “L’Internet des objets: larochaine révolution numériqueThe Internet of
Things: the next digital revolutin

44



to benefit from the significant growth in the numiloé connected devices and, in so doing, become a
major player in this market.

6.2.3.2 Anti-counterfeiting

Counterfeiting is a practice with which the entwerld is concerned — not only does it cause an
increasingly significant revenue loss within therieas impacted industries, it also has a highly
adverse effect on brands and their image.

Faced with this challenge, many anti-counterfeitexhnologies based on optical systems have shown
their limits ever since the onset of laser and 3timg, which provide counterfeiters with new
methods with which to attack brands. In order ficieintly promote anti-counterfeiting, anti-refiti,

and secure traceability, electronic mechanismgiofiea reliable authentication system seem to take
the lead, such as solutions relying on a standachniblogy tested for over 20 years in the banking
industry. Each chip contains a certificate encrgpin the hardware, which can be read from an NFC-
equipped mobile telephone that contains a secyskcapon developed by INSIDE Secure, thereby
guaranteeing fully secured communication betweentéhephone and the chip. These solutions are
available for various industries such as luxurydgavines and spirits, fragrances and cosmetits, ar
design, and athletic equipment.

The International Chamber of Commerce (ICC) prgjettiat the worldwide value of counterfeit
merchandise could exceed US$ 1,700 billion in 2848 could result in the loss of 750,000 jobs per
year in the United States and 250,000 in Eutbpe

As a result, significant market opportunities ekistonnection with the need for security, whictdso
true even if based on pessimistic assumptions degarthe market penetration rate of security
solutions and the average revenue per protectadedev

6.2.3.3 Secure Payment

Pressured by MasterCard and VISA, the North Amerioarket is gradually adopting the EMV
standard. Most developed countries have alreadgtad@nd launched this technology.

In order to position itself in the North Americararket, the Group relies on its technologies as asll
on its ability to leverage its longstanding relaghip with the various players in the secure paymen
industry (such as payment service providers, baarkd,smartcard manufacturers).

This market is a significant one for the Group.ded, ABI Research estimates that 314 million pay
cards were distributed in the United States in 2014

6.2.3.4 Secure Access and Electronic ID Document

INSIDE-powered access control systems are deployettiwide. INSIDE Secure helps organizations
protect vital facilities, processes, and resouroascorporate grounds and university campuses.
INSIDE Secure’s solutions enable students, staifl, @nployees to use a single, all-purpose device
such as a smartcard or key fob to gain accessildings and ticketing services.

% http://money.cnn.com/2012/09/27/news/economy/certieit-goods
' Source : ABI Research, November 2013
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In the ID card market, the significant move towatdp-based solutions is also a powerful growth
driver (national ID cards, passports, driver’s fises, social security cards). IMS Research estsmate
that this market manufactured nearly 700 millioftsim 2014°,

6.2.3.5 PayTV

Subscription television is managed via a set-top. Aie key to the set-top box is the conditional
access system, which uses a smartcard to deceypttile or satellite signal and manage the customer
access.

PayTV cards are the most attacked form of smarscdue to the fact that there is a large and active
community of hackers and a significant customeeliaerested in acquiring pirate cards.

High-tech pirates, or hackers, try to break thegion coding by reverse engineering the smargard
disassembling them microscopic layer by layer t®@aéthe hardware circuitry and crack the software
coding.

The market for annual secure chips delivered fofTRais estimated at approximately 150 million
units™’.

6.2.3.6 Tokens

Smart USB tokens with built-in cryptographic pros@s are viewed as the most secure way to
implement user authentication and digital signatimea Public Key Infrastructure.

Digital Identification is used to reduce fraud aitbntity theft. It also eases citizen access to
government services and documents. For examplerding to Eurosmart, or the international
association for the Smart Security Industry, th&£2@orld market figures for smart secure devices in
government applications is forecasted to reach mdi@on units, with shipments up 14% from the
previous year.

6.3 Technologies and products

INSIDE Secure differentiates itself from its comipt through its ability to address security
challenges by developing comprehensive hardwafeyae, and IP solutions. In order to reach this
objective, and for each market segment, the Growksv directly with the leading device

manufacturers and operators/service providers gwiailsing with the leading platform providers.

1% Source: IMS Research - July 2012
17 Source: EuroSmart, October 2013

46



HARDWARE HARDWARE SOFTWARE SOFTWARE END-TO-END
SOLUTION
IP CHIPS OS and/or Middleware | Applications Software  and/or
(“microcontroller”) and/or Services| Hardware
IP Block to be| INSIDE Standard OS and/or Middleward Application or| Client-Server
integrated in| Hardware  Chipq running on  INSIDE| Services solution developed
Customer Chipq leveraging Standard  Chips __OR running on| as a partnership.
or reused in| Customer OS an{ Device Application| INSIDE
INSIDE Standard Middleware Processor Standard Chipg
Chips OR Device
Application
Processor
e.g.. Paymen
ﬁpplslcatlr(())r;eszr; e.g.: End-to-end
. e.g. Securq e.g.: JavaCard OS ¢ pps P Wine anti-
e.g.: Crypto Cell or Access .
Element VPN Agent C counterfeiting
ontrol applet .
solution.
on Secureg
Element
Examples of
Inside  Securs
fggd“CtSMJ{)‘i’lg“ VaultiP VaultSEcure BSi'\cAkg:?,ol\r/]fA'\ézgéXSSL' MatrixHCE
Security
division
Examples of
Inside  Securg
products  from AT90SC Ve_aulthlxx, VaultlC4xx, VauIFIC Perso CapSeal
the Secursg MicroPass Services
Transactions
division

6.3.1 Mobile Security Products
6.3.1.1 VaultSEcure

VaultSEcure is a state-of-the-art Secure Elemehitiea for embedded integration, designed for

mobile phones, tablets, desktop computers and MRMcline-to-Machine) capable devices. The
Secure Element embeds JavaCard® / Global Platforor@pliant operating system (OS) on a highly
secure microcontroller combining low-power consuoptwith high-performance. It is designed to

provide maximum security and interoperability wWiégacy and next-generation devices. VaultSEcure
benefits from both INSIDE Secure’'s unique expertisechip hardware and its experience in

developing secure chip operating systems, therabpling it to optimize the solution and its overall

cost.

In a mobile telephony context, VaultSEcure has likameloped to address Banking, Payment, Transit,
Access Control, Content Protection, Enterprise &lghlthcare applications. The solution meets
relevant industry certifications and complianceelsy including EMVCo, Payment systems &
Common Criteria.

6.3.1.2 Vault IP
VaultlP is a Secure Element delivered as a syrthbk Verilog RTL source code IP Block. VaultlP

is an embedded security platform that operateienigently as an SE and/or to fortify a TEE against
software attacks.

Implemented in Hardware IP, it comprises a tigimiggrated set of modules optimized for the ARM

architecture. VaultlP is not only giving to INSIDEustomers a time-to-market advantage but more
importantly is providing them leading edge secutéghnologies that would take years to develop.
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As a result, the VaultlP solution will be intrichténtegrated into the main processor of the etedtr
equipment (application processor), which thus bexothe security core for mobile devices.

6.3.1.3 Content Protection: DRM Fusion

To its knowledge, INSIDE Secure offers the industonly most comprehensive security solutions, on
both the client and server side, for all DRM (DagiRights Management) standards such as Microsoft
PlayReady, Windows Media DRM, or OMA DRM used f@ehsing, protecting, and monetizing
digital entertainment content and services.

The ability to enable content access at anytimgwhare, and from any device is a crucial success
factor for any digital content service. In ordemteet these consumer demands and achieve success in
emerging digital markets, broadcasters, contenvigeos, mobile operators, and service providers
must be able to provide a variety of purchasing@msumption models.

Only with the adoption of industry standards-basedurity solutions can broadcasters, mobile
operators and service providers stay in contrahefr DRM policies while providing consumers with
device and network agnostic feature-rich contemt services. The adoption of closed, proprietary
DRM solutions or Conditional Access Systems (CA®})ead ties broadcasters, mobile operators and
service providers to a single DRM supplier therefiimiting device and network interoperability and
leaves their consumers reliant on a DRM soluti@t ik not guaranteed for the long haul.

INSIDE Secure’s products in this field are thedoling: DRM Fusion Server, DRM Fusion Agent for
Embedded Deployment, DRM Fusion Agent for DownldaezDeployment, Microsoft DRM-based
Solutions and OMA Solutions.

6.3.1.4 Mobile Payment: MatrixHCE

MatrixHCE is targeted to allow Mobile Banking & Ragnt App developers to speed up their
development and time-to-market by combining host camulation (or “HCE”") as well as many
security software functions.

Relying on an architecture introduced by Android {KitKat) and recently adopted by the main
suppliers of payment systems, HCE technology aigb®icontactless payments (and other services, in
particular loyalty programs, physical access toldimgs and transportation) between the user’s
banking mobile application and the vendor usingNivC standard. With HCE technology, sensitive
data used during transactions are stored secunelyaacessible via servers in the “Cloud” and no
longer in a secure element or SIM card on the reateVice.

The MatrixHCE solution benefits from INSIDE SecwweXxpertise in the NFC and Payment & Maobile
Security markets. In addition, the recent acquisiof Metaforic technology further solidifies INSED
Secure’s expertise in the Mobile Security field.

Securing mobile payment apps requires more thandata encryption. Instead, developers must
secure the application’s source code with its l@gid processes, data, and keys. MatrixHCE makes it
extremely difficult and time-consuming for attackeéo understand how a payment application works
in order to compromise it. The final purpose is¢égure transactions.

6.3.1.5 Entreprise: QuickSec, MACsec, MatrixSSL

INSIDE Secure’'s Enterprise software solutions suh QuickSec® IPsec toolkit, MACsec,
MatrixSSL™ security toolkits offer mobile and netking OEMs the most advanced levels of
protection, reliability, and performance. INSIDEc8ee offers a wide variety of IPsec VPN Client
solutions with features for Android and other melplatforms. It provides off-the-shelf solutions fo
secure end-to-end communication that are easytégriste and deploy, and poised to remain current
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as technology changes. Networking and telecom ewgrip manufacturers can increase performance
while saving time and money by using INSIDE Secusslutions.

6.3.2 Secure Transaction Products
6.3.2.1 Payment: MicroPass

MicroPass solutions were developed for the Paymeatket to foster the success of the payment card
migration from magstripe technology toward cone&sgl and/or contact technology while taken two
essential variables into consideration: cost atetaperability.

The latest MicroPass generation offers severalifeat

» An optimized operating system (OS) able to fit itihe smallest possible silicon space while
delivering the highest security level in the indyst

* The three leading payment systems - Discover, Maated and VISA — are pre-installed, in
order to simplify the pre-personalization or thespaalization stage of the card manufacturing
process;

» Optimized personalization timing in order to spegdthe personalization equipment yield and
reduce costs;

* PIN and data sharing across applications usingséimee card, in order to avoid data loading
redundancies during personalization, while suppgrta user friendly experience to the
cardholder (a unique PIN).

INSIDE Secure’'s MicroPass also comes with the “$niurse” application to support loyalty
programs or the use of a virtual wallet in conjiortiwith payment applications.

6.3.2.2 Secure Access and Secure Internet of Things: \@LKit, VaultiC4xx, VaultiC6xx

The VaultiC1xx, VaultiC4xx, and VaultiC6xx productre application specific standard chips
designed to secure various systems against coeititggf cloning or identity theft. These hardware
security modules can be used in many applicatioich ®s intellectual property protection, access
control or hardware protection. The proven techgplosed in VaultiCxxx security modules is already
widespread and used in national ID/health cardgassports, bank cards (storing user Personal
Identification Number, account numbers and autlatibn keys among others), pay-TV access
control and cell phone SIM cards (allowing the at@r of subscribers’ unique ID and PIN code, and
providing authentication of subscribers on the ekl where cloning must definitely be prevented.
For example, designed to keep contents securevand keaking information during code execution,
the VaultiC420 includes voltage, frequency and terajure detectors, illegal code execution
prevention, tampering monitors and protection agfaide channel attacks and probing. The chips can
detect tampering attempts and destroy sensitive @asuch events, thus avoiding data confidentialit
being compromised.

6.3.2.3 Anti-counterfeiting: CapSeal

CapSeal is a smart, patent-pending and securensystéight counterfeiting in the wine and spirits
market. This innovative solution is aimed at sajvthe bottle refill problem, an increasing threat t
the industry. It is a solution that combines arhaatication mechanism with the deactivation of the
tag when the bottle is opened. The chip confirnag the capsule on the bottle has not been tampered
with and that the cork has not been removed.
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Producers, industry players, and even consumerseaaity check the authenticity of a bottle and
confirm that it was never previously opened, byngsan NFC-equipped smartphone or other device
and scanning the chip embedded in the tag via alenafplication platform such as the one developed
by Selinko (INSIDE Secure’s partner for anti-coufa#ing turnkey solutions). The chip confirms that
the capsule on the bottle has not been tamperédani the cork has not been removed.

INSIDE Secure’'s highly secured CapSeal solutioncéstified against the highest worldwide

certification standard (Common Criteria certificatj EAL5+ level used for Electronic Passport-
certification) and smart packaging solution. Comallinvith Selinko’s innovative application platform,

Capseal is providing the wine and spirits indusdryunique and most secure solution to solve
counterfeiting and refilling problem.

6.4 Customers

INSIDE Secure has a customer base that includesamne hundred leading brand names and serves
diversified markets.

As such, the Group offers:

» Semi-conductor solutions (hardware, security miont®llers) to Original Design Manufacturers
(ODMs) and Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMsych as: manufacturers of mobile
devices, network infrastructures, or payment cards,

 Embedded software to developers of operating syst@mapplications and service providers or
content providers, and

» |IP blocks to semiconductor platform manufacturers.

Alcatel-Lucent, AT&T, BBC, Cinemax, Cisco, Doconfeyjitsu, Oberthur, HBO, HID, IBM, INTEL,
Juniper, LG, LSI, Motorola, Samsung, NEC, OberthQrange, Tilera, Sky, Safran and Texas
Instruments are among the Group’s customers. lildhize noted that the above list is not exhaustive,
as some of INSIDE Secure’s customers require a leigdl of confidentiality regarding the nature of
their contractual relationships with the Group, erhplays a necessary role in their strategy toldpve
security solutions.

6.5 Competition

The Group operates in a fragmented competitiverenment:

* In the semiconductor or “hardware” market, the @rdaces a relatively limited number of
competitors. However, these are large companigbdnsemiconductor industry, most of which
only supply hardware platforms to customers thaebg secure solutions based on their operating
system and service platform,

* In the embedded software market, the Group competitts a greater number of companies
because the barrier to entry for software secisigeemingly less stringent and the market is more
recent. Nonetheless, due to the fact that mobdergg is a systems issue based on understanding
the complex combination of hardware, software, @hblocks, the Group believes is benefits from
a competitive advantage in this market, and

* In the IP blocks market, very few companies offerdecurity products with high certification
levels. Relying on its expertise and technologe, @roup plans to contribute to the definition of
future standards in mobile security, of new molsgeurity architectures and of new security
certification schemes.
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On the markets to which it targets its semicondycoftware, and intellectual property productg, th
Group competes, in particular, with companies agiNXP Semiconductors, Infineon Technologies,
STMicroelectronics, Samsung Electronics, Discretid Arxan. However, to the Company’s
knowledge, there is no market player able to compéth the Group in a consolidated fashion across
all of these business segments.

6.6 Organizational structure
6.6.1 Research and development

Innovation has always been at the heart of INSIBEuU®’'s strategy, and the Group has for long
implemented a policy that is starting to beariitsté: a portfolio of approximately 700 patents keo
down into nearly 190 patent families (please atéferrto Chapter 11 of the Registration Document for
further information).

6.6.2 Manufacturing

With respect to the microcontrollers it develops aells, the Group operates under a fabless bssines
model, whereby it uses third-party foundries far iroduction of its wafers and other subcontractors
for the assembly and testing of its products. Bysowrcing its manufacturing, assembly and the
majority of its testing activities, the Group islao simplify its business operations and reduse i
capital requirements. Engineers work in close boltation with partner foundries and other
subcontractors in an effort to increase yieldsucedmanufacturing costs and maximize product
quality. Since 2007, the Group is ISO 9001 cedifend its major suppliers and subcontractors are
required to own quality manufacturing systems #rat|SO 9000 and ISO 14000 certified, as well as
appropriate environmental control programs (plesse refer to section 8.2 entitled “Environmental
Matters” of this Registration Document for furthieformation).

The Group has established relationships and sigregdifacturing contracts with three key foundries -
Global Foundries, UMC and TSMC. Production process®e based on 350nm, 150nm, 130nm and
90nm CMOS technology. The manufacturing of somesobroducts, produced in very high volumes,

is split up among several foundries, which provithes Group’s customers with added security with

respect to their supply as well as higher flexipiln the management of manufacturing.

Among others, the Group subcontracts to UTAC (Whifest and Assembly Center), ASE (Advanced
Semiconductor Engineering Group), and Amkor Tecbgwfor its assembly and testing needs. It also
has the option of performing tests internally t;xdorporate buildings in Aix-en-Provence, Fraraoe]
typically chooses to do so for prototypes and mépction units. For some smart card applications,
the Group’s customers can request that the semictord be packaged in a module or inlay (chips
connected to an antenna) form factor, in which ¢hseGroup outsources to third party manufacturers
such as Nedcard, Chipbond Technology, and Smartrac.

Contracts signed with partner foundries and sulvaoturs for the assembly and testing of products do
not typically require the Group to make a firm coitment regarding volume and purchase orders are
processed on the basis of order forms.

6.6.3 Sales and marketing

The Group focuses its sales efforts on winningremeiasing number of projects, or “design ins” that

will lead to orders, or “design wins” from manufars of mobile devices and network equipment,

smart cards and electronic devices requiring imtegr security features and electronic components
integrating one of INSIDE Secure’s IP blocks. Sewya design win is all the more important due to

the difficulty for the customer of later switching another semiconductor vendor for a given

generation of products.
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Furthermore, the Group relies on marketing iniiedi in order to directly convince its customers’
customers, of the relevance of its products. Tlvesepanies are mobile network operators, bankcard
issuers, mass transit companies, governmental iaegaoms, digital content suppliers, or companies i
the luxury goods industry to which the Group witbmote the benefits of its security solutions and
technology.

For example, some of the products offered in theu@s Secure Payment division are sold to
manufacturers of decoders for PayTV and accessat@yplications, or to smart card manufacturers
within the national ID cards manufacturing business

The Group’s marketing strategy is defined per besgsnsegment. The marketing team defines product
strategy and manages the product portfolio, newyrbintroduction processes, product development
roadmap, market demand studies and competitiorysirallt is also responsible for ensuring that
demand and supply planning, new product launchesnaarketing programs are coordinated with
sales, operations (planning, logistics and quatitytrol) and development activities.

The Group supplies its key customers through didsstribution channels and also works with
partners (such as agents and distributors) in acdsupply the entire value chain of its targetkats.

INSIDE Secure’s customer base includes a broaderasfgcompanies from start-ups to larger
international groups, as well as small and mediimmescompanies. In order to provide its customers
with the best possible support, INSIDE Secure lea®ldped a worldwide presence with sales forces
organized regionally throughout the globe, in thmain areas: Europe/South America, North
America, and Asia. This sales structure also inetuldcal technical support teams for its customers.
Located near its customers, these teams are reBjgorfer advising customers during the
development, manufacturing, and launch phaseseafphoducts.

As of July 31, 2014, the Group had a direct sadamtcomprised of 22 people (excluding the technical
support functions and marketing teams assigneddb segment).

The communications division of the Group is cemtel and is responsible for all company and
product-related communications. Financial commuiooa are managed independently.

6.7 Geographic distribution

The registered offices of the Company and the neaiecutive offices of the Group are located in

Meyreuil near Aix-en-Provence in France. This laoataccommodates a portion of the research and
development teams, as well as a significant portibthe sales and marketing, operating, financial,
and administrative activities.

The Group has also established a presence in Bilm@pean countries (Scotland, the Netherlands,
Finland), in Asia, and in North America.
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6.8 Regulations applicable to the Group’s cryptology bsines:

The Group offers cryptology solutions and serviedsichis a regulated business activity insofar ¢
is linked to national security.

Cryptology is a way of ensuring that a message @amm understood without the right decryption |

In France, the legal framework for cryptology idided in articles 2 et seqof French Law No. 20(-
575 dated June 21, 2004 concerning confidencegitatlieconomics. This article draws a distinct
between (i) using and disseminating means of clggyoand (ii) providing cryptology servict

The use and disseminatiohmeans of cryptolor

Any piece of equipment or software designed or fiwedlito manipulate data, including bc
information and signals, irrespective whether any secret agreemeapply or of whether it is used
achieve the opposite result, witl without an applicable secret agreement, is consttiarmeans ¢
cryptology. The main purpose of these means oftalggy is to guarantee the security of data sto
and transmission, by ensuring their confidentiabtythentication, or by controllirtheir integrity.

In principle, the use or dissemination of meansrgptology is not restricted, but it can be subjex
making a prior declaration to the Prime Ministet@obtaining his prior authorizatic

The supply, the transfer from or to a Meer State of the European Union or the importing
exporting of means of cryptology used exclusively duthentication or integrity control purposes
not restricted.

The supply, the transfer from a Member State ofEheopean Union, or the importi of a means of
cryptology that is not used exclusively for autheation or integrity control purposes are subjeca
prior declaration to the Prime Minister. Certairiegories of means of cryptology can be exem
from this prior declaration requireent.

The transfer to a Member State of the EuropeanrJaia the exporting of a means of cryptology
is not used exclusively for authentication or imiggcontrol purposes are subject to the p
authorization of the Prime Minister. Certain carries of means of cryptology can also be subje:
the prior declaration requirement or exempted femmy formality to give prior notic

In accordance with French Decree No. z-663 dated May 2, 2007, any formalities imposingit
notice requirements arhereby waived for “personalized microprocessodsantended for gener
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public applications, whenever the cryptographic mseare (a) designed for and limited to exclusive
use in mobile radio reception equipment intendedHe general public or wireless handset equipment
intended for the general public or equipment usedginking or financial transactions intended fer th
general public and (b) cannot be accessed by #reamsl was specifically designed for and limited to
enabling the protection of data stored within”.

The use and dissemination, by the Company, of tetaogy necessary for its business are either
unrestricted, or exempted from an obligation to enakprior declaration to the Prime Minister, or
exempted from the requirement to obtain his prigharization.

However, certain means of cryptology used or disgsatad by the Company do not enter into the
scope of application of the exception discussedv@band their use or dissemination is therefore
subject to the obligation to make a prior declaratio the Prime Minister, or to the requirement to
obtain his prior authorization.

In addition, given the possible differences in d¢arieg applicable regulations among European
jurisdictions, the prior authorization of the Prifknister is at times requested by the Company as
precautionary measure, in order to export somesafryptology means.

Lastly, the use, dissemination, or exportatiorhef ¢ryptology means of the Group in accordance with
the regulations applicable in countries other theance, but in which the Group conducts its busines
activities or sells its products, could be subjed prior authorization.

The provision of cryptology services

According to the aforementioned law for confidemreadigital economics, and barring any potential
exceptions, the provision of cryptology servicesliso subject to the obligation of making a prior
declaration to the Prime Minister or to the requieat to obtain his prior authorization. The persons
exercising these duties are subject to professgs@bkcy. In addition, they will be considered lkain

the event of a breach of the integrity, the conftadity, or the availability of data, notwithstand
any opposing contractual clause.

Insofar as French Decree No. 2007-663 dated M2)@7 exempts from the prior declaration or prior
authorization requirement the provision of micramssor card type cryptology services, as defined
above, the provision by the Company of cryptologgviees necessary for the operation of its business
is therefore also not, in principle, subject to ti®igation to make a prior declaration to the Rrim
Minister, or to the requirement to obtain his paothorization.

6.9 Degree of the issuer’'s dependence on patents orditses, industrial, sales, or financial
contracts or new manufacturing methods

In accordance with the terms of Article 6.4 of Apgix | of the European Regulations, the Group
states that, consistent with its technological chgij it signed some licenses for, in particulatemts

or other intellectual property rights, the mostngigant of which are described in section 11.2ro$
Registration Document.
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7. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

7.1 Overview of the Group

As of the filing date of this Registration Documettie legal structure of the Company and its
subsidiaries (jointly referred to as the “Groupdnde broken down as follows:

INSIDE Secure

(France)

Branches and

Secondary
worksites

INSIDE Secure
Korea

representation Subsidiaries
offices
INSIDE
IN(S_IlIrD];E";:ag)ure 100%  secure Corporation
(USA)
INSIDE Secure 100%  Vault-IC France SAS
(Taiwan)

100%

INSIDE
Secure Asia Pte Ltd.
(Singapore)

100%

Vault-IC UK Ltd.
(UK)

M etaforic Ltd.
(UK)

100%

1009

M etaforic Inc.
(USA)

100%

INSIDE Secure
France SAS

100%

INSIDE Secure KK
(Japan)

100%)

INSIDE Secure B.V
(Netherlands)

INSIDE Secure
(Sophia-Antipolis,
France)

INSIDE Secure
(Cergy-Pontoise,
France)

INSIDE Secure
Amsterdam B.V
(Netherlands)

100%

INSIDE Secure Oy
(Finland)

100%
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INSIDE Secure is the parent company of the Groug g main operating company. It holds a
majority of the Group’s assets and manages masteobperating cash flows derived from its business
activities (which includes handling practically glirchased inventories and invoicing the Group’s
customers).

The Group companies’ main equity interests can uransarized as follows (in thousands of US
Dollars and in accordance with IFRS):

Vaut-IC Vaut-IC Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Other INSIDE Total

As at June 30, 2014 UK Ltd. France SAS "ESS" (*) "Metabric" (**)  subsidiaries Secure

(in thousands of US$)

Fixed assets 140 2,225 100 6,055 442 30,125 39,087
Cash and cash equivalents 226 350 511 81 95 37,509 38,771
Inventories - - - - - 10,857 10,857
Intangible liabilities - - - - - 9,664 9,664
Trade and other payables 848 2,122 1,700 224 686 22,646 28,227

(*) INSIDE Secure B.V., INSIDE Secure Amsterdam Bef INSIDE Secure Oy
(**) Metaforic Ltd et Metaforic Inc

The Group’s business activities are described iap@#r 6 entitled “Business” of this Registration
Document and the Group companies’ business aetvdre described below in section 7.2 entitled
“Businesses of subsidiaries and of held companies”.

7.2 Business of subsidiaries and of branches and repe#tion offices
7.2.1 Subsidiaries
As of July 31, 2014, the Company held an equitgrest in the following subsidiaries:

- INSIDE Secure Corporation (Redwood City, Califorrimited States) is a subsidiary in
which the Company holds a 100% equity stake. Itsnniaisiness activity is sales
development and technical support. As of July 3142 this subsidiary had 27 employees
on staff.

- INSIDE Secure Asia Pte Ltd. (Singapore) is a suasjdn which the Company holds a
100% equity stake. Its main business activity seagch and development. As of July 31,
2014, this subsidiary had 5 employees on staff.

- Vault-IC UK Ltd. (London, United Kingdom) is a std&ry in which the Company holds
a 100% equity stake. Its main business activitidsch are carried out at its only worksite
located in East Kilbride (Scotland), are researaid adevelopment and product
engineering. The Company acquired this subsidiatié context of the acquisition of the
SMS business of Atmel Corp. on September 30, 283@f July 31, 2014, this subsidiary
had 34 employees on staff.

- Vault-IC France SAS (Meyreuil, France) is a sulagigiin which the Company holds a
100% equity stake. The Company acquired this sigrgith the context of the acquisition
of the SMS business of Atmel Corp. Its main bussnestivities are research and
development, product engineering, planification amtketing. As of July 31, 2014, this
subsidiary had 67 employees on staff.

- INSIDE Secure B.V. (Vught, The Netherlands) is &#ssdiary in which the Company
holds a 100% equity stake. Its main business &ieivare research and development and
the marketing of intellectual property blocks irded for the design of security
processors. The Company acquired this subsidiatiyarcontext of the acquisition of the
ESS business on December 1, 2012. As of July 314,20is subsidiary had 30 employees
on staff.

- INSIDE Secure Amsterdam B.V. (Amsterdam, The Né#mels) is a subsidiary in which
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INSIDE Secure B.V. holds a 100% equity stake. l&@mbusiness activities are research
and development and software marketing. As of Blly 2014, this subsidiary had 10
employees on staff.

- INSIDE Secure Oy (Helsinki, Finland) is a subsidiar which INSIDE Secure B.V. holds
a 100% equity stake. Its main business activities r@search and development and
software marketing. As of July 31, 2014, this sdiasiy had 28 employees on staff.

- INSIDE Secure K.K (Tokyo, Japan) is a subsidiaryimich the Company holds a 100%
equity stake. The Company created it followingatgjuisition of the ESS business. Its
main business activities are sales developmenteafuhical support. As of July 31, 2014,
this subsidiary had 4 employees on staff.

- INSIDE Secure France SAS (Aix-en-Provence, Fransey subsidiary in which the
Company holds a 100% equity stake. The Companyteztdhis subsidiary in December
2012. It carries out no commercial activity andsloet have any employees on staff.

- Metaforic Ltd (Glasgow, United Kingdom) is a subarg in which Vault-IC UK Ltd.
holds a 100% equity stake. This subsidiary was iseduon April 5, 2014. Its main
business activities are research and developmeatketing, and software sales. As of
July 31, 2014, this subsidiary had 10 employeestait.

- Metaforic Inc. (San Jose, California, United States subsidiary in which Metaforic Ltd.
holds a 100% equity stake. Its main business &etvare marketing and software sales. It
does not have any employees on staff.

7.2.2 Secondary worksites

- INSIDE Secure S.A. (Vallauris, France) is one & @ompany’s secondary worksites. Its
main business activity is research and developmfenbf July 31, 2014, this secondary
worksite had 5 employees on staff.

- INSIDE Secure S.A. (Cergy-Pontoise, France). Thisksite no longer has employees
and is in the process of shutting down.

7.2.3 Branches and representation offices

The Group also operates via branches and représentdfices whenever the size of the teams and
the business conducted locally do not justify treation of a dedicated legal entity.

- INSIDE Secure Taiwan (Taipei, Taiwan) is a branthhe Company. Its main business
activities are sales development and technical@tpp

- INSIDE Secure Korea (Seoul, South Korea) is a Hraot the Company. Its main
business activities are sales development anditedtsupport.

- INSIDE Secure S.A. Thailand (Cachoengsao, Thailédh agency of the Company. Its
main business activity is the oversight of subamttrs responsible for product testing.
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8. PROPERTY, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT
8.1 Real estate property

Vault-IC UK Ltd owns a building, the total surfaaeea of which is 4,533mz. It is located at Maxwell
Building, Scottish Enterprise Technology Park, E&dbride, Glasgow G75 OQR in Scotland.
Following the decision to move the business toddasffice space nearby, the building is currently
vacant and efforts to sell it have been undertaken.

The Group does not own any other buildings.
Generally, the Group leases other office spacsds including the Company’s registered offices).
8.2 Environmental issues

8.2.1 General policy concerning the environment

Conscious of current environmental challenges drnit$ gocial responsibilities, INSIDE Secure seeks
to ensure that its business activities follow thiegiples of sustainable development, whether tiyec
or via its commercial partners.

As such, INSIDE Secure aims to find common grouetiveen its economic and social growth
objectives on the one hand and its efforts to reisghee environment by limiting, in particular, the

harmful impact it may have on the environment agdrtanaging its natural resources in a rational
way.

Since the Group does not carry out any manufagaativities in its offices (fabless model), itrist
exposed to any significant direct risks of enviremtal harm.

The Group’s quality control department is respdesifor the management system that handles
environmental matters.

An awareness program on environmental protectios avganized in fiscal year 2012 for employees
based in France. It was not renewed in fiscal 28413, due to the fact that the Company’s business
activities did not quite justify it at that time.

There are no provisions or guarantees made to cisksrassociated with the environment.

During the fiscal year, the Group did not award aognpensation as a result of a court decision on an
environmental matter.

8.2.2 Pollution and waste management

Since its business activities are mainly conduetétin the tertiary sector, the Group has not taken
specific measures to prevent, reduce or remedywasie released in the air, water or on land that
could significantly harm the environment.

The Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Divec (“WEEE") (2002/96/CE) allows for
manufacturers to organize and finance the collecfiwocessing, and valuation of their products at
end-of-life. In order to avoid any related risk pbllution, a specialized third party company is
commissioned to reprocess all of the waste regultom equipment and products.

As such, a procedure was put in place within thengany aimed at the disposal and recycling of the

following waste: silicon wafers and micro-packagips, electrical and electronic equipment, power
cells and batteries, toner and ink cartridges app
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In 2013, the Group recycled the following quansited waste from its French worksites:

- Electric and electronic equipment and silicon wafer 950 kg

- Lead batteries 154 kg
- Batteries 67 kg
- Toner and ink cartridges 41 kg
- Paper 4,054 kg

In 2013, the consolidation in Meyreuil, France bé tteams previously based in Aix-en-Provence,
France and Rousset, France created an opportuniteclycle a significant amount of electronic
equipment, silicon wafers and outdated documents.

Due to the nature of its business activities, theup does not generate any significant amount of
noise pollution.

8.2.3 Sustainable use of resources

Over the course of 2013, the Group’s electric poe@mrsumption in France and Scotland was the
following:

- France (excluding the Cergy and Montigny-le-Bretumxaworksites, for which data is not
available):1.333 million kwh

- Scotland (East Kilbride worksite.791 million kwWh

In August 2013, the Group regrouped all of thefstainitially employed in Aix-en-Provence and
Rousset under one roof in a building compliant whtérmal regulation RT2012 while boasting high-
performance energy features.

The upper section of the building favors accesssdtar energy via photovoltaic sensors. The
building’s outer protective layer is highly efficiein controlling heat as it ventilates naturallhile
supported by reinforced air circulation, which dealithe building to maintain a comfortable internal
temperature even on very hot days.

In particular, the building stands out relativeit® primary energy consumption. Indeed, it offers
performance gains of 70% relative to the requirdsieaf RT 2012 in terms of the building's
maximum conventional primary energy consumptiorleyPeg.s,).

In addition, in an effort to protect the environrhetine building is equipped with efficient energy
systems:

- Counter-flow ventilation system with a rotary heatchanger in order to optimize energy
consumption in the building.

- Walls and roof equipped with reinforced thermalasion.

- Heating/cooling via a direct expansion system.

- 57/27 argon-filled double glazed windows (lets #¥®light and only 27% heat)

- The roof allows for photovoltaic solar power protio via an installed solar panel power
capacity of 99.75 kilowatts-peak.

The impact of the bioclimatic design on the engrgyformance of the building can be seen through
“Bbio” coefficient (Besoin Bioclimatique or Bioclimatic Requirement). The building’s needs
(heating/cooling, ventilation, lighting) depend s Bbio figure. The building boasts a 45% gain on
the Bbignax threshold required under the terms of RT2012.

Due to its fabless business model, the Group doegsause any signification impact on land use or

water consumption and has not taken any specifasares to improve its efficiency in the use of raw
materials.
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8.2.4 Climate change

The power consumption of French worksites (exclgdimat of the buildings in Cergy, France and
Montigny-le-Bretonneux, France) has generated &g @& CO2 emissions.

Regrouping the teams based in the Aix-en-Proveag®m under one roof has, amongst other things,
eliminated employees’ frequent automobile commbtsveen the two worksites in Aix-en-Provence
and Rousset where they used to work.

The power consumption of the East Kilbride worksiteScotland has generated 104.4 kg of CO2
emissions.

The Company'’s travelling policy recommends that leyges favor travel by train than by plane for
commutes between Marseille and Paris.

In addition, and insofar as possible, the Groupoerages its employees to use the telephone
conferencing solutions available to them in oradirit travel.

However, the Group has not yet conducted any spexiflysis to identify the measures it should
implement to adapt to the consequences of clinfeage on its business activities.

8.2.5 Biodiversity

The Group’s various worksites do not carry outtifEes of activities that could cause direct harm to
the biological balance of natural habitats or prted animal and plant species.
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9. REVIEW OF THE COMPANY’S INCOME AND FINANCIAL POSITI ON

The following presentation and analysis must bedrabbng with the Registration Document as a
whole and, in particular, the Group’s ConsolidatEthancial Statements for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2011, 2012, and 2013 included in @ecf0.1 entitled “Historical Financial
Information” of the Registration Document.

The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements we@mepared in accordance with IFRS
(International Financial Reporting Standards) anBRIC interpretations (International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee), as adoptedtiy European Union and mandatory as of
December 31, 2010. In accordance with IFRS 1, tH&$RS standards were applied to both
comparative periods presented therein, subjectrtp exceptions provided for under the terms of
IFRS 1. The Company’s Statutory Auditors perfornaed audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the fiscal years ended Decembe2@®1],, 2012, and 2013.

The Group’s Half-year Consolidated Financial Stagerts as of June 30, 2014 are included in section
20.6 entitled “Interim Financial Information” of #h Registration Document.

9.1 General presentation
9.1.1 Overview of the Group’s business activities

INSIDE Secure (the “Company”) and its subsidiategiether forming the “Group”) design, develop,
and sell semiconductors and embedded softwareptioaide security to transactions, content, and
digital identification.

On December 1, 2012, the Group acquired Embeddedri8eSolutions (“ESS”). ESS designs and
develops encryption-related security hardware lextglal property (IP) and software for a variety of
industries, including the mobile and networking keds. Its revenues are generated through licenses,
royalties, services and maintenance fees. In aagisubsequent to the acquisition of Metaforic on
April 5, 2014, the software product line grew lar@gee below in this section).

Regarding its semiconductor products, the Groupatps based on a fabless business model, whereby
manufacturing, assembly and testing are outsouxeedird-party foundries (companies specializing
in the manufacturing of semiconductors) and othegsaurcing partners. The Group designs, develops
and markets products offering various types of sgcprotection for applications where information

is required to be processed, stored or transfeviida high degree of security. The Group’s sohuio
integrate secure architecture microcontrollers,ten@) hardware-integrated security, embedded
software providing the secure management of incgraind outgoing data, as well as cryptography
algorithms. These solutions also rely on the Greugow-how in radio frequency and analog
semiconductor design, as well as the Group’s eiggerin the field of security software and
applications.

As a result of the corporate restructuring planlengented in October 2013, the Group now conducts
its business across two complementary divisionsneha the “Mobile Security” and “Secure
Transactions” divisions, which target different @@mplementary markets, products, and solutions,
while relying on a shared platform for research aledelopment, intellectual property, industrial
transactions, technical support and sales.

9.1.2 Preliminary notes on the Group’s financial inforioatand results
The Consolidated Financial Statements for the ffigear ended December 31, 2013 were prepared in
accordance with IFRS (International Financial RépgrStandards) and the IFRIC interpretations, as

adopted by the European Union. The main accountietihods are described in Note 2 of the Notes to
the Financial Statements established as of DeceBihe2013 and the significant accounting estimates
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and rulings are presented in Note 4 of said Nofes. Half-year Consolidated Financial Statements
established as of June 30, 2014, presented in stimadaorm, were prepared in accordance with
international financial standard IAS 34 “InterirnBihcial Reporting”.

Currency in which the Consolidated Financial Staats are presented

The Group selected the US Dollar as the currencwhich to present its Consolidated Financial
Statements. The US Dollar is the Company’s funeticzurrency, and the currency in which the
majority of its transactions are denominated. this main currency used for the Group’s transastion
and within the semiconductor industry in transawtibetween customers and suppliers.

The exchange rates of the US Dollar against the kur“€”, or “EUR”), the main currency used by
the Group after the US Dollar, are as follows foe 2011, 2012, and 2013 fiscal years and the half-
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2013:

Dollar / Euro December 31,2011 December 31,2012 Ded®r 31,2013 June 30,2013 June 30, 2014
Closing rate 1.2939 1.3194 1.3791 1.3080 1.3658
Average rate 1.3917 1.2858 1.3282 1.3135 1.3705

Scope of consolidation

The Group’s scope of consolidation is describeNate 36 of the Notes to the Group’s Consolidated
Financial Statements, which can be found in se@@A entitled “Historical Financial Information”
and in Note 26 of the Notes to the Half-year Costéd Financial Statements, included in section
20.6.1 entitled “Interim Financial Information” tiis Registration Document.

Performance indicators not defined under IFRS

In its business analysis, the Group includes thiopwaance indicators defined below, which are not
strictly of accounting nature. These indicators ao¢ aggregates defined under IFRS and do not
constitute accounting figures used to measure ttmu@s financial performance. They must be
considered in addition to, and not as a substituteany other operating and financial performance
indicator of strict accounting nature, such as ¢hpgesented in the Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements and their corresponding Notes. The Grwupently monitors and intends to keep
monitoring these indicators as it considers thefavemt in the analysis of its current operating
profitability and operating cash flow generatiorowéver, these indicators are not necessarily djrect
comparable to those of other companies, which naa lassigned a different definition or calculation
method to indicators with similar names.

The adjusted gross profit is defined as gross tpbefiore (i) the amortization of intangible assatsl
masks related to business combinations, (i) anerg@l goodwill impairment, (iii) share-based
payments expense, and (iv) non-recurring costs ceged with business combinations and
acquisitions completed by the Group.

The adjusted operating income/(loss) is definedpasating income/(loss) before (i) the amortization
of intangible assets and masks related to busimessbinations, (i) any potential goodwill
impairment, (iii) share-based payments expense(i@heson-recurring costs associated with business
combinations and acquisitions completed by the @rou

EBITDA is defined as the adjusted operating incqlos$) before any amortization and impairment
unrelated to business combinations.

Tables presenting reconciliations between the dimtzed income statement figures in this document
and the adjusted financial aggregates as definesleabre included in Note 6 of the Notes to the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for tO#12 2012, and 2013 fiscal years, presented in
section 20.1 entitled “Historical financial inforti@n”, and in Note 26 of the Notes to the Group’s
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Half-year Consolidated Financial Statements for fiadf-years ended June 30, 2013 and 2014,
presented in section 20.6.1 entitled “Interim ficiahinformation” of this Registration Document.

Operating segment information

Financial analyses per operating segment for ti& #8cal year and for the first half-year of 2Cdré
based on the reporting system in force as of Oct@bé3, or the date upon which the operating
segments were modified to adapt to the new corpatticture (for more information, please also
refer to section 9.1.1 above). The analysis peratimg segment for the 2012 fiscal year is based on
the four business lines around which the Groupstrastured at that time.

9.2 Financial information and consolidated income of tie Group

9.2.1 Income analysis for the 2013 fiscal year
2013 was a year of transformation for INSIDE Seauité the integration of ESS, the implementation
of a broad-ranging reorganization and the strateggtignment of the Group around two business
divisions, namely Mobile Security and Secure Tratieas. These initiatives did rebuild our offering

around a higher margin product mix and lower owst dmmse, paving the way for the Group to record
positive operating incomén the second half of 2013.

9.2.1.1 Revenue

2013 2013
(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012 vs. 201z
vs. 2012 .
normalized
Mobile Security 73,797 43,828 68% 7%
Secure Transactions 80,827 78,219 3% 3%
Total 154,623 122,047 27% 5%

INSIDE Secure’s consolidated revenue for the 2048af year is equal to US$154,623 thousand,
which represents a 27% increase relative to theique fiscal year (and a 5% increase on a
normalized basf}. In particular, in the 3 quarter of the 2013 fiscal year, INSIDE Secureqrared

very well, due to an especially active Mobile Ségudivision and a solid Secure Transactions

division.

! Regarding EBITDA and adjusted operating income/floss

2 Normalised revenue is defined as INSIDE SecureE®8’s combined revenues, as if the acquisition®f Bad been in
effect since January 1, 2012, without correctingli@ accounting impact of the acquisition pricdigribution.
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High-margin revenue deriving from software and tethgy licenses, royalties and maintenance came
to US$32,746 thousand in 2013 (i.e. 21% of revenuggpresenting a steep increase on the previous
year (US$6,928 thousand, i.e. 6% of 2012 revenue):

. 2013 2013
(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012 vs. 2012
vs. 2012 .
normalized
Revenue from sale of products 121,877 115,120 6% 5%
Revenue from development and license agreements 9611,3 6,336 80% -28%
Royalties and sale of patents (*) 17,765 293 - 61%
Maintenance 3,585 298 - 11%
Total 154,623 122,047 27% 5%
(*) In 2013, royalties amounted to 13,265 thousanfdd S$ and sale of patents to 4,500 thousandsS$f U
9.2.1.2 Adjusted operating income (loss)
. H2- H1- H2-
(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012 2013 2013 2012
Revenue 154,623 122,047 83,858 70,765 59,847
Adjusted gross profit 60,260 31,439 33,410 26,850 15,823
As a % of revenue 39,0% 25,8% 39,8% 37,9% 26,4%
Research and development expenses (31,903) (33,218) 3,791  (18,107) (14,922)
As a % of revenue -20,6% -27,2%) -16,>% -25 6% -24,9%
Seling and marketing expenses (20,477 (17,511 (9,832 (10,646 (8,730
As a % of revenue -13,2% -14,3%, -11,7% -15 0% -14,6%
General and administrative expenses (10,570) (8,780) 5,633) (4,937) (4,499)
As a % of revenue -6,8% -7,2% -6,7% -7,0% -7,5%
Other gains / (losses), net (261 (2,025 (788 (527, (1,588
Adjusted operating expenses (63,212) (61,534) (30,049) (33,163) (29,739)
As a % of revenue -40,9% -50,4%) -35,8% -46,9% -49,7%
Adjusted operating income (2,952) (30,095) 3,361 (6,313) (13,917)
As a % of revenue -1,9% -24,71% 4,0% -8,9% -23,3%

Adjusted gross profit almost doubled (rising fron5$31,439 thousand to US$60,260 thousand
between 2012 and 2013) and the gross margin atsoded a significant progress, widening from
25.8% of 2012 revenue to 39.0% of 2013 revenue. grbes margin was boosted by the favorable
shift in the product mix, especially thanks to suecessful integration of ESS, efforts to cut casis
improve selling prices on the Group’s other prodaciges.

The Group’s operating expenses increased only nigde<2013 (up 2.7%), with the natural increase
resulting from the integration of the ESS team arb 80 staff worldwide) offset partially by the
initial benefits of the Group’s restructuring plearried out in 2013.

INSIDE Secure’s recovery made further progressh wite Group posting US$3,361 thousand in
adjusted operating income in the second half of32@bmpared with a loss of US$13,917 thousand
one year earlier and a loss of US$6,313 thousatitkifirst half of 2013.

Over 2013 as a whole, the Group was able to keeppérating loss down to US$2,952 thousand,
compared with a loss of US$30,095 thousand in 2012.

64



2013

(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012 vs. 201
EBITDA 2,793 (25,122 27,915
Amortization and depreciation of assets (*) 5,745 4,972 773
Adjusted operating income (2,952 (30,095 27,143
Business combinatio (14,421 (5,071 (9,350
Restructuring expens (9,838 (232 (9,606
Share based payments (555, (1,880) 1,325
Operating income (27,766) (37,278) 9,512
Finance income / (losses), net 790 (258 1,048
Income tax expense (584 51 (635
Net income (27,560) (37,485) 9,925

(*) excluding amortization and depreciation of assacquired through business combinati

The significant increase in the amortization ofetssrecognized when the Group completed its
acquisitions (included in the Business Combinatiams item) is mainly due to the integration of the
ESS business as from December 1, 2012. Howevsrdtigis not have an impact on its cash position.

The reorganization plan implemented during 2013nmted the recognition of the following expenses
and outlays:

* A US$9,838 thousand charge, including an impairnténtertain assets related to the sites
concerned by the plan (US$1,132 thousand), expersated to workforce reductions
completed in 2013 (US$7,136 thousand) and a pavifr restructuring costs to cover the
departures of employees affected by the plan (UE31thousand).

¢ An outlay of around US$7,434 thousand.

The Group’s 2013 EBITDA totaled US$+2,793 thousacdmpared with a loss of US$25,122

thousand in 2012. During the second half of 201BITBA came to US$6,335 thousand (7.6% of

consolidated revenue), compared with a loss of UB$®3thousand in the first half of 2013 (and a loss
of US$11,259 thousand in the second half of 2012).

9.2.1.3 Net Financial Income / Expenses

As of December 31, 2013, financial income was etu&lS$ 790 thousand, against a loss of US$ 258
thousand as of December 31, 2012. This was mairdytad the change in the EUR/US$ exchange rate
and interest received on the Group’s cash invedsnen

9.2.1.4 Income Tax

Income tax represented an expense of US$ 584 thdusa2013 against a net income of US$ 51
thousand in 2012. The net income generated in @& #scal year was mainly due to: (i) the income
tax expense incurred due to the profit generateliNB®YDE Secure Corporation in the United States, ,
and (ii) partially offsetting this, the use of asearch tax credit for Vault-IC UK Ltd, until now
unrecognized, for an amount of US$ 156 thousand.

9.2.1.5 Net Income (loss)
The consolidated net loss (IFRS) for 2013 came 8%$27,560 thousand, down from US$37,485
thousand in 2012. The business reorganization gtarounced on March 6, 2013 and completed

during the year led to the recognition of a US$8,8%usand non-recurring expense, including a
provision for the impairment of certain assets teglato worksites targeted by the plan, expenses
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associated with the employee base reduction fiedlim 2013, and a restructuring provision in
connection with the final employees leaving the Upras a result of the plan in January 2014 (please
also refer to paragraph 9.2.1.2 above for furthfarimation).

In addition, the bottom line was depressed by apshcrease in amortization related to intangible
assets (non-cash items) arising from the acquisdfdESS (US$10,946 thousand in 2013).

9.2.1.6 Segment analysis

As at December, 31 2013

. Mobile Secure Unallocated Total
(In thousands of US3) Security Transactions (*) 2013
Revenue 73,797 80,826 - 154,62
Contribution to revenue 47, 7% 52,3% - 100%
Adjusted gross profit 36,459 26,336 (2,535) 60,26C
As a % of revenue 49,4% 32,6% - 39,0%
Adjusted operating income (6,676) 5,895 (2,171) (9,952
As a % of revenue -9,0% 7,3% - -1,9%
EBITDA (5,652) 10,616 (2,171) 2,793
As a % of revenue -7,7% 13,1% - 1,8%

As at December, 31 2012

(en miliers de doliars) Mobi!e SeF:ure Unallocated Total
Security Transactions (*) 2012
Revenue 43,828 78,219 - 122,047
Contribution to revenue 35,9 64,1% - 100%
Adjusted gross profit 12,680 20,995 (2,237) 31,43¢
As a % of revenue 28,9% 26,6% - 25,8%
Adjusted operating income (30,920 3,062 (2,237 (30,095
As a % of revenue -70,5% 3,¢% - -24,7%
EBITDA (28,985 6,099 (2,237 (25,123
As a % of revenue -66,1% 7,£% - -20,6%

(*) unallocated expenses correspond mainly to uwhasg@acit

Mobile Security

The Mobile Security division encompasses the GrewgXpertise in security solutions for mobile
platforms. The main applications targeted are: teopayment, content protection and enterprise
security.

The division’s revenue predominantly derives froates of microcontrollers and from licenses and
royalties on software and patents. Its 2013 revezaree to US$73,797 thousand, representing an
increase of 68.4% on the previous year (and grof@?% on a normalized badjs

Revenue from royalties reached a high level duttregfourth quarter, recording growth of 18% during
2013 compared with the previous year.

The steep improvement in the adjusted gross maygiween 2012 (28.9% of revenue) and 2013
(49.4%) was largely attributable to the integratafnthe ESS product lines and to improved gross
margins on NFC semiconductors (owing to the shiftthe product mix), and also to the initial

! ESS normalised revenue is defined as the combiseghue generated by both ESS and the INSIDE Seasirié,the acquisition were
effective as of January 1, 2012, excluding the aeting impacts of the acquisition price’s allocatio
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revenues from the NFC patent portfolio in line witte Group’s strategy of monetizing its NFC
technology and related patent portfolio.

Even so, during the second half of 2013, the Gruagh to write down the value of its inventories of
NFC microcontrollers by US$3,617 thousand as actliresult of the difficulties facing the Group’s
main customer in this segment. Based on the infliomaavailable, the Group believes it has fully
covered the inventory risk related to this custamer

The adjusted operating loss was four times smalle?013 than in 2012 (US$(6,676) thousand in
2013 vs. US$(30,920) thousand in 2012). The integraf ESS to a large extent and the reduction of
non-ESS operating costs (down 39%) made a highgpifstant contribution to the increase in
operating income. Moreover, the division recordgutait (adjusted operating income) in the second
half of 2013.

Secure Transactions

The Secure Transactions division encompasses tbepGr expertise dedicated to address high
security applications for smart cards (paymentntitie and conditional access), identification and
authentication solutions, connected devices anthtbenet of things.

This business division builds and markets tailagsehllitions based on secure microcontrollers, secure
firmware and related services. Its 2013 revenueectmJS$80,826 thousand, growing 3.3% on the
previous year.

The segment’s adjusted gross margin advanced isigmilfy, rising from 26.8% in 2012 to 32.6% in
2013, as a result of a richer product/customeranik cost-cutting efforts.

Adjusted operating income almost doubled in 20135@95 thousand (from US$3,062 thsouand in
2012) or 7.3% of divisional revenue. Revenue groanitl the significant increase in the gross margin
more than offset the rise in R&D and in selling amakrketing costs.

Full-year 2013 EBITDA totaled US$10,616 (comparedthwUS$6,099 thousand in 2012),
representing 13.1% of divisional revenue.
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9.2.2 Income analysis for the 2012 fiscal year

9.2.2.1 Revenue

: 2012

(in thousands of US$) 2011 vs. 2011
Mobile NFC 47,961 -10%
Secure payments 31,788 43,246 -26%
Digital security 46,158 60,261 -23%
Embedded security solutions 840 - -
Total 151,468 -19%

Totaling US$ 122,047 thousand, INSIDE Secure’s olidated revenue for the 2012 fiscal year
dropped 19% relative to the previous fiscal yedre Toroup’s revenue includes the ESS business,
consolidated as of December 1, 2012. The GroupX 2tbrmalized reventievas equal to US$

148,157 thousand.

9.2.2.2 Adjusted operating income (loss) and operatingnmegloss)

(in thousands of US$)

2012

2011

Revenue

Adjusted gross profit

122,047

151,468

31,439 42,412

As a % of revenue 26% 28%
Research and development expenses (33,218) (32,746)

As a % of revenue -27% -22%
Seling and marketing expenses (17,511) (16,907)

As a % of revenue -14% -11%
General and administrative expenses (8,780) (8,810)

As a % of revenue -7% -6%
Other gains / (losses), net (2,025) ©)
Adjusted operating expenses (61,534) (58,464)

As a % of revenue -50% -39%
Adjusted operating loss (30,095 (16,052)

As a % of revenue -25% -11%

The adjusted gross profit dropped by US$10,973ga0d in 2012, due to the decrease in revenue and
the decrease in the average gross margin resuitorg a less favorable product mix (due, in
particular, to the decrease in sales in the Digdurity division, which is typically one of theam

drivers).

Adjusted research and development expenses grghitlglin 2012 (+1.4%), with greater expenditures
allocated to the NFC business (70% against 56% (hl1P which enabled the simultaneous
development of several key programs: engineerimglétest version of the NFC microcontroller,
designing the NFC technology’s next generation wittel, designing the proprietary embedded

1 ESS normalised revenue is defined as the combiistmtibal revenues of INSIDE Secure and ESS owedthmonths of the 2012 fiscal
year, excluding the accounting impacts relatedh® thange of control over ESS which resulted inrihve-recognition of a portion of

revenue.
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security element and initial sales of the PicoPiIg¢FC chip (INSIDE Secure’s “Booster”, or charge
modulation technology).

Adjusted selling and marketing expenses, as weldjssted general and administrative expenses,
grew by 2.2% in 2012 relative to 2011, and weredoin the second half-year than the first, exclgdin
the impact of a provision for bad debt in the antooihnUS$ 678 thousand recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2012.

The cost reduction plan launched in in July 20E2tetl producing results over the fourth quarter of
the fiscal year, through a reduction in externargks and, in particular, R&D outsourcing expenses
and investments in tangible and intangible assets.

The adjusted operating income (loss) rose from &(U&052) thousand loss in 2011 (or 10.6% of
revenue) to a US$(30,095) thousand loss in 201240f% of revenue), mainly resulting from the
evolution of the NFC business.

As its business began to struggle in the secorfdybal of 2012, the Group gradually implemented
early cost cutting measures in order to reducepeyating expenses, without however undermining
the implementation of its innovation program or i&jor new products (such as the proprietary
embedded secure element and the “Pulse” produdiyfhased on “Booster” technology).

. 2012
(in thousands of US$) 2012 2011 vs. 2011
EBITDA (25,123) (12,242) (12,881)
Amortization and depreciation of assets (*) (4972) 3,810) (1,162)
Adjusted operating income (30,095) (16,052) (14,043)
Business combinations (5,071) (5,897) 826
Restructuring expenses (232) (514) 282
Share based payments (1,880) (2,000) 120
Operating income (37,278) (24,462) (12,816)
Finance income / (losses), net (258 1503 (1,761
Income tax expense 51 (74) 125
Net income (37,485) (23,033) (14,452)

(*) excluding amortization and depreciation of assacquired through business combinations

9.2.2.3 Net Financial Income / Expense

As of December 31, 2012, the Group recorded a iiahioss in the amount of US$ (258) thousand,
against a financial profit of US$ 1,503 thousandfiBecember 31, 2011, which was mainly due to
the EUR/US$ exchange rate fluctuation. The findnn@ome (loss) for the 2012 fiscal year is, foe th
most part, impacted by the closing rate US Dolamatuation of cash held in Euros. Net exchange rate
gains generated in the 2011 fiscal year were mainoly to a favorable EUR/US$ exchange rate
fluctuation in the 2011 fiscal year.

It is worth highlighting that realized operatingcbange gains and losses over the year and the timpac
of the revaluation at the closing rate of operatisgets and liabilities denominated in a currertbgro
than the functional currency of the consolidatethjganies are now recorded under operating income
(for further information please refer to section @7the Notes to the Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2012). This presentation method camipivith IFRS was applied for the first time in
2012.
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9.2.2.4 Income tax

The income tax that represented a total expens&S§f74 thousand in 2011 compared to a net income
of US$ 51 thousand in 2012. The net income gertiiatéhe 2012 fiscal year was mainly due to: (i)
the income tax expense incurred due to the prefitegated by INSIDE Secure Corporation in the
United States, , and (ii) partially offsetting thike use of a research tax credit for Vault-IC Lid,

until now unrecognized, for an amount of US$ 15fudand.

9.2.2.5 Net income (loss)

The Group’s share of consolidated net income (almegrto IFRS) for the 2012 fiscal year represented
a loss of US$ 37,485 thousand.

9.2.2.6 Segment analysis
The following analysis is based on the reportingtem in force in 2012 and applicable until October
2013, or the date upon which the operating segm&ate modified to adapt to the new corporate
structure implemented by the Group (for furthepinfation please also refer to section 9.1.1 above).
In 2012, the Group was structure around four bssitiaes.

As at December 31, 2012

Embeddec

(in thousands of US$) Mc;\lb'lzlg pafriglrJ]: SE(ISJI:;I/ secyrity Unallocat(i)d ;%tflz
solutions

Revenue 43,261 31,768 46,158 340 - 122,047

Contribution to revenue 35% 26% 38% 19, - 100%

Operating income (31,757) (5,022) 2,53 (1,:.16) (2,237) (37,278)

Adjusted operating income (30,4%31) (3,£31) 6,412 (288) (2,237 (30,095)

As a % of revenue -70% -11% 1% -3:1% -25%

As at December 31, 2011

Embeddec

(in thousands of US$) M?\lbllzlg pafrigzg SEEJ':;'/ secyrity Unallocat((i)d ;%tla Il
solutions

Revenue 47,961 43,2:16 60,261 - - 151,468

Contribution to revenue 32% 29% 40% - - 100%

Operating income (18,251) (11,439) 8,74 - (3,396) 162,

Adjusted operating income (17,2'58) (9,271) 13,153 - 67@ (16,052

As a % of revenue -36'% -21% 2: % -11%

(*) unallocated expenses correspond mainly to whasgacity
Mobile NFC

Revenue totaled US$43,261 thousand in 2012, dowsn \irsus 2011, mainly due to a strong decline
in mobile handset sales by Blackberry, the Gromals customer, and to the postponement until 2013
of their new generatiosmartphone¢BlackBerry 10).

Since the Group began the implementation of opegatiost reduction measures, the decline in
adjusted operating income was less in tfehalf of 2012, while amounting to US$(30,451) thancs
over the entire year (which explains the totalityh® Group's loss), against US$(17,258) thousand i
2011.
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Beyond the negative impact of the decrease in e/ethis loss was aggravated by increased R&D
expenses, namely in new high value-added prodsieth, as the NFC PicoPulse™ (INSIDE Secure’s
“Booster” technology) or the Group's proprietarybemded security element.

Secure Payments

After a sharp decline in sales in early 2012, tfingsion’s revenues recovered during the last menth

of the year. Contact chip sales for the EuropeaEhhrket stabilized while contactless chip sales in
the US market rose slightly, helping to limit thectine in sales to US$31,788 thousand for the year.
However, market dynamics remain unchanged ovettadl: US contactless payment market is still

impacted by the anticipated migration towards a BE®&YW/-type standard.

The adjusted operating loss for this division weduced to US$3,531 thousand in 2012, down 62%
compared with 2011. The loss was also divided kyir2the second half-year of 2012 relative to the
first.

Digital Security

In 2012, Digital security sales totaled US$46,188usand, down 23% compared with 2011. This is
due to several reasons:

- Products designed for electronic document ideiatifonn experienced a significant drop in sales,
an anticipated result of the transition phase @ dhle by Atmel of its SMS business and its
integration into the Group;

- Secure module sales to various customers were dadwenfo lower demand in 2012 compared
with a strong year in 2011,

- Conditional access products (such as Pay-TV prejlusbsted firm growth, driven in particular
by new customers. However, the latter has beerfficismt to offset the decline in sales of the
product lines mentioned above.

In 2012, the Group increased its marketing andssefforts aimed at widening the scope of the digita
security product and service offering and penetgatharkets offering good growth potential (such as
anti-counterfeiting, smart metering and machineatchine solutions). However, these structural
investments have not in 2012 enabled the Groupffeetothe lower revenues from its legacy
businesses.

Adjusted operating income amounted to US$6,412 stod in 2012, representing 14% of this
division's revenue.

Embedded Security Solutions

On December 1, 2012, INSIDE Secure completed tlggisition of Embedded Security Solutions
(“ESS”), a security specialist that designs andetys encryption-related security hardware,
intellectual property (IP) and software for a varief industries, including the mobile and netwoiki
markets.

Revenues are generated in the form of royaltiegnfie fees and sales of maintenance services.
Consolidated as from December 1, 2012, ESS comdbWwS$840 thousand to the Group's
consolidated revenues in 2012. ESS' normaljzeslenue stands at US$26,950 thousand (against
US$25,260 thousand in 2011).

! ESS normalised revenue is defined as the reverthe &SS business over the considered period emgltite accounting impacts related
to the change of control over ESS which resultatiémon-recognition of a portion of revenue
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In 2013, the revenue, as prepared in accordantelMiRS, will be reduced by US$2,059 thousand due
to the change of control of ESS, which led to tlmieation of some deferred revenue corresponding
to license agreements signed and paid ahead divesture.

ESS reported an adjusted operating loss of US$g88&and. Over a single month however, and given
the transition, ESS' adjusted operating income dudsgive a fair representation of this business
division's typical performance.

9.2.3 Income analysis for the half-year ended June 30420

9.2.3.1 Revenue

. 2014

(in thousands of US$) H1-2014 H1-2013 vs. 2013
Mobile Security 32,750 26,473 24%
Secure Transactions 29,984 44,292 -32%
Unallocated 1,513 0

Total 64,247 70,765 -9%

Nota: unallocated amounts corresponds mainly tmoeteccuring revenu

Being repositioned around two strategic divisiadhg, Group started to monetize its NFC technology
and intellectual property rights in the 1st half26f14 while concentrating sales efforts on a cgttin
edge product range in embedded security. The revéom this is gradually replacing the volume
sales from NFC connectivity components, a largé pawhich came to an end in the 4th quarter of
2013. As a result, in the 1st half of 2014, comikd revenue which amounted to US$64,247
thousand showed a decline of 9.3% compared withlgtehalf of 2013, but driven by different
underlying businesses compared to that period.

The Group also confirmed its position as leadexdwanced mobile payment technologies through the
acquisition of Metaforic in April 2014.

. 2014

(in thousands of US$) H1-2014 H1-2013 vs. 2013
Revenue from sale of products 32,161 57,363 -44%
Revenue from development and license agreements 1022,1 5,397 310%
Royalties 8,035 6,193 30%
Maintenance 1,942 1,812 7%
Total 64,247 70,765 -9%

High-margin revenue from licences, royalties andntemance services amounted to US$32,086
thousand in the 1st half of 2014, and now accofont$0% of revenue, a strong increase compared
with last year (US$13,402 thousand or 19% of reegnthis increase has mainly been driven by the
license agreement with Intel in NFC technology amellectual property.
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9.2.3.2 Adjusted operating income (loss)

(in thousands of US$) H1 2014 H1 2013
Revenue 64,247 70,765
Adjusted gross profit 37,822 26,850

As a % of revenue 58,9% 37,9%
Research and development expenses (16,133) (18,107)

As a % of revenue -28,2% -25,6%
Selling and marketing expenses (10,569) (10,646)

As a % of revenue -16,4% -15,0%
General and administrative expenses (6.363) (4,937)

As a % of revenue -9,9% -7,0%
Other gains / (losses), net <82 527
Adjusted operating expenses (34,582 (33,163)

As a % of revenue -53,8% -46,9%
Adjusted operating income / (loss) 3,24C  (6,313)

As a % of revenue 5,0% -8,9%

Adjusted gross margin improved strongly in the Haif of 2014 to 59% of revenue, compared with
38% in the same period last year and 40% in thehatidof 2013, buoyed by a positive product mix
effect and the effects of the 2013 reorganizatiam.pThis strong increase demonstrates the tangible
results of the Group’s strategic repositioning feroa full product range in the high value-added
embedded security business.

The decrease of the operating expenses followiagniplementation of the 2013 reorganization plan
was partly offset by the impact of incremental apieg expenses relating to the integration of
Metaforic into the Group in the 2nd quarter of 2@l by a decrease of the R&D tax credit (US$761
thousand). In addition, in accounting terms, pathe R&D expenses were capitalized in the balance
sheet in 2013 (US$711 thousand) while in the 1§th@014, all were recognised as expenses.

Finally, the euro’s appreciation against the doflo weighed on operating expenses during the 1st
half of 2014. At constant exchange rates, operatixygenses would have been lower by US$1,266
thousand than those posted in the 1st half of 2014.

Nonetheless, thanks to the sharp increase in grasgin, adjusted operating income rose signifigantl

in the 1st half of 2014 to US$+3,240 thousand (carag with a loss of US$6,313 thousand a year
ago).
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2014

(in thousands of US$) H1 2014 H1 2013 vs. 2013
EBITDA 5,627 (3,542) 9,169
Amortization and depreciation of assets (*) (2,387) 2,711) 384
Adjusted operating income 3,240 (6,313) 9,553
Business combinations (8,387) (6,988) (1,399)
Restructuring expenses (314) (6,883) 6,569
Share based payments (239) (376) 137
Operating income (5,699) (20,559) 14,860
Finance income / (losses), net 538 (222) 760
Income tax expense (315) (221) (94)
Net income (5,477) (21,002) 15,526

(*) excluding amortization and depreciation of assacquired through business combinati

In the first half-year of 2014, EBITDA amounts tdS® +5,627 thousand (8.8% of consolidated
revenues) against US$ (3,542) thousand over tle Hilf-year of 2013. This strong performance
enables the Group to generate, for the first tenggsitive EBITDA over two consecutive half-years.

9.2.3.3 Net Financial Income / Expense

As of June 30, 2014, financial income totals US88fhousand, against a US$ 221 thousand loss as
of June 30, 2013, which is mainly due to the chandbe EUR/US$ parity.

9.2.3.4 Net Income (loss)

Consolidated net income (IFRS) for the 1st hal2014 amounted to a loss of US$5,477 thousand.
This marks a strong improvement compared with thar year (US$21,002 thousand loss in the 1st
half of 2013) despite the amortization of assets{cash item) recognised on acquisitions (SMS, ESS
and, most recently, Metaforic) totalling US$8,3B84usand in the 1st half of 2014..
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9.2.3.5 Segment Analysis

First Half 2014

. Mobile Secure Unallocated Total

(in thousands of US3) Security Transactions (*) H1 2014
Revenue 32,750 29,98¢. 1,513 64,247
Contribution to revenue 51% 47 % 0% 100%
Adjusted gross profit 28,444 7,865 1513 37,822
As a % of revenue 87% 26% - 59%
Adjusted operating income 6,719 (5,504) 1,995 3,240
As a % of revenue 21% -18% - 5%
EBITDA 7,201 (3,570C) 1,995 5,627
As a % of revenue 22'% -12% - 9%

(*) unallocated amounts correspond mainly to naureng revenu

First Half 2013

. Mobile Secure Unallocated Total

(in thousands of US3) Security Transactions (*) H1 2013
Revenue 26,473 44,29: - 70,765
Contribution to revenue 37% 63 % 0% 100%
Adjusted gross profit 13,797 14,463 (1,410) 26,850
As a % of revenue 52% 33% - 38%
Adjusted operating income (9,6:.9) 4,493 (1,..87) (6,313)
As a % of revenue -36% 10% - -9%
EBITDA (9,201 6,74= (1,18 (3,542)
As a % of revenue -34% 15% - -5%

(*) unallocated expenses correspond mainly to whasgacity not allocated to business segr

Mobile Security
At US$32,750 thousand, revenue in the 1st hal0d#2was up 24% on the prior year.
Activity in the second quarter of 2014 was primadtiven by the following:

« Completion of a new NFC technology and intellectoiaperty license agreement with Intel
extending the pre-existing 2011 license agreen@nta broad and fully paid-up license. At
closing INSIDE Secure received US$19,200 thousarzhsh from Intel. This payment led to
the recognition of an incremental license reventidJ8$16,216 thousand in the second
quarter of 2014, while respectively US$1,114 thodsaUS$999 thousand, and US$938
thousand were recognized as revenue during théhfouarter of 2013 and first and second
quarters of 2014 under the pre-existing agreement.

* A very good performance by the embedded securitytisas product line, including in
particular royalties, which hit a historical recdedgel.

e The acquisition of Metaforic, which is consolidatdce April 5, 2014, date of completion of
the acquisition. In June 2014, the Group also sigine first contracts in relation with its
HCE" mobile payment solution with banks and “paymesbations”.

! Host Card Emulation. Introduced on Android 4.4tKgit) and recently supported by major payment bsaiktCE allows for contactless
payments (and other services including loyalty pmags, building access and transit passes) to be whaectly between consumers' banks
mobile application and retailers point-of-sale terafs using NFC technology. It allows sensitiveadased to facilitate transactions to be
securely stored on, and accessed from, cloud serattrer than a mobile device and without the Gisesecure element or a SIM card.
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Besides, the Group confirms that it has not sollranre NFC components to BlackBerry since the
4th quarter of 2013. Note that such sales amountatiout US$9,343 thousand in the 1st half of 2013
(35% of the division’s revenue) and US$35,895 thodsin the whole of 2013 (49% of the division’s
revenue).

The sharp rise in adjusted gross margin betweer8 Z62.1% of revenue) and 2014 (86.9% of
revenue) is mainly due to favourable changes inpifogluct mix. In particular, it includes the first
revenue from the Groups’s NFC technology in linghvthe Group’s strategy which aims to monetise
its NFC technology and related intellectual propeights portfolio.

The Mobile Security division had already reacheafitability in the 2nd half of 2013 and generated
US$6,749 thousand in adjusted operating incoménénlist half of 2014 (compared with a loss of
US$9,619 thousand in the 1st half of 2013). This die to the strong increase in gross profit and, t
a lesser extent, the reduction in underlying ofregagxpenses.

The division generated US$7,201 thousand of EBITiD£e 1st half of 2014 (compared with a loss
of US$9,101 thousand in the 1st half of 2013).

Overall, the mobile security sector experiencedrgirtraction thanks to the wide reporting of an
outbreak of cyber-attacks in recent months. Overldist 18 months, the Group has strengthened its
position in the market for embedded security fobiteodevices by expanding its range of solutions to
applications considered to be the strongest drifg@reobile security: entertainment (digital cortjen
enterprise and financial (mobile payment and eVi&glldhe Group continues to position itself as the
only supplier whose product and solutions offergmgable it to target all of these fast growing
applications.

At the same time, the Group is actively pursuirggstrategy of licensing its NFC technology and
patent portfolio.

Secure Transactions

The Secure Transactions division generated US$23/88usand in revenue in the 1st half of 2014.
This was down substantially on the prior year, tyalecause of a continuing decline in the Group’s
legacy EMV business in Europe (sale of EMV paynamps), and pending the take-off of the EMV
market in the US.

In the first half of 2014, the division's adjustgdoss margin deteriorated from 32.7% in 2013 to

26.2% in first half of 2014, mainly as a resulttbé decline in volume delivered in the 1st half of

2014, leading to poorer fixed cost absorption. ¢ same time, the Group increased its R&D

spending to develop future generation productstiqudarly in the area of new-generation secure

microcontrollers, using embedded flash memory, &l as the expansion of its offer of secure

software embedded on these semiconductor platfofimsse new products under development will

target the markets of authentication, as well asiriey data and transactions for connected devices
and the Internet of Things.

As a result, the division recorded an adjusted atpey loss of US$5,504 thousand (compared with an
operating income of US$4,493 thousand in 2013)|enst half 2014 EBITDA amounted to a loss of
US$3,570 thousand $3.6 million (compared with atjwesincome of US$6,745 thousand in 2013).

The Group plans to continue investing in the “Intdrof things” and in anti-counterfeiting (“the

Internet of secure objects”). It is also continuinigh its marketing efforts to take advantage & th
implementation of the EMV standard in the US.
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9.3 Qualitative and quantitative assessment of the mam risks the Group faces

For a description of the Group’s exposure to exghanate and interest rate risks, please also tefer
Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financiate®nents included in section 20.1 entitled
“Historical Financial Informatioti of the Registration Document (please also refesdctions 4.6.1
and 4.6.2 of the Registration Document).
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10. CASH AND EQUITY POSITION
10.1 Equity
10.1.1 Equity and share capital

Note 17 of the Notes to the Group’s Consolidatethitial Statements and the table presenting the
change in consolidated shareholders’ equity preparzording to IFRS, included in the financial
statements in Chapter 20.1 entitled “Historicalaficial Information” of this Registration Document,
provide a description of the change in the Compmaliare capital and shareholders’ equity in the pas
three fiscal years, respectively.

10.1.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in handsidggeld at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid securities (mainly monetary secusfieSuch cash and securities are used to finamce th
Group’s operating activities. As of June 30, 204l ecember 31, 2013, the Group’s cash and
securities classified as cash were mainly investdohancial instruments with a maturity of lessith

12 months.

As of June 30, 2014, the Group’s cash and caslvaeuts totaled US$ 38.8 million against US$ 40.2
million as of December 31, 2013 and US$ 41.8 mmillass of June 30, 2013. The Group’s net cash
positiort totaled US$ 38.1 million as of June 30, 2014 agjdiis$ 39.7 million as of December 31,
2013 and US$ 40.7 as of June 30, 2013.

Over the course of the first half-year of 2014, Gmup was able to once again maintain its cash
position, due mainly to the cash from operationd &ma very strict management of its net working
capital and despite significant investments (actjoisof Metaforic settled in cash upon completafn
the transaction).

10.1.3 Sources of funding

Since its creation, the Company has been finarfuedigh the issuance of new shares as well as, to a
lesser extent, the research tax credit reimbursenggants, and recoupable advances granted, in
particular, by Bpifrance.

In 2013, the Company and Natixis Factor renewed tdren of Euro and US Dollar factoring
agreements implemented in 2011, by extending tleerarf additional renewable two years, including
a deposit and backed by a credit insurance con®aute the risk of non-recoverability and delays i
payment has been transferred to the bank, theveddes transferred under these contracts are no
longer recorded in the balance sheet. As of Decerlhe 2013, the total amount of transferred
receivables totals US$ 4,661 thousand (against 125866 thousand as of December 31, 2012), and
cash received net of the factoring reserve amoutdedS$ 4,489 thousand (against US$ 12,330
thousand as of December 31, 2012). As of June ®D4,2he total amount of transferred receivables
totaled US$ 4,058 thousand, while cash receivedhtte factoring reserve amounted to US$ 3,899
thousand.

Even though the Group elected to present its categed financial statements in US Dollars, the

Company, which has its registered office in Framegties out share capital increases in Euros. Over
the course of the first half-year of 2014 and 2abh®, Company did not carry out any share capital
increases (with the exception of transactions wtialy the subscription of share warrants in 2013 and

1 Net cash includes cash, cash equivalents and s&rortinvestments, the net amount of financial deiwes, minus debt associated with
leasing agreements, bank loans and overdraftsdabtiassociated with deferred payments in the gbofebusiness combinations. Debt
associated with the financing of receivables from tesearch tax credit (RTC) are not taken int@aecbecause they are intended to be
settled upon the State’s reimbursement of RTC vebégs.
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the exercise of stock options by the Group’s emgxayin 2014). Over the course of the 2012 fiscal
year, the Company carried out several share capaadases. Mainly, in February 2012, the Company
completed a share capital increase at the sameasntiee initial admission of its shares to trading
the Euronext Paris stock exchange, in the amourld@$ 104,552 thousand (EUR 79.5 million),
issuance premium included and before deductiorP@f tosts directly linked to the transaction and
deducted from the issuance premium.

10.2 Cash flow
10.2.1 Analysis of cash flows for the 2013 fiscal year

Financial information selected from consolidatedltdlow statement:

As of December 31,

(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 66,321 20,940
Net cash generated/ (used) in operating activities 17,081) (12,508)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,075) (48,509)
Net cash generated by / (used) in financing a@#vit 6,026 106,604
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (1) 23 (206)

Cash, cash equivalents at end of the year 40,213 66,321

(1) Element with no impact on cash derived from theveosion to US Dollars of assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies.

10.2.1.Net cash from operating activities

As of December 31,

(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012
Loss for the year (27,560) (37,485)
Adjustments for non cash items 27,020 12,549
Cash generated/ (used) in operations before changiesworking capital (541) (24,936)
Changes in working capital :

Inventories (580) 5,873
Trade receivables net of trade receivabkes traresfer (3,065) 3,957
Trade and other payables (1,745) (4,189)
Other receivables/ others payables,net (11,279) 6,250
Cash usedin changes in working capital (16,670) 11,891
Others (Interest received, net, income tax paid) 129 538
Net cash generated (used) in operating activities 11081) (12,508)

Net cash used in operating activities rose from WY8%508) thousand in 2012 to US$ (17,081)
thousand in 2013.

Net cash used in operations before changes in mgdapital dropped from US$ (24,936) thousand in
2012 to US$ (541) thousand in 2013, representisigrficant decrease (US$ 24,395 thousand). The
marked reduction in cash used in operations (befbamges in working capital) is mainly due to the
Group’s higher operating income. However, this ioy@ment was partly offset by a significant
increase in working capital requirements, totaliig$ 28,561 thousand.
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The significant increase in working capital reqments in 2013 was mainly due to a combination of
the following factors:

- The lower balance of receivables transferred tofahtor. As of December 31, 2013, the
total amount of receivables transferred totaled U&H1 thousand (against US$ 12,766
thousand as of December 31, 2012), and cash relceeteof factoring reserve amounted
to US$ 4,489 thousand (against US$ 12,330 thoussmad December 31, 2012).

- A US$ 9,266 thousand research tax credit increasghie 2013 fiscal year, pending
receipt. In 2012, the Group had received the filnbursement, in the amount of US$
4,168 thousand (EUR 3,207 thousand), of the relsetasc credit acquired for the 2010
fiscal year, which was subject to an audit thatrdititrigger any adjustments.

- Lastly, and exceptionally, in 2012 a customer hait ghe Group a non-refundable
advance on order backlog in connection with produders to be delivered for an amount
of US$ 6,460 thousand.

Lastly, the corporate restructuring plan carried iou2013 led to payments in the amount of US$
7,411 thousand over 2013.

10.2.1.2Net cash from investing activities

As of December 31,

(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012
Acquisition of ESS, net of cash acquired (5,188) (41,635)
Purchases of property and equipment (4,556) (2,119)
Purchases of intangible assets (1,101) (2,718)
Research and development capitalized costs (3,402) (973)
Payments corresponding to intangible liabilities 12%) (1,064)
Disposal of fixed assets 297

Net cash usedin investing activities (15,075) (48,509)
Year 2013

Since all of the conditions listed in the saleseagnent were met, in the first quarter of 2013, DESI
Secure paid out an additional US$ 5,188 thousatitetgeller of ESS, a business acquired in 2012.

Over the course of 2013, the Group acquired taagibt intangible fixed assets in the amount of US$
5,657 thousand (against US$ 4,837 thousand in 20d2he context of its corporate restructuring
project, the Company combined three worksites énAlx-en-Provence region into a new and single
worksite. As a result, the Company made non-reggyisignificant investments to equip and prepare
the building, in particular IT network and storaggipment.

Development expenses related to two applied relsgagjects (financed through repayable advances
in case of success) for a total amount of US$ 3th0@sand were also incurred in the 2013 fiscat yea
(against US$ 973 thousand in 2012) and were rezednn the balance sheet.

Year 2012

In 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of EG8 the day on which the transaction was
effectively finalized, INSIDE Secure paid an amoahtUS$ 41,635 thousand, net of cash acquired.
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10.2.1. et cash from financing activities

As of December 31,

(in thousands of US$) 2013 2012
Proceeds fromissuance of ordinary shares, nssofince costs 28 104,950
Direct costs paid related to the IPO - (5,840)
Repayable advance - 2,491
Financing of the Research tax credit 6,676 5,852
Principal repayment under finance lease (407) (463)
Treasury shares 87 (501)
Settlement of foreign exchange hedging instruments 83) ( (161)
Bank overdraft (276) 276
Net cash generated by financing activities 6,026 106,604
Year 2013

A research tax credit financing contract for thecdl year ended December 31, 2012, which is
recognized as an asset in the “Financial debt +tdkom” line item of the balance sheet, was
implemented in July 2013 with a partner bank. Reilgy the 2013 fiscal year-end, the contract
initially signed for one year (July 2014) was exted one additional year to July 2015. The amount
financed and paid to the Group totals US$ 6,676ghnd, which represents a financed share of 80%.
Interest is paid out monthly over the term of tbatcact.

Excluding this financing, the Group neither contealc any financial debt nor carried out any
significant share capital increases.

Year 2012

In conjunction with its IPO on the NYSE Euronexbck exchange in Paris in February 2012, the
Group completed a capital increase of US$ 98.7ionil(EUR 75.0 million), net of IPO fees and
expenses paid out in 2012.

In 2012, the Group also received US$ 2,491 thoudamah Bpifrance relating to research and
innovation programs (such advances are repayabtefaontractually defined sales targets are met).

Lastly, the financing of the research tax creditagnized in the balance sheet in 2011, and the ter
of which is set until June 2015, was implementedune 2012 with a partner bank. The amount
financed by the bank totals US$ 5,852 thousandcamcesponds to 90% of the research tax credit
receivable. The remaining 10% will be paid to the in June 2015 upon expiration of the contract
term and, as a result, the financial debt will kiénguished.
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10.2.2 Analysis of cash flows for the first half-year diZ%
Financial information selected from the consolidhtaish flow statement:

6-month period ended

In thousands of US$ June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 40,213 66,321

Net cash generated/ (used) in operating activities 4893 (15,399)

Net cash used in investing activi (15,361 (8,545

Net cash generated by / (used) in financing aiet 10,283 (477,

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 147 (53)

Cash, cash equivalents at end of the period 38,771 1,846

(1) Element with no impact on cash derived fromabeversion to US Dollars of assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies.

10.2.2.Net cash from operating activities

6-month period ended

In thousands of US$ June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Loss for the year (5,477) (21,002)
Adjustments for non cash items 7,773 15,116
Cash generated/ (used) in operations before changes

working capital 2,297 (5,886)
Changes in working capital

Inventories 4,265 (6,213)
Trade receivables net of trade receivabkes tramsfer 7,671 (3,477)
Trade and other payables 1,078 6,683
Non refundable advance on order backlog (2,683) -
Other receivables/ others payables,net (8,303) (6,438
Cash used in changes in working capital 2,028 (9,445
Others (Interest received, net, income tax paid) (836 (69)

Net cash generated (used) in operating activities 89 (15,399)

In the first half-year of 2014, the cash positiam enainly be broken down as follows:

— Current business activititgenerated US$ 3,760 thousand (against a cashtidepté US$
10,712 thousand in the first half-year of 2013)jchrexplains the positive shift in results;

- The decrease in working capital requirements figedJS$ 2,028 thousand and as much as
US$ 9,634 if the 2013 research tax credit finanaingtract is included (recognized as a
financing transaction), due mainly to a decreasevantory.

Consequently, the business was able to generate3|488 thousand (and US$ 11,095 thousand if the
2013 research tax credit financing contract isudetl) over the course of the first half-year of £01
against a cash depletion of US$ 15,399 thousatitkifirst half-year of 2013.

! cash flow from operating activities before chanysvorking capital (US$ +2,297 thousand) and exelgdhe exceptional
payment in the amount of US$ 1,463 thousand in ection with the first quarter departure of the ksiployees involved in
the 2013 corporate restructuring plan (which hasimpact on income, since the expense had already provisioned in
2013).
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10.2.2.2Net cash from investing activities

In thousands of US$ June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Acquisition of Metaforic, net of cash acquired (B8p -
Additional payment on ESS acquisition - (5,188)
Equity method investmer (952 -
Purchases of property and equipr (506 (1,852
Purchases of intangible as: (523 (382
Research and development capitalized 55 (696,
Payments corresponding to intangible liabilities (399 (592
Disposal of fixed assets - 165

Net cash used in investing activities (15,361) (8,545

First half-year of 2014

On April 5, 2014, the Group acquired all of the Bfetic’s shares. On the day the transaction took
place, INSIDE Secure paid out an amount of US$3(Bt@ousand for the acquisition of 100% of the
company'’s shares and the payment of the companystamding debt.

Over the course of the period ended June 30, 20&4Group also acquired tangible and intangible
fixed assets for US$ 1,029 thousand, which is apsHacrease relative to the first half-year of the
previous fiscal year (investments in the amouni 8% 2,234 thousand in 2013).

As of the first half-year of 2014, the Group has mognized any significant development expenses
in the balance sheet, whereas the Group had alreadgnized US$ 696 thousand in the first half-
year of 2013.

First half-year of 2013

Due to the fact that, as the Group had expected¢cadimditions set forth in the ESS sales agreement
were met in full, an additional US$ 5,188 thousamd paid out in the first quarter of 2013.

10.2.2.3et cash from financing activities

6-month period ended

In thousands of US$ June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares, nesoéince costs 130 28
Repayable advan 2,756 -
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) borrowings, nessfiance cos 7,606 -
Principal repayment under finance le (245, (253
Treasury shart 36 24

Bank overdra: - (276

Net cash generated by / (used) in financing activits 10,283 477)

First half-year of 2014

During the first half-year of 2014, the Group reesl US$ 2,756 thousand from Bpifrance in
connection with research and innovation programesg advances are recoupable in the event that
contractually defined sales targets are reached).
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In addition, a research tax credit financing coettfar the 2013 fiscal year, recognized in the beda
sheet, and the term of which is set until June 20&8 implemented in June 2014 with a partner bank.
The amount financed by the bank totals US$ 7,548gand and corresponds to 90% of the research
tax credit receivable. The remaining 10% will bédga the Group in December 2017 upon expiration
of the contract term and, as a result, the findmigiht will be extinguished.

The Company has not completed any share capitadases over the course of the period (other than
those associated with Group employees’ exercisgoak options.

First half-year of 2013

The Group did not complete any significant finaigciransactions over the course of the first haifrye
of 2013.

10.2.3 Off balance sheet commitment

Total off balance sheet commitments for the GrosipfaJune 30 amounted to US$ 5,564 thousand.
These commitments are described in Note 23 of theedNto the Half-year Financial Statements
established as of June 30, 2014, included in Chapté.1 entitled fhterim Financial Informatioi

Total off balance sheet commitments for the GrasipfaDecember 31, 2013 amounted to US$ 5,891
thousand, against US$ 28,676 thousand as of Dece3ih@012. These commitments are described
in Note 33 of the Notes to the Consolidated FinalnStatements, included in Chapter 10.1 entitled
“Historical Financial Information”. In 2012, the Qup’s most significant off balance sheet
commitment related to a wafer purchase agreemeantebly the Company committed to purchase a
minimum number of wafers from the company LFountsfore September 30, 2014 and for a
maximum price of US$ 27,061 thousand. In 2013,Gheup had honored all of its commitments to
LFoundry, prior to the latter discontinuing all iattes and being subject to court-ordered liquioiat
proceedings in December 2013.

10.3 Information on borrowing conditions and the structure of financing

Beyond the specific case of the financing of itsegch tax credit receivables (please refer to Rbte
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéspencluded in Chapter 10.6.1 entitlebhtérim
Financial Informatiori), the Group does not borrow as of the filing datk this Registration
Document.

10.4 Restriction on the use of capital
None applicable.
10.5 Future necessary sources of financing

In addition to continuing its efforts to improve ibperating cash flow generation, the Group plans t
continue to enter into financing agreements forr@search tax credit receivables as well as lease-
financing agreements, in order to cover part of dtsrent IT investment requirements. Albeit
marginally, the Group also plans to sign lease eagemnts to finance part of its needs in engineering
and testing equipment. Generally, the Group plansontinue to optimize its financial structure and
flexibility by acquiring debt instruments or camgi out share capital increases through the issuaince
shares or securities granting access to the shaik
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11. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, PATENTS, AND LICENSES
11.1 Research and development
11.1.1 A key element in the success of the Group

The Group commits significant resources to its aede and development activities, which represents
a key element in its success. These investmerdddethe creation of new products, the integratibn
new functionalities in its semiconductors, the depment and improvement of its software, while
perfecting the security of its products.

The research and development activities of the Gimmprises 158 of its employees (for the most
part, designers of semiconductors, embedded saftavad applications developers, security engineers
and integration and testing engineers), togethén,van average, approximately fifteen developers
contracted by engineering companies and servicédus. They represent approximately 47% of the
Group’s employee base and are mainly based in Méyregion of Aix-en-Provence, France), East
Kilbride (Scotland), Vught (The Netherlands), Amdtn (The Netherlands), Glasgow (Scotland),
and Helsinki (Finland).

The Meyreuil, East Kilbride, Sophia-Antipolis, Saggpre, and Taiwan worksites are ISO 27001
certified (international standard on informatiocsgy management).

The Group’s research and development expendituresaf the research tax credit and subsidies)
totaled US$ 33,953 thousand, US$ 35,370 thousamdl US$ 34,536 thousand in 2013, 2012, and
2011, respectively.

In 2013, gross expenditures relative to the re$eand development activities of the Group (netef t
research tax credit and grants) represented 22% obnsolidated revenue (against 29% in 2012, due
mainly to the lower amount of revenue generate2DitR).

11.1.2 The Group’s technologies
The technological core of the Group is composeth@following main areas of activity:

- Designing semiconductors: the design of low-powdiipg, the architecture of
microprocessors and of systems-on-chip, analogofraduencies) and digital design,
signal processing, security and cryptography;

- Developing software: embedded “real time” operasggtems, software, middleware and
applications layers and testing protocols; and

- Systems integration and packaging.

From a functional point of view, the core expertisk the Group lies in the areas of secure
microcontrollers, with embedded memory and low poea@sumption, contactless radio technology,
data and transactions security, and the architectumicrocontrollers.

The Group has been developing secure semiconduatatembedded software since 1995 and its
history is punctuated by major innovations in tieustry. In recent years, it has also received
numerous awards; this industry recognition highbgthe research and development talents of the
Group in various technical areas.

As a result of the ESS and Metaforic acquisitidios further information, please refer to sectio 5.
entitled “Investments” of this Registration Docurt)erthe Group has enriched its technological
expertise with regard to security and, in partigukecurity software. ESS develops intellectual
property and security software using encryptiorodtgms. As such, ESS develops a wide range of
software and toolkits based on set standards, ifptatirights management (“DRM”), intended for
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mobile operators, service providers, and platfomtegrators on the server side, as well as DRM
solutions on the client side for device manufastu@nd suppliers of semiconductors, applications
software, and platform integrators. The portfolioESS also includes security toolkits as well as
intellectual property for the design of semicondustand security processors for security on mobile
devices and networks. Metaforic specializes in dleselopment of software using obfuscation
technologies and security software specializedyptology. Metaforic’s software product line offers
a high level of protection for payment functionglas intended to provide secure data exchange by
relying on an exclusively software-based infradtite These solutions protect static, transiting, o
dynamic data, and provide communication confiddittigunctions to critical applications, offer
protection per encryption key and data securityl are able to meet the growing security needs of
large companies.

The Group plays a leading role within standardoratbrganizations and a number of other industry
organizations. In particular, it is a member of AEIS (the French Alliance pour les Composants et
Systémes pour I'Industrie Electroniguer alliance for components and systems for thextebnics
industry), of the ETSI (European Telecommunicati@tandards Institute), of the APSCA (Asia
Pacific Smart Card Association), of the APTA (Anoan Public Transportation Association), of
Eurosmart, of the Global Platform and of the SmartiCAlliance, of the OSPT (Open Standard for
Public Transport), of Alliance and of the NFC Foruhie Group is also a member of the ISO and
AFNOR and participates in a number of these orgditias’ workgroups.

11.2 Intellectual property

The Group has a number of intellectual properthtégand is committed to actively protect them in
the relevant jurisdictions and before the relevauthorities (for further information please refer t
sections 11.2.2 to 11.2.5 below). Furthermore ,Ghaup uses the intellectual property rights ofahir
parties and licenses its own technology to thirdigs (for further information please refer to et
11.2.1 below).

11.2.1 Licenses

Eager to optimize its return on investment, in @ddito its own intellectual property the Group’s
development relies on technology and intellectuadpprty rights licensed by third parties. In
particular, this is the case for some technologitegrated in its semiconductors or used in thégdes

of its software. The license agreements are tylyicain-exclusive and granted at a price determined
based on the volume of products or solutions splthe Group. Generally, they are either entereal int
for an indefinite period or are automatically reaée so long as the Group continues to pay the
corresponding fees and complies with the termsheflicense agreement. However, some licenses
relative to a specific technology used in the depwient of a specific product are entered into for a
fixed period, typically with the option to renewgibg understood that the licensed technology may be
replaced by other technologies based on the fewwkition of the product.

The main licenses used by the Group are the fatigwi

- License agreement entered into with ARM Limfteelating to secure core microcontrollers;

- License agreement entered into with Atmel Corpcated in the context of the acquisition of
Atmel Corp.’s SMS business (for further informatiphease refer to Chapter 22 entitled “Key
Contracts” of the Registration Document, the desiom of the Core License Agreement
between Atmel Corp. and the Company dated Septe&th&010);

- License agreement signed with CRI relative to aetiechniques to defend against attacks (for
further information, please refer to Chapter 22tkeot “Key Contracts” of the Registration
Document, the description of the Patent LicenseefAgrent between Atmel Corp. and

1 Obfuscator technology improves the security ofliapions by voluntarily making them more difficuth understand and
piece together (software obfuscation).

2 ARM Limited is the global leader in the developmefsemiconductor IP blocks and, in particularttie supply of core
processors used in embedded systems (mobile telephim particular).
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Cryptography Research Inc. dated August 12, 20@Bteansferred to the Company in the
context of the acquisition of Atmel Corp.’'s SMS Ingss, and the Tamper Resistance License
Agreement between the Company and CryptographyaResenc. dated July 1, 2009); and

- License agreement signed with Silicon Storage Teldgy (“SST”), a subsidiary of
Microchip Technology Inc., relative to the ESF3-1#&06hnology and the Flash Cell allowing
the Company to, in particular, develop and sellisenductors that feature Flash memory
technology.

11.2.2 Patents

The Company considers that the protection of itsllectual property rights is fundamental in the
pursuit of its commercial development. In this exttits ability to register patents in France, dpdr,
the United States and in the rest of the world igrimme importance.

As from the early years of its development, the Gany therefore implemented an active policy
aimed at protecting its innovative efforts, its heeologies, and its products, by filing patent
applications. Typically, the Company files its iaitpatent applications in France. The second step
then involves filing extensions for these patemtsEurope and generally, in the United States, in
Canada, in China and in Korea.

Patents are granted for 20 years as from the dateatent application is filed.

The Company has built a broad patent portfolioatqrt itstechnologies and innovative products. It
has also acquired non-exclusive licenses for certhird party patents and intellectual property
elements (please refer to section 11.2.1 for fuitifermation).

Historically, the Company’s patent portfolio pripally covers contactless interfaces and security. A
the time of the integration of the SMS busines2040, the Company acquired an additional patent
portfolio principally relating to security and cki@rchitecture. In addition, the portfolio was it
extended via the patents acquired through the sitigni of the ESS business in December 2012
(portfolio comprised of 19 patent families) and Kfetic in April 2014 (21 patents and patent
requests), principally relating to both secure eahtransfer and embedded software security.

To date the Company currently holds a portfolimeérly 700 intellectual property titles in effect.

As of summer 2014, the patent portfolio include® p@tent families, in line with the Group’s strateg

and business activities. They are allocated asvisli 30% relate to contactless interfaces, 30%erela
to security, 25% relate to applications and tratigaal structures, and 15% relate to the architectu
of semiconductors.

Some of the Company’s patents and patent applitatoe particularly significant insofar as they are

considered indispensable in meeting market needs addressing certain technical obstacles. In

addition, some of the Company’s patents have beefaed as essential to implementing a standard
pursuant to the applicable rules of standardizaitistitutions, such as ETSI. Some of these patents
will be in the public domain between 2017 and 2012.

11.2.3 Software
The Group’s software product offering is organiaedund the following areas:

* Embedded “real time” operating systems

* Embedded software stacks

* Embedded applications

* Software development and testing toolkits

» Testing and test analysis programs, pre-persomializand personalization scripts.
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The Group’s software and, in particular, its soucogle (in other words all of a programmer’s

instructions, written in intelligible form for sugbrogrammer) is protected not only by copyright but
also as trade secrets (in addition to the protachtip patent to the extent possible and subject to
strategic considerations).

Most of the Group’s software is developed integnalimainly by the Group’s employees in the course
of the performance of their duties or as a resttihe Group’s instructions. As a result, the Group
owns this software.

Other software was acquired, such as security sofwi) based on encryption algorithms, in the
context of the acquisition of ESS (please refesdotion 6.1.4 of this Registration Document for
further information) and (ii) specialized in cryfigy, in the context of the acquisition of Metafori
(please refer to section 6.1.4 of this RegistraDoeument for further information).

When it is commercialized, the Group’s softwaredistributed pursuant to license agreements,
whereby the Group grants its customers a right de this software (as opposed to a right of
ownership). As such, these agreements contain t@umsuant to which the Group reservesits

ownership rights on its software and protectsatsfidential nature.

11.2.4 Trademarks

The Company owns the following trademarks and trad& applications, which are necessary for the

conduct of its business:

The Secure Silicon Solution

INSIDE — LOGO

PICOCRYPT

CONTACTLESS

PICOPASS

eNFC

MICROREAD

NATIVE APPLET

MAKE THE MOVE (accentuated undulation)
INSIDE CONTACTLESS (yellow and black
logo)

Open NFC (logo)

VaultiC

DRIVING TRUST

V Vault /C (logo)

C pAD-X (logo)

Twincore

VaultSecure (logo)

Vault NFC (logo)

BikeSeal (logo)

INCRYPT
INSIDE TECHNOLOGIES
PICOTAG
INSIDE CONTACTLESS
ACCESSO
PICOREAD
MICROPASS
WAVE - ME
INSIDE CONTALESS (black logo)
MAKE THE MOVE (light undulation)

S SECUREAD (logo)
INSIDE SECURE
C Ad-X (logo)
C Ad X2 (logo)
m microloyalty (logo)
Picopulse (logo)
InsideRus

MicroXsafe (logo)
NFC ID (logo)
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CapSeal (logo) Smartread (logo)

Quicksec 65 UNIC (logo)
Booster (logo) VaultiID(logo)
Combopulse (logo) VaultIP (logo)

VVaultlP (logo)

These trademarks and trademark applications ateqtedl in France. In some cases, the Company
also registered trademarks or filed a trademarkliegipns at the European Community or
international level and, in particular, in Chinlag tUnited States, and Japan.

11.2.5 Domain names

As of the filing date of this Registration Documettte Company has registered and currently owns
the following domain names:

insidesecure.com insidecontactless.asia

insidesecure-finance.com micropass.asia

insidecontactless.com
ipsec.com
ipvia.net

ipvia.org
micropass.eu
microread.eu
opennfc.com
open-nfc.com
open-nfc.org
quicksec.com
beepscience.com
dmdlicenser.com
dmdmobile.com
dmdpackager.com
dmdsecure.com
enfc.com
in-club.co.uk
in-club.fr
insidefr.com
insidefr.eu
insidecontactless.eu
insidefr.us
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microread.asia
wave-me.asia
inside-secure.com
embeddedssl.com
insidesecure.co
insidesecure.eu
insidesecure.fr
insidesecure.info
insidesecure.net
insidesecure.org
matrixssl.com
matrixssl.org
peersec.com
peersec.net
peersec.org
peersecnetworks.com
peersecsoftware.com
insidesecure.ru
metaforic.com
metaforic.co.uk
metaforic.co.jp
insidecontactless.us



11.2.6 Disputes

Please refer to section 20.8 of this Registrationubnent for further information.
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12. TRENDS

The second half of 2014 should confirm the resafltde strategic repositioning initiated in 2013lan
in particular through:

« Continuing efforts to license its technology andpatents, with an intended impact from
the second half of 2014;

e Signing new licenses on mobile security embeddemtiymts, for applications in content
protection as well as enterprise security;

e Pursuing the integration of Metaforic in the Grauptoduct offer and winning new customers
after the first contracts signed at the end ofgbeond quarter of 2014 in mobile payment
(deployment of HCE solutions as defined by Visa Blagtercard);

* Registering first volumes in the EMV in the U.S.rket;

e Pursuing business development in anti-counterggimutions for wine and liquor and luxury
goods industries with field trial implementations.

In addition, the Group plans to continue in 2014nprove its overall gross profit margjrowing to a
supportive product mix and continued efforts ondbst and selling price fronts.

! Adjusted gross profit as a percentage of conswlitieevenue
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13. PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

The Company does not intend to make profit forecasestimates.
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14. GOVERNING, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES AND SE NIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company is a French société anonyjmiat(stock compar)ywith a Management Board and a Supervisory Board.

14.1

14.1.1 Members of the Management Board

Members of the Management Board and members of th8upervisory Board

Name

Title

Operating duties
and other offices

held within the Group

Terms of Office

Rémy de Tonnac

Chairman of the
Management Board

INSIDE Secure S.A. (France) -
Chairman of the Management Bog
INSIDE Secure Corp. (United
States) — Chairman of the Board o
Directors

INSIDE Secure (Asia) Ltd Pte
(Singapore) — Director

Metaforic Inc. (United States) -
Director

Initial appointment: March 23, 2006

rBate of most recent renewal: May 11, 2011

Term of office expires: at the end of the Genetar8holders’
fMeeting called to approve the financial statementbe fiscal year
ended 31 December 2014

Pierre Garnier

Member of the
Management Board

Not Applicable

Initial appointment: November 21, 2012

Term of office expires: at the end of the Genetar8holders’
Meeting called to approve the financial statemehtse fiscal year
ended December 31, 2014

Richard Vacher Detourniérs

Member of the
Management Board

INSIDE Secure S.A. (France) -

Initial appointment: October 2, 2008

Member of the Management Boardg Date of most recent renewal: May 11, 2011

and Chief Financial Officer
Vault-IC UK Ltd (United Kingdom)
— Director

INSIDE Secure K.K. (Japan) —
Director

INSIDE Secure France S.A.S. —
Chief Executive Officer

Metaforic Ltd (United Kingdom) -

Term of office expires: at the end of the Genefar8holders’
Meeting called to approve the financial statemehtse fiscal year
ended December 31, 2014

Director
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Operating duties

Name Title and other offices Terms of Office
held within the Group
Pascal Didier General Manager INSIDE Secure S.A. (France) - Initial appointment: January 31, 2003

Member of the Management Boardg Date of most recent renewal: May 11, 2011
and General Manager and Corporatieerm of office expires: at the end of the Genetar8holders’
Secretary Meeting called to approve the financial statementbe fiscal year

- INSIDE Secure France S.A.S. ended December 31, 2014
(France) — Permanent representatfve
of the Company who acts as
Chairman

- INSIDE Secure Corp. (United
States) - Director

- INSIDE Secure (Asia) Ltd Pte
(Singapore) - Director

- Vault IC France SAS — Permanent
representative of the Company wh
acts as Chairman

- INSIDE Secure K.K. (Japan) —

[=]

Director
- Metaforic Inc. (United States) -
Director
Simon Blake-Wilsoh Member of the - INSIDE Secure Corp. (United Initial appointment: October 23, 2013
Management Board States) — Chairman, Secretary and Term of office expires: at the end of the Genetar8holders’
Treasurer Meeting called to approve the financial statementbe fiscal year

ended December 31, 2014

The professional address of all the members ofMaeagement Board, with the exception of Simon BMkison, is the corporate headquarters of the
Company.
Simon Blake-Wilson’s professional address is thdregs of INSIDE Secure Corp. in the United States.

The management expertise and experience of theddament Board’s members is the result of variousrigsl and managerial positions they have held in
the past, which are summarized below.

! Via a letter received on August 18, 2014, the Camypwvas informed of Simon Blake-Wilson's resignatible will be leaving the Group on August 31, 2014.
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Rémy de Tonnac
Chairman of the Management Board

Prior to being appointed CEO of the Company in 20Rémy de Tonnac was a Venture Partner at
Vertex Venture Capital in London. He representedidfewithin numerous technology companies in
the firm’'s portfolio and served as Chairman of Swgervisory Board of the Company from 2002 to
2006. Previously, Rémy carried out several managemmes at Gemplus, having joined the smart
card provider at its inception in 1987. He inityatlversaw sales and marketing operations in France,
before becoming Chief Executive Officer for the &#lacific region from 1992 to 1999, based in
Singapore. He then moved to San Francisco tolftid same function for the Americas region. He
was also a member of the Gemplus group’s execugtivemittee from 1995 to 2001. He began his
career as a technical sales engineer at Compagmér&e des Eaux (a major French utility company)
in 1982, before moving to Thomson Semiconducteursich became SGS-Thomson and is now
known as STMicroelectronics), where he performedous manufacturing, planning and marketing-
related duties. Rémy is a graduate of Lille’s Ea®atrale and holds a degree in economics frore Lill
University.

Pierre Garnier
Chief Operating Officer

Prior to joining INSIDE Secure, Mr. Garnier was ¥iPresident and General Manager at Texas
Instruments (TI), where he was in charge of theldvdde baseband business and worldwide wireless
strategic programs. At Tl, he also managed equoitgstment and acquisition activities within the
wireless ecosystem. Prior to Tl, he was ChairmahGBO of Everbee Networks, a company
developing systems-on-chips for personal Intereetisty devices. Before that, Mr. Garnier was
General Manager of the Alcatel Microelectronicsdotisand Access Business, which he founded and
turned into a world-leading ADSL chipset maker befib was acquired by STMicroelectronics in
2002. Mr. Garnier is a French national and an alisrof the Supelec engineering school. He also
holds a postgraduate degree in solid-state physics.

Richard Vacher Detourniére
General Manager & Chief Financial Officer

Before joining the Company in 2008, Richard Vacdbetourniére served as a partner at Siparex, one
of France’s leading private equity investment gouie joined Siparex in 1994 and had a key role in
more than 25 financing transactions, including teged buy-outs, growth capital investments and
investments in young, innovative companies. Riclveedt on to serve as a partner in the information
technology sector. Following that, he helped to 8BV Venture Partners in California’s Silicon
Valley, a venture capital firm co-managed by Sigat¢ée was Siparex’s permanent representative on
the boards of thirteen of its portfolio companiegluding Nanolase (sold to JDS Uniphase), SoiSic
(sold to ARM), Leguide.com (listed on NYSE AlternexXParis), EVE (specializing in
hardware/software co-verification) and INSIDE. Hsoaserved on the audit committees of several of
these companies. He started off his business came#®90 as a consultant at Price Waterhouse,
concentrating on auditing and transaction suppemtices, first in France, then in Central Europe.
Richard, a graduate of the Ecole supérieure de @wo®rin Amiens (France), holds a Master’s degree
in accountancy and finance.
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Pascal Didier
General Manager and Corporate Secretary

Pascal Didier joined the Company in 2003. From 1882002, he worked for Gemplus, where he
carried out the mandate of Vice President for essmis from 2000 to 2002. Involved with Gemplus
from its inception onwards, Pascal was part of ti@nagement team that set up the firm’'s North
American subsidiary. He went on to occupy varioakes and marketing positions within the firm,
including Director of Sales Operations, as welbasg a member of the executive committee and of
the Supervisory Board (representing employee sbédefs). He began his career as a designer of
integrated circuits and a technical support engiaé@hilips Components in France and in the United
States, before moving to Thomson Semiconducteuticfwbecame SGS Thomson and is now
STMicroelectronics) to manage smart card marketings memory division. Pascal is a graduate of
two Parisian institutions, the Ecole polytechnigaad the Ecole nationale supérieure des
télécommunications.

Simon Blake-Wilson
Executive Vice President of the Mobile Security Bess Division & Chief Sales Officer

Before joining INSIDE Secure, Mr Blake-Wilson wasc¥ President of the Embedded Security
Solutions division at AuthenTec (then SafeNet) @& He spent four years addressing security issues
for the Federal Aviation Administration. From 19882002, he worked with Certicom as director of
business development and cryptographic research.

Dr. Blake-Wilson is a well-known researcher anchatity in wireless security, and the co-inventor of
EAP-TTLS, one of the industry's most popular WLASBKsrity solutions. He edited several ANSI
standards on Elliptic Curve Cryptography which h&een adopted by the US government. He has
also been heavily involved with a number of indpsttandards bodies including Bluetooth, ICAO,
IEEE, IETF, and OMA. Dr. Blake-Wilson is a certfiénformation systems security professional,
holds a Ph.D. in Information Security and Mathepsafrom the University of London, and spent a
year as a Fulbright scholar visiting Auburn Univigrs
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14.1.2 Members of the Supervisory Board

Name

Title

Main offices held outside d
the Group

Terms of Office

Patrick Schwager Jones
7057 Valley Green Circle
Carmel, CA 93923
United States

Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

None applicable

Date of appointment as Member®&tpervisory Board: June 29,
2012
Date of appointment as Chairman of the SuperviBaard: June 26,
2014
Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah®&tolders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2014

Jean Schmitt
92 boulevard Flandrin, 75016 Paris
France

Vice-Chairman and
independent member of th
Supervisory Board

Chairman of Jolt Holding
bChief Executive Officer of
Jolt Capital

Chairman of Hattemer

Date appointed: June 19, 2013

Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah®&olders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2015

Alex Brabers

c/o GIMV

Karel Oomsstraat 37, 2018 Antwerp
Belgium

Member of the Supervisory
Board

GIMV, Chief Business
Operations

Date appointed: June 26, 2014

Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah®&olders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2016

Glenn Collinson

56 High Street

Chippenham

Ely, Cambs, United Kingdom

Independent member of th
Supervisory Board

eNone applicable

Date appointed: June 26, 2014
Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah®&tolders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2016

Joélle Toledano
361 rue Lecourbe, 75015 Paris
France

Independent member of th
Supervisory Board

eNone applicable

Date appointed: June 29, 2012
Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah&nolders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2014

Olivier Sichel
5 rue de Monceau, 75008 Paris
France

Independent member of th
Supervisory Board

eChairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Le
Guide.com

Date appointed: December 19, 2013

Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah®&nolders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2014

Muriel Barnéoud
183, rue Lecourbe, 75015 Paris
France

Independent member of th
Supervisory Board

eChairman and Chief
Executive Officer of
Docapost

Date appointed: June 26, 2014

Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah@nolders’ Meeting
called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
December 31, 2016
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Main offices held outside gf '
. Terms of Office
Name Title the Group
Bpifrance Participations represented|ibydependent member of theNone applicable Date appointed: June 19, 2013
Thierry Sommelet Supervisory Board Term of office expires: at the end of the Annuah®&olders’ Meeting
56, rue de Lille, 75007 Paris called to approve the financial statements of tbeaf year ended
France December 31, 2015

The management expertise and experience of thendsgy Board’'s members is the result of variodarsad and managerial positions they have helthén t
past, which are summarised below.
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Patrick Jones

Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Chairman ofAbdit Committee and Member of the
Compensation and Nomination Committee

Age: 70 Nationality: American

Patrick Jones is currently Chairman of the boardliogctors for Lattice Semiconductor (Nasdaq
symbol: LSCC), a fabless semiconductor company,athgic Inc. (Nasdaq symbol: DLGC), which
provides solutions for mobile operators that opteminetwork broadband capacity and enhance
communication performance. He also sits on the dadirdirectors of Fluidigm (Nasdaq symbol:
FLDM), a creator and manufacturer of integrateddftu systems for biology, of Adionics S.A., a
company specialized in water desalination and im@lsvater waste treatement, and of Vesta Inc., a
designer of electronic payment solutions for th&edemmunications industry. In addition, he
previously sat on the board of many high-tech fifinanced by venture capital investors. From 1998
to 2001, Patrick was Senior Vice President and GFGGemplus SA (currently integrated into
Gemalto), the smart card market leader, for whiersticcessfully oversaw the initial public offering
on the New York and Paris stock exchanges. He hadqusly served as Vice President for Finance
and Corporate Controller at Intel and CFO at LSlgico a manufacturer of specialized
semiconductors. He began his career as an engahéBM, before working for Singer Company in
Thailand, France and Singapore. He has an MBAraniEe from Saint Louis University (United
States) and is a graduate of the University afdik-Urbana-Champaign (United States).

Jean Schmitt
Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board, ChairmathefCompensation and Nomination Committee
Age: 49 Nationality: French

Jean Schmitt is Managing Partner of Jolt Capitdl @hairman of Hattemer. Before founding JoltTech
Capital, from 2001 to 2011 Jean Schmitt was Patimen Managing Partner at Sofinnova Partners.
Before that, Jean Schmitt had founded several compaincluding SLP InfoWare, one of the
worldwide leaders in predictive CRM software foe ttelecommunications sector, which he sold to
Gemplus in 2000. He then held the joint roles ofCC& SLP Infoware and Vice President for
Telecoms Solutions & Applications at Gemplus. J8ahmitt is currently a member on the board of
directors of companies such as Heptagon (Singapore)Fogale Interactive Technologies
(Switzerland). He no longer serves on the boarddyfad (SIX: MYRN) or Authentec since it was
sold to Apple Inc. (NASDAQ: AUTH). Jean Schmittasgraduate of the Ecole Nationale Supérieure
des Télécommunications (ENST) in Paris and holg®stgraduate degree in artificial intelligence.
Jean lectures at Telecom ParisTech, Mines Parisdrdliat HEC business school.

Alex Brabers

Member of the Supervisory Board, Member of the Cengjation and Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee

Age: 48 Nationality: Dutch

Alex developed the venture capital activity of Ginby investing in new innovative companies,
followed by the active support of the managemeattend eventually exiting either through IPO or
trade sale. He built the VC team of Gimv and coddivem in developing its place in the European
VC ecosystem. Since 2012, Alex is responsible fbingestment activity of Gimv. He is a board
member of various companies, including, Nomades&lgiBm), OTN Systems (Belgium), Oree
(Israel) and Punch Powertrain (Belgium). Befored,tha was a member of the board of directors of
Telenet (Belgium), Mobistar (Belgium), Emme (FrancBarco (Belgium), Barconet (Belgium),
Option (Belgium), Virtensys (UK) and Telos (CanadaJex Brabers holds a Master degree in
Economics from KU Leuven (Belgium).
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Glenn Collinson
Member of the Supervisory Board
Age: 51 Nationality: British

The co-founder of Cambridge Silicon Radio Plc. (LSEnbol: CSR), Glenn Collinson oversaw the
development of CSR from its formation in 1998 t® listing as a public company in 2004, first as
Marketing Director and then as Sales Director uvitily 2007. He is currently serving as Director of
Blu Wireless Technology Ltd, a company developimy blocs intended for 60 GHz wireless
transmission, and of SDL plc, (LSE: SDL), leadingmpany in the worldwide management of
customer experience. Other posts Glenn has hdlddim®irector of Sonaptic Ltd, from April 2005 to
July 2007, when it was sold to Wolfson Microeleaios plc, Director of DiBcom SA from September
2007 to July 2011, Director of Microemissive Dig@aGroup plc. from April to November of 2008,
Director of Solar Press Ltd from September 20090ober 2013, Director of Neul Ltd from
September 2010 to June 2013, and Director of Wdlsienoelectronics plc. until it was sold to Cirrus
Logic Inc. in August 2014. Prior to co-founding C3f® was Senior Engineer and Marketing Manager
at Cambridge Consultants Ltd (1996-1998) and Dekiggineer and Marketing Manager at Texas
Instruments (1989-1996). He is a member of thatirigin of Engineering and Technology and holds
a Bachelor of Science in physics and a Master @rf8e in electronics from Durham University, as
well as an MBA from Cranfield University.

Thierry Sommelet

Permanent representative of Bpifrance Participatidfember of the Supervisory Board and Audit
Committee

Age: 45 Nationality: French

Thierry Sommelet is Senior Investment Director withhe “large and mid cap” department of
Bpifrance Participations (formerly known as Fondstggique d’Investissement, or “FSI”). Before
joining FSI in 2009 as an Investment Director, TlyieSommelet was Head of Investments in the
développement numérique des territoi(Begional Digital Development) service of tlhaisse des
Dépbts where he was responsible for investments in thitatl sector. Thierry’s career began in the
financial markets with Crédit Commercial de Frafwew HSBC), in Paris and New York, where he
was in charge of risk management. In 1996, he {bRenaissance Software (nhow Infinity), a supplier
of software to financial institutions, managing litsndon-based European financial engineering team.
From 2000 to 2001, he took charge of developmedtlaternet strategy at media company InfosCE.
He then moved t€aisse des dépdils 2002. Thierry Sommelet represents Bpifrancehenttoard of
directors of TDF, Mader, and Sipartech. His is atsMirector of Sipartech, Greenbureau and
Cloudwatt. He is a graduate of the ENPC civil ergiting school in Paris and earned an MBA from
Insead, the international business school.

Olivier Sichel
Member of the Supervisory Board
Age: 47 Nationality: French

Since July 2012, Olivier Sichel is the Chairman &tdef Executive Officer of LeGuide.com, the
European leader in online shopping guides. Hawmged Sofinnova Partners as a Partner in 2006,
he became a venture partner in 2012. He held v@npearational positions at France Telecom from
1998 to 2000, before being appointed Chief Exeeuficer of Alapage.com in 2000, a web-based
retail company acquired by Wanadoo, and Chief BEkezOfficer of Wanadoo in 2002. In 2004,
Olivier Sichel managed the reintegration of Wanaitho the France Telecom group while taking on
the management of its “fixed-line and Internet”iglion. He then carried out the merger of the fixed-
line telephone teams with Wanadoo in all of Eur@gwel was, in particular, one of the early
contributors to the launch of the Livebox and oflR.owhile at Sofinnova Partners, Olivier invested
in OpenERP, Solutions30, Taptu, and Twenga. Heshaged as a director for Streamezzo (sold to
Amdocs), Sprice (sold to TravelPort), and blueK{gold to Atos). He currently serves as director
for Solutions30 and Sofipost, and as a non-votiregniver of the board of directors of Volubill.
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Olivier graduated from ESSEC Business School (Feprend from ENA Ecole Nationale
d’Administratior) (France) and is an Inspector of Finariosfecteur des financem France.

Joélle Toledano
Member of the Supervisory Board
Age: 61 Nationality: French

With a PhD in both mathematics and economics, doBliledano has pursued a career in higher
education along with a career in business. Sheedtaiut as a research associate withGbkatre
National de la Recherche Scientifiq@Erench National Center for Scientific Researchjotme
becoming a lecturemaitre de conférenceé Economics at the University of Rouen (Frandg).
the same time, she held various management pogdfs &md telecommunications companies. As
such, she became Vice-President of Alcatel TITN ahdhlcatel-Answare from 1987 to 1989,
followed by CEO of CCMC Ressources Humaines. Ska fbined the La Poste group as Head of
Strategy in 1993, before becoming its Head of Eeaopand National Regulation in 2001. A
professor at the Universités a SUPELEC (Paris)esR@05, Joélle Toledano was a member of the
college of theAutorité de régulation des communications €lectjaes et des postéaRCEP) from
2005 to late 2011. She is a Director on the bodrthe “Résidentiel numériqtieand Agence
Nationale des Fréguences

Muriel Barnéoud
Member of the Supervisory Board
Age: 47 Nationality: French

Muriel Barnéoud serves as Chairman, President ahiéf GExecutive Officer of Docapost (a
subsidiary of La Poste group with revenues of €d4tiion and 4,500 employees) specializing in
digital and mobile transition of companies anditnbns and an expert in document management,
digitalization, and security of electronic commuations. Muriel Barnéoud joined the La Poste
group in 1994 after an initial experience at Artlundersen. She went on to become Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of Mail with responsibility forrpduction. Muriel Barnéoud was non-executive
chairman of two holding companies for the La Pasteip’s logistics operations (Viapost and STP).
She is the chairman of approximately ten boardfirettors within the Docapost group. She also sits
on the supervisory committee of Xange Private Bt Poste’s private equity company, and on
the board of directors of Sofipost, the La Postrigis holding company. In addition, she is a board
member of theSyntec Numériquerofessional association (vendors committee) anttheCentre
National de Référenq€€NR) Santé a Domicile et Autonomnfierench national organisation set up to
facilitate the development and use of informatienhnhology for health and dependency-related
applications) and is also a member of the manageo@wnmittee for the CNAM Abbé Grégoire
foundation. Muriel Barnéoud graduated from the IB&is and ENSPTT schools and holds a
postgraduate diploma in finance and tax.
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14.1.3 Other positions held by the Members of the ManagerBeard and Supervisory Board

Names

Offices currently held (exercised by the authorilzsghl

representative, as the case may be) outside @riep

Offices held outside the Group over the courséefiast five
fiscal years that are not longer in effect as dbip(exercised by
the authorized legal representative, as the cagdnja

Rémy de Tonnac

Pierre Garnier

Yellovent SAS (France) — Chairman

Richard Vacher Detourniére

Knowings SA (France) - Director

Pascal Didier

Simon Blake-Wilson

Savvy Security Canada Inc (Canada) - Chairman

Alex Brabers

Automation (Belgium) — Director

OTN Systems (Belgium) — Director

Nomadesk (Belgium) — Director

Oree (United States) — Director

Several Investment Vehicles managed by Gimv
EVCA (Belgium) — Director

Punch Powertrain (Belgium) — Director

Festival Van Vlaanderen (Belgium) — Director

- Telenet Communications (Belgium) - Director
- Telenet Bidco (Belgium) — Director

- Incofin (Belgium) — Director

- Telenet (Belgium) (*) — Director

- l&l Leuven (Belgium) — Director

Jean Schmitt

Fogale Interactive Technologies (Switzerland) -eblior
Heptagon (Singapore) — Director
Greentropism (France) - Director

- Myriad Group AG (Switzerland) (*) - Director

- Sensitive Object (France) - Permanent represeatativ
- Purple Labs (France) - Permanent representative

- Upek/Authentec (United States) - Director

- Sagem (France) (*) — Director

- Comprove (Ireland) - Director

- Celsius (France) — Director
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Names

Offices currently held (exercised by the authorilesgl
representative, as the case may be) outside @ rbep

Offices held outside the Group over the courséefiast five
fiscal years that are not longer in effect as diio(exercised by
the authorized legal representative, as the cageépja

Patrick Schwager Jones

Lattice Semiconductor Corp (United States) (*) -altiman
of the board of directors

Fluidigm Inc. (United States) (*) - Director

Dialogic Inc. (United States) (*) — Chairman of theard of
director

ITESoft SA (France) (*) - Director

Adionics SA — Director

Vesta Inc. (United States) — Director

- Unwired Planet. (United States) (*) — Director

- Novell Inc. (United States) (*) - Director

- Mobiwire (France)*) - Director

- Epocrates Inc. (United States) (*) — Chairman efllbard of
directors

- Heptagon QY (Finnish company, with registered effiin
Zurich), Chairman of the board of directors

- Trema (Netherlands) - Director

- QRS Corp. (United States) - Director

- Mobhile365 (United States) Director

- Liberate Technologies (United States) — Director

- Smarttrust AB (Sweden) — Director

Glenn Collinson

Blu Wireless Technology Ltd (United Kingdom) — Diter
SDL plc. (United Kingdom) (*), Director

- CSR Plc (United Kingdom) (*) - Director

- Microemissive Displays Group Plc (United Kingdom) -
Director

- Dibcom SA (France} Director

- Solar Press Ltd (United Kingdom) - Director

- Neul Ltd (United Kingdom) — Director

- Wolfson Microelectronics Group Plc (United Kingdom)
Director

Bpifrance Participations
Represented by Thierry Sommelet

Cegedim (France) (*) — Director
Eutelsat (France) (*) — Director
Soprol (France) — Director

TDF (France) (*) — Director
Farinia (France) — Director
Mecachrome (France) — Director
Mader (France) — Director
Cylande (France) — Director
Grimaud (France) — Director
Altrad (France) — Director
Gascogne (France) (*) — Director
De Dietrich (France) — Director
Ercom (France) — Director
Mersen (France) (*) — Director
Gruau (France) — Director

- Assystem (France) (*) — Director

- Séché Environnement (France) (*) — Director
- 3S Photonics (France) — Director

- Dailymotion (France) — Director

- Avanquest Software (France) — Director

- Windhurst (France) — Director
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Names

Offices currently held (exercised by the authorilesgl
representative, as the case may be) outside @ rbep

Offices held outside the Group over the courséefast five

fiscal years that are not longer in effect as diio(exercised by

the authorized legal representative, as the cageépja

NGE (France) — Director

Novasep (France) — Director
Paprec (France) — Director

Talend (France) — Director
Translohr (France) — Director
Vergnet (France) (*) — Director
Viadeo (France) (*) — Director
Constellium (Netherlands) (*) — Director
Eramet (France) (*) — Director
Limagrain (France) — Director
Orange (France) (*) — Director
Sequana (France) (*) — Director
STM (Switzerland) (*) — Director
Medtech (France) (*) — Director
Tinubu Square (France) — Director
Vexim (France) (*) — Director
Voluntis (France) — Director

Joélle Toledano

Résidentiel Numérique (France) — Director
Agence Nationale des Fréquences (ANFR) (France) —
Director

Olivier Sichel

Sofipost (France) — Director

Cab 5 — 4 - (France) — Director

Solutions30 (France) - (*) — Director

Cité de l'architecture et du patrimoine (FrancBjrector
OSConseil SAS (France) - Chairman

Muriel Barnéoud

Docapost CSP (France) — Chairman of the SupervBoayd
Docapost DPS (France) — Permanent representative of
Docapost who also acts as Chairman, Chairman d¢laed
of Directors

Maileva (France) — Chairman of the Board of Diresto
Orsid (France) — Chairman

Docapost BPO (France) — Chairman

CER — Docapost (France) — Chairman

Docapost Conseil (France) — Chairman, Chairmahef t
Supervisory Board Mediapost Holding (France) — Etive

La Poste Global Mail (France), Director
Proveance (ex SFDOC.4) (France) — Permanent
representative of Docapost who also acts as Chairma
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Names

Offices currently held (exercised by the authorilesgl
representative, as the case may be) outside @ rbep

Offices held outside the Group over the courséefiast five
fiscal years that are not longer in effect as diio(exercised by
the authorized legal representative, as the cageépja

Sofrepost (France) - Director

Viapost (France) — Director

Seres (France) — Permanent representative of Detapdhe
Board of Directors

Xange Capital (France) - Permanent representafive o
Docapost on the Supervisory Board

Sefas Innovation (France) - Permanent represeatafiv
Docapost on the Board of Directors

Bretagne Routage (France) — Permanent representdtiv
Docapost who also acts as Chairman

La Vosgienne Industrielle de Mailings (France) rrR@nent
representative of Docapost who also acts as Chairma

1. Olivier Sichel is a member of the Supervisory Baande December 19, 2013
2. Sofinnova Partners resigned from the Supervisor8on December 19, 2013

Companies carrying the symbol (*) are publicly #ddcompanies.
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14.1.4 Statements relative to the members of the ManageBuward and Supervisory Board

To the Company’s knowledge, there is no familiallietween the persons listed above.
To the Company’s knowledge, over the past five ya@ane of these persons:

was found guilty of fraud;

was associated with a bankruptcy, receivershipaidation while acting as senior executive or
director;

was banned from exercising management responigijlit

was officially and publicly incriminated and/or ssioned by statutory or regulatory authorities.

14.2 Conflicts of interest at the level of the governingnd senior management bodies

As of the date of this Registration Document, andhe Company’s knowledge, there is no actual or
potential conflict of interest between the privat¢erests and/or other duties of the members of the
Management Board and Supervisory Board of the Cagnpad the interests of the Company. The related
party transactions are described in Note 34 oNies to the Consolidated Financial Statementsidea in
section 20.1 of this Registration Document.

Furthermore, to the Company’s knowledge, theredspact or agreement whatsoever entered into with
shareholders, customers, suppliers or other emntitie virtue of which one of the members of the
Management Board or Supervisory Board of the Compaas appointed to his or her position.

Lastly, to the Company’s knowledge, as of the ddtéhis Registration Document there is no reswitti
accepted by the persons described in section ldtiled “Members of the Management Board and
members of the Supervisory Board” of this RegigiratDocument concerning the sale of their equity
interests in the share capital of the Company.
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15. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
15.1 Compensation paid to corporate officers

The information included below has been prepara@ference to the AFEP-MEDEF corporate governance
code of publicly-traded companies, as updated e 2AD13.

Table 1: Overview of the compensation, stock optia and free shares granted to each member of the
Management Board @lirigeant mandataire sociaf’

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Rémy de Tonnac — Chairman of the Management Board

Compensation owed for the fiscal year € 261,831 € 407,010
Valyation of the multi-year variable compensati@idp None None
during the fiscal year

Valuation of stock options granted in the fiscahy None None
Valuation of shares granted free of charge irfigtal year € 28,564 None
Total € 290,395 € 407,010

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Pierre Garnier — member of the Management B&ard

Compensation owed for the fiscal year € 113,479 € 368,668
Valyation of the multi-year variable compensati@idp None None
during the fiscal year

Valuation of stock options granted in the fiscahye None None
Valuation of shares granted free of charge in iheaf year € 144,952 None
Total € 258,431 € 368,668

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Richard Vacher Detourniére — member of the Managgéme
Board

Compensation owed for the fiscal year € 221,001 €272,971
Val_uation of the multi-year variable compensati@idp None None
during the fiscal year

Valuation of stock options granted in the fiscahye None None
Valuation of shares granted free of charge in ibeaf year None None
Total €221,001 €272,971
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Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Pascal Didier — General Manager, member of the
Management Board

Compensation owed for the fiscal year € 172,596 € 241,654
Valyation of the multi-year variable compensati@aidp None None
during the fiscal year

Valuation of stock options granted in the fiscahye None None
Valuation of shares granted free of charge in iheaf year €38,102 None
Total € 180,698 € 241,654

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Simon Blake-Wilson — member of the Management B&ar

Compensation owed for the fiscal year

None

CAN 298,002 and

US$ 241,775
Valyation of the multi-year variable compensati@amdp None None
during the fiscal year
Valuation of stock options granted in the fiscahye None € 154,103
Valuation of shares granted free of charge in igwaf year None None

CAN 298,002
Total None US$ 241,775 and

€ 154,103
1. Pierre Garnier joined the Company on August 20,201

N

Simon Blake-Wilson joined the Group as an employeklay 1, 2013
3. Christian Fleutelot left the Company on October 2@13. The compensation he received in connectittn w

his duties for the 2012 and 2013 fiscal years améaiEUR 175,853 and EUR 165,899, respectively.

The Supervisory Board decided that members of tlamagement Board would be required to hold, in
registered form and until the termination of thairties on the Management Board, 10% of the number o

shares issued as a result of the exercise of sfatabns or the effective vesting of free shares.

Table 2: Overview of the compensation of each membef the Management Board®

The table below shows the compensation due to menabiehe Management Board of the Company for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013renddampensation paid to those members for the said

fiscal years.
Fiscal Year 2012 Fiscal Year 2013
Due® Paid? Due® Paid®
Rémy de Tonnac €hairman of the Manageme
Board
Fixed portion* € 218,707 € 218,707 € 216,134 € 238,
Variable portion*®) €32,420 € 48,933 €179,737 €32,420
Multi-year variable compensation None None None &lon
Extraordinary compensation* None None None None
Attendance fees None None None None
Benefits in kind* € 10,704 € 10,704 € 11,139 €19,13
Total € 261,831 € 278,344 € 407,010 € 252,261
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Fiscal Year 2012 Fiscal Year 2013

Due® Paid® Due® | Paid®
Pierre Garniet’ — Member of the Management
Board
Fixed portion* €70,641 €70,641 € 193,333 € 193,33
Variable portion®® € 40,838 0 € 175,335 € 40,838
Multi-year variable compensation None None None &lon
Extraordinary compensation* None None None None
Attendance fees None None None None
Benefits in kind* None None None None
Total € 113,479 €70,641 € 368,668 € 234,171

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Due® Paid® Due® Paid®
Richard Vacher Detourniére — Member of the
Management Board
Fixed portion* € 166,657 € 166,657 € 166,657 € 6569,
Variable portion*® € 43,544 €58,148 € 106,194 € 43,544
Multi-year variable compensation None None None &lon
Extraordinary compensation* None None None None
Attendance fees None None None None
Benefits in kind* €120 €120 €120 €120
Total € 210,321 € 224,925 €272,971 € 210,321

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Due® Paid® Due® Paid®
Pascal Didier, General Manager — Member of|the
Management Board
Fixed portion* € 146,786 € 146,786 € 145,963 € 943,
Variable portion*® € 25,690 € 26,434 € 85,884 € 25,690
Multi-year variable compensation None None None &lon
Extraordinary compensation* None None None None
Attendance fees None None None None
Benefits in kind* €9,423 €9,423 € 9,807 € 9,807
Total € 181,899 € 182,642 € 241,654 € 181,460

Fiscal Year 2012

Fiscal Year 2013

Due® | Paid® Due® | Paid®
Simon Blake-Wilson, Member of the
Management Board
Fixed portion* None None CAN 146,854 CAN 146,854
Variable portion®® None None CAN 131,516 None
Multi-year variable compensation None None None &lon
Extraordinary compensation* None None CAN 19,632 and CAN 19,632
US$ 241,775
Attendance fees None None None None
Benefits in kind* None None None None
Total None None CAN 298,002 CAN 166,486
and US$ 241,775

(1) For the fiscal year
(2) Over the course of the fiscal year

(3) The variable portion includes annual profit-sharifigtéressement)
(4) Pierre Garnier joined the Company on August 20, 2012

(5) Simon Blake-Wilson joined the Group as an employeklay 1, 2013
(6) Christian Fleutelot left the Group on October 14120

* based on a pre-tax gross amount
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The variable portion of the compensation paid tecexive corporate officers is subject to the comnpheof
specific and predetermined objectives.

Indeed, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20f3variable items of compensation paid to Rémy d
Tonnac and Pascal Didier, were determined by thpeiSisory Board of the Company based on a proposal
submitted by the Compensation and Nomination Cotemiin accordance with the following criteria:

(1) 80% granted based on completing financial objestioé the Company (revenues, adjusted
operating income, cash position)

(ii) the remaining 20% granted based on completing tatisk objectives (key accomplishments
for the Company).

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, thahla items of compensation paid to the other nemb
of the Management Board, with the exception of SirBéake-Wilson, in connection with their respective
employment contracts, were determined accordirigedollowing criteria:

(1) 80% granted based on completing financial objestioé the Company (revenues, adjusted
operating income, cash position)

(ii) the remaining 20% granted based on completing tgtiak objectives (key accomplishments
for the Company).

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, tmmhla items of compensation paid to Simon-Blake
Wilson in connection with his employment contraetswdetermined according to the following criteria:

0] 10% granted based on completing financial objestigé the Company (revenues, adjusted
operating income, cash position)

(i) 72% granted based on completing financial objestiget for the ESS business (revenues,
adjusted operating income)

(i) the remaining 18% granted based on completing tqtiak objectives (key accomplishments
for the ESS business).

Regarding the variable portion of their compensatibe expected level of completion of the quatiti¢éa
objectives determined for executive corporate effovas established by the Company in a preciseenan
However, it is not made public for confidentialigasons.

In the context of the Company’s purchase of the B&Sness, an integration bonus of US$ 241,775 was
owed to Simon Blake-Wilson at the close of the 2048al year. It was paid out in the beginning loé¢ t
2014 fiscal year.

The calculation of the bonus was based on theviiig 3 criteria, weighted equally:

- continued employment with the company as of Decer8be2013,

- revenue target for the ESS business to be generatedhe course of the 2013 fiscal year, and

- adjusted operating income target for the ESS basitwbe generated over the course of the 201a& fisc
year.

Regarding benefits in kind, Rémy de Tonnac and &d3ier benefit from unemployment insurance for
senior corporate executivegafantie sociale des chefs et dirigeants d’entregri

At the General Shareholders’ Meeting dated JunQ83, it was decided to set the amount attendfmsse
awarded to members of the Supervisory Board to B8R 000 for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2013, as well as for each subsequent fiscal yesil, decided otherwise at the Ordinary Shareholders
Meeting.
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Attendance fees and other elements of compensat@h to non-executive corporate officers over the
course of the 2012 and 2013 fiscal years are big&d as follows.

Table 3: Table summarizing the attendance fees andther elements of compensation paid to the
members of the Supervisory Board

Members of the Supervisory Board| Amounts paid in 202 | Amounts paid in 2013

Alex Brabers

Attendance fees € 20,089 € 45,000
Other compensation None None
Jean Schmitt

Attendance fees € 17,857 € 40,000
Other compensation None None
Patrick Schwager Jones

Attendance fees € 20,089 € 45,000
Other compensation None None

Glenn Collinson
Attendance fees €11,161 € 25,000
Other compensation None None

Joélle Toledano

Attendance fees €11,161 € 25,000
Other compensation None None
Olivier Sichel @

Attendance fees None None
Other compensation None None
Bpifrance

Attendance fees € 13,393 € 30,000
Other compensation None None

Sofinnova Partnerd?

Attendance fees €6,250 € 25,000
Other compensation None None
Ron Black ®

Attendance fees None None
Other compensation None None
Total € 100,000 € 235,000

(1) Olivier Sichel is a member of the Supervisory Bosirete December 19, 2013
(2) Sofinnova Partners resigned from the Supervisoryd@oa December 19, 2013
(3) Ron Black resigned from the Supervisory Board on Fahr8, 2013
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Table 4: Stock options granted by the issuer and ancompany of the group to each executive
corporate officer over the course of the fiscal ye&

Valuation of the
stock options

according to the | Number
Name of the | Type of stock | method retained | of stock Exercise . .
Name - - - Exercise period
plan options for the options price
consolidated granted
financial
statements
Exercisable until May 3,
Simon Blake- | Options . | 2023 subject to
Wilson février 2013 Stock options 117,063 100,00 €25 continued employment
with the company
Stock Exercisable until August
Sl_mon Blake- | Options juin subscription 37.040 30,000 €245 27, 2_023 subject to
Wilson 2013 . continued employment
options -
with the company
Exercisable until
Obtions Stock January 17, 2024 subje
Pierre Garnier| . pl¢ subscription 89,401 100,000 € 2.11 | to continued
janvier 2014 . .
options employment with the
company
. Exercisable until August
Richard . - Stock .
Vacher Options juin subscription Ongoing 35,000 €4.21 28, 2.024 subject to
. 2014 3 continued employment
Detourniére options

with the company

(1) The stock options granted to Pierre GarnierJanuary 2014 and Richard Vacher Detourniére in AsigR014 are also

referenced

Table 5: Stock options exercised by each executigerporate (dirigeant mandataire socidlofficer
during the fiscal year

None of the executive corporate officers of the @any has exercised any of the stock subscription or
purchase options of the Company or of any otherpaam of its Group over the course of the fiscalryea
ended December 31, 2013.

Table 6: Shares granted free of charge by the issuer any company of the group to each corporate
officer (mandataire sociglduring the fiscal year

No shares were granted free of charge to corpatieers over the course of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013.

Table 7: Shares granted free of charge that becanavailable for each corporate officer during the

fiscal year

No share granted free of charge became availahileetwarious corporate officers over the courséhef

fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.
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Table 8: History of the stock options granted to cqorate officers

Past grants of stock optioH5

Information on stock subscription options

Date of the Shareholders’ October 20, 2005 June 2, 2006 June 2, 2006 Jurzo0g, June 29, 2012 June 19, 2013 June 19, 2013 e 252014
Meetin
Date o? the Management Board February 17, June 2, 2006 November 3, November 3, 2008 May 3, 2013 August 27, 2013 Janliar2014 August 28, 2014
meeting 2006/ 2008
June 2, 2006
Name of the plan Options 2005-2 Options 200611  @Mst2006-1-B Options 2007-1-H Options févrigr Options juin 2013 Options janvier| Options juin 2014
2013 2014
Aggregate number of shares that
can be subscribed by
Rémy de Tonnac 51,904 48,000
Pierre Garnier 100,000
Richard Vacher Detourniére 21,600 60,800 36,00
Pascal Didier 5,040 20,000
Simon Blake-Wilson 100,000 30,000
Expiration date October 20, 2016 June 2, 201¢ 22616 June 19, 2017 May 3, 2023 August 27, 2023anuary 17, 2024 August 28, 202
Subscription price € 3.9425 € 3.9425 € 10.0525 3726 €254 €245 €211 €4.21

Exercisable in fuff

Terms and conditions of exercise  Exercisable in | Exercisable in Exercisable in Exercisable in Exercisable in Exercisable in Exercisable in
full® full® full@ full® full® full@ full@

Number of shares subscribed [as 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

of the filing date of thig

Registration Document

Aggregate number of canceled or 0 0 0 0 75,000 22,500 0 0

voided stock options

Number of outstanding shares to 56,944 68,000 21,600 60,800 25,000 7,500 100,000 ,0085

be subscribed as of the filing date

of this Registration Document

(1) Only those grants that still apply are descdbe

(2) The exercise of options is subject, as appleab the status of the Company’s employee czenffit the date of the exercise or upon compleaifspecific objectives established by the ManagéBeard.
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Past grants of share warrants

Information on share warrarifs

Date of the Shareholders’ Meeting

July 31, 2006

el 2008

June 30, 2010

June 30, 2010

Date of the Management Boal
meeting

d

November 20, 2006

December 18, 2008

October 10 201

December 29, 2010

Name of the plan BSA 2006-2 BSA 8 BSA 12 BSA 13
Aggregate number of shares that can

be subscribed by

Rémy de Tonnac 83,945

Richard Vacher Detourniére 65,795

Pascal Didier 40,838

Patrick Schwager Jones 18,400 8,000
Glenn Collinson 12,800 20,000
Expiration date November 20, 2016 March 24, 2019 toker 1, 2015 December 29, 2015
Subscription price € 3.9425 € 10.0525 €4.1872 76 4.
Terms and conditions of exercise Exercisable lin fu Exercisable in full Exercisable in full Variabttepending on holder
Number of shares subscribed as|of 0 0 0 0
December 31, 2013

Aggregate number of canceled or 0 0 0 0

voided share warrants

Number of outstanding shares to bg 18,400 12,800 190,578 28,000
subscribed as of December 31, 2013

(1) Neither voided share warrants nor share warsagitanted to corporate officers who have left theup are included in this table
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Table 9: Stock options granted to the first ten norexecutive employee beneficiaries, and stock optisexercised by such beneficiaries

Table 9 relative to the stock options granted ® first ten non-executive employee beneficiaries] the stock options exercised by such benefigase
provided in section 17.4 entitled “Financial ingtrents granting access to the share capital of tmep@ny awarded to the first ten non-executive eygao

beneficiaries, and stock options exercised by secteficiaries” of this Registration Document.

Table 10: History of free share grants

History of free share granfs
Information on the shares granted free of charge
Date of the Shareholders’ June 16,2005 October 20, 2005 October 20, 2004 June 30, 2008 e 30n2010 June 29, 2012 June 29, 2012
Meeting
Date of the Management Boafd July 28, 2005 February 17, 2006 June 2, 2006 November 3, 20p8 erbeer 16, 2010 July 26, 2012 October 17, 2012
meeting
Aggregate number of shares
granted to:
Rémy de Tonnac 76,096 316,000 10,400
Pierre Garnier 120,000
Richard Vacher Detourniere 20,000 106,000
Pascal Didier 9,392 6,960 64,000 2,950
Vesting date of the shares March 6, 2012 February 17, 2008 June 2, 2008 November 3, 2010 December 16, 2012 July 26, 2014 tol@c 17, 2014
February 17, 2009 June 2, 2009 October 17, 2015
February 17, 2010 June 2, 2010 October 17, 2016
Expiration date of the holding March 6, 2014 February 17, 2010 June 2, 2010 November 3, 2012 December 16, 2014 July 26, 2016 tokec 17, 2016
period February 17, 2011 June 2, 2011 October 17, 2017
February 17, 2012 June 2, 2012 October 17, 2018
Terms and conditions of exercise Exercisable in full Exercisable in full Exercisalirefull Exercisable in full Exercisable in full Excisable in full Exercisable in full
Aggregate number of cancelled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
or voided shares
Number of outstanding free 9,362 6,960 76,096 20,000 486,000 13,350
shares at fiscal year-end

(1) Only outstanding and valid grants are described
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Table 11

The following table provides further details on t@nditions surrounding the compensation and dibeefits granted to executive corporate officers:

Compensation or benefits owed

or likely to be owed as a result ¢

f Compensation associated with

Members of the Management Board Employment Contract Additional Pension Plan I .
termination of duties or a change non-compete clause
in duties
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Rémy de Tonnac, X X X X
Chairman of the Management Board
Term of office began on: May 11, 2011
Term of office will end on: Following the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting appravihe financial statements for the fiscal year endecember 31, 2014
Pierre Garnier X X X X
Member of the Management Board
Term of office began on: November 21, 2012
Term of office will end on: Following the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting appravihe financial statements for the fiscal year eéndecember 31, 2014
Richard Vacher Detourniére X X X X
Member of the Management Board
Term of office began on:: May 11, 2011
Term of office will end on: Following the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting appravihe financial statements for the fiscal year eéndecember 31, 2014
Pascal Didier X X X X
General Manager and Member of the
Management Board
Term of office began on: May 11, 2011
Term of office will end on: Following the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting appraovihe financial statements for the fiscal year endecember 31, 2014
Simon Blake-Wilson X X X X

Member of the Management Board

Term of office began on:
Term of office will end on:

October 23, 2013

Following the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting appraovihe financial statements for the fiscal year endecember 31, 2014
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Rémy de Tonnac and Pascal Didier benefit from ume@ynpent insurance for senior corporate
executives darantie sociale des chefs et dirigeants d’entrsprsubscribed by the Company. For the
2013 fiscal year, the amount of the premium waskEguEUR 20,646.

In the United States, the Company set up a pergam (401(k)) of which Simon Blake-Wilson is a
beneficiary as of January 1, 2014.

Pascal Didier signed an employment contract wigh@ompany on January 10, 2003. As of January
31, 2003, this contract was suspended for the idaraf his term as corporate officer.

At its meeting dated February 19, 2013, the Superyi Board decided to adjust the terms of the
severance compensation that Rémy de Tonnac andlHagtier benefit from. Each of them has
heretofore the right to claim such compensatiaméevent of:

)] termination or non-renewal of his term of offias member of the Management Board (or
dismissal) for a reason other than gross negligéfaagte lourd@ in the meaning of the
jurisprudence of the labor division of the Frenalp@me Courtdhambre sociale de la cour
de cassatiop

(i) resignation for good cause (either due togaigicant reduction in duties and responsibilitias,
reduction in compensation (including fixed compdiosa benefits in kind, target variable
compensation, or severance compensation), or aeharhis or her work location to another
country, in every case without his or her conseiitf)in six months of a change in control of
the Company in the meaning of Article L. 233-3td French Commercial Code, or

(i) termination or resignation of his term of wfé as member of the Management Board (or
dismissal), following a significant disagreementveEen the Supervisory Board and the Management
Board regarding the strategy carried out by the adement Board, irrespective of whether such
strategy was carried out pursuant to a changeritraloof the Company.

The Supervisory Board will determine the amouns@ferance compensation paid to the member in
guestion in the following way:

Maximum severance compensation will be equal tostima of the gross fixed compensation received
by the member in question over the course of ther yweceding that during which his or her
resignation, termination, or dismissal took plauas the gross variable compensation received &y th
member in question over the course of the two ygaexeding that during which his or her
resignation, termination, or dismissal took plalceréinafter referred to as the “Maximum Amount”),
it being hereby understood that the effective adithis or her resignation, termination, or dismissa
will be defined as, depending on the case, the datavhich the member in question receives the
termination letter (or letter of dismissal), or ttiate on which the Company receives the resignation
letter.

The severance payment will be conditioned upon, imdamount will be adjusted based on the
arithmetical average of the rate of achievemerthefperformance criteria used to determine
the member in question’s variable compensatioritfertwo closed fiscal years preceding the
day he is terminated or resigned. If the average is

- strictly lower than 20%, no severance compensatiitl be paid out,

- between 20% and 50%, the member in questionradkkive a severance compensation in an
amount equal to the gross fixed compensation feryegmr in which his or her resignation,
termination, or dismissal took place,

- higher than or equal to 50%, the member in qaestiill receive a severance compensation in
an amount equal to 100% of the Maximum Amount.
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The severance payment will include any dismissalemnity provided by statutory regulations
(including but not limited to the ones provided applicable laws and any applicable collective
bargaining agreement) which may be due to the membguestion(for the avoidance of doubt, the
severance payment shall not include any paymenermadsuant to a non-competition clause, but shall
be reduced if necessary so that the sum of thea®se payment plus any amount paid pursuant to a
non-competition clause does not exceed the twostithe member in question’s fixed and variable
gross compensation for the year when the terminatioresignation shall occur, assuming for the
determination of the variable portion thereof thay milestones/objectives have been fully achieved.
Notwithstanding the above, for the avoidance oftdpthe severance payment shall not be less than
any mandatory dismissal indemnity provided by steguregulations.

It should be noted, insofar as necessary, thaewmerance compensation will be owed in the evert tha
the term of office of the member in question igrielated or non-renewed, or that the member in
guestion is dismissed or resigns from his or hefeduas corporate officer, while remaining an
employee of the Group, assuming that he or sheithar subject to a significant reduction in his or
her duties, responsibilities, or compensation (idirlg his or her fixed compensation, benefits imdki
target variable compensation, or severance compiensaor subject to a transfer of his or her work
location to another country, and further assumhag such decisions were made without his or her
consent.

Severance compensation will be paid within 30 dafythe member’'s effective departure from the
Group.

Additionally, the vesting of all options, free skaror other equity incentive instrument held by the
meber in question will be accelerated upon suchitetion or resignation, to the extent possible
without any material adverse tax or social consage for the Inside Secure group.

Richard Vacher Detourniére has heretofore the tightaim such compensation in the event of:

0] termination or non-renewal of his term of offias member of the Management Board (or
dismissal) for a reason other than gross negligéfaage lourd@ in the meaning of the
jurisprudence of the labor division of the Frenalp®me Courtdhambre sociale de la cour
de cassatiop

(i) resignation for good cause (either due togaigicant reduction in duties and responsibilitias,
reduction in compensation (including fixed compdiosa benefits in kind, target variable
compensation, or severance compensation), or agehan his work location to another
country, in every case without his consent) witbix months of a change in control of the
Company in the meaning of Article L. 233-3 of thefich Commercial Code, or

(i)  termination or resignation of his term of @i as member of the Management Board (or
dismissal), following a significant disagreementveen the Supervisory Board and the
Management Board regarding the strategy carriedypahe Management Board, irrespective
of whether such strategy was carried out pursuaataghange in control of the Company.

The Supervisory Board will determine the amouns@ferance compensation paid to the member in
guestion in the following way:

Maximum severance compensation will be equal toathgregate amount of the fixed and variable
compensation received by the member in questiom thee course of the two years preceding that
during which his resignation, termination, or dissal took place (hereinafter referred to as the
“Maximum Amount”), it being hereby understood thdite effective date of his resignation,
termination, or dismissal will be defined as, defieg on the case, the date on which the member in
guestion receives the termination letter (or letedismissal), or the date on which the Company
receives the resignation letter.
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The severance compensation will be subject to @&edamount adjusted based on the arithmetic
average of the rate of achievement of the objestitbeat determine the variable portion of the
compensation of the member in question over theseoaf the last two fiscal years preceding his
resignation, termination, or dismissal. As suclthi average is:

- strictly lower than 50%, no severance compensatiitl be paid out,

- equal to 50%, the member in question will receaveeverance compensation in an amount
equal to 75% of the Maximum Amount,

- equal to 100%, the member in question will reeeivseverance compensation in an amount
equal to 100% of the Maximum Amount,

it being hereby specified that within the 50% td%Drange, the severance compensation will be

calculated linearly (for example, the member inggioa will receive 87.5% of the Maximum Amount

if the average is equal to 75%).

The severance payment will include any dismissalemnity provided by statutory regulations
(including but not limited to the ones provided applicable laws and any applicable collective
bargaining agreement) which may be due to the membguestion(for the avoidance of doubt, the
severance payment shall not include any paymenermadsuant to a non-competition clause, but shall
be reduced if necessary so that the sum of thea®se payment plus any amount paid pursuant to a
non-competition clause does not exceed the twostithe member in question’s fixed and variable
gross compensation for the year when the terminagioresignation shall occur, assuming for the
determination of the variable portion thereof thay milestones/objectives have been fully achieved.
Notwithstanding the above, for the avoidance oftdpthe severance payment shall not be less than
any mandatory dismissal indemnity provided by steguregulations.

It should be noted, insofar as necessary, thaemerance compensation will be owed in the evert tha
the term of office of the member in question igrierated or non-renewed, or that the member in
question is dismissed or resigns from his or hereduas corporate officer, while remaining an
employee of the Group, assuming that he or sheithar subject to a significant reduction in his or
her duties, responsibilities, or compensation (idirlg his or her fixed compensation, benefits imdki
target variable compensation, or severance compensaor subject to a transfer of his or her work
location to another country, and further assumhag such decisions were made without his or her
consent.

Severance compensation will be paid within 30 dafythe member’s effective departure from the
Group.

Additionally, the vesting of all options, free skaror other equity incentive instrument held by the
meber in question will be accelerated upon suchitetion or resignation, to the extent possible
without any material adverse tax or social consegee for the Inside Secure group.

15.2 Amounts provisioned by the Company for the purposeof covering pension plans,
retirement schemes, and other benefits offered tamgporate officers

With the exception of provisions for statutory rethent allowances described in Note 23 of the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements providedsédction 20.1 entitled “Historical Financial
Information” of this Registration Document, the Qmany has not provisioned any sums for the
purposes of covering pension plans, retirementresebeand other benefits offered to the members of
the Management Board and Supervisory Board.

The Company did not pay out any signing or severdsmanuses to the above-referenced corporate
officers.
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15.3 Free shares, share warrants and stock options graadl to corporate officers

The table below summarizes, as of the filing détinis Registration Document, all of the securitbes
rights granting access to the share capital tlatamrently outstanding, regardless of their typayed

by the Company for the benefit of corporate officedone of the corporate officers have exercised
any right granting access to the share capitalngr security granting access to the share capital
between January 1, 2014 and the filing date ofRieigistration Document.
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Free share in| Options Options Options Options Options Options Options Options BSA BSA 8 BSA 12® | BSA 13 | Total number of share
the vesting | 2005-22 | 2006-1% |2006-1-B? | 2007-1-E? | février | juin 2013 | janvier | juin 2014 | 2006-2 that could be issued
period®™@ 2013 2014 following the exercise

of these right§®®
Rémy de Tonnac 10,400 12,976 12,000 18,500 194,249
Pierre Garnier 120,000 100,000 220,000
Richard vacher 5400 | 15,200 35,000 14,500 183,195
Detourniére
Pascal Didier 2,950 1,260 5,000 9,000 BB,8
Simon Blake-Wilson 100,000 30,000 130,00
Patrick Schwager Jongs 4,601 2,00 26,40
Jean Schmitt 0
Alex Brabers 0
Glenn Collinson 3,200 5,000 32,800
Joélle Toledano 0
Olivier Sichel 0
Muriel Barnéoud 0
BPIFrance 0
Participations
Number of shares that
could potentially be 133,350 56,944 | 68,00 21,604 60,800 25000 7500 0000 | 35000 | 18400| 12,800 190,578 | 28,000 757,972
issued if all such rights|
were exercisdtl

(1) For a detailed description of the terms and ditions of each of the above-mentioned plans, pleefer to section 21.1.4 entitled “Authorized Sh&@apital” of the Registration Document. The figuprovided

correspond to the number of shares that can becsiliesi via the exercise of each right or in coni@twith the securities granting access to the staapital.

(2) The exercise of each of these options grasetsigfint to the acquisition of 4 common shares.
(3) Each BSA 12 grants the right to subscribe 4668¥mmon shares.
(4) The table does not take Christian Fleutelod iatcount, who left the Company in October 2013.
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16. MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS
16.1 Management of the Company
16.1.1 The Management Board

The composition of the Management Board and inftiongpertaining to its members are subject to
developments presented in Chapter 14 entitled “@iwg, Management, and Supervisory Bodies and
Senior Management” and Chapter 21.2 entitled “Ipocation Documents and Bylaws” of this
Registration Document.

At its meeting dated April 22, 2014, the Managen®oard approved its internal charter in order to
enable the members of the Management Board tccjpat® in the Management Board’s meetings via
videoconferencing or teleconferencing.

16.1.2 The Supervisory Board

The composition of the Supervisory Board and inftion pertaining to its members are subject to
developments presented in Chapter 14 entitled “Guwg, Management, and Supervisory Bodies and
Senior Management” and Chapter 21.2 entitled “Ipooation Documents and Bylaws” of this
Registration Document.

At its meeting held on March 31, 2011, the Superyi8oard (or the “Board”) approved its internal
charter, which was amended on November 21, 201 dlmarter details, in particular, the rules
applicable to the operation of the Board, the raesonduct, and the obligations of the members of
the Supervisory Board of the Company, and the temmasconditions of operation of the Board and the
committees. The main provisions of the Board'srimaecharter are reiterated hereafter.

At its meeting held on March 31, 2011, the SuperyisBoard decided to use as its reference the
corporate governance code of publicly-traded congzapublished by the AFEP and MEDEF in
December 2008, as reviewed in April 2010 and ineJAA13, and approved by thautorité des
Marchés FinanciergFrench financial markets regulator, or “AMF”) ascade of reference for
corporate governance (the “AFEP-MEDEF Code”). Ttusle is available on the MEDEF website
(www.medef.com), among other places.

The goal of the Company is to comply with all okthecommendations contained in the AFEP-
MEDEF Code.

To this end, the Company regularly reviews its goaace principles based on the AFEP-MEDEF
Code’s recommendations. Therefore, the Companyidenrssthat it complies with the Code’s main
recommendations, with the exception of the recontagons pertaining to:

- The evaluation of the Supervisory Board'’s funmitig. The Supervisory Board routinely
assesses the quality of its functioning. Howeuere currently is no formal evaluation
process in place. The Company plans to implemédotraal evaluation process in the
future;

- Shareholding by members of the Supervisory Bolrshould be noted that some of the
Company’s Directors hold very few Company sharés Tompany plans to recommend
that these Directors spend part of their attendée®to acquire Company shares;
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- The general policy for granting stock options gedformance share$here is currently
no general policy for granting stock options orfpenance shares. In addition, the
various grants of stock options and free shardsoiturred in past fiscal years were not
carried out on pre-determined calendar days asmeemded under the terms of the
AFEP-MEDEF Code. The purpose of these grants hasyal been to motivate
employees and managers who are joining the Groupaiticular following any of the
Group’s takeovers;

- The fixed compensation of executive corporatdécefs. The compensation paid to
executive corporate officers is reviewed every yaat following relatively long periods
as recommended under the terms of the AFEP-MEDE#e Cbhe Company does not
follow this recommendation because it believes thas consistent neither with its
current state of development, nor with the charatie dynamism of target markets,
requiring routine reassessments of key objectives as a result, of the compensation
methods applicable to corporate officers.

In particular, the Company intends to comply whb following recommendations:

- ensuring that the Supervisory Board is compodezhd maintains a female presence of
at least 20% within a time frame of 3 years andtdéast 40% within a time frame of 6
years as from the date on which the securitieb®fQompany were admitted to trading
on the Euronext regulated stock exchange in Fars\ce,

- ensuring that, by the expiration of the aforerm@d 6-year period, whenever the Board
iIs composed of 9 members the difference betweemtimber of members of each
gender is not greater than 2.

To this end, the General Shareholders’ Meetingdddtene 29, 2012 and June 26, 2014 appointed
Joélle Toledano and Muriel Barnéoud as memberseoStipervisory Board, respectively.

Lastly, in July 2012, the number of members onAhdit Committee was extended to three, two of
which are independent. Therefore, the Audit Consaittomplies with the recommendations of the
AFEP-MEDEF Code according to which an audit comesitimust be composed of at least 2/3
independent members.

Each Supervisory Board member undertakes to mairités or her independence of analysis,
judgment, and action and to actively participatehe Supervisory Board’s work. He or she must
inform the Supervisory Board regarding potentiaiftots of interest he or she may face. In addition
he or she is aware of applicable regulations aasmtiwith the disclosure and use of privileged
information and understands that members mustinefram completing transactions with their

Company securities after being exposed to privdeigdormation. Each Supervisory Board member
must declare to the Company and the AMF all thaswations he or she has directly or indirectly
completed with Company securities.

16.1.2.1  Composition of the Supervisory Board

Pursuant to applicable legal and statutory promisighe Supervisory Board is composed of at least
three members and at most nine, appointed by shidesis at the General Shareholders’ Meeting for a
term of three years. They are eligible for reetectat expiration of their term of office. In theesx
that a seat becomes vacant, the members of thevi&aqrg Board may co-opt other members under
the conditions set by law and applicable regulation

In accordance with the terms of its internal chartee Supervisory Board undertakes to make all
efforts to ensure that it is composed of at leasiaority of independent members in the meaning of
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the AFEP-MEDEF Code. Those members of the Board dehnot entertain any relationship with the
Company, its Group, or its management that coutdmi@lly compromise their freedom of judgment
are considered independent.

As of December 31, 2013, the Supervisory Board eeasposed of 7 members. On June 26, 2014, an
eighth member was appointed. The Supervisory Boangiders that seven of its eight members are
independent. Mr. Patrick Jones, Mr. Glenn Collinddn. Jean Schmitt and Mr. Olivier Sichel, Mrs.
Joélle Toledano and Mrs. Muriel Barnéoud, and Bypife Participations effectively meet the criteria
defined in the AFEP-MEDEF Code, insofar as they:

- are not currently or were not over the coursehef past five years, either employees or
corporate officers of the Company, and either eygss or corporate officers of one of its
subsidiaries;

- are not corporate officers of a company in whicth Company exercises, either directly or
indirectly, a role as director or in which a Compamployee appointed as such or a corporate
officer of the Company (either currently in offioe having been in office during the past five
years at least) exercises a role as director,

- are not customers, suppliers, investment bankarance bankers (i) that are key for the
Company or the Group, or (ii) for which the Compamyits Group represent a significant
portion of their business,

- do not have any close familial ties with a cogterofficer,

- have not acted as auditors of the Company owecdhlirse of the past five years, and

- have not been members of the Board of the Comfmnyore than twelve years.

The members of the Supervisory Board who represignificant shareholders of the Company can be
considered independent provided they do not paatieiin the control of the Company. Beyond a 10%
share capital and voting rights threshold, the &oamwst, based on the report delivered by the
compensation and nomination committee, systemigtiealiew the status of independence of its members
while taking into account the distribution of these capital of the Company and the existencetehgal
conflicts of interest.

With respect to the above, the Supervisory Boatdraéned that although Bpifrance Participationgdiol
approximately 7.1% of the share capital, it cotilttse qualified as an independent member.

In addition, at least one of the independent memiyerst have specific skills in finance or accountn
order to be appointed to the Audit Committee, wicthe case for Patrick Jones (for further infdiora
please refer to the summary of his professionaledspce in Chapter 14 enttled “Governing,
Management, and Supervisory Bodies and Senior Meneaigt”).

The Supervisory Board is currently consideringdreation of a corporate governance committee ¢hat i
different from the Compensation and Nomination Cditee currently in existence, while keeping some of
its characteristics.

16.1.2.2  Duties of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is subject to the provisminthe French Commercial Code, to articles 15 tofl7
the Bylaws of the Company, and to the internaltelnaradopted.

In particular, the Supervisory Board is responditie

- exercising permanent oversight of the manageofehe Company by the Management Board,

- appointing those members of the Management Bassubnsible for defining the strategy of the
Group and for managing it,
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- setting the compensation of the members of thealgement Board,

- authorizing the agreements and commitments disdusm articles L. 225-86 and L. 225-90-1 of
the French Commercial Code,

- suggesting statutory auditors for nominatiorhat®eneral Shareholders’ meeting,

- approving the Chairman of the Board’s report arporate governance and internal control.
It checks the quality of information disclosed baeholders and to the markets.
There are no statutory limitations to the powerthefManagement Board.

16.1.2.3  Conditions under which the work of the SupervisBoard was prepared and
organized

In order to efficiently participate in the work addliberations of the Board, each member of therdoa
requests the documents he or she deem useful.r&gahsts must be sent to the Management Board or,
as the case may be, any other senior executive.

Each member of the Board is allowed to meet withrtlain executives of the company, provided prior
notification is sent the Management Board. The namiof the Management Board can attend these
meetings unless the Board member in question flife members of the Management Board can speak
at any Board meeting.

The Management Board informs the Board on a redudars regarding the financial position, cash
position, financial commitments of the Company dmel Group, as well as regarding any significant
events that may have occurred.

Lastly, any new member of the Board can requesteteive training on the specificities of the
Company and its Group, their business activitiabtarir business sectors.

The Board meets as often as necessary in the atepoterest of the Company and at least once per
quarter. No later than on the last meeting of theaf year, the Board sets the dates of its qisarter
meetings to be held in the following fiscal yeaheTmembers of the Board are notified by letter,
facsimile, or email at least eight (8) days primetich meeting. The Board can also be convenedyby a
means available, even verbally, if all the activenthers of the Board are present or representds at t
meeting.

All documents, in final or draft form, are sentnad, or made available to the members of the Board
within a reasonable time frame prior to the meetingrder to inform them regarding the agendéaef t
meeting and any questions subject to the Boardiswe

In addition, at each meeting the Board is updatgerding the financial position, the cash positéo the
commitments of the Company.

The members of the Board can attend Board meetiaggideo-conferencing or any other means of
telecommunication. This attendance method is nod far deciding on the following matters: (i)
appointing, terminating, or setting the compensatb members of the Management Board, and (i)
reviewing and auditing the annual financial statetse including the consolidated financial
statements, and reviewing the management repduding the management report of the Group.

The means put in place must enable the identifinatif those in attendance and guarantee their
effective participation.
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The minutes of the meeting lists those membersgusideo-conferencing or any other means of
telecommunication to attend the meeting.

Annually, the Board reviews its terms and condisimf operation and, at least once every three
years, complete a formal evaluation with the aasis® of an external consultant, as the case may
be. The purpose of this evaluation is also to emghat important questions are adequately

prepared and debated, and to assess the contribaftieach member to the work completed by

the Board based on his or her abilities and imgilicg in particular.

16.1.2.4  Report on the activity of the Board over the cowsthe 2013 fiscal year

Over the course of the past fiscal year, the Sugany Board of the Company met 8 times. The
Chairman of the Board chaired these meetingsijiiigogpecified that the average attendance raté of a
members of the Board for the fiscal year was etjulr%.

16.2 Service contracts existing between the members ohd Management Board and the
members of the Supervisory Board of the Company

To the Company’s knowledge, as of the filing dafetlos Registration Document, there are no
existing service contracts between the memberbeBSupervisory Board or Management Board and
the Company or one of its subsidiaries and progidiam the grant of benefits.

16.3 Committees
16.3.1 The Audit Committee

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was atexl in 2006. Its members adopted a new
internal charter on March 31, 2011, which was apgddoy the Supervisory Board that same day.

The goal of the Audit Committee, acting under tkel@sive and collective authority of the members
of the Supervisory Board of the Company and in oftdeensure the quality of internal control
procedures and of the reliability of the informatiprovided to shareholders and to the financial
markets, is to monitor all issues associated with éstablishment and auditing of accounting and
financial information and, to this end, in parteul

- to monitor the process under which financial mnfation is prepared,

- to monitor the effectiveness of internal contaohd risk management systems and, in
particular:

0 to evaluate the internal control processes as aslany measures adopted for the
purpose of solving any significant potential inedroontrol dysfunctions,

0 to review the annual work plan of the auditors,
0 to assess the relevance of the risk monitoringguiorce,

- to monitor the legal auditing of the annual fineh statements and consolidated financial
statements by the Statutory Auditors and, in paldic

(o] to review the assumptions retained in the finanstatements, to study the corporate
financial statements of the Company and the anmadd.year and, as the case may
be, quarterly consolidated financial statementsofeefthey are reviewed by the
Supervisory Board, while having regularly kept @&steof the financial position, cash
position, and commitments of the Company, in palticoff-balance sheet data,
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0 to assess the merits of the choice in accountingcipies and methods, in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors,

0 to discuss the merits of the accounting principlesd methods retained, the
effectiveness of accounting auditing procedures, a@h other relevant matters with
the members of the Management Board in chargenahiial concerns as well as with
the Chief Financial Officer, from the end of anyan fiscal year to the date on which
the Audit Committee will seek to approve the dnadtsion of the annual financial
statements,

- to review the significant transactions for whicleonflict of interests may have occurred,

- to issue a recommendation on the Statutory Auslgaggested for appointment at the General
Shareholders’ meeting and to review the conditepdicable to their compensation,

- to monitor the status of independence of theuBiat Auditors and, in particular:

0 to suggest the setting of rules that the Statutargitors can resort to with respect to
duties other than the auditing the financial statet® in order to guarantee the
independence of the auditing services of the firrstatements provided by such
Statutory Auditors in compliance with the law, r&gions, and recommendations
applicable to the Company, and to ensure that suleb are well applied,

0 to authorize any decision to resort to the Stayufauditors for work other than the
auditing of the financial statements,

- to review the conditions governing the use ocaficial derivatives,
- to monitor the status of significant disputesaoregular basis,

- to review the procedures implemented by the Campeth respect to the receipt, filing, and
processing of claims pertaining to accounting matt@nd accounting audits carried out
internally, to issues surrounding the auditing bé tfinancial statements, as well as to
documents sent anonymously and confidentially bpleyees and that may call into question
any practices used in accounting or in the audiiniipe financial statements, and

- generally, to provide any advice and to formukatg appropriate recommendations regarding
the matters set forth above.

If possible, the Audit Committee is composed déast three members of the Supervisory Board afgabin
by the Supervisory Board, it being specified thiagast two thirds of the members of the Audit Caotiea
must be, insofar as possible, independent membescordance with the criteria defined in the AFEP-
MEDEF Code, which the Company uses as a reference.

In selecting the members of the Audit Committee, Shpervisory Board ensures that they are indepgnde
that at least one independent member of the Aulitr@ittee has specific skills in finance or accauti
and that all the members have basic skills in fisaand accounting.

The members of the Audit Committee are:

- Patrick Jones (Chairman, financial expert, andpedeent member of the Supervisory Board),

- Alex Brabers (member of the Supervisory Board), and

- Thierry Sommelet (permanent representative of Bpide Participations, independent member of
the Supervisory Board).



These three individuals were selected based onaheounting and financial skills, it being spesifi
that Patrick Jones and Thierry Sommelet also nmeeintdependence criteria retained by the Company
and reiterated in the internal charter of the Board

The Audit Committee can speak with any member@ilanagement Board of the Company and visit with
or interview the heads of operating or functiomdities that may be of assistance to the Audit Citeenin
completing its assignment. Should the Audit Conawitthoose to do so, it gives prior notice to the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the Chairofathe Management Board of the Company. In
particular, the Audit Committee has the authoatynterview persons who participate in the prejamadf

the financial statements or their auditing (ChiéfiaRcial Officer and senior executives in financial
management).

The Audit Committee interviews the Statutory Audsito

The Audit Committee met 6 times over the courséhef2013 fiscal year with an attendance rate of
100%.

16.3.2 Compensation and Nomination Committee

At its meeting dated March 31, 2011, the Superyi®ward of the Company decided to merge two
pre-existing committees (the governance committek the compensation committee) into a single
compensation and nomination committee (the “Comggms and Nomination Committee”).

The main objectives of the Compensation and Normona€ommittee are:

- to make recommendations to the Supervisory Beagarding the persons or entities that
should be appointed as members of the ManagemeardBw the Supervisory Board, as the
case may be,

- to review the compensation policies implementgdtie Group and applicable to senior
executives, to make proposals regarding the comagiensof members of the Management
Board and, as the case may be, of members of ther8sory Board, and to prepare all
reports that the Company must disclose on thestersat

The Compensation and Nomination Committee is, itiqudar, responsible for the following:
- in regards to nomination matters:

- Make recommendations to the Supervisory Board tlom composition of the
Management Board, the Supervisory Board and itshtitees;

- Propose annually to the Supervisory Board adisnembers who may be qualified
as “independent members” pursuant to the stand#etised in the AFEP-MEDEF
Code, which the Company uses as a reference,

- Establish a succession plan for the executiviear$ of the Company and assist the
Supervisory Board in the selection and evaluatibmembers of the Management
Board;

- Prepare a list of persons to recommend for notieindo the Management Board or
the Supervisory Board; and

- Prepare a list of members of the Supervisory 8darecommend for nomination to
one of the Supervisory Board’s committees.
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- in regards to compensation matters:

- Study the main objectives proposed by senior mament regarding
compensation of executives who are not corporafecess of the Company,
including free allocation of shares and stock amtio

- Review the compensation of executives who are guwsporate officers of the
Company, including free share plans and stock apptans, pension schemes,
welfare plans and benefits in kind;

- Formulate recommendations and proposals to tipeiSisory Board regarding:

- compensation, pension and welfare schemes, benefikind and other
pecuniary rights, including in the event that thernmis of office of
Management Board members are terminated. The Caeemproposes
amounts and systems of compensation and, in pkatjcules for calculation
of any variable compensation taking into accoustdtrategy, objectives and
results of the Company and market standards;

- free share plans, stock option plans, and anyilainprofit sharing
mechanism and, in particular, the individual grattthe members of the
Management Board,

- Review the total amount of attendance fees amdr tHistribution among the
Supervisory Board members, as well as the conditimnreimbursement of costs
that may have been incurred by the members of thpeiSisory Board in
connection with their duties, if any;

- Prepare and present reports required under thestef the internal charter of the
Supervisory Board; and

- Prepare any other recommendation that could beested by the Supervisory
Board or the Management Board regarding compensatio

Generally speaking, the Compensation and NominaGommittee will provide any advice and
formulate any appropriate recommendations regarti@gnatters set forth above.

If possible, the Compensation and Nomination Coiemits composed of at least three members of the
Supervisory Board appointed by the Supervisory @dabeing specified that no less than the mgjaft

the members of the Audit Committee must be, insaggrossible, independent members in accordante wit
the criteria defined in the AFEP-MEDEF Code, whilke Company uses as a reference.

The members of the Compensation and Nomination Gtieerare:

- Jean Schmitt (Chairman),
- Alex Brabers (member of the Supervisory Board}l a

- Patrick Jones (independent member).

Within the context of its duties, the Compensaaod Nomination Committee can submit a request to
the Chairman of the Management Board regardingntbed for the assistance of any management
executive ¢adre dirigeant of the Company, the specific skills of which abulacilitate the
completion of one of the tasks on the agenda.



The Compensation and Nomination Committee met @giwver the course of the 2013 fiscal year
with an attendance rate of 100%.

16.4 Risk management and internal control procedures imfgmented by the Company

In drafting this section of its report, the Comparsged the AFEP-MEDEF code as a reference.
16.4.1 General risk management principles

A) Definition

Risk management aims to identify all of the magksiand risk factors that could affect the business
activities and processes of the company and tonelefiie means of managing these risks and
maintaining them, or to bring them down to an atagle level for the Company, in particular by
setting up preventative measures and controls dirtkethe internal control system. This process is
intended to cover all types of risks and to applhall the business activities of the Company amd th
Group.

B) Risk management objectives

The Company adopted the definition of risk managemmblished by the FrencAutorité des
marchés financiersaccording to which risk management is a leveragehanism in the management
of the Company that contributes to:

- creating and maintaining the value, assets, andatpn of the Company,

- providing added security to the decision-making anocesses of the Company in order to
promote the reaching of objectives,

- promote consistency between actions and the siesuoit the Company,

- mobilize employees around a shared understandittgeahain risks to which the Company is
exposed.

C) Components of the risk management system

The risk controlling method used by the Comparilyased, on the one hand, on the assessment of the
risks within the context of the definition providedthe annual business plan and, on the othethen
elaboration of plans of action aimed at handlires¢hrisks.

The main risks associated with the business aetiviof the Company are described in the
Management Board’s management report.

Specific plans of action are put in place in ortterespond appropriately to the main risks idesudifi
A constant monitoring is also implemented. Finandiks and related controls in place are shared
with the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Commiti@e a regular basis in order to adapt or modify
them, as the case may be. The Company continuetaborate its risk management system. The
Company established a risk map in 2012, which plewit with a more systematic monitoring tool.

16.4.2 Relationship between risk management and inteorétal

The internal control system relies in particularrsik management to identify the main risks thacde
to be controlled. In the past, the Company hag &ftaborated and developed an internal control
system, whereas the elaboration of the risk managesystem is more recent. The Company is now
involved in reconciling both systems, aiming tont#y the terms of controls to which the key
processes of the company that could potentiallyipacted by risks regarded as “major” are subject.
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16.4.3 General internal control principles
A) Definition

Inside Secure uses as a guideline the definitiantefnal control proposed by the Frerfalitorité des
marchés financiersaccording to which internal control is a systamplemented by the Company
intended to ensure:

- compliance with laws and regulations of its atesg,

- the enforcement of instructions and guideling$gesenior management,
- the proper functioning of the internal processithe Company,

- the reliability of its financial information,

and, generally, contribute to the monitoring ofdtdivities, the effectiveness of its operationd tre
efficient use of its resources. Over the courstheffiscal year, the Company continued to implement
an internal control system intended to “internglyarantee that the information used and distributed
throughout the businesses of the Company is reterahreliable.”

However, the use of internal controls does not titoie an absolute guarantee that the objectives of
the Company will be reached, or even that the oElerror or fraud will be fully controlled or
eliminated.

B) The components of internal control
Standards

The procedures described below are those of thep@oyn and its subsidiaries, the financial
statements of which are consolidated by the glolegration method, it being hereby specified that
the context of its development and of the initislihg of its shares on the Euronext regulated etark
in Paris, France, the Company intends to improwe applement its existing system by referring to
the guidelines contained in the implementation gufdr the framework of reference on risk
management and internal control adapted to smdlinaid caps published by the Fren&ttorité des
marchés financiersn November 18, 2013.

The different actors of the internal control system

The Group’s internal control system relies on thenlslgement Board of the Company, its Supervisory
Board, its Audit Committee and its Compensation &lminination Committee. Their composition,
functions and operation are described above.

Accounting and financial organization and monitagyin

In order to make its financial and accounting infation more reliable, the Group has implemented a
number of procedures, mainly organized around:

- athree-year business plan,

- an annual budget,

- a monthly consolidated reporting for internal ,umgabling the reconciliation of accounting
data and forecasts, and expected to improve théygaad reliability of its financial
information, it being specified that such reportis@lso used for the financial management of
the Group, and

- quarterly income and cash position forecast.
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Identification of key controls and the monitorinftleeir implementation

Within the context of the drafting of its risk map 2012, the Group identified the major risks it is
exposed to as a result of the nature of its busiaesivities. The Group identified fifteen processe
used in the preparation of its financial informatio

- Governance - Cash and derivatives

- Reporting and budgetary procedures - Contractual and legal framework

- Research and development activity - Tax matters

- Existence and valuation of stocks - Research tax credits and grants

- Recognition of income and customers - Subsidiaries

- Purchase and suppliers providers - Information systems

- Payroll and Human Resources - Procedures for closing interim and annual
- Procedures for investment and capital financial statements

expenditures

These processes are listed in an internal contaddixrthat included 199 key controls during its nos
recent review in November 2013. Some key contralehrevealed internal control weaknesses, which
as far as the Company is concerned, did not sggmifly affect the reliability of its financial
information as offsetting controls were implementébese are areas of improvement for the Group.
The Audit Committee reviews the matrix of internahtrol on an annual basis.

Accounting and financial information system
The Group has established three information systemsder to strengthen its internal control system

= a management tool for ERP (SAP), the objective dictv is to restore financial
information in an automated and secure way. Tho$ has helped to establish a plan of
accounts, to improve the traceability of informatand create audit trails,

= atool to monitor research and development projihetsenables the monitoring, on a per
project basis, of the time spent by researchersamh project and the costs incurred in
connection with each project,

= a software package for modeling projected cashdlimiorder to manage cash projections
in connection with accounting and budget contredda

Resources allocated to internal control

Given its size, the Group has not established tmrial audit department. Internal control is priityar

the responsibility of its financial department. Digrtheir visit to sites abroad, its teams revidwe t
analyses of the financial statements prepared éyatitountants of its subsidiaries. In general, for
foreign subsidiaries, the Group relies on outsididitars for the preparation of the financial stades

and the annual tax returns in order to maintaimdgguate segregation of duties and to ensure proper
compliance with and implementation of local legadl aax provisions.

16.4.4 Scope of risk management and internal control

The internal control procedures described heradrapplicable to the Company as well as to anysof it
subsidiaries for which the financial statements @esolidated according to the global integration
method.

132



16.4.5 Corporate bodies responsible for risk managemethtraarnal control

The Management Board of the Company is responddlethe identification and processing of
essential challenges and defines strategic andatipeal objectives. It ensures that the strategy is
executed and reviews the options contributing $oefifective implementation, in particular in the
fields of technology, security, and human and faialresources.

The framework of reference used by the Companyt$onternal control is focused on ensuring that
the accounting and financial information is rel@al@nd on compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, in particular in the area of preparatf accounting and financial information.

The Management Board is responsible for the sugierviof the internal control system of the
Company. Since its does not have an internal augditepartment, the Management Board entrusts the
financial department with the responsibility of idiéying the risks and implementing, monitoringdan
evaluating the internal control system.

Within the financial department, the chief finahaidficer, financial controllers, and the financial
planning & analysis department are an integral piitie system and work in close collaboration with
the various operational departments in order toaguee an acceptable level of internal control.

Lastly, acting under the authority of the membdrshe Supervisory Board of the Company and in
order to ensure the quality of internal control ggdures and of the reliability of the information
provided to shareholders and to the financial ntark€he Audit Committee monitors all issues
associated with the establishment and auditingodanting and financial information.

16.4.6 Limitations of risk management and internal con&modl areas of improvement

Risk management and internal control represent restantly improving process. In 2014, the
Company intends to test its risk management syatahto improve the monitoring of identified plans
of action. At the same time, the Company intendspate its internal control system by taking into
account changes in its internal structure andutsness. The Company also plans to ensure that the
internal control system it implemented can coverribks identified when it established its risk map
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17. EMPLOYEE MATTERS

In essence, the information provided in this Chap#erates the information relative to the Graup’
labor, environmental, and community commitments@ntéed in Section 7 of the Management Report
prepared by the Company's Management Board (pleefsr to the Company’'s 2013 Annual
Financial Report, available on the Company’s webait www.insidesecure.com). This information
was also the subject of a report prepared by d tarty, which is included in Appendix 3 of said
Annual Financial Report.

17.1. Corporate information

17.1.1.0Organizational chart as of the filing date of tRisgistration Document
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Chairman
of the Management Board

Rémy de Tonnac*

General Manager
Corporate Secretary

P. Didier*

Chief Operating
Officer

P. Garnier*

General Manager
Chief Financial Officer

R. Vacher
Detourniére*

Executive Vice President
Industrial Operations
& Engineering

D. Laroche

Executive Vice President]

Research &
Development

D. Karayiannis

Executive Vice President
Secured Transactions
Business Division

B. Vian

Executive Vice President
Mobile Security

Business Division
Chief Sales Officer

S. Blake-Wilson

* Member of the management board

(1) Simon Blake-Wilson resigned from his position in the Company on August 18, 2014, He will leave the Group on August 29, 2014.
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The Group’s key managers have extensive experignteeir respective fields. Their experience is
summarized below. For a description of the exeeutiorporate officers’ experience, please refer to
section 14.1.1 entitled “Members of the ManagenBwrard” of this Registration Document:

Dr. Dimitrios Karayiannis
Executive Vice President of Research & Development

Dr. Dimitrios Karayiannis joined INSIDE Secure 012, bringing more than 16 years of hardware,
software experience in semiconductor industry idiclg more than 10 years of management
experience in product development of Applicatioml @aseBand Processors. He leads the Group’s
R&D team and is responsible for the developmenalbfNSIDE Secure products. Prior to joining
INSIDE Secure, Dr. Karayiannis held various posii@at Texas Instruments in the United States and
France. As a member of the senior leadership tédrexas Instruments France, he managed the R&D
organization for the Wireless Business Unit. Dr.ra§gannis holds a Ph.D degree in Computer
Science from Southern lllinois University.

Damien Laroche
Executive Vice President for Industrial Operatiangl Engineering

Damien Laroche began working for the company in3208e started his professional career as a
product engineer at SGS-Thomson (now STMicroeleas). In 1989, he joined Gemplus as its
Engineering Manager, focusing mainly on electranad physical chip card characterization. Later, as
Industrial Manager of Module Assembly, he playesigmificant role in the construction and launch of
the firm's La Ciotat plant in France. In 1996, Gampappointed him to the position of Worldwide
Industrial Director for Contactless Products. Itsvita this post that he helped develop contactlass c
fabrication technologies, such as combi-cardsHerttansport and access control markets. In adglitio
he developed RFID tags for laundry services andhties, and coordinated Gemplus' contactless
production sites. Today Damien runs the group'satjpms, overseeing quality, engineering, logistics
and industrial purchasing. He holds a postgraddatgee in microelectronics from the University of
Bordeaux.

Bernard Vian
Executive Vice President of the Secure Transa@igssiness Division

Bernard Vian came to the company via Gemplus, wherbeld positions in sales and marketing. He
also opened Gemplus' Californian office in 1996.thes firm's Applications Service Support Director

for North America, a role he performed until 200&, built strong customer relationships with Visa
International and Visa USA. Bernard shaped Gemipltessthe world's largest Visa chip card vendor,

overseeing the delivery of over twenty million catd bank issuers as part of the first “VISA Smart
Breakthrough Program” in the United States. He tjuémed INSIDE Secure in 2002 as Business
Development Manager, going on to successfully mwsithe MicroPass product on the contactless
market. Bernard is a graduate of Marseille&itut universitaire des sciences pour l'ingémieu
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17.1.2.Employees
As of December 31, 2013, the Group had 367 empyee

At closing of the periods in question, the Grougrsployee base changed as follows:

Per function December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Senior management and administratign 46 46
Research and development (*) 189 240
Sales & Marketing (*) 69 78
Operations 63 96
Total 367 460

(*) in the context of the October 2013 corporatetrecturing, 14 persons were transferred from tleséarch &
Development function to the Sales & Marketing fiomcfor reporting purposes.

Per country (*) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
France 215 254
Scotland 39 75
Netherlands 39 37
Finland 25 20
Poland 0 6
Singapore 4 8
China 0 7
South Korea 3 4
Thailand 4 3
Taiwan 9 9
Japan 3 0
United States 26 32
Germany 0 2
Philippines 0 0

(*) in this table, employees are assigned to thaows countries based on their home company. lukhbe
noted that an employee working for the Finnish gliasy of the Company performs her duties mainly in
Norway while an employee under contract with thééthStates works mainly in Canada.

As of the end of the 2012 fiscal year, the emplopase growth includes the ESS business’s
integration into the Group, following the formesgsquisition on December 1, 2012 (73 employees at
that date, to which were added 4 employees in Japaf January 7, 2013).

As of July 31, 2014, the Group had 338 employees.

Gender breakdown

December 31, 2013
Women 'France 48
Outside of France 27
Men 'France 167
Outside of France 125
Total 367

Based on an employee base of 367 employees ascefiber 31, 2013, the percentage of women is
equal to 20%. This gender distribution is mainlg da the types of professions represented withén th
Group, which historically have been dominated l®yrirale population.
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Age breakdown

Between 30 Between 40
<30 years and 40 years and 50 years > 50 years
France 23 83 74 35
Outside of France 7 59 57 29
Total 30 142 131 64

The Group’s employees have an average age of 4&.\leahould be noted that there is a fairly large
senior population for a high tech business, sitee gercentage of employees over 50 is 17%. In
France, the rate is 16%.

In order to strengthen its teams on certain prejatie Company regularly employs through staffing
agencies that assist in finding temporary employees

These temporary employees totaled 39 persons Readmber 31, 2011, 27 persons as of December
31, 2012, and 11 persons as of December 31, 2013.

Hirings and dismissals

In recent years, the Company has mainly hired citels with “expert” profiles. Due to their
experience, they are able to meet the technologicallenges inherent in the markets it conducts
business in. Currently, the hiring strategy of @@mpany is to hire a mix of profiles, with a higher
preference for “junior-level” profiles. Apprentidéps and mandatory long-term engineering post-
graduate residencies are also a preferred soureemiitment for the Company.

In the France market, the Group hired 11 persorZ0i8. The data on new hires completed in other
subsidiaries of the Group is currently being pregaiThe Group intends to publish a Group-wide
indicator for the 2014 fiscal year.

Of all the employees who joined the Group in 20130% of them were recruited with open term
employment contractegntrat & durée indéterminger “CDI").

Over the course of 2013, the Company implementiedsiness restructuring plan and reorganized its
corporate structure, which led to layoffs in bathFrance (in the context ofan de sauvegarde de
I'emploi, or layoff plan) and internationally.

The geographic distribution of the 82 layoffs coetpd in 2013 in connection with this corporate
downsizing plan is the following:

Country Number of layoffs

France 24
Scotland 31

Poland 6
Germany 2

United States 6
Singapore 4

China 7

Taiwan 2

In early 2014, 2 additional employees were alsd ¢di in France in connection with this plan.

This corporate restructuring also led to the shatdof subsidiaries in Poland and China in early

2014.
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Wages and salaries

Wages and salaries (charges included) recordeldeb@toup in the 2013 fiscal year amounted to US$
54,702 thousand.

Incentive-based compensation

In France, a discretionary profit-sharing agreem@ectord d'intéressementvas signed with the
representatives of the employees of each of the@sd-rench companies (INSIDE Secure and Vault-
IC France).

The purpose of these agreements is to create & titk between the employee and the Company’s
performance, while strengthening its belief in podimg common interests.

The agreements in force in the 2013 fiscal yearevised on reaching a target operating margin in
the second half-year of the 2013 fiscal year andeathing certain milestones in the development
process of new critical products for the Companycehtive-based compensation was paid to
employees of the Group’s French companies in 2013.

Health, pension, welfare, and other benefits
INSIDE Secure’s employees in France also benefihfvarious employment benefits:

- Regarding health, the Company guarantees its emgdwn additional health plan to the
general social security plan. In 2012, the add#tidrealth plan was redefined and, as a result,
the Group’s management will incur a larger portddigontributions to this plan;

- Regarding welfare, the protection plan availableetgployees aims to protect them against
life’s mishaps: work interruption, disability, ondbility to perform. This plan guarantees
employees that they will be paid significant borsusethe event of disability or inability to
perform. In the event of death, this plans alloastd be paid to the spouse and an education
stipend for each child he or she claims as a degrénd

- In order to help its employees in securing a hothe,company became a member of the
organization responsible for managing i8é patronal(employer loan offering employees a
1% interest rate for the acquisition or construttal one’s principal residence). This new
membership provides all employees with privilegedess to real estate inventory. They also
benefit from other advantages aimed at assistisgntin leasing or acquiring their place of
residence.

17.1.3.Work hours

Within INSIDE Secure, company executives and noecakives g¢alariés cadres et non cadjesork
39 hours per week. They accumulate 0.62 days afimeper month, or a total of 6.82 days per year.

Employees of Vault-IC France have different schiegudchemes in place:

- Work hours for nearly all company executives isdolagn day count (218 days) enabling each
of them to better organize their work hours andpada the duties and responsibilities
entrusted to them;

- Non-executive personnel either works 35 hours peglwwhile being allocated 12 RTT days
(réduction du temps de travaibr extra paid vacation days to promote less wakrs, or
“RTT") or works 39 hours per week while accumulgtih62 days of overtime per month, or a
total of 6.82 days per year;

- Lastly, a certain number of employees responsittetdsting the company’s products work
according to a schedule of shifts.



Skills management

- As early as 2011, the Group wanted to change tiésnal structure in order to manage new
hires and skills homogeneously across its entad ahd rally groups of varying origin around
the same approach regarding professional contoibsitand their development.

- The new structure launched in December 2013 assigpssition to each job and each
contribution level in the organization. It highlighcareer moves within the sector and across
sectors, horizontal and vertical, and between eiggeand management.

- The approach covers all of the Group’s employeaduding corporate officers.
It is used for all job positions, in all countriemd applies to executive and non-executives.
The new structure includes 11 groups. Job positiwasplit into four broad career sectors:
- Technical
- Sales
- Support
- Management

In addition, the new structure helped to harmomiad provide consistency with the Group’s general
remuneration policy (fixed salaries and individwakiable portions), by assigning salary ranges to
each group in the structure, which are determireesi2th on the real salaries, pay equity management,
and market competitiveness. Although it is con$gacthanging as the company further develops, it
provides the general guidelines for its remunengpiolicy and employment benefits.

Absenteeism

Absenteeism within the company is fairly weaksitower than the national averages for the business
sector of the Group (sourc:™ baromeétre Alma Consulting Group sur I'absentéigpolished in
September 2013 — Absenteeism rate of 3.77% forsteor of the industry).

In 2013, the aggregate absenteeism rate in Framcdeding illness and work-related injury) totaled
0.90%. It corresponds to the total number of ddgeat for illness, or work-related injury or illrses
divided by the theoretical number of business daytbe year. It does not include leaves of absence
for prolonged illness.

17.1.4.Labor relations

The Group assigns special importance to laborioglstin particular when negotiating with employee
representatives.

The French companies of the Group, nhamely INSID&u&eand Vault-IC France, each have a works
council.

INSIDE Secure has a dedicated employee delegavompigsed of 6 permanent members and 6
alternates. The most recent elections took plackuire 2011. Two labor unions are represented (FO
and CFTC) in addition to permanent members “unatét with any labor union”.

Vault-IC France also has a dedicated employee dietegcomprised of 2 permanent members and 2
alternates. The most recent elections took pladamuary 2011. Permanent members are affiliates of
the CFE CGC labor union.

In 2013 and 2014, the Group restructured its bssinehich led to 84 layoffs across the globe. In

France, this corporate restructuring was subjech tisclosure/consultation process with INSIDE
Secure’s Works Council as well as consultation @ssowith INSIDE Secure’s CHSCT union. In the
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Great Britain, a collective consultation took plasgh employee representatives selected for this
purpose.

Mandatory annual negotiationaggociations annuelles obligatoiresr “NAQO”) took place in the
French offices of the Group over the course ofdthquarter of 2013 and early in the 2014 fiscal year.
They resulted in the renewal of existing agreements

Review of collective bargaining agreements

Over the course of the 2013 fiscal year, threeectile bargaining agreements were signed with
INSIDE Secure’s employee representative bodies:

- Avenant a l'accord d'intéressement du 21 juin 20Athendment to the incentive agreement
dated June 21, 2012)The purpose of this amendment is to define thedeand conditions
applicable to calculating the incentive-based campdon for 2013 as it appears in the
incentive agreement executed in 2012.

- Accord résultant de la négociation annuelle oblajet (Agreement resulting from the
mandatory annual negotiations) This agreement defines the wage and benefit messur
INSIDE Secure should reapply or implement overdterse of the 2014 fiscal year.

- Avenant au Plan d’Epargne pour la Retraite Colledtiterentreprise§fAmendment to the
Intercompany Collective Pension Savings Plaijhe amendment confirms membership to
PERCO-I HSBC and provides the terms and conditiapplicable specifically to the
company.

Three agreements were also signed with Vault-l@éem employee representative bodies:

- Accord d'intéressemeifincentive Agreement} It defines the general principles of and terms
and conditions for calculating the incentive-basmmmpensation for Vault-IC France'’s
employees.

- Accord résultant de la négociation annuelle oblajet (Agreement resulting from the
mandatory annual negotiations) This agreement defines the wage and benefit messur
Vault-IC France should reapply or implement over ¢burse of the 2014 fiscal year.

- Avenant au Plan d’Epargne pour la Retraite Colledtiterentreprise§fAmendment to the
Intercompany Collective Pension Savings Plaijhe amendment confirms membership to
PERCO-I HSBC and provides the terms and conditiapplicable specifically to the
company.

Social activities

The Company contributes to social activities praedoby labor organizations in France pursuant to
legal provisions put in place for that purpose. getd benefiting social activities promoted by fgrei
organizations are also in place. These contribatimover, either partly or fully, the participatiofi
employees mainly in athletic, cultural, and musastivities and events.

17.1.5.Health and safety
Every day, the Company works with the members o6CH in order to comply with the requirement
for and guarantee good work conditions to its eygds. The Company complies with applicable
legal provisions in this domain.

At the Group level, the number of work-related anaveling injuries, as well as work-related
illnesses, is not high.
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These are the numbers for France:

2012 2013
Number of injuries while working 3 0
Number of injuries while traveling 3 3
Number of cases of work-related illnesses 0 0
Frequency rate 0 0
Injury severity rate 0 0

The calculation of the theoretical number of honsked that was used to determine the frequency
and severity rates is based on theoretical forrh@&9chours per week for all types of employment
contracts.

17.1.6.Training

Professional training within the Group

The annual training program aims to ensure thal@yeps are properly trained to carry out their work
responsibilities and offers training focused odiskievelopment.

Training initiatives set up by the Group are tyficéechnical and concern job-related skills. These
programs are essential for acquiring the skillsnaster necessary technical advancements that meet
the specificities of the markets in which the Compaonducts its business activities. They also help
in introducing new professional tools and new waréthods. This explains why such programs must
be completed as soon as possible and with theskpstts / trainers in the field.

Other training initiatives aim to develop crosseifidinary skills. Here are some examples: (i) léagn
to work in a cross-disciplinary way in an interoatl multi-worksite environment in which setting
challenging goals and ensuring customer satisfaire top priorities, or (ii) continuing education
the development of linguistic abilities, in parf@uin English, which is necessary for operatinghe
international environment of the Company.

In 2013, more attention was given to training atities aimed at:

Strengthening commitments,

Offering specialty training for certain marketségucts

Acquiring the new technical abilities necessarystgpport the evolution of the Group’'s
products

Improving communication within and across teama multi-site international environment,
Continuing education in the development of lingaisbilities, in particular in English, which
is necessary for operating in the internationairemment of the Group,

Assisting and strengthening project approach ancitorng,

Favoring the sharing of experiences through ordiagieross-disciplinary internal training,
Professionalizing and assisting internal trainegarding pedagogical matters,

Support the introduction of new tools new work naoetb,

Promote individual growth development via D.lL.Brdit individuel a la formation or
individual right to training) (D.l.F includes asBeeness training, change management, better
communication in a professional setting).

The goal set by the Group is to ensure that ailsofmployees can benefit from at least one trginin
initiative per year.
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Training partnerships

The Company often utilizes external training iritias organized with public institutions and
organizations qrganismes conventionrjéand selected pursuant to calls for tenders. Getected,
they become true partners with which the Group watlosely to meet its needs in knowledge
acquisition and skills development.

The sharing of knowledge

Training within the Group also relies increasingly the formal sharing of experience through the
creation of internal training initiatives. Suchamal training initiatives play an important roledathe
Company acknowledges this transfer of knowledgeebguring that its internal trainers have the
pedagogical skills necessary to complete this tda$le professionalization of internal trainers is
currently considered a priority.

Training review

Since the training of its staff represents a sigaift investment for the Group, measuring its

effectiveness is necessary. The review procesdilisnwost often based on the impressions of

participants on the training they received. Althioulis feedback is necessary, it is not sufficiéms

is why the Company wishes to gradually implememir@cess to enable trainers to evaluate interns
based on the knowledge they acquired.

17.1.7.Fair treatment in the workplace
17.1.7.1. Gender equality

The Group aims to promote the equality of wagewéeh men and women with similar levels of skill
and experience. For that reason, the Company enthaewages are equal when employees are hired
and monitors aggregate wages paid by gender taestisat wage increases benefit men and women
proportionally.

Annual base salary as of December 31, 2013 (doemcdode seniority bonuses):
Women Men
Executives ETAM Executives ETAM
52,096 28,726 65,696 30,745

The difference in salary between men and womeharekecutives category is, amongst others
factors, due to the lack of women in executive nganaent positions in its business sector.

17.1.7.2. Anti-discrimination Policy

The Company fights against all forms of personstidmination.
In order to achieve this, it has implemented tHie¥ang measures:
- Note on job posts mentioning that the job is awddéldo employees with disabilities
- Monthly monitoring of the equality of access tdniag for both women and men
- Directing managers to ensure equal access torgaior all at the time of creation of their
team training program.
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17.1.7.3. Hiring and integration of employees with disabagi

The Company offers all of its employment positibmsill potential employees without discrimination.
Despite this policy, the Company believes thatiied an insufficient number of employees with
disabilities, which prompted it to establish a parship with Agefiph in order to find solutions for
meeting its requirement in this area. Commissiorgx¢ernal companies that hire workers with
disabilities in the office supplies business isparticular, another method the Company uses td mee
its requirement.

17.1.8.Promotion of and compliance with stipulations ity kellective bargaining
agreements of the International Labor Organization

As specified in the ethics charter sent via enmadlt employees of the Group and handed to each new
hire, the Group scrupulously complies with natioaiadl international laws and, in particular, commits
to complying with the standards set by the Intéomat Labor Organization relative to preventing
child or forced labor. The Group ensures that itnmercial partners make the same such
commitments.

In addition, INSIDE Secure respects employees’trighbe personally involved in political activities
to support the causes of their choice, or to joalabor union of their choice.

17.2. Environmental information
17.2.1.General environmental policy

Conscious of current environmental challenges dnt$ social responsibilities, INSIDE Secure seeks
to ensure that its business activities follow thiegiples of sustainable development, whether tlyec
or via its commercial partners.

As such, INSIDE Secure aims to find common grouetiveen its economic and social growth
objectives on the one hand and its efforts to resphee environment by limiting, in particular, the

harmful impact it may have on the environment agdrtanaging its natural resources in a rational
way.

Since the Group does not carry out any manufaguaativities in its offices (fabless model), itrist
exposed to any significant direct risks of enviremtal harm.

The Group’s quality control department is respdesifor the management system that handles
environmental matters.

An awareness program on environmental protectios evganized in fiscal year 2012 for employees
based in France. It was not renewed in fiscal 28413, due to the fact that the Company’s business
activities did not quite justify it at that time.

There are no provisions or guarantees made to csksrassociated with the environment.

During the fiscal year, the Group did not award eagnpensation as a result of a court decision on an
environmental matter.
17.2.2.Pollution and waste management

Since its business activities are mainly conduetétin the tertiary sector, the Group has not taken
specific measures to prevent, reduce or remedywasie released in the air, water or on land that
could significantly harm the environment.

144



The Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Divec (“WEEE”) (2002/96/CE) allows for
manufacturers to organize and finance the collectmocessing, and valuation of their products at
end-of-life. In order to avoid any related risk pbéllution, a specialized third party company is
commissioned to reprocess all of the waste regultom equipment and products.

As such, a procedure was put in place within theu@raimed at the disposal and recycling of the
following waste: silicon wafers and micro-packagdips, electrical and electronic equipment, power
cells and batteries, toner and ink cartridges apkp

In 2013, the Group recycled the following quansitad waste from its French worksites:

- Electric and electronic equipment and silicon wafer 950 kg

- Lead batteries 154 kg
- Batteries 67 kg
- Toner and ink cartridges 41 kg
- Paper 4,054 kg

In 2013, the consolidation in Meyreuil, France bé teams previously based in Aix-en-Provence,
France and Rousset, France created an opportuniteclycle a significant amount of electronic
equipment, silicon wafers and outdated documents.

Due to the nature of its business activities, tieup does not generate any significant amount of
noise pollution.

17.2.3.Sustainable use of resources

Over the course of 2013, the Group’s electric poe@mrsumption in France and Scotland was the
following:

- France (excluding the Cergy and Montigny-le-Breumaworksites, for which data is not
available):1.333 million kwh

- Scotland (East Kilbride worksite(z791 million kwWh

In August 2013, the Group regrouped all of thefstainitially employed in Aix-en-Provence and
Rousset under one roof in a building compliant witérmal regulation RT2012 while boasting high-
performance energy features.

The upper section of the building favors accesssdtar energy via photovoltaic sensors. The
building’s outer protective layer is highly efficiein controlling heat as it ventilates naturallhile
supported by reinforced air circulation, which dealithe building to maintain a comfortable internal
temperature even on very hot days.

In particular, the building stands out relativeit® primary energy consumption. Indeed, it offers
performance gains of 70% relative to the requirdsieaf RT 2012 in terms of the building's
maximum conventional primary energy consumptiorleyPeg.s,).

In addition, in an effort to protect the environrhetine building is equipped with efficient energy
systems:

- Counter-flow ventilation system with a rotary heatchanger in order to optimize energy
consumption in the building.

- Walls and roof equipped with reinforced thermalasion.

- Heating/cooling via a direct expansion system.

- 57/27 argon-filled double glazed windows (lets #¥®&light and only 27% heat)

- The roof allows for photovoltaic solar power protioe via an installed solar panel power
capacity of 99.75 kilowatts-peak.
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The impact of the bioclimatic design on the engrgyformance of the building can be seen through
“Bbio” coefficient (Besoin Bioclimatique or Bioclimatic Requirement). The building’s needs
(heating/cooling, ventilation, lighting) depend twis Bbio figure. The building boasts a 45% gain on
the Bbignax threshold required under the terms of RT2012.

Due to its fabless business model, the Group doesause any signification impact on land use or
water consumption and has not taken any specifacsores to improve its efficiency in the use of raw
materials.

17.2.4.Climate change

The power consumption of French worksites (exclgdimat of the buildings in Cergy, France and
Montigny-le-Bretonneux, France) has generated kg @& CO2 emissions.

Regrouping the teams based in the Aix-en-Proveag®m under one roof has, amongst other things,
eliminated employees’ frequent automobile commbtsveen the two worksites in Aix-en-Provence
and Rousset where they used to work.

The power consumption of the East Kilbride worksiteScotland has generated 104.4 kg of CO2
emissions.

The Company'’s traveling policy recommends that eyges favor travel by train than by plan for
commutes between Marseille and Paris.

In addition, and insofar as possible, the Groupoarages its employees to use the telephone
conferencing solutions available to them in oradimit travel.

However, the Group has not yet conducted any dpemifalysis to identify the measures it should
implement to adapt to the consequences of clinfeage on its business activities.

17.2.5.Protecting biodiversity

The Group’s various worksites do not carry outtifpes of activities that could cause direct harm to
the biological balance of natural habitats or prtad animal and plant species.

17.3. Local Community Relations
17.3.1.Territorial, economic, and social impact of the G's business activities

In France, the Group’s business activities reqitite call upon a certain number of subcontractors
that can supply it with various products and sewiqdesigning tools and equipment for its
laboratories and testing room, consultancy ser(im@gproduct development assistance, in partigular

front desk personnel, security personnel, and alggmersonnel...).

These subcontractors are mainly located in thenitycof the Group’s registered office in Meyreuil,
France. As such, the Group contributes to the deweént of indirect local employment that supports
its business activities.

Until December 2013, the Group was, in particutartsourcing a significant portion of its wafer
production to LFoundry, based in Rousset, FrandhénBouches-du-Rhodne region. This company’s
court-ordered liquidation proceedings in late 2Gb8ced the Group to transfer this outsourced
business outside of the country, due to the lackngfother company on the French territory working
with the technology required.
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17.3.2.Relations with persons or entities with an inteneshe company’s business activities,
in particular social integration associations, edion institutions, environmental
protection association, consumer associations@ra groups

In the Provence-Alpes-Cote-d’Azur region of Franites Group fosters a relationship with several
higher education institutions from which it recsliiterns and employees.

It is also in contact with some regional reseandtotatories, the work of which is related to itsnow
business activities.

Due to its “fabless” business model, the Group du#have a decisive territorial, economic, or abci
impact on local groups or communities.

17.3.3. Subcontracting and suppliers

In an effort to perform at the highest level andemain competitive, the Company must remain very
reactive and flexible. In addition, to grow beyotite limits of its own corporate structure and
reinforce these two criteria, the Company has @etid seek external technical assistance. Therefore
as of December 31, 2013, the Group was working athroximately ten external service providers
retained through calls for tenders. This techniaasistance is mainly exercised in France by
companies located, for the most part, in the vigiof the Company’s registered office. For the kbng

of the assignment, the corresponding engineerintegrated into the development teams and work
under the supervision of the people responsibl¢hiese teams.

Furthermore, since it operates under a fabless inhdatde Group works with foundries and
subcontractors that provide the manufacturing asting for the products it develops.

All of the revenue generated from the sale of sermdactors is outsourced in this way. It represents
79% of the Group’s aggregate revenue in 2013.

The Group pays close attention to the environmentphct of its products and tries to ensure tlgat it
production partners comply with environmental regjohs. The foundries with which the Group
works and the subcontractors responsible for prodesting have been ISO 14001 certified (a
standard mainly recognized at the internationatlléer environmental management systems) and the
majority of subcontractors responsible for assemgpilis products are certified as well.

The execution of a contract extension (the Techi8cgplier Agreement) that defines, in detail, the
Company’s expectations in technical terms, in dquadind environmentally, is also requested from the
various subcontractors.

As such, the Group closely monitors compliance witle various environmental regulations
applicable across the globe.

In addition, the Group ensures that its subcordracare 1SO14001 certified and, therefore, have
implemented an environmental management systeninviftbir organization.

17.3.4.Loyalty practices

The Company carries out its business activitiesampliance with rules of integrity. In November
2012, it implemented an ethics charter that defithes principles and values that comprise the
fundamental standards of conduct expected of ifg@mes mainly in the following areas:

- Fighting against all forms of discrimination
— Prohibiting anti-competition practices
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— Prohibiting child labor and forced labor

— Preserving the confidentiality of information

- Preventing fraud

— Preventing conflicts of interest

- Allowing employees to associate freely and to ergagollective bargaining
— Prohibiting acts of corruption and influence peddli

- Relationship with shareholders and financial market

When the Group completed its initial public offeyjnthe Ethics Charter was distributed to all
employees of the Group in French and English. tia& handed to each new employee of INSIDE
Secure.

In April 2012, the Group also distributed an insittading policy handbookcbde de déontologie
boursiérg to all of its employees. It is also handed to aaw employees. The purpose of the insider-
trading policy handbook is to provide informatianthe Group’s employees and the people around
them regarding their obligations relative to tranisey on the stock exchange and preventing the
unlawful use or dissemination of privileged infotioa.

Measures taken to promote the health and safatgrefumers:

The business activities of the Group are subjetitédRoHS directiveRestriction of the use of certain
hazardous substances in electrical and electrogu@immen) (2002/95/EC), which limits the use of
six substances that present both health and emvéotal hazards and that could be used in the
manufacturing of electrical and electronic equiptmeramely four heavy metals (Hg, Pb, Cd and
CrVI) and two flame retardants (PBB and PBDE). Aligh the Group does not manufacture its own
products, the Group ensures that its supplierssabbdontractors comply with this directive. In this
context, all of the subcontractors of the Grougldise their ROHS analyses for the products they
deliver.

REACH regulations also require information to bscthsed to customers in the event that an SVHC
(Substance of Very High Concern) is present inaglpet at a mass concentration higher than 0.1%. In
order to meet its obligations, the Group closelynitars the list of SVHC candidates updated by the
European Chemicals Agency (ECHA) and takes thessecg steps with its suppliers to ensure that
the products introduced to the market do not cargach substances at higher concentrations than the
levels specified. The Group also closely monitdres EVHC list as it appears in Appendix XIV of
REACH in order to ensure that the products of theu@ do not risk being banned from the market.

As such, the Group places much importance on magdang its suppliers and subcontractors across the
globe comply with applicable environmental regulas.

17.3.5.0ther projects in support of human rights

In agreement with the collective initiative laundhey the Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition
(EICC) and the Global e-Sustainability Initiativ@gSl), the Company ensures that its subcontractors
source their supplies in minerals (gold, tungstantalus, and tin) away from the conflict zones of
Congo or its associated countries, in which themee from these minerals is, in particular, used to
finance such local conflicts.

To achieve this, the Group asks the various subactors in question to produce a written document

certifying that the minerals they use in manufaomitheir products are not sourced in such conflict
zones.
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17.4. Financial instruments granting access to the shareapital of the Company awarded to the first ten norexecutive employee
beneficiaries, and stock options exercised by sutieneficiaries

Over the course of the past three fiscal yearsfiamd January 1, 2014 to the filing date of this Regtion Document, the Company granted 644,49¢ksto
options of the Company (“Options”) and 89,990 fskares (“FS”) to the ten employees of the Group wbid the largest number of free shares and stock
options of the Company granted during the fiscargen question (collectively referred to as thatttements”).

2011 2012 2013 From January 1, 2014 to the filin
date of this Registration
Document
Options ES Options ES Options ES Options ES

October 20, 2005 June 30, 2010 June 29, 2012

Date of the Shareholders’ Meeting June 2, 2006 January 20, 2012 June 19. 2013 June 26, 2014
June 29, 2012 June 29, 2012 '
December 16, 2010
Date of the Management Board Meetin Fe\tJ)IZLrllaeré 1;65206 ?l?lnlzsé 22001122 February 20, 2013 July 22, 2014
9 g ! y 5, June 20, 2013 August 28, 2014

July 26, 2012 October 17, 2012
December 20, 2012

Number of Entitlements granted to the ten
Group employees who have the highest
number of Entitlements granted in such way
(on aggregate}

0 0 14,490 89,990 265,000 0 365,000 0

Total number of Entitlements
exercised/acquired/vested by the ten Group
employees who have the highest number |of 0 0 59,017 474,000 0 0 0
Entitlements exercised/acquired/vested in
this way.

(1) While accounting for the four-for-one par valit agreed to at the Extraordinary Shareholddvigeting dated May 11, 2011.
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17.5. Equity and stock options held by corporate officerdmandataires sociauix

As of the filing date of this Registration Documethie direct and indirect equity held by members of
the Management Board and Supervisory Board, as agethe number of rights or securities held
granting access to the Company'’s share capitalbedmoken down as follows:

Number of shares
that could result
Number of shares from §ecur|t|es or Total
other rights granting
access to the share
capital®

Rémy de Tonnac 396,076 194,249 590,325
Pierre Garnier 0 220,000 220,000
Richard Vacher Detourniere 112,582 183,195 295,777
Pascal Didier 95,019 68,828 163,847
Simon Blake-Wilson 0 32,500 32,500
Patrick Schwager Jones 4 26,400 26,404
Alex Brabers 4 0 4
Jean Schmitt 504 0 504
Glenn Collinson 12,111 32,800 44911
Joélle Toledano 1,192 0 1,192
Olivier Sichel 0 0 0
Muriel Barnéoud 0 0 0
BPIFrance Participations 2,223,991 0 2,223,991
Total 2,840,983 757,972 3,598,955

(1) A detailed breakdown of these securities dghts can be found in section 15.3 above entitlEck& shares, share
warrants, and stock options granted to corporatécefs” and a detailed description of the terms atle of these
plans is included in section 21.1.4 entitled “Pdtaehshare capital” of this Registration Documerithe numbers
provided correspond to the number of shares thatdcpotentially be subscribed following the exezctf each of
these securities or other rights granting accesthtoshare capital of the Company.

17.6. Employee shareholding

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetitere is no agreement in place providing for
employee shareholding. However, it should be nttat in the past, the Company completed several
grants of free shares and stock options from wiizime of the Group’s employees benefited (for
further information, please refer to section 21dnfitled “Potential share capital”).

17.7. Statutory profit-sharing (contrats de participatiopand discretionary profit-
sharing (contrats d'intéressemept

On June 21, 2012, the Company signed a discrejionaofit-sharing agreementag¢cord
d’intéressementwith its works council for the fiscal years endedcember 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

On February 20, 2006, the Company signed a colleetgreement creating a company savings plan
(plan d’épargne d’entreprigetacitly renewable on an annual basis.

On June 28, 2013, Vault-IC France signed a dismraty profit-sharing agreemenacocord
d’intéressementwith its works council for the fiscal years end@edcember 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015.

On September 24, 2013, Vault-IC France signed leatdle agreement creating a company savings
plan plan d’épargne d’entreprigetacitly renewable on an annual basis.
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18. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
18.1 Distribution of the share capital and voting rights

For further information please refer to the tablseéction 21.1.7 entitled “Change in the distribatof
the Company’s share capital since December 31,"2fi1this Registration Document.

18.2 Major shareholders not represented on the Supervisg Board

For further information, please refer to the tablsection 21.1.7 entitled “Change in the distribot
of the Company’s share capital since December @11 2of this Registration Document.

18.3 Voting rights of major shareholders

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite number of voting rights granted to each
shareholder is equal to the number of shares dabtlerm holds.

Due to the fact that Article 7 of law # 2014-384ethMarch 29, 2014, aimed at “regaining control
over the real economy”, resulted in attaching abi®woting rightipso jure unless otherwise
specified in the Bylaws, to any fully paid-up shafer which custody in registered form and under th
name of the same shareholder can be proven foeast ltwo years, the Company’'s General
Shareholders’ Meeting was convened in order tod#geoh whether to change the Bylaws in order to
avoid introducing this double voting right.

The General Shareholders’ Meeting adopted thislutisn. Therefore, the Company’s Bylaws now
explicitly disallow any mechanism granting gwso jure double voting right to shares for which
custody in registered form and under the same ramde proven for at least two years.

18.4 Control of the Company

As of the filing date of this Registration Documettiere Company does not have a controlling
shareholder in the meaning of L. 233-3 of the Ane@ommercial Code.

The Company has not implemented any measures @r toeensure that its control is not exercised in
an abusive manner.

To the Company’s knowledge, there is no plannett jétion among its shareholders.
18.5 Agreement that may cause a change in control

To the Company’s knowledge, there is no existingeagent that, if implemented, could lead to a
change in control of the Company.

18.6  Status of the Company’s share pledges

Not applicable.
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
19.1 Intercompany Agreements

The transfer pricing between the Company and itsigiaries is subject to agreements governing the
nature and conditions for billing costs and expsen3dée Company is the Group’s main operating
company, its subsidiaries are generally supportpaones that invoice back their services to the
Parent Company (or, as the case may be, to smt@panies) at prices respecting the principles ibf fu
competition.

19.2 Related Party Agreements
Related party transactions are described in Noteof3the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in section 20.1 entitled “Hist Financial Information” of the Registration

Document, as well as in Note 24 of the Notes to Hiadf-year Consolidated Financial Statements
included in section 20.6 entitled “Interim FinandigFormation” of this Registration Document.
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Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expegs¢housands of US$

20. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

20.1 Historical Financial Information

Consolidated income statement

In thousands of US$ Note Year ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Revenue 6,7 151,468 122,047 154,623
Cost of sales (112,004) (93,504) (106,389)
Gross profit 39,464 28,543 48,235
Research and development expenses 26 (34,536) (B5,370(33,953)
Selling and marketing expenses (18,175) (18,010) (20,648)
General and administrative expenses (9,817) (9,630) (10,702)
Other gains / (losses), net 27 (1,398) (2,811) (19,698
Operating loss 6 (24,462) (37,278) (27,766)
Finance income / (loss), net 30 1,503 (258) 790
Loss before income tax (22,959) (37,536) (26,976)
Income taxexpense 31 (74) 51 (584)
Loss for the year (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)

Earnings per share attributable to the equity holdes of the Company during the yea

Basic earnings per share 17,32 (1.06) (1.19) (0.82)

Diluted earnings per share 17,32 (1.06) (1.29) (0.81)

15¢



Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expegs¢housands of US$

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

In thousands of US$

Year ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Loss for the year (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on retirement benefit obtipns (105) (345) 345
Non-reclassifiable components of other comprehensivncome (105) (345) 345
Financial instrument fair value changes (1,773) 937 353
Currency translation differences (351) 537 413
Reclassifiable components of other comprehensivedome (2,124) 1,474 766
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the yeetrofitax (2,229) 1,128 1,111
Total comprehensive loss for the year (25,262) (36,357) (26,449)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (25,262) (36,357) (26,449)
Non-controlling interest - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (25,262) (36,357) (26,449)
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Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expegs¢housands of US$

Consolidated balance sheet- Assets

As at December 31,

In thousands of US$ Note 2011 2012 2013
Goodwill 8 3,251 15,152 15,287
Intangible assets 9 6,877 42,052 32,720
Property and equipment 10 16,812 12,810 10,411
Other receivables 15 7,287 16,163 24,863
Non-current assets 34,227 86,177 83,282
Inventories 13 23,276 17,350 14,830
Trade receivables 14 18,711 16,462 17,521
Other receivables 15 10,474 6,669 7,652
Derivative financial instruments 12 216 145 587
Cash and cash equivalents 16 20,940 66,321 40,213
Current assets 73,618 106,946 80,804
Total assets 107,845 193,124 164,086
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Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expegs¢housands of US$

Consolidated balance sheet- Equity and liabilities

As at December 31,

In thousands of US$ Note 2011 2012 2013
Ordinary shares 17 11,369 17,822 17,822
Share premium 17 133,021 225,570 225,59¢
Other reserves 19 9,772 12,386 14,140
Retained earnings 19 (73,535) (96,568) (134,053)
Income / (loss) for the year (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Compary 57,594 121,725 95,947

Non-controlling interests - - -

Total equity 57,594 121,725 95,947
Intangible liabilities - Non-current portion 5 11171 10,635 7,962
Borrowings 21 963 6,902 6,862
Repayable advances 22 852 3,443 3,592
Retirement benefit obligations 23 1,183 1,749 1,596
Non-current liahilities 14,708 22,729 20,012
Intangible liabilities - Current portion 5 1,168 8% 3,011
Financial instruments 12 1,348 179 215
Trade and other payables 20 29,977 28,335 32,525
Additional payment on ESS acquisition 5 - 5,188

Borrowings 21 357 808 7,386
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 24 318 754 2,312
Deferred income 25 2,372 11,822 2,678
Current liahilities 35,542 48,669 48,127
Total liabilities 50,250 71,399 68,138
Total equity and liabilities 107,845 193,124 164,086
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Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expegs¢housands of US$

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

In thousands of US$ Attributable to equity holders of the Company Non catrolling Total
Share capital Share Other Retained Total interests equity
premium reserves earnings
Balance at January 1, 2011 11,342 134,873 10,001 (73,535) 82,682 -82,682
Loss for the year - - - (23,033) (23,033) - (23,033)
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations - - (105) (105) (105)
Financial instruments at fair value - - 1,773) 1,773) - @,773)
Currency translation differences - - (351) (351) (351)
Total other comprehensive income - - (2,229) (23,033) (25,262) - (25,262)
Employees share option scheme : - -
Value of employee services - - 2,000 - 2,000 - 2,000
Proceeds from shares/ warrants issued 27 419 - - 446 446
Share capital increases during the year - - - - -
Direct costs paid related to the IPO - (2,271) - - (2,271) (2,271)
Balance as at December 31, 2011 11,369 133,021 9,771 (96,568) 57,594 - 57,594
Balance at January 1, 2012 11,369 133,021 9,771 (96,568) 57,594 - 57,594
Loss for the year - - - (37,485) (37,485) - (37,485)
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations - - (345) - (345) - (345)
Financial instruments at fair value - - 937 - 937 - 937
Currency translation differences - 537 - 537 - 537
Total other comprehensive income - - 1,128 (37,485) (36,357) - (36,357)
Employees share option scheme : - -
Value of employee services - - 1,880 - 1,880 - 1,880
Proceeds from shares issued - 361 - - 361 - 361
Share capital increases during the year 6,453 98,028 107 - 104,588 104,588
Direct costs paid related to the IPO - (5,840) - - (5,840) (5,840)
Treasury shares - - (501) - (501) - (501)
Balance as at December 31, 2012 17,822 225,570 1@,38 (134,053) 121,725 - 121,725
Balance at January 1, 2013 17,822 225,570 12,386 (134,053) 121,725 121,725
Loss for the year - - - (27,560) (27,560) - (27,560)
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations - - 345 - 345 - 345
Financial instruments at fair value - - 353 - 353 - 353
Currency translation differences - - 413 - 413 - 413
Total other comprehensive income - - 1,111 (27,560) (26,449) - (26,449)
Employees share option scheme :
Value of employee services - - 555 - 555 - 555
Proceeds fromshares issued - 28 - - 28 - 28
Treasury shares - - 88 - 88 - 88
Balance as at December 31, 2013 17,822 225,598 18,14 (161,613) 95,947 - 95,947
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended December 31,
In thousands of US$ Notes 2011 2012 2013
Loss for the year (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of tangible assets 10 6,829 6,797 5,428
Amortization of intangible assets 9 2,089 2,538 43,8
Impairment of assets acquired as part of acquisdicbusiness 27 1,713 - 379
Impairment of assets 27 - - 1,132
Reversal of intangible liabilities 27 (829) - -
Impairment of receivables 14 (5) 664 414
Impairment of inventories 13 2,824 151 3,100
(Profit) / loss on disposal of assets 13) (231)
Share-based payments 18 2,000 1,880 555
Change in retirement benefit obligation 23 281 144 312
Finance income, net 805 18 -
Income tax 31 74 (51) 584
Variation in provisions for risks 24 (354) 421 1,563
Cash usedin operations before changes in workingapital (7,605) (24,936) (541)
Changes in working capital
Inventories 13 (9,111) 5,873 (580)
Trade receivables 14 1,013 2,243 5,041
Trade receivables transferred 14 11,052 1,714 (8,106)
Other receivables (1,748) (368) (384)
Research taxcredit and grants 15 (6,327) (2,878) 9391
Trade and other payables 2,535 (4,189) (1,745)
Non refundable advance on order backlog 25 - 6,460 -
Other payables (498) 3,036 (1,703)
Cash usedin changes in working capital 11,891 11,891 (16,670)
Cash used in operations (10,688) (13,046) (17,210)
Interest received, net (128) 612 235
Income tax paid (194) (74) (106)
Net cash usedin operating activities (11,010) (12,508) (17,081)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of ESS, net of cash acquired 5 - (41)635 (5,188)
Purchases of property and equipment 10 (4,367) (»,119 (4,556)
Purchases of intangible assets 9 (1,029) (2,718) (1,201)
Capitalized development costs 9 (1,188) (973) (3,402)
Payments corresponding to intangible liabilities 5 1,4Q9) (1,064) (1,125)
Disposal of assets - 297
Net cash usedin investing activities (7,993) (48,509) (15,075)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissuance of ordinary shares, nesofince costs 17 446 104,950 28
Direct costs paid related to the IPO 17 (2,039) ®.84 -
Repayable advance 22 852 2,491 -
Financing of the Research taxcredit 21 - 5,852 66,67
Principal repayment under finance lease (225) (463) (407)
Treasury shares - (501) 87
Settlement of foreign exchange hedging instruments - (161) (83)
Bank overdraft - 276 (276)
Net cash generated by / (used) in financing actiiés (965) 106,604 6,026
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivike (19,969) 45,587 (26,131)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6 1 41,178 20,940 66,321
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (269) (206) 23
Cash, cash equivalents at end of the year 16 20,940 66,321 40,213
Elements with no cash impact:
New finance leases 1,093 352 -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
1. General information

INSIDE Secure (“the Company”) and its subsidiaftegiether “the Group”) provides comprehensive
embedded security solutions for mobile and conmeckevices. This offer is based on internally
developed intellectual property that can be licdnse sold as well as software solutions and
semiconductors produced through a fabless businedsl.

On September 30, 2010, the Group acquired the &ddiarocontroller Solutions (SMS) division of
Atmel Corp. (“SMS division of Atmel”) which providesemiconductor chips embedded in smart
cards, mobile devices, acceptance devices, andstnficture systems to secure the exchange of
transactions for payment, transit, access, ID dhdrdypes of secure applications.

On February 17, 2012, shares in the Company wetedlion the Euronext exchange in Paris
(compartment B) under the Isin code FR00102912d%cdeds from the issuance of the shares as part
of the initial public offering was US$ 104.5 miliid€ 79.3 million).

On December 1, 2012, the Group acquired Embeddeuti8eSolutions (“ESS)which designs and
develops encryption-related security hardware lextglal property (IP) and software for a variety of
industries, including the mobile and networking kess

The Company is a limited liability company (“soé@é&nonyme”). The address of its registered office
is Arteparc Bachasson, rue de la carriere de Baohadeyreuil (13590), France.

The consolidated financial statements were autbdrar issue by the Board of Directors on February
17, 2014.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in thepgaration of these consolidated financial statesnent
are set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Grdwgve been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR®J IFRIC interpretations as adopted by the
European Union. IFRS are available on the webs$iteeoEuropean Commission:
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accountingéashtm

The consolidated financial statements have begqmapgd under the historical cost convention, except
for derivative instruments which include currenoyward contracts and options which are shown at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in confoyrith IFRS requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates. It also requires manageroesndrcise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas invg\enhigher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significahe consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

2.1.1 Presentation currency
According to IAS 21 § 38, the Group has electeprasent its consolidated financial statements in US

Dollars. The US Dollar is the functional currenclytbe Company and the currency in which the
majority of transactions within the Group are deimated. The functional currency for INSIDE
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Secure Corporation (USA) is the US Dollar, for IB&l Secure (Asia) Pte Ltd the Singapore Dollar,
for Vault-IC UK Ltd the Pound Sterling, for VaulElFrance SAS, INSIDE Secure B.V (Netherlands),
INSIDE Secure Amsterdam B.V and INSIDE Secure QOwléad) the Euro, and for INSIDE Secure
K.K the Japanese Yen.

The exchange rates of the US Dollar against the,Ebe main currency used by the Group after the
us
Dollar, are as follows for the years ended Decer3ie2011, 2012 and 2013:

Dollar / Euro 2011 2012 2013
Closing 1.2939 1.3194 1.3791
Average 1.3917 1.2858 1.3282

2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the Grou

The following new and amended standards whose Ggtjalh is mandatory for the current year from
January

1, 2013 do not have a significant impact on thesobdated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013:

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thidke of the previous financial year, except far t
following:

(1) Standards, amendments and interpretations whosdeatgm is mandatory from January
1, 2013:

* Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Othem@rehensive Income

* 1AS 19 Employee Benefits in particular accountingdefined benefit plans

* IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

* Amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures- Offsetting Finah8issets and Financial Liabilities

The standards, amendments and interpretations vepmieation is mandatory from January 1, 2013
do not have a significant impact on the consolidiitgancial statements as at December 31, 2013.

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations whoskcatjmm is not mandatory from
January 1, 2013 but which could be early adoptedarfollows:

 |FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

e IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement

 |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

« Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates amt ¥Yentures
 Amendment to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets Rirthncial Liabilities
 Amendment to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

e Amendment to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount DisclostmedNon-Financial Assets

The Group chose not to early adopt these standamt&ndments and interpretations in the
consolidated financial statements as at Decemhe?@I3, and considers that they would not have a
significant impact on its results or financial gmsi.

The IASB has published the following standards, raangents and interpretations which could be
early adopted from January 1, 2013 but which hateyet been adopted by the European Union:

* |FRS 9 Financial Instruments
* |FRIC 21 Levies
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The impact of these standards on the results araohdial position of the Group is currently being
assessed.

2.2 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including specialpmse entities, if any) over which the Group has th
power to govern the financial and operating poiggenerally accompanying a shareholding of more
than half of the voting rights. The existence affédce of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered whensassg whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the datendich control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that controlesas

The Group uses the acquisition method of accourttingccount for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition aiu@sidiary is the fair value of the assets transéer
the liabilities incurred and the equity interestsuied by the Group, including any potential purehas
price adjustments. Purchase price adjustments afselethe allocation period of 12 months following
acquisition date are reevaluated at each closirtg dtfair value through the income statement
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incuimethe line item “Other gains / (losses), net”.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities andticent liabilities assumed in a business comhinat
are measured initially at their fair values at dwguisition date. The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling ries¢ in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the aaegiiover the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded aslgilo If this is less than the fair value of thetn
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the casebaf@ain purchase, the difference is recognizedtiyre

in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreafjag@s on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also elirathaf\ccounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistencyheifholicies adopted by the Group.

The Group has no minority interests or associates.

2.3 Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner censigiith the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operatiegision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing the performance of thetimgersegments, has been identified as the
Management Board that makes strategic decisions. Mlanagement Board is composed of the
corporate officers of the Group.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eathhe Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in abhithe entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements presented in US Dollars (“$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated iheofunctional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to egehdifferences affecting revenue and operating
expenses concluded during the year, as well agntpact of the revaluation at closing rates of
operating assets and liabilities denominated imetwies other than the functional currency of the
consolidated companies, are recognized in operetisigt.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to diabhtransactions settled during the year as well a
the impact of the revaluation at closing rates ashcdenominated from foreign currencies into US
Dollars, are

recognized in financial result.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group iteed (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functionalrency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency lisife:

» assets and liabilities for each balance sheeitéme presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

* income and expenses for each income statemenitéimeare translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonableyappation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in whide income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognized separate component of equity in the line
item “Currency translation differences”

2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets and cash-ggating units

Non-financial assets including intangible and tateiassets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatcénrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount bycivhihe asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount isifeehof an asset’s fair value less costs to sell a
its value in use. For the purposes of assessingaloe in use, with the exception of certain intatey
assets dedicated to specific products (see nole roB-financial assets are generally grouped by
operating segments identified by the Group whichstitutes the lowest level for the definition of a
cash-generating unit.

2.6 Goodwill and other intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of guisition over the fair value of the Group’s shafe
the net identifiable assets of the acquired suégidiat the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in “intdolg assets”. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulatedimmgnt losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposat ehaty include the carrying amount of goodwill
related to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units mugs of cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to thosgh-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the businesmbination in which the goodwill arose.
Management has determined its cash-generating tanlie the operating segments which constitute
the lowest level for the definition of a cash-getierg unit. As part of its reorganization arounetw
operating divisions (“Mobile security” and “Secum@nsactions”), which took place in 2013, the
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Group has regrouped its activities around commohrtelogical and operating platforms and a global
sales force. However, the operating divisions hdifierent clients and marketing activities and as
such they can be considered as two separate CGUSs.

(b) Intellectual property licensing royalties

Capitalized intellectual property licensing royedtirelate to licenses transferred to the Grou@dp

the acquisition of ESS, and represent royaltiestéohnology developed and licensed before the
transfer date. The portfolio of intellectual pragelicensing royalties is recognized as an intalegib
asset as the commercial and technological effoetse wnade before the business combination. This
intangible asset is amortized through the incomagestent in the line item “Cost of sales” as the
corresponding revenue is recognized.

(c) Backlog

Backlog corresponds to accumulated unfulfilled pase or sales order contracts transferred to the
Group as part of the acquisition of the SMS divisad Atmel Corporation. Backlog is recognised as
an intangible asset corresponding to the commeedfatts made before the business combination.
This intangible asset is amortized through net nmeoin the line item “Selling and marketing
expenses” as the Group operates under a fablesgebsisnodel and had not incurred any expenses
relating to the commercial effort which generatbd backlog transferred to it at the date of the
business combination.

(d) Acquired patented technologies
Acquired patented technology is shown at acquisitiost less accumulated amortization.

Each acquired technology dedicated to a specifidymt is individually tested for impairment based

on the expected output of the related product wiemevents or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverableed technology is not dedicated to a specific
product but is widely used, the cash generating used for impairment testing is the operating

segment in which the technology is used.

When an acquired patented technology is no longed,uthe corresponding gross value and
accumulated amortization are written off.

Acquired patented technologies are subsequentlyrtem@d within the line item “Research and
development expenses” when they are used for grejggineering design and “Cost of sales” when
they are used in production.

(e) Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitaledhe basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. This capitaliseftware includes software transferred as part of
business combinations. These costs are amortizgdioe estimated useful lives of the software.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining maer software programs are expensed as
incurred.

() Research and development
Research expenditure is recognized as an expenseuased. Costs incurred on development projects

(relating to the design and testing of new or imnb solutions) are recognized as intangible assets
when the following criteria are fulfilled:

164



Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expegs¢housands of US$

- itis technically feasible to complete the intargibsset so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the intangible assketise or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the intangildes;

- it can be demonstrated how the intangible assdt geiherate probable future economic
benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resoureesssary to complete the development and
to use or sell

- the intangible asset are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the intangible askging its development can be reliably
measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meedettgiteria are recognized as an expense as
incurred.

Research and development expenses financed threpghiable advances are capitalized to the extent
that the Group has the resources necessary to ssfighy complete certain precisely defined
development programs and will benefit from the fateconomic advantages, either through the
abandonment of the repayable advance or througltdble flows generated by the future sales of
products developed.

2.7 Property and equipment

The Group rents a building in East Kilbride (Scotiaunder a long lease. This site previously hosted
research and development and product engineertivitiags and has been relocated under the Group’s
restructuring plan. The Group also rents premisdsance, Europe, Asia and the United States under
operating leases. Its head office at Meyreuil, n&aren-Provence in France, hosts the corporate
functions including Sales and marketing, and Reteand Development (R&D) activities.

Furniture and other office equipment relate tocaffand computing equipment.

Equipment comprises technical equipment dedicatdRI%D, engineering and testing activities. R&D
may result in the making of masks which are comsdi@s the end product of this activity. The costs
to design and produce these masks are expensettwsed within the line item “Research and
development expenses”. When the design is finalitedmanufacturing of the masks for the purpose
of usage during production is assigned to sub-actirs. The associated cost is recognized in fixed
assets. In addition, masks acquired as part ofsaéss combination are recognized as equipment in
the balance sheet. These masks are subsequentigcidéed within the line item “Research and
development expenses” when they are used for prejegineering design and “Cost of sales” when
they are used in production.

All property and equipment is stated at historicabt less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to thguisition of the items.

All repairs and maintenance are charged to thenigcstatement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-limethod to bring the cost of assets to their residua
values over their estimated useful lives, as fallpw

Buildings 20 years
Facilities and leasehold improvements 5 to 15g/ea
Computer and R&D equipment 1to 3 years
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Production equipment 1to 5 years
Masks acquired through business combination 2yiealbs
Furniture and other office equipment 3 to 8 years

The assets’ residual values deemed material and wseful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined byarorg the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized within “Other gains / (losses), methe income statement.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever eventshanges in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impantess is recognized for the amount by which

the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoveabtint. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and iisevien use. For the purposes of assessing the ¥walue

use, assets are grouped by operating segment wbiddtitutes the lowest level for the definition of

the cash generating unit.

2.8 Impairment of non-current assets

IAS 36 defines the procedures that a company npmy @o ensure that the net carrying amount of its
assets does not exceed their recoverable amoginthé amount that would be recovered from their
use or sale. Aside from goodwill and intangibleessswith an indefinite life that systematically
undergo annual impairment testing, the recoveraiyieunt of an asset is estimated whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Cash-Generating Unit (CGU)

A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest idiitie group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflowsnfiother assets or groups of assets. As mentioned
above, the Group has regrouped its activities atdwo operating divisions and has determined that
each of these divisions represents a CGU for thpgses of the impairment testing of non-current
assets :

* Mobile security: this division gathers the Groupfger in all mobile communication matters,
to provide a comprehensive suite of embedded sgaoiutions for all mobile and connected
devices. The offer includes intellectual propetB)( software solutions and semi-conductors
capable of addressing the growing needs for aréuge of security solutions on all mobile
platforms, securing M-payments, content, data comeoations and data storage.

e Secure transactions: this division unites the Goffer dedicated to address high security
issues for smart cards, ID, payments but alsorafisactions involved in the Machine-to-
Machine (M2M) and Internet of Things universe. Tdigision builds tailored solutions based
on secure microcontrollers, with embedded secumafare and associated services.

Impairment indicators
The Group regularly monitors its financial resuigainst its forecasts for all of its businesses and

monitors local and global economic indicators. Ehesdements represent, where applicable,
impairment indicators.
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Determining the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the highetredfair value less costs to sell and its valuase.

To determine the recoverable amount, non-curresgtasre assigned to the CGUs defined above and
a value in use calculation is performed. If theueain use is lower than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss should be recorded.

The value in use of each activity is based on gption of discounted estimated cash flows thagsak
into account the risks specific to the technologiedure of the Group’s activity.

Changes in market conditions or in the cash flamitgally estimated may therefore lead to a review
and a change in the impairment losses previoushrded.

Impairment loss

An impairment loss is recorded when the carryingamh of the asset or the CGU to which it belongs
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loggesx@ensed within “Other gains / (losses), net”.

Except in the case of goodwill, impairment lossognized in previous years may be reversed if and
only if there has been a change in the estimated tscalculate the recoverable amount of the asset
since the previous recognition of an impairmensldsven so, the carrying amount of an asset plus a
reversal of an impairment loss cannot exceed thging amount that would have been calculated had
no impairment been recognized for the asset inipuswears.

2.9 Financial assets
2.9.1 Classifications

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHieWing categories: at fair value through profitloss,

as loans and receivables, or as available-for-3&le.classification depends on the purpose for kvhic
the financial assets were acquired. Managementrdigies the classification of its financial assdts a
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are inclugeduirrent assets, except when they have maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheetTatse are classified as non-current assets.

The Group has no available-for-sale financial @sset
2.9.2 Measurement

Changes in the fair value of monetary securitieghviare denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency (certain monetary securitiegtef Group are denominated in Euros) and which
result from translation differences are recogniredhe line item “Finance income / (loss), net”,
except for changes in the fair value of monetapusgges relating to operating activities such raslé
receivables, which are presented in operating tresul

2.9.3 Impairment
For the loans, the amount of the loss is measwédeadifference between the asset’s carrying aimoun
and the present value of estimated future cashsflaigcounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rates. The carrying amount @& #sset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the income statement in a line itemeddent upon the nature of the loan.
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If in a subsequent period the amount of the impaiross decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impannwas recognized, the reversal of the previously
recognized impairment loss is recorded in the irestatement in the same line item.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedgingtavities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valoe the date a derivative contract is entered intbaae
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Tk¢hatd of recognizing the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designatet ledging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certaimadises as hedges of a particular risk associated
with a recognized asset or liability or a highlppable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

At the inception of the transaction, the Group dpents the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk managemegettdles and strategy for undertaking various
hedging transactions. The Group also documentasgessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives thatused in hedging transactions are highly effective i
offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instrumensgd for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 11.
Movements in the hedging reserve in shareholdepsity are shown in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. The full fair value of a hedguaweyivative is classified as a non-current asset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedgezim is more than 12 months and as a current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the lgedl item is less than 12 months. Trading derivative
are classified as a current asset or liability.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair vatdelerivatives that are designated and qualifyeest c
flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensigerme. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognized immediately in the incomdestaent within “Finance income / (loss), net”.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassifiedrtdifpor loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the fastcsale that is hedged takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, oerwa hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existingeguity at that time remains in equity and is
recognized when the forecast transaction is ulgigatecognized in the income statement.

When a forecast transaction is no longer expeatedctur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately transferred te thcome statement within “Finance income /(loss),
net”.

Derivatives that do not qualify as hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify asldeaccounting. Such derivatives are classified as
assets or liabilities at fair value through prafitloss, and changes in the fair value of any déxe
instruments that do not qualify as hedge accountirgy recognized immediately in the income
statement. The income statement impact of suclvateres is presented in the line item “Finance
income / (loss), net”.
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Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instrumentsiearat fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets feniital assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within llevéhat are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (that is, as prices) iodirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not lwhsm observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets lminlities that are measured at fair value as at
December 31, 2011:

Lewel 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
Assets
Trading derivatives - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - - 216 216
Total assets - - 216 216
Liabilities
Trading derivatives - - 350 350
Derivatives used for hedging - 602 396 998
Total liabilities - 602 746 1,348

The following table presents the Group’s assets lmimlities that are measured at fair value as at
December

31, 2012:
(In thousands of US$) Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Trading derivatives - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - 41 104 145
Total assets - 41 104 145
Liabilities
Trading derivatives
Derivatives used for hedging - 179 - 179
Total liahilities - 179 - 179
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The following table presents the Group’s assets lminlities that are measured at fair value as at
December 31, 2013:

(In thousands of US$) Lewvel 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Total
Assets

Trading derivatives - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - 328 259 587
Total assets - 328 259 587
Liabilities

Trading derivatives - 215 - 215

Derivatives used for hedging - - - -

Total liabilities - 215 - 215

The fair value of financial instruments traded @tivle markets is based on quoted market pricdseat t
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as dttiumted prices are readily and regularly avagabl
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry Groujzing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurringketatransactions on an arm’s length basis. The
guoted market price used for financial assets tgidhe Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. No derivafimancial instruments fall into this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are maded in an active market (for example, overthe
counter derivatives) is determined by using vabratiechniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data wheaseanailable and rely as little as possible oritgnt
specific estimates. If all significant inputs reea to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

This category includes currency forward contracts.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not &é&son observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This category includes curseaptions.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andaedizable value. Cost is determined using thetFir
In First Out (FIFO) method. The cost of semi-filddhgoods and finished goods comprises wafer
purchase costs, assembly sub-contracting expeoies, direct costs, tests and product engineering
based on normal operating capacity. It excludesolong costs and the impact of unused capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling pnicéhe ordinary course of business, less applcabl
variable selling expenses.

The Group also provides inventory allowances faess and obsolete inventories
2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customemsdochandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection is expdadn one year or less, they are classified aeotr
assets. If not, they are presented as non-cursseta

A provision for impairment of trade receivablegsablished when there is objective evidence Heat t
Group will not be able to collect all amounts dueading to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtorrgbability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default or delinquemt payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The carrying amounthe asset is reduced through the use of an
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allowance account and the amount of the loss isgrézed in the income statement within “Selling
and marketing expenses”. When a trade receivablen@®llectible, it is written off against the

allowance account for trade receivables. Subseqeenveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “Selling and marketing expenseshe income statement.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hapdsite held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid securities with original maturitied three months or less and with a negligible ri§k o
change in value.

Short term securities that meet all criteria defina 2012 by the AMF are classified as cash
equivalents.

Bank overdrafts are shown within financial debtsumrent liabilities on the balance sheet.
2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increatansts directly attributable to the issuance @f n
shares or options are shown in equity as a dedygtgt of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goodseovices that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payal#eclassified as current liabilities if paymest i
due within one year or less. If not, they are pneexd as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fairueabhnd subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

2.16 Financial debts

Financial debts comprise bank overdrafts that &ssified as current liabilities. Financial debksoa
include finance leases.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises curredtdmfierred tax. Tax is recognized in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relateisetos recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is alsoagnized in other comprehensive income or direatly
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated onbisis of the tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date in the counthiese the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodicalpluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax ragjoh is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of ansexpected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the ligbimethod, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitiegtsd carrying amounts in the consolidated finahci
statements. However, the deferred income tax isawsbunted for if it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transantbther than a business combination that at the ¢if

the transaction affects neither accounting nor bkxerofit nor loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have kbeacted or substantially enacted by the balance
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sheet date and are expected to apply when theedetidferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized onlyd@oektent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the tempgrdifferences can be utilized. Deferred incomeisax
provided on temporary differences arising on investts in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differe is controlled by the Group and it is probahb t

the temporary difference will not reverse in theekeeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areetfighen there is a legally enforceable right teeiff
current tax assets against current tax liabilitied when the deferred income tax assets and tiabili
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxadighority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention ttdesttie balances on a net basis.

2.18 Research tax credit and government grants

Research tax credits are provided by various gowemnts to give incentives for companies to perform
technical and scientific research. These researcleredits are presented as a reduction of “Relsearc
and development expenses” in the income statemiah wompanies that have qualifying expenses
can receive such grants in the form of a tax ciedispective of taxes ever paid or ever to be,ghl
corresponding Research and Development effort hasn bcompleted and the supporting
documentation is available.

These tax credits are included in “Other receivableurrent portion” or “non-current” in the balanc
sheet taking into account the timing of expectezhéaflows.

In addition, grants may be available to comparties perform technical and scientific research. Such
grants are typically subject to performance coaodgiover an extended period of time. The Group
recognizes these grants in the income statemerd esduction of “Research and development
expenses” over the cost of the corresponding reseand development program and when
confirmation of the grant has been received.

Aid for research and development activities cam tdle form of repayable advances. A loan which is
non-repayable under certain conditions is tredakedd government grant (accounted for in the income
statement on a pro rata basis as a deduction efhnds and development expenses) when the
organization granting the advance has confirmed tiwarepayment is required. Otherwise it is
classified as a liability.

2.19 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group has both defined benefit (mainly for Ereemployees) and defined contribution plans. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan undéictv the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or cortsteuobligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all leyges the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods. A defined benefitnplk a pension plan that is not a defined coniobu
plan. Typically defined benefit plans define an amoof pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on onmare factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognized in the balance sheet ispext of defined benefit pension plans is the ptese
value of the defined benefit obligation at the hata sheet date. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually using the projected unit creggthod. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estadduture cash outflows using interest rates dfihig
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guality corporate bonds that are denominated inctireency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to thiengeof the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experieadjeistments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited directly to equity in ttetegnent of recognized income and expense (SoRIE)
in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays Gbations to publicly administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory basis. The Groupnbafurther payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributionsramgnized as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognézedn asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

The Group provides no other post-employment bentditts employees.
(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmernerisiinated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accegdtmtany redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefiten it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employeesoating to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing terminatidsenefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expensebfmmuses and incentive schemes based on a
formula which takes into account the profit allezhto the shareholders of the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision vebetractually obliged or if there is a past pragtic
that has created a constructive obligation.

2.20 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,esbased compensation plans, under which the
Group receives services from employees as consigieffar equity instruments of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exch&rghe grant of the instrument is recognizedras a
expense. The total amount to be expensed is detedmby reference to the fair value of the
instrument granted:

- including any market performance condition (for myée increase in share price) and non-
vesting conditions (for example, the requirementimployees to save);

- excluding the impact of any service and non-magetformance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets anchaming an employee of the entity over a
specified time period). Service and non-marketingstonditions are included in assumptions
about the number of instruments that are expecteddt.

The total expense is recognized over the perioshguvhich all of the specified vesting conditions a

to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting pkrtbe entity revises its estimates of the numlier o
instruments that are expected to vest based og thesting conditions. It recognizes the impactef t
revision to original estimates, if any, in the inw® statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity. When the instruments are exercised, the famy issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction casts credited to share capital (nominal value) dradtes
premium when the instruments are exercised.
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2.21 Provisions

Provisions for claims are recognized when: the @Groas a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that arflamtof resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably esétha

Provisions are not recognized for future operalsges.

Provisions are measured at the present value aéxpenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects autrrearket assessments of the time value of mondy an
the risks specific to the obligation. The increaséhe provision due to passage of time is recaghiz
as interest expense.

2.22 Intangible liabilities

Intangible liabilities relate to management’s estienof fair value of above market royalty-based
intellectual property license agreements for exgstr future products, transferred to the Groupaas

of business combinations. The Group values thesmdie agreements based on their fair value in
normal market conditions at acquisition date. Wtienroyalties to be paid exceed their fair valbe, t
Group recognizes an intangible liability correspogdto the discounted value of the difference
between the best estimate of the royalties to i lgsed on the contract and forecasted saleshand t
fair value. Intangible liabilities are reversedlie line item “Cost of Sales” on the basis of thenber

of units using this intellectual property sold awgrithe year compared to the number of units exgdecte
to be sold. The assumptions regarding the numbeanité expected to be sold is revised on a regular
basis.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideratceived or receivable for the sale of products
and services in the ordinary course of the Groapts/ities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax
returns and discounts and after eliminating saidgmthe Group.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount ehteycan be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the eptand when specific criteria have been met foheac
of the Group’s activities as described below.

The Group sells its customers a range of semicdadptatforms, intellectual property, software and
services.

(a) Revenue recognition- Sale of products

The Group’s products are generally sold based wootracts or purchase orders with the customer
that include fixed and determinable prices and thatnot include right of return, other similar
provisions or other significant post-delivery olatigns except for customary warranty terms. Revenue
is recognized for products upon delivery when tihal risk pass, the price is fixed and determinable
and collectability is reasonably assured.

(b) Revenue recognition- Service revenue
Revenue from services is recognized over the pevioeh services are rendered and collectability is
reasonably assured. Licenses for software thatotloeguire specific development are recognized in

revenue when the legal right to use the license e granted or in accordance with specific
contractual conditions.
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Revenue corresponding to the development of spesdftware platforms is recognized using the
percentage of completion method as the developprecess progresses (according to criteria applied
on a consistent basis). Under the percentage oplebion method, the extent of progress towards
completion is measured based on actual costs sdtuelative to total estimated costs. Losses on
contracts are recognized during the period in witleh loss first becomes probable and can be
reasonably estimated.

(c) Revenue recognition- Intellectual property licegsiayalties

Royalties relate to revenue from technology licengecertain customers of the Group, and can be
fixed and / or variable. Fixed royalties are redngd on a straight-line basis over the contractual
periods during which they are generated. Variablalties are generally based on sales made by
customers and are by definition difficult to estimaTo ensure revenue is recorded in the proper
accounting period, the Group principally relies e notifications received from customers. In
general notifications are received from customering the quarter following delivery of goods.

(d) Revenue recognition- Maintenance
As a general rule, the sales of software licensesaacompanied by a maintenance contract that
includes regular updates and the providing of teahrassistance. Revenue related to maintenance
activities is recognized on a straight-line basierahe contractual period.

(e) Revenue recognition- Sale of patents
The development of technologies may give rise éosthle or to the licensing of patents. The sak of
patent is recognized in revenue when title, riskd wards fully pass to the buyer and specifically
when there is no remaining obligation to furthevelep the underlying technology.

(f) Multiple element arrangements
Revenue from contracts with multiple elements, saagkhose including services, is recognized as each
element is earned based on the relative fair valueach element and when there are no undelivered
elements that are essential to the functionalitthefdelivered elements.

(g) Collectability
As part of the revenue recognition process, thaietermines whether trade receivables and notes
receivable are reasonably assured of collectioedas various factors, and whether there has been
deterioration in the credit quality of customerstttcould result in the inability to sell those
receivables.

(h) Deferred and unbilled revenue

Deferred revenue includes amounts that have bdleal lais per contractual terms but have not been
recognized as income.

2.24 Cost of sales
Cost of sales is primarily composed of the cosprfducts, solutions and services sold, including

wafer purchase costs, assembly sub-contractingnegpetests and product engineering, royalties and
other direct attributable costs.
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2.25 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividimegprofit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordirsdugres in issue during the year. Diluted
earnings per share are computed by dividing netnnecattributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of shares outstgnadjusted for the effects of all dilutive potaiti
ordinary shares.

Dilutive instruments are taken into account whemd @nly when, their dilutive effect decreases
earnings per share or increases loss per sharectrotimuing operations.

A reconciliation of the weighted average numbeormfinary shares outstanding during the period and
the weighted average number of shares outstanddjgsted for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, is presented in note 31.

2.26 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the riskal rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments mader wperating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the incstaigment on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

Leases for which the Group substantially assundhalisks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalizbd &ease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present \@ltlee minimum lease payments.

3. Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s overall risk management program focuseshe unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effecttherGroup’s financial performance.

The Management Board provides principles for theral management of risks such as foreign
exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is expoedoreign exchange risk arising from transactions
denominated in currencies other than the US dadiher,functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

The operating result and cash flows of the Growupadfected by foreign exchange rate fluctuations,
principally by fluctuations between the Euro ane US Dollar.

For example, the Group estimates that for the gaded December 31, 2013, the impact in absolute
terms of a variation of +10% or -10% of this ratewd have been - or + US$ 216 thousand on its
operating result and — or + US$ 291 thousand oiityedthe portion of revenue denominated in US
Dollars is more significant than the portion of opéng expenses denominated in US Dollars. To
mitigate this risk, the Group has implemented agivegipolicy to preserve its profitability and cash
levels.

The Group mitigates its exposure to foreign curyeftactuations by matching its cash inflows and
outflows denominated in the same currency to thergxpossible, resulting in a natural hedge. The
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Group also uses derivative financial instrumentshsas currency forward contracts and options to
hedge against foreign currency fluctuations.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group wide basis. €nésk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
derivative financial instruments and deposits wiinks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding vabéés and committed transactions.

(c) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the Finan@pagtment. Management monitors rolling
forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it hadisignt cash to meet operational needs.

Such forecasting takes into consideration the Gsofipancing plans. The Group treasury invests
surplus cash in interest bearing current accotimg, deposits and money market deposits, choosing
instruments with appropriate maturities or suffididiquidity to provide sufficient head-room as
determined by the above-mentioned forecasts.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Group enterdd 8o factoring contract in Euros and Dollars with
Natixis Factor, which includes a deposit and iskkdcby a credit insurance agreement. The initial
contract duration of two years was extended toetlyears during 2013 and it is still ongoing. Since
the risk of non-recoverability and delays in payiress been transferred to the bank, the receivables
transferred under these contracts are no longerded in the balance sheet.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital arsafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shat@ers, gain benefits for partners and maintain an
optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struetdhe Group may adjust the amount of dividendd pai
to shareholders, repay capital to shareholderssoeinew shares.

4.  Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluatellame based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future eventattlare believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions congethi future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal theatell actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a mateadjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are dissed below.

(a) Revenue recognition

The Group derives its revenue principally from saléproducts and solutions as well as licenseease
royalties. The timing of revenue recognition and #mount of revenue actually recognized depends
upon the specific terms of each arrangement wiltocners (transfer of risk) and the nature of the
Company’s deliverables and obligations. For rogaltithe Group generally does not obtain formal
confirmation of the level of sales made by custa@mantil the quarter following product delivery.
Determination of the appropriate amount of revemeeognized involves certain judgments and
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estimates that the management believes are redspnlalt actual results may differ from
management’s estimates.

(b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired patented teogied, backlog and the recognition of above market

royalty-based intellectual property license agregmdJpon acquisition, these assets were recognized
at fair value which required certain judgments agstimates that Management believed were

reasonable. On a regular basis, the Group reassbestair value of these intangible assets, leattin

a potential adjustment of the carrying amount tghoan impairment charge or write-down.

(c) Intangible liabilities

Intangible liabilities relate to license agreemenznsferred to the Group as part of business

combinations under conditions that differ from tharket conditions at the date of acquisition. These

liabilities are initially recognized at fair valugyhich requires certain judgments and estimates tha

Management believes are reasonable. On a regudes, lae Group reassesses the fair value of these
intangible liabilities, which could lead to a pati@hadditional provision or provision reversal.

(d) Impairment of non-current assets and goodwill

As mentioned in note 2.8, non-current assets arepgid according to the CGUs defined above and
are tested based on their value in use.

Given the Group’s ‘fabless’ production model, ass#her than goodwill and intangible assets with
an indefinite life represent relatively low amouritwever, in light of the technological nature of
the Group’s activity and the loss recorded during year, they are subject to impairment testing
performed at CGU level. These impairment tests take account long-term assets, including
goodwill and intangible assets and are based dnft@s projections per CGU.

The cash flow projections used for the “Mobile gégli segment take into account a product life
ranging between 5 and 7 years, with a peak in iactiv the third year. For forecasting purposes,
only clearly identified products with establishedmamercial perspectives have been taken into
account. Products that have not reached the tealhf@asibility stage have not been considered.
Similarly, research and development expenses g@mnekng to future developments have not been
taken into account in the cash flow projections.télminal value has been used and the discount rate
adopted is 14.5%.

The cash flow projections used for the “Securesaations” segment take into account a product life
of 7 years, with a peak in activity in the thirdayeFor forecasting purposes, only clearly idegdifi
products with established commercial perspectie® been taken into account. Products that have
not reached the technical feasibility stage havé been considered. Similarly, research and
development expenses corresponding to future devedots have not been taken into account in the
cash flow projections. No terminal value has besediand the discount rate adopted is 14.5%.

The value in use calculation is not particularlgsgve to the discount rate given the relativeiprs
useful lives of the products in question. A chanfjg% in the discount rate would have an impact of
3% on the value in use of the “Mobile security” C@udd 4% on the value in use of the “Secure
transactions” CGU. The most significant risk wobhlla delayin the ramp-up of sales. A delay of one
year would have a negative impact of 12% on theeval use of the two CGUs.

Based on the above calculations, the Group corssihett no impairment of non-current assets is
necessary. Sensitivity analyses were performediahdot cast any doubt upon this conclusion.
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(e) Share-based payments

The Group grants options to purchase Company's aomsimares and other equity instruments to
management, employees and third parties. The deiaiion of the fair value of share-based
compensation on the date they are granted useptam-@ricing model (Monte-Carlo or Black and
Scholes) which is affected by assumptions regardimymber of complex and subjective variables.
These variables include, but are not limited te, f&ir value of the Company’s common shares, the
expected common share price volatility over thentef the instrument and current and projected
instrument holders’ exercise behaviors. There &gaificant degree of subjectivity involved when
using such option-pricing models to determine stased compensation under IFRS 2.

(f) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instents

The fair value of financial instruments that are maded in an active market (for example, overthe
counter derivatives) is determined by using vatbratiechniques. The Group uses its judgment to
select a variety of methods and make assumpti@isatlh mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of each reporting period.

(g) Accounting for income tax

The Group is subject to the income tax laws of Eeaand those of the foreign jurisdictions in whiich
has business operations. These tax laws are aftaplex and subject to different interpretations by
the tax payer and the relevant governmental taaitgorities. The Group must make judgments and
interpretations about the application of these ltaxs when determining the provision for income
taxes.

The Group must also assess the likelihood that ehih deferred tax assets will be realized. Uslles
there is strong evidence that an entity currengliyegating losses will become profitable, the poti€y
the Group is to recognize deferred tax assetswhbn the tax jurisdiction where it conducts bussnes
has generated a taxable profit in two consecuias/

5. Business combinations
Secure Microcontroller Solutions

On September 30, 2010 the Company acquired AtmepdZation’s (Nasdaqg: ATML) Secure
Microcontroller Solutions (“SMS”) business. This dmess designs and markets microcontroller
products and solutions that protect data containegimbedded memories against a wide variety of
attacks and offers firmware and turnkey solutiansustomers with no security expertise.

The goodwill recognized upon acquisition amountiogUS $2,993 thousand was allocated to the
“Secure Transactions” operating segment. The @rparformed an impairment test at closing and
concluded that no impairment of the goodwill wasessary (see note 8).

As part of the allocation of the purchase pricesideration, the Group recognized a certain number o
identifiable intangible and tangible assets, ngtatdlated to patented technologies, backlog and
masks. In addition, the Group recognized a liabiibrresponding to an unfavorable licensing
agreement. The impact of the related depreciatioth @mortization of identifiable tangible and
intangible assets, and reversals on intangiblditiab, on the 2011, 2012 and 2013 income statésnen
is as follows (amounts in thousand dollars):
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ltem (In thousands of US$) Income statement line ita 2011 2012 2013
Depreciation of masks Cost of sales (2,835) (2,462) ,266)
Depreciation of masks Research and developmenhegse (552) (681) (378)
Amortization of patented technologies Research anebpment expenses (909) (1,076) (1,232)
Amortization of backlog Selling and marketing expesis (716)

Reversal of intangible liabilities Cost of sales 9,40 1,064 1,125
Impact on operating loss (3,603) (3,155) (1,751)
Undiscounting of intangible liabilities Finance imoe/ (loss), net (625) (581) (522)
Impact on loss for the year (4,228) (3,736) (2,273)

Embedded Security Solutions

On December 1, 2012, the Group acquired Embeddedri8eSolutions (“ESS”). ESS designs and
develops encryption-related security hardware lextglal property (IP) and software for a variety of
industries, including the mobile and networking keds. Revenue is generated through licenses,
royalties, services and maintenance fees.

As part of the acquisition, research and developraad sales and marketing teams were transferred
to the Group. The seller also transferred intamgdsets, including intellectual property licensing
royalties and internally developed software, talegdssets, working capital (notably inventorieadé
receivables and social and tax debts related nsfeered employees) and cash.

Upon acquisition, INSIDE Secure paid a purchaseepof $US 43,256 thousand based on an initial
estimate of working capital requirements. Subsetip@nreduction on the purchase price amounting
to US$ 503 thousand was accorded to the Grougkeitéo account the final amount of this working

capital requirement. The payment of this purchasme peduction was received by the Group during
the first half of 2013. INSIDE Secure paid an aiddial amount of US$ 5,188 thousand during the
first half of 2013 relating to certain conditioreat were fully met as at April 1, 2013.

The goodwill corresponding to the excess of theslpase price consideration (including any potential
purchase price adjustments) compared to the comhbbatal of the fair value of the assets acquirkd, t
identifiable intangible assets and the liabilitessumed, amounts to US$ 11,906 thousand, and is
mainly attributable to the expertise of the asseaiborkforce and the expected synergies that will
result from the combination of activities. This gedll is allocated to the “Mobile Security”
operating segment. The Group performed an impairnbest at closing and concluded that no
impairment of the goodwill was necessary (see 8nte

On acquisition date, the carrying amount of theassets transferred represented US$ 2,088 thousand
in the accounts of the seller. The Company hasopedd a final allocation of the purchase price
consideration over assets acquired and liabil#gssimed.

The value of the identifiable assets and liabgitiend the final allocation of the purchase price
consideration are summarized below:
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In thousands
Note of US$
Cash paid at closing (before working capital adjuestt) 42,813
Estimated working capital adjustment 443
Cash paid at closing 43,256
Final working capital adjustment (503)
Additional payment upon completion of conditions 1) 5,188
Purchase price consideration (i) 47,940
Net book Fair value Fair value
value adjustments
Intangible assets - 33,906 (2) 33,906
Property, plant and equipment 139 - 139
Inventory 99 - 99
Other assets 2,998 (115) 3 2,883
Cash and cash equivalents 1,621 - 1,621
Other liabilities (1,150) - (1,150)
Deferred income (1,619) 155 (4) (1,464)
Net assets acquired and liabilities assumed (ii) 28 33,946 36,034
Goodwill (i) - (ii) 11,906

(1) Given that all conditions were met within the pdriof time specified in the contract, the

Group paid an additional purchase price amount f$3, 188 thousand to the seller during
the first half of 2013.

(2) The US$ 33,906 thousand of intangible assets ridate

a. Intellectual property licensing royalties relating technologies patented and
developed by ESS, amounting to US$ 31, 576 thousa@hese licensing royalties
were valued using the discounted cash flow mettasd on an estimated useful life
of 5 years for the technologies concerned. Amartraexpenses for this intangible
asset will be recognized in the income statemetihenline item “Cost of sales” as
the corresponding revenue is recognized.

b. Software developed internally amounting to US$ @,8®usand. This software has
been valued based on the cost approach. Amortiea@penses for this intangible
asset will be recognized in the income statemeat awseful life of 3 years.

(3) An additional provision for trade receivables that been recorded to provide for difficulties
in collecting outstanding amounts from certain ouorsdrs.

(4) Deferred income relating to support and maintenaeceices have been adjusted to take into
account the 10% margin normally recognized on thesegities.

As mentioned above, as part of the acquisition @6 Fcertain fair value adjustments were made,
leading to the revaluation of assets acquired wfilities assumed. This resulted in the increase
in the calculation basis for post-acquisition anzatton expenses.

The impact of these adjustments on the differem¢ litems in the 2012 and 2013 income
statements breaks down as follows (amounts in tralidollars):
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ltem (In thousands of US$) Income statement line ita 2011 2012 2013
Amortization of intellectual property licensing ralties Cost of sales (230) (230) (10,169)
Amortization of internally developed software Co$sales 43) 43) (518)
Amortization of internally developed software Resbaand development expenses (22) (22) (259)
Impact on operating loss (295) (295) (10,946)
Impact on loss for the year (295) (295) (10,946)

During 2013 the Group recorded certain allowanoceslbubtful debts that were transferred as part of
the acquisition. These allowances amounting to BESthousand, relating to events occurred before
the date of acquisition and identified within th2 fhonth allocation period, have been recorded
against an increase in goodwill.

6.  Operating segment information

Management has determined the operating segmerdsd ban the reports reviewed by the
Management Board that are used to make strategisiaies.

In October 2013, the Group redefined its operasimgments so as to adapt to its reorganizationand t
the new internal reporting system to the managertearn. The Group now operates around two
complementary operating segments, which targeerifft markets, products, solutions and clients
whilst maintaining a common platform for researold development, intellectual property, operations,
and a global sales force:

» Mobile security: this division gathers the Groupffer in all mobile communication matters,
to provide a comprehensive suite of embedded ggagiutions for all mobile and connected
devices. The offer includes IPs, software solutiand semi-conductors capable of addressing
the growing needs for a full range of security Sohs on all mobile platforms, securing M-
payments, content, data communications and daiagsto

» Secure transactions: this division unites the Goffer dedicated to address high security
issues for smart cards, ID, payments but alsoralisactions involved in the M2M and
Internet of Things universe. This division buildaildred solutions based on secure
microcontrollers, with embedded secure firmware asgbciated services.

The segment information provided to the ManagerBeatrd for the reportable segments for the year
ended December 31, 2011, is presented taking ttousmt the above mentioned reorganization and
breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) Total per

Secure Common management Reconciliation Consolidated IFRS
As at December 31, 2011 Mobile security transactions unallocated reporting to IFRS reporting (audited)
Revenue 47 961 103 507 - 151 468 - 151 468
Adjusted gross profit (*) 10 317 34771 (2 676) 4241 - Non IFRS measure
Operating loss (*) (18 251) (2 815) (3396) (24 462) - 24 462)
Adjusted operating loss (*) (17 258) 3882 (2 676) 052) - Non IFRS measure
EBITDA (*) (16 762) 7196 (2 676) (12 242) Non IFRS reeee
Finance income / (loss), net 1503 1503 - 1503
Income tax expense (74) (74) - (74)
Net loss (1967) (23 033) - (23 033)

(*) Unallocated amount corresponds to industriglareces (US$ 2,539 thousand) and impairment oftassegjuired as part of acquisition of SMS
business (US$ 614 thousand).
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The segment information provided to the ManagerBeratrd for the reportable segments for the year
ended December 31, 2012, is presented taking ctouat the above mentioned reorganization and
breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) Total per

Secure Common management Reconciliation Consolidated IFRS
As at December 31, 2012 Mobile security transactions unallocated reporting to IFRS reporting (audited)
Revenue 43,828 78,219 - 122,047 - 122,047
Adjusted gross profit (*) 12,680 20,995 (2,237) 3B43 - Non IFRS measure
Operating loss (*) (33,054) (1,987) (2,237) (37,278) - 37,e78)
Adjusted operating loss (*) (30,920) 3,062 (2,237) ,0863) - Non IFRS measure
EBITDA (*) (28,985) 6,099 (2,237) (25,123) Non IFRS rmeee
Finance income / (loss), net (258) (258) - (258)
Income tax expense 51 51 - 51
Net loss (2,444) (37,485) - (37,485)

* Unallocated amount corresponds to industrialarares (US$ 2,237 thousand)

The segment information provided to the ManagerBeatrd for the reportable segments for the year
ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

(In thousands of US$) Total per

Secure Common management Reconciliation Consolidated IFRS
As at December 31, 2013 Mobile security transactions unallocated reporting to IFRS reporting (audited)
Revenue 73,797 80,826 - 154,623 - 154,623
Adjusted gross profit (*) 36,459 26,336 (2,534) 60,26 Non IFRS measure
Operating loss (*) (18,022) 2,786 (12,531) (27,766) - 27,166)
Adjusted operating loss (*) (6,676) 5,895 (2,171) 52p Non IFRS measure
EBITDA (*) (5,653) 10,616 (2,171) 2,793 Non IFRS measu
Finance income / (loss), net 790 790 - 790
Income tax expense (584) (584) - (584)
Net loss (12,324) (27,560) - (27,560)

*Unallocated amount corresponds to restructurirsggds (US$ 8,706 thousand), industrial varianc&$(2) 534 thousand) and to the impairment of
assets acquired as part of acquisition of busifi¢S$ 1,511 thousand).
** Unallocated amount corresponds industrial vazen(US$ 2,534 thousand)

Adjusted operating result is not a measure of dipgy@erformance or liquidity under IFRS.

Adjusted gross profit is defined as gross profiiobe (i) amortization of intangible assets relating
business combinations and depreciation of masksir@ehas part of a business combination, (ii)
potential impairment of goodwill, (iii) expense Kied to share-based payments and (iv) non-recurring
costs relating to restructuring programs and adipns by the Group.

Adjusted operating result is defined as operatiegult before (i) amortization of intangible assets
relating to business combinations and depreciatbnmasks acquired as part of a business
combination, (ii) potential impairment of goodwi(iji) expense linked to share-based payments and
(iv) non-recurring costs relating to restructurprggrams and acquisitions by the Group.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating result befamortization and depreciation expenses not
relating to business combinations.

Adjusted gross profit, adjusted operating resutt adjusted EBITDA as presented may not be strictly
comparable to measures with similar names as gezséy other companies.
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The reconciliation from Company reporting to coidatled IFRS reporting (audited) is as follows:

As of December 31, (In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Gross profit as per IFRS 39 464 28543 48 235
Share based payments 113 160 74
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assetmfEMS 2835 2 462 1266
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assetmfESS - 273 10 687
Adjusted gross profit 42 412 31438 60 261
As of December 31, (In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Operating loss as per IFRS (24,462) (37,278) (27,766)
Share based payments 2,000 1,880 555
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assetmfEMS 5,012 4,222 2,876
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assetmfESS - 295 10,946
Impairment of assets acquired as part of acquis@ioSMS business 1,713 - 379
Impairment of assets due to restructuring (829) - 1,132
Restructuring expenses - 232 8,706
Direct transaction costs related to acquisitions 514 554 220
Adjusted operating loss (16,052) (30,095) (2,952)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and igfiaie assets which are not
related to the acquisition of business 3,810 4972 5,745

EBITDA (12,242) (25,123) 2,793

The revenue by geographical region for the yeade@rDecember 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as
follows:

Europe, Middle East

(In thousands of US$) Asia  Africa, Latin America  North America Total

2011 14,148 73,548 63,772  151,46¢
2012 8,436 59,382 54,229 122,047
2013 18,632 60,925 75,066 154,62¢

Geographically, management has allocated revengedban the location where the goods are

delivered or the services are rendered, excepthforsales with three major customers, which were
allocated based on the location of their head esdfic

The top ten customers of the Group represented 83%,and 78% of the total consolidated revenue
in 2013, 2012 and 2011 respectively.
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Two customers each represented more than 10% abthleconsolidated revenue in 2011, 2012 and
2013. This breaks down as follows:

As of December 31, 2011 (In thousands of US$) Ineeid amount Segment
Customer 1 45793 Mobile security
Customer 2 16 109 Allsegments

As of December 31,2012 (In thousands of US$) Ingeid amount Segment
Customer 1 36 743 Mobile security
Customer 2 13897 Secure transactions
As of December 31, 2013 (In thousands of US$) Ineeid amount Segment
Customer 1 35895 Mobile security
Customer 2 16 322 Secure transactions

7. Revenue

Revenue for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013 breaias ds follows:

Year ended December 31,

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Revenue from sale of products 150,689 115,120 171,87
Revenue from development and license agreements 779 6,336 11,396
Revenue from royalties and sale of patents - 293 17,765
Revenue from maintenance - 298 3,585
Total 122,047 122,047 154,623

In August 2011, the Group signed an agreement kil Corporation relating to the license of the
Group’s NFC technology. This agreement includedm exclusive and non transferable license of the
Group’s NFC technology to Intel, the provision @velopment, support and engineering services so
as to facilitate the integration of its NFC teclogy into the Intel environment and the sale of ship
made by Intel or its subcontractors. Revenuesinglab the development phase were recognized
using the percentage of completion method baseth®mspecific costs incurred on the project. The
corresponding direct development costs were redoimléCost of sales”. The Group recorded US$
779 thousand in revenue in 2011 based on the mogfehe work performed.

This agreement continued into 2012 and the Grooprded US$ 6,178 thousand in revenue in 2012
based on the progress of the work performed. Tleéetded income” amounting to $3,860 thousand
recorded as at December 31, 2012 corresponde@payments received from Intel Corporation.

The increase in revenue corresponding to developamah license agreements, royalties and sale of
patents and maintenance in 2013 mainly relatesg@onsolidation of ESS since December 1, 2012,
with 2013 constituting the first full year of cotisiation. The amounts in these line items relatimg
the consolidation of ESS represented US$ 8,571sthudy US$ 13,047 thousand and US$ 3,585
thousand respectively.

In addition, the Group sold patents for an amotitd$$ 4,500 thousand in 2013.
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8. Goodwill

Goodwill breaks down as follows:

As at December 31,

(In thousands of US$) Segment 2011 2012 2013
SMS business Secure transactions 3,251 3,246 3,070
ESS business M obile security - 11,906 12,217
Total 3,251 15,152 15,287

The variation of goodwill relating to the acquisitiof the SMS business from US$ 3,251 thousand as
at December 31, 2011 to US$ 3,246 thousand ascaniimer 31, 2012 and to US$ 3,070 thousand as
at December 31, 2013 is exclusively due to foreigohange rate variations, certain assets acquired
and liabilities assumed being accounted for intiestihaving a functional currency different frone th
US Dollar.

The variation of goodwill relating to the acquisitiof the ESS business from US$ 11,906 thousand as
at December 31, 2012 to US$ 12,217 thousand agegriber 31, 2013 is exclusively due to trade
receivables transferred as part of the acquisitiwnwhich certain allowances for impairment were
recognized during 2013. These allowances, reldatngvents occurred before the date of acquisition
and identified within the 12 month allocation peichave been recorded against an increase in
goodwiill.

2013 annual impairment test on goodwill

Goodwill resulting from business combinations Is@dted to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units expected to benefit fronsymergies created by the business combination. The
goodwill relating to the acquisition of SMS is aded to the cash-generating unit that corresptmnds
the “Secure transactions” operating segment andytieglwill relating to the acquisition of ESS is
allocated to the cash-generating unit that cornedpdo the “Mobile security” operating segment.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating toitshich the sets of goodwill have been allocated

has been estimated based on their value in ustesgsibed in note 4 “Critical accounting estimates
and judgments.”
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9. Intangible assets

Intangible assets break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) Backlog Patent.ed Sgﬁware ) Royalties on Internally Technologies ir Total
technologies licenses intellectual property developed software development
Year ended December 31, 2011
Opening net book amount 717 5,372 553 6,641
Additions - - 1,160 1,160
Exchange differences (24) (24)
Impairment - -
Retirement - -
Work in progress - - - 1,188 1,188
Amortization charge (717) (910) (462) - (2,088)
Closing net book amount 4,462 1,227 1,188 6787
At December 31, 2011
Cost or valuation 1,544 5,651 4,479 1,188 12,862
Accumulated amortization and impairment (1,544) (D19 (3,251) - (5,985)
Net book amount 4,461 1,227 1,188 6,877
Year ended December 31, 2012
Opening net book amount 4,462 1,227 1,188 6,877
Acquisitions - 2,825 - - - 2,825
Acquisition of business - 31,576 2,330 33,906
Exchange differences 10 - - 10
Impairment - -
Disposals (net book amount) - -
Work in progress - - - - 973 973
Amortization charge (1,076) (1,167) (230) (65) - (2,538)
Closing net book amount 3,385 2,895 31,346 2,265 e 42,052
At December 31, 2012
Cost or valuation 5,651 7,320 31,576 2,330 2,151 49,038
Accumulated amortization and impairment (2,266) 424) (230) (65) r (6,985)
Net book amount 3,385 2,896 31,346 2,265 2,161 42,052
Year ended December 31, 2013
Opening net book amount 3,385 2,895 31,346 2,265 e 42,052
Acquisitions - 1,101 - - 3,382 4,483
r
Exchange differences 50 - 50
Impairment - - -
Disposals (net book amount) t -
Work in progress - - - - - -
Amortization charge (1,232) (1,688) (10,169) 777) r. (13,865)
Closing net book amount 2,153 2,358 21,177 1,488 58 32,720
At December 31, 2013
Cost or valuation 5,651 8,498 31,576 2,330 5,5}3 53,598
Accumulated amortization and impairment (3,498) 146) (10,399) (841) 4 (20,878)
Net book amount 2,153 2,358 21,177 1,488 5,543 32,720

The backlog acquired as part of the SMS acquisitiod010 was fully amortized in 2011. The gross
value and the accumulated amortization were congpedsas at December 31, 2011.

Amortization expenses of US$ 13,865 thousand haen brecorded in 2013 within research and
development, selling and marketing, and generalirgdtration expenses according to the assets’
allocation (US$ 2,538 thousand in 2012 and US$&thBBusand in2011).

In 2013, development expenses related to one prigea total amount of US$ 3,382 thousand were
capitalized (US$ 973 thousand in 2012 and US$ 1th88sand in 2011). This project is financed
through repayable advances (see note 22) and thrcagsic grants. Capitalized research expenses
correspond only to the project financed througtayaple advances.
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Finance leases included within intangible assatesponding to software break down as follows:

(In thousands of US $) 2011 2012 201z
Gross book value 719 826 936
Accumulated amortization (349) (529) (746)
Net book value 371 297 191
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10. Property and equipment

Property and equipment breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) Leasehold Equipment  Furniture and other Masks Total
improvement office equipment

Year ended December 31, 2011

Opening net book amount 3,408 3,518 1,473 12,153 20,552
Additions 83 3,110 1,875 438 5,507
Exchange differences (117) (31 (144) (340) (633)
Impairment (614) - - (1,100) 1,714)
Retirement - - - - -
Work in progress - (70) - - (70)
Depreciation charge (829) (1,652) (936) (3,416) (6,829)
Closing net book amount 1,936 4,874 2,268 7,734 16,813
At December 31, 2011

Cost or valuation 4,202 9,593 4,627 12,792 31,214
Accumulated depreciation (2,266) (4,719) (2,359) (5,057) (14,401)
Net book amount 1,936 4,874 2,268 7,734 16,813
Year ended December 31, 2012

Opening net book amount 1,936 4,874 2,268 7,734 16,813
Additions 146 998 575 735 2,454
Acquisition of business 9 17 114 - 140
Exchange differences 66 80 (12) 144 278
Impairment - - - - -
Disposals (net book amount) - (16) 28 - 12
Work in progress - (115) 25 - (90)
Depreciation charge (472) (2,288) (912) (3,125) (6,797)
Closing net book amount 1,685 3,549 2,086 5,490 12,810
At December 31, 2012

Cost or valuation 4,650 10,374 5,519 13,806 34,348
Accumulated depreciation (2,965) (6,825) (3,432 (8,316) (21,538)
Net book amount 1,685 3,549 2,086 5,490 12,810
Year ended December 31, 2013

Opening net book amount 1,685 3,549 2,086 5,490 12,810
Additions 2,194 631 415 1,255 4,494
Acquisition of business - - - - -
Exchange differences 33 99 (56) 267 343
Impairment (1,132) - - (379 (1,511)
Disposals (net book amount) - (38) 9) (19) (66)
Scrap (net book amount) (158) (101) - - (259)
Reclassification 190 (190) - -
Work in progress - 26 - - 26
Depreciation charge (406) (1,673) (1,320) (2,030) (5,428)
Closing net book amount 2,217 2,684 926 4,584 10,411
At December 31, 2013

Cost or valuation 5,309 9,448 5,752 15,690 36,199
Accumulated depreciation (3,092) (6,764) (4,826) (11,106) (25,788)
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Depreciation expenses of US$ 5,428 thousand hage berognized in 2013 within cost of sales,
research and development expenses, selling andetimylexpenses, and general and administrative
expenses according to the assets’ allocation (UB$7/&housand in 2012 and US$ 6,829 thousand in
2011).

Lease rentals amounting to US$ 2,313 thousand (RS%$8 thousand in 2012 and US$ 2,528
thousand in 2011) relating to the operating leddmiddings and furniture are included in the ina@m
statement.

As mentioned in note 27, the value in use of thidimg at East Kilbride has been impacted by the
restructuring plan and it has therefore been writtewn for an amount of US$ 1,132 thousand.

Finance leases included in property and equipnismteaare as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Gross book value 1,412 1,683 1,872
Accumulated depreciation (155) (559) (1,063)
Net book value 1,257 1,124 809

11. Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instrumenésé been applied to the line items below:

December 31,2011 Loans and  Assets at fair value Derivatives  Available for sale Total
receivables  through profit and used for

Asset loss hedging

Derivative financial instruments - - 216 - 21¢

Trade and other receivables 36,472 - - - 36,472

Cash and marketable securities 20,550 390 - - 20,940

Total 57,022 390 216 - 57,628

Liabilities at fair Derivatives Other financial Total
value through profit used for liabilities at

Liabilities andloss hedging amortized cost

Bank overdrafts - - - -

Finance lease liabilities - - 1,320 1,32(

Derivative financial instruments 350 998 - 1,34¢

Trade and other payables - - 29,977 29,977

Total 350 998 31,297 32,64t
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December 31, 2012 Loans and  Assets atfair value Derivatives  Available for sale Total
receivables  through profit and used for
Assets loss hedging
Derivative financial instruments - - 145 - 14¢
Trade and other receivables 39,567 - - - 39,567
Cash and marketable securities 63,929 2,392 - - 66,321
Total 103,496 2,392 145 - 106,033
Liabilities at fair Derivatives Other financial Total
value through profit used for liabilities at
Liabilities andloss hedging amortized cost
Bank overdrafts - - 276 27¢
Finance lease liabilities - - 1,209 1,20¢
Derivative financial instruments - - 6,225 6,22
Trade and other payables - 179 - 17¢
Total - - 33,523 33,523
Total - 179 41,233 41,412
December 31,2013 Loans and  Assets at fair value Derivatives  Available for sale Total
receivables  through profit and used for
Assets loss hedging
Derivative financial instruments - - 587 - 581
Trade and other receivables 50,036 - - - 50,036
Cash and marketable securities 29,824 10,389 - - 40,213
Total 79,860 10,389 587 - 90,836
Liabilities at fair Derivatives Other financial Total
value through profit used for liabilities at
Liabilities andloss hedging amortized cost
Bank overdrafts - - - -
Finance lease liabilities - - 923 92:¢
Financing of the Research taxcredit receivable - - 13,325  13,32¢
Derivative financial instruments 215 - - 21t
Trade and other payables - - 32,525 32,525
Total 215 - 46,773 46,98¢&
12. Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments break down asdaf:
(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Currency forward contracts - cash flow hed - 60z 41 17¢ 32¢ -
Currency forward contracts - held for trading - - - -
Currency options - cash flow hedges 216 396 104 259
Currency options - held for trading - 350 - - 215
Total 216 1,348 145 179 587 215
Of which current portion 216 1348 145 179 587 215

Of which non current portion

The fair value of a hedging derivative is classifees a non-current asset or liability if the rernmain
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 moatht as a current asset or liability if the matuaoty
the hedged item is less than 12 months.
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The ineffective portion recognized in the profitloss that arises from cash flow hedges amouras to
gain of US$ 37 thousand (a loss of US$ 47 thouga@612 and a loss of US$ 57 thousand in 2011).

(a) Currency forward contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstandiogvard foreign exchange contracts at December
31, 2013 were US$ 12,300 thousand (US$ 19,551 #mouign 2012 and US$ 17,159 thousand in
2011).

The hedged highly probable forecast transactiomomeated in foreign currencies are expected to
occur at various dates during the next 12 montlaéngzand losses recognized in the hedging reserve
in equity on forward foreign exchange contractata@ecember 31, 2013 are recognized in the income
statement in the period or periods during which lieeged forecast transaction affects the income
statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgrtiate is the fair value of the derivative assets i
the balance sheet.

(b) Currency options

The notional principal amounts of the outstandingency options at December 31, 2013 were US$
7,000 thousand (US$ 1,979 thousand in 2012 and8 8% thousand in 2011).

The hedged highly probable forecast transactiomomeated in foreign currencies are expected to
occur at various dates during the next 12 montlaéngzand losses recognized in the hedging reserve
in equity on currency options as at December 31324Fe recognized in the income statement in the
period or periods during which the hedged foretrasisaction affects the income statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgrtiate is the fair value of the derivative assets i
the balance sheet.

13. Inventories

Inventories break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Semi-finished and finished goods 27,163 21,389 P1,78
Developments in progress - - 188
Less: provision for impairment of obsolete items 883) (4,038) (7,138)
23,276 17,350 14,830

During the course of 2013, the Company built uptager“strategic” inventories in light of the
financial difficulties of one of its wafer supplgrLFoundry. This supplier has now ceased its
operations and liquidation procedures were initidte December 2013. The products concerned are
those that only LFoundry was able to manufactuseatDecember 31, 2013, the gross value of these
inventories amounts to US$ 4,664 thousand and ghalldw the Group to meet current customer
requirements for 2014 and 2015.
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Movements on the Group provision for impairmentlo$olete inventories are as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
At January 1 (1,063) (3,887) (4,038)
Impairment of obsolete items (4,624) (3,421) (4,596)
Inventory written off during the year 955 1,640 907
Unused amounts reversed 845 1,630 590

At December 31 (3,887) (4,038) (7,138)

Impairment of obsolete items relates to inventemwels judged in excess, particularly when assessed
in relation to backlog as well as obsolete techgyloThe Group recognized the impairment of
inventory in the line item “Cost of sales”.

In the second half of 2013, the Group recorded reseritory provision amounting to US$ 3,617

thousand relating to difficulties encountered bye tiroup’s main customer in the NFC

microcontroller segment. Based on information aldé, the Group considers that it has provided for
all inventory risk related to this customer.

14. Trade receivables

Net trade receivables break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Trade receivables 18,760 17,175 18,648
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (49) (713) (1,127)
Trade receivables, net 18,711 16,462 17,521

Trade receivables break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Trade receivables invoiced 20,824 13,103 18,404
Trade receivables accrued invoices 779 6,809 1,194
Credit notes to be issued (2,843) (2,736) (950)
Trade receivables 18,760 17,175 18,648

Trade receivables that are less than three morasisdue are not considered for impairment. As at
December 31, 2013, trade receivables of US$ 2,686sand were overdue but not impaired. These
relate to a number of customers for whom theraikistory of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivablesfisllaws:

(In thousands of Notpast 1t0o30 30to60 60to90 90to120 Above 120
US$) Total due days days days days days

2011 20,824 16,481 2,938 281 5 832 287
2012 13,103 8,482 2,337 1,059 306 65 855
2013 18,404 14,582 675 1,118 535 183 1,311

19¢



Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are exméss thousands of US$

As at December 31, 2013, trade receivables of U3®71thousand (US$ 713 thousand as at
December 31, 2012 and US$ 49 thousand as at Dec&hpR011) were provided for. The impaired

receivables mainly relate to one customer.

The provision for impairment of receivables bred&s/n as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
At January 1 (54) (49) (713)
Provision for receivables impairment - (677) (414)
Receivables written off during the year as unctilide - - -
Unused amounts reversed 5 13 -
At December 31 (49) (713) 1,127)

The recording and reversal of a provision for reakles impaired has been included in the line item
“Selling and marketing expenses” in the incomeest&nt. Amounts recognized in the allowance
account are written off when there is no expeatatibrecovering the related cash amount.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and otheeivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
US dollar 21,625 18,131 18,145
Euro 6,019 4,845 6,587
Other currencies 1,590 155 441

29,235 23,131 25,173

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgriiate is the carrying value of each class of
receivable mentioned above. The Group does notdrolccollateral as security.

In 2011, the Group entered into factoring agreemevtiereby it transferred certain receivables in

Euros and

Dollars to Natixis Factor, including a deposit dracked by a credit insurance contract. The initial
duration of these agreements was extended to yeas in 2013. Since the risk of non-recoverability
and delays in payment has been transferred to &m, lthe receivables transferred under these

contracts are no longer recorded in the balancetshe

The amount of receivables transferred with magsitater than December 31 for which substantially
all of the risks and rewards have been transfearetwhich are therefore no longer recorded in the
balance sheet within accounts receivable is asvistl

(In thousands of US$) 2012 2013
Trade receivables transferred 12 766 4661
Factoring reserve (436) 172)
Cash received as at December 31, 12 330 4 489

As at December 31, 2013, the total amount of teansfl receivables is US$ 4,661 thousand (US$
12,766 thousand as at December 31, 2012 and U85%2.thousand as at December 31, 2011).
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15. Other receivables

Other receivables break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Deposits 486 1091 527
Research taxcredit 10 952 15071 24 337
VAT receivables 2 946 1288 2596
Pre-payments 1145 468 736
Factoring reserve 442 436 172
Other receivables 735 1919 1049
Prepaid expenses 1056 2 337 2116
Credit notes to be received - 223 984
Other receivables 22832 32516
Other receivables - Non-current portion 7 287 16 163 24 863
Other receivables - Current portion 10474 6 669 526

As the Group is no longer eligible for immediatémeursement of the Research Tax Credit (RTC)
since 2011, the RTC receivable acquired during 28¥8corded in the line item “Other receivables —
Non-current portion”. In accordance with generalgcepted accounting principles, the RTC
receivable is not discounted.

The Group has maintained the RTC receivables amdium 2011 for an amount of US$ 7,250
thousand and in 2012 for an amount of US$ 8,52lighiod within “Other receivables — Non-current
portion.

Factoring contracts have been implemented witmfira institutions (see note 21). They have been
recorded in financial debts in accordance with B®Sand have the following terms:
i. Research tax credit receivable for 2011: June 2015
ii. Research tax credit receivable for 2012: July 2@bdended to July 2015 subsequent to the
closing as of December 31, 2013)

As a reminder, the research tax credit owed toQtmup relative to the 2010 fiscal year, which was
audited by the tax authorities and the French Ntipisf Research, was repaid to the Group in full on
July 4, 2012 in the amount of US$ 4,168 thousandRB,207 thousand). The tax audit did not lead to
any adjustments.

The variation in research tax credit receivabler dlre year is as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
At January 1 4984 10 952 15071
Research tax credit for the year 7 054 8 154 8 566
Cash received related to the research taxcredit 8) (73 (4 168) -

Exchange differences (348) 133 700
As at December 31, 10 952 15071 24 337
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16. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents break down as follows:

As at Decembel As at Decembel As at Decembel

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Cash at bank and on hand 20,550 27,380 23,824
M arketable securities (1) 390 2,392 10,389
Short term securities (2) - 36,549 6,000
Cash and cash equivalents 20,940 66,321 40,213

(1) Marketable securities correspond to joint investimemmemes measured at fair value against
profit and loss. These securities are considerethsals equivalents as they are highly liquid,
have sensitivity to interest rates of less tha Ohlave a volatility of almost 0 and are part of
an investment strategy which excludes shares.

(2) Short term securities correspond to investmenthvimeet the criteria of cash and cash
equivalents as defined by the AMF in 2012.

17. Share capital

The variations of share capital break down as ¥edto

Ordinary Share
(In thousands of US$ except number of shares) Numbef shares shares premium Total
As atJanuary 1, 2011 5,419,405 11,342 134,873 146,215
Division of par value by 4 16,258,215 - - -
Share capital increases 46,704 27 238 265
Subscription of warrants - - 181 181
Direct costs paid related to the project of IPO - - (2,271) (2,271)
As at December 31, 2011 21,724,324 11,369 133,021 144,390
Share capital increases 9,560,236 5,039 99,513 104,552
Share conversion 1,449,144 764 (764) -
Free shares vesting 1,185,138 614 (614) -
Exercise of stock options 74,720 37 361 398
Direct costs paid related to the IPO - - (5,840) (5,840)
Contribution to restricted reserve - - (107) (107)
As at December 31, 2012 33,993,562 17,822 225,570 243,393
Subscription of warrants - - 28 28
As at December 31, 2013 33,993,562 17,822 225,599 243,421
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Year ended December 31, 2011

In 2011, following the decision of the general nmegetof May 11, 2011, the nominal value of the
Company’s shares was divided by four in order ioghthe share price of € 1.60 to € 0.40 and, as a
result, to multiply the number of shares by fouradrder to increase the number of shares from
5,419,405 to 21,677,620.

The Company also carried out a share capital iserea part of the exercise of redeemable warrants
through the issue of 46,704 new shares. This dparfgd to an increase in the share capital of US$
27 thousand and US$ 238 thousand in share premium.

The total number of outstanding ordinary share®1i§24,324 as at December 31, 2011 (5,419,405
shares as at December 31, 2010). Each share luasimah value of € 0.40. All outstanding shares are
fully paid.

External costs net of tax incurred in 2011 anddliyerelated to the IPO project are recorded as a
reduction of share premium as they concern theeisfumew shares and the project was finalized post
closing in February 2012.

Year ended December 31, 2012

Since February 17, 2012, shares in the Companiiséed on the NYSE Euronext exchange in Paris
(compartment B). Proceeds from the issuance ofliaeges as part of the initial public offering was
US$ 104.5million €79.3 million), which represents a capital increa$e€5,039 thousand and an
increase in share premium of US$ 99,513 thousahid. dperation led to the issue of 9 560 236 new
shares.

External costs net of tax incurred by the Compamy directly related to the IPO are recorded as a
reduction of share premium.

By decision of the General Meeting of January 21,22 category D preference shares were converted
into ordinary shares. A capital increase was resrh this date of U$ 764 thousand with an equal
decrease in share premium and 1 449 144 new sharedssued.

Free shares whose acquisition was conditional emahlization of the IPO were definitively acquired
on March 6, 2012 and on December 16, 2012. Theesbapital increased by US$ 614 thousand
through the issue of 1,185,138 new shares.

The Company also carried out a share capital iseraa part of the exercise of certain stock options
through the issuance of 74 720 new shares. Thisatpe led to an increase in the share capital of
US$ 37 thousand and US$ 361 thousand in share yomemi

The total number of outstanding shares is 33 9@ &b at December 31, 2012 (21 724 324 as at
December 31, 2011). Each share has a nominal val€@.40.All issued shares are paid.

Year ended December 31, 2013

Share purchase warrants were subscribed duringptimse of 2013 for an amount of US$ 28
thousand.

18. Share-based payments
Share options, free shares and stock purchasent&(BSA) are granted to management, employees

and third parties (service providers). As at Deoendi, 2013, the following share options, free ebar
and stock purchase warrants (BSA) were grantetiddbmpany.
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As at December 31, 2013 the following share basgdhpnts were granted by the Company:

Plan Date of allocation Exercise price in $ pershare Vesting / Conditions Number of instruments Expiration date
BSA 2007-02 30/08/2007 9,60 3years - graded vesting 9200 10/10/2017
BSA 2007-4 30/08/2007 9,60 1year-graded vesting 3000 30/08/2017
BSA 2007-4 (2iéme tranche) 18/12/2008 10,31 1year - graded vesting 3000 18/12/2018
BSA 2006-1 20/11/2006 5,06 1year-graded vesting 46 704 20/11/2016
BSA 2005-5 17/02/2006 4,68 No vesting period, it can excercised at the date of 15732 20/10/2015
allocation.
BSA 2006-2 20/11/2006 5,06 4years - graded vesting 18 400 20/11/2016
BSA 2007-3 21/09/2007 9,91 2years - graded vesting and need to be part of the 4000 21/09/2017
Advisory Board
BSA 2007-3 (2eme tranche) 21/09/2007 9,91 2years - graded vesting and need to be part of the 4000 21/09/2017
Advisory Board
BSA 8 02/10/2008 13,98 3years - graded vesting 12 800 02/10/2018
BSA 2005-1 15/06/2006 7,28 No vesting period, it can excercised at the date of 43332 15/06/2016
allocation.
BSA 2005-3 15/06/2006 7,28 No vesting period, it can excercised at the date of 52 000 15/06/2016
allocation.
BSA 12 01/10/2010 6,52 No vesting period but conditions exist such as IPO or 200 000 01/10/2015
merger/acquisitions of more than 50% of the Company
and the market share price must be higher than €25,5
($35)
Free shares Pool 1 28/07/2005 - Vesting occurs if: 113 200 NA
- Exit (Transfer of more than 90% of shares or IPO)
- If exit occurs before 2 years, service condition of 2 years
=>Minimum 2 years maximum 10 years from 28/07/2005
Number of shares depend on the exit price (between €15
($21) and €45 ($62))
Free shares Pool 2 28/07/2005 - Vesting occurs if: 138264 NA
- Exit (Transfer of more than 90% of shares or IPO)
- If exit occurs before 2 years, service condition of 2 years
=>Minimum 2 years maximum 10 years from 28/07/2005
Number of shares depend on the exit price (between €45
($62) and €63,75 ($87))
Adition to pool 2 17/02/2006 - Vestingoccurs if: 69 096 NA

- Exit (Transfer of more than 90% of shares or IPO)

- If exit occurs before 2 years, service condition of 2 year
-25% at the end of each years since the allocation date.
=>Minimum 2 years maximum 10 years from 17/02/2006
Number of shares depend on the exit price (between
€57,51($79) and €70 ($96))
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Plan Date of allocation Exercise price in $ pershare Vesting / Conditions Number of instruments Expiration date
Other free shares 17/02/2006 - 4years - graded vesting 83092 NA
Other free shares - Pool A 02/06/2006 - 2years - graded vesting and to be member of the board 38048 NA
Other free shares - Pool B 02/06/2006 - 3years - graded vesting and to be member of the board 19024 NA
Other free shares - Pool C 02/06/2006 - 4years - graded vesting and to be member of the board 19024 NA
Other free shares 03/11/2008 - 4years - those shares can t be allocated if they lead to 20000 NA
own more than 10% of the total of shares
Other free shares - Pool A 17/12/2010 - 2years - graded vesting - IPO and market conditions : 1116 000 NA

€25,5 ($35) if IPO within 12 months, €29 ($40) if IPO
between 12 and 24 months, €34 ($47) if IPO after 24

months
Other free shares - Pool B 17/12/2010 - 4years - graded vesting - IPO and market conditions : 110000 NA
€25,5 ($35) if IPO within 12 months, €29 ($40) if IPO
between 12 and 24 months, €34 ($47) if IPO after 24
months
Free shares 17/10/2012 - Graded vesting - 50% after 2 years, 75% after 3 years and 160 000 NA
100% after 4 years
Average of the stock price for the 20 days preceeding
October 17, 2014, must be above €2,30 ($3)
Free shares 20/12/2012 - Graded vesting - 50% after 2 years, 75% after 3 years and 10000 NA
100% after 4 years
Average of the stock price for the 20 days preceeding
October 17, 2014, must be above €3,22 ($4,27)
Free shares 26/07/2012 - 2years - Average of the stock price for the 20 days 2200 NA
preceeding July 26, 2014, must be above €8,30 ($11,44)
Free shares 26/07/2012 - 2years - Average of the stock price for the 20 days 4000 NA
preceeding July 26, 2014, must be above €8,30 ($11,44)
Free shares 26/07/2012 - 2years - Average of the stock price for the 20 days 63510 NA
preceeding July 26, 2014, must be above €8,30 ($11,44)
SO 2005- 1 Pool 3 28/07/2005 0,48 4years - graded vesting, minimum share price of €100 113 200 16/06/2015
($137) at exit date.
SO 2005 - 1 Pool 4 28/07/2005 0,48 4years - graded vesting, minimum share price of €120 102 240 16/06/2015
($164) at exit date.
SO 2005 - 02 first grant 17/02/2006 4,68 4years - graded vesting. 96 908 20/10/2015
SO 2005 - 02 second grant 02/06/2006 5,05 4vyears - graded vesting. 51904 12/09/2016
SO 2006 - 01 02/06/2006 5,05 4vyears - graded vesting. 273 200 02/06/2016
Options 2007-1-F (15 200) et 03/11/2008 12,89 Syears - graded vesting and to be member of the board 82400 19/06/2017
Options 2006-1-B (5 400)
Options 2006-1 02/02/2007 9,19 4years - graded vesting and to be member of the board 105 200 16/04/2017
SO 26/07/2012 3,76 10years - graded vesting. 14 490 26/02/2022
Options ESS 20/12/2012 3,84 4yearsvesting 300 000 16/04/2017
Part of the options will be granted based on internal
performance criteria of the ESS business.
SO 20/06/2013 3,75 10years - graded vesting. 20000 20/12/2022
Nej 27/08/2013 3,28 10years - graded vesting. 140000 23/02/2023

Part of the options will be granted based on internal
performance criteria of the ESS business.

Share based payments are conditional on the hotapleting a certain number of years of service
(the vesting period). Certain share based paynaatexercisable subject to the common share of the
Group achieving a certain value. The Group hasegallor constructive obligation to repurchase or

settle the share based payments in cash.

The number of stock purchase warrants outstandidgleeir related weighted average exercise prices

are as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Number of Number of Number of
Awverage exercis¢ financial Average financial Awerage financial
price in$ per  instruments (in exercise price  instruments exercise price  instruments
share thousands) in $ per share (inthousands) in$ per share (in thousands)
As at January 1st 7 348 7 300 7 242
Granted - - - - 2 20
Void - - 10 58 - -
Exercised 7 (48) - - - -
Expired - - - -
As at December 31 7 300 7 242 9 262

20,000 stock purchase warrants were granted in 26d310ne became void in 2013.
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The number of options outstanding and their weidjlareerage exercise price are as follows:

2011 2012 2013

Number of Number of Number of

Awverage exercis¢ financial Average financial Awerage financial

price in $ per  instruments (in exercise price  instruments exercise price  instruments

share thousands) in $ per share (inthousands) in$ per share (inthousands)
As at January 1st 8 1,172 8 1,132 5 696
Granted - - 4 300 4 174
Void 11 (39) 11 661 4 22
Exercised - - 5 75 - -

Expired - - - - - -
As at December 31 8 1,133 5 696 5 892

No stock options were exercised in 2013 (75,002002, none in 2011). 174,000 stock options were
granted in 2013 (300,000 in 2012 none in 2011)0@2 stock options became void in 2013 (661,000
in 2012, 39,000 in 2011).

The number of free shares outstanding and thegwed average exercise price are as follows:

2011 2012 2013

Awverage exercis¢ Number of free Average Number of free Awverage Number of free
price in $ per shares (in exercise price shares (in exercise price shares (in
share thousands) in $ per share thousands) in $ per share thousands)

As at January 1st - 1,315 - 1,315 - 810
Granted - - - 680 - 70
Can be sold - - - - - -
Acquired - - - 1,185 - -
\oid - - - - - 63
As at December 31 - 1,315 - 810 - 817

In 2013, 70,000 free shares were granted (680,0@D12, none in 2011) and none were definitely
acquired (1,185,000 in 2012, none in 2011).

The valuation of share options, free shares arak giorchase warrants can be summarized as follows:

Share price at  Risk free Expected

Plan Valuation model grant date (US$) rate Volatility maturity (*)
BSA 2007-02 B&S 9.6 4.50% 51% 3
BSA 2007-4 B&S 10.275 4.50% 51% 3
BSA 2007-4 (2nd tranche) B&S 9.325 1.60% 71% 2
BSA 2006-1 B&S 5.3 4.50% 51% 5
BSA 2005-5 B&S 5 3.30% 49% 3
BSA 2006-2 B&S 5.175 3.50% 49% 5
BSA 2007-3 B&S 111 4.50% 51% 5
BSA 2007-3 (2nd tranche) B&S 10.825 3.00% 71% 4
BSA 8 B&S 13.375 1.20% 71% 4
BSA 2005-1 B&S 7.275 4.00% 49% 4
BSA 2005-3 B&S 7.275 4.00% 49% 4
BSA 12 B&S 6.525 1.50% 57% 4
SO 2005 - 1 Pool 3 B&S 0.475 3.30% 49% 10
SO 2005 -1 Pool 4 B&S 0.475 3.30% 49% 10
SO 2005 - 02 first grant B&S 4.675 3.50% 49% 6
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Share price at  Risk free Expected
Plan Valuation model grant date (US$) rate Volatility maturity (*)

SO 2005 - 02 second grant B&S 5.05 4.00% 49%

SO 2006 - 01 B&S 5.05 4.50% 51% 7
Options 2007-1-F (15,200) and Options 200 B&S 12.9 3.20% 51% 4
1-B (5,400)

Options 2006-1 B&S 9.175 4.50% 51%

Options ESS B&S 3.84 4.50% 75%

Free shares pool 1 Share price at grant da 0.475 NA NA NA
Free shares pool 2 Share price at grant da 0.475 NA NA NA
Free shares - addition to pool 2 Share price at grant da 4.7 NA NA NA
Other free shares Share price at grant da 4.7 NA NA NA
Other free shares Share price at grant da 4.975 NA NA NA
Pool A Share price at grant da 4.975 NA NA NA
Pool B Share price at grant da 4.975 NA NA NA
Pool C Share price at grant da 4.975 NA NA NA
Other free shares Share price at grant da 12.9 NA NA NA
Pool A MC 6.3 NA NA NA
Pool B MC 6.3 NA NA NA
Other free shares MC 2.8 NA NA NA
Other free shares MC 3.4 NA NA NA

MC : Monte-Carlo valuation model
B&S : Black & Sholes valuation model

(*) Determined based on a peer group analysis

19. Retained earnings and other reserves

Retained earnings and other reserves break dofali@ass:
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(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
As at January 1 (63,533) (86,795) (121,668)
Loss for the year (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)
Share based payments 2,000 1,880 555
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations 510 (346) 345
Financial instruments at fair value 1,773) 937 353
Contribution to restricted reserve - 107 -
Currency translation differences (351) 537 413
Treasury shares (501) 88
As at December 31, (86,795) (121,668) (147,473)
Of which:

Retained earnings (96,567) (134,053) (161,613)
Legal reserve - - -
Restricted reserves 2,553 2,661 2,661
Other comprehensive income (725) (135) 564
Share based payments 8,424 10,304 10,860
Currency translation differences (480) 57 470
Treasury shares - (501) (419
As at December 31, (86,795) (121,668) (147,473)

In France, companies must transfer 5% of their ahpiofit to a legal reserve until the reserve hesc
10% of the share capital. The Group having gengrbitsses in the past, no contribution has been
made to this reserve.

In October 2012, the Company transferred US$ 10udsthnd to restricted reserves to secure the issue
of free shares.

20. Trade payables

Trade and other payables break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Trade payables 16,205 12,301 8,661
Accrued expenses 10,910 11,142 10,398
Social security and other taxes 2,596 3,304 7,597
Advances from customers 266 1,588 5,868
Total 29,977 28,335 32,524

The decrease in trade payables in 2013 relaté®tddcrease in inventoried purchases.

The increase in social security payables is madily to the integration of the employees from the
acquisition of the ESS business.

In certain cases, when the revenue recognitioer@itare not met, the Group may defer the related
income which results in an increase in the linmitddvances from customers”.

21. Financial debts

Financial debts break down as follows:
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(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013

Non-current

Research taxcredit financing - 6,225 6,507

Obligations under finance lease 963 677 355
963 6,902 6,862

Current

Research taxcredit financing - - 6,818

Obligations under finance lease 357 532 568

Bank overdrafts - 276 -

Total 1,320 7,710 14,248

A factoring contract for the research tax crediereable for the year ended December 31, 2011,
recorded as an asset on the balance sheet, wasmemtied with a financial institution in June 2012
and its term is June 2015. This financing amountingS$ 6,507 thousand corresponds to 90% of the
research tax credit receivable. The remaining 10%be& paid to the Company in June 2015 at the
maturity of the contract. The cash received remissan amount of US$ 5,905 thousand, net of
interest and commissions for a total amount of B&&thousand. Interest and commissions have been
recognized in prepaid expenses and are spreadtbgeduration of the contract. Given that the
financing of the RTC is denominated in Euros, thaant presented on the balance sheet can be
affected by exchange rate fluctuations.

A factoring contract for the research tax crediereable for the year ended December 31, 2012,
recorded as an asset on the balance sheet infi¢iadalebt- current portion”, was implemented wath
financial institution in July 2013. The initial terof one year (July 2014) was extended to July 2015
subsequent to the closing as of December 31, Z0&8amount financed and received represents US$
6,818 thousand and corresponds to 80% of the s¢ax credit receivable. Interest is paid monthly
over the duration of the contract.

Obligations under finance leases are effectivebuse as the rights to the leased asset reveheto t
lessor in the event of default.

22. Repayable advances

Other debts break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Repayable advances 852 3,443 3,592
Total 852 3,443 3,592
Other payables - Non-current portion 852 3,443 3,592

Other payables - Current portion - - -

The Group benefits from repayable advances fronfr@&pie (formerly OSEQ) for research and
innovation programs. These advances are repaydbknd only if the contractually defined
commercial objectives are achieved. The Group didreceive any additional repayable advances in
2013. No advance was repaid or recognized as thedilyi acquired during 2011, 2012 and 2013. The
repayment of these advances is subject to revebjgetives being achieved on the related projects.
Repayable advances are accounted for at their mbratue and do not bear interest. As the repayable
advances are denominated in Euros, the amountdetan the balance sheet may be affected by
exchange rate fluctuations.
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23. Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined benefit pension pl&rance and its obligations to employees in terms
of retirement benefits are limited to a lump surgrpant based on remuneration and length of service,
determined for each employee. In the UK the Gropprates under a defined contribution plan
whereby the Company’s liability is limited to itsrttributions.

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet azelatd as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Present value of unfunded obligations 1,183 1,749 5961

The movement in the defined obligation over therygas follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
As at January 1 897 1,183 1,749
Current service cost 121 144 231
Interest cost 46 52 55
Actuarial (losses)/gains 109 353 (341)
Exchange differences 10 17 74
Liabilties assumed as part of a business comlminati - - 172)
As at December 31 1,183 1,749 1,596

The amounts recognized in the income statemerasafellows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Current service cost 121 144 231
Interest cost 46 52 55
As at December 31 167 196 286

The principal actuarial assumptions used were l&sfs:

2011 2012 2013
Discount rate 4.30% 3.00% 3.11%
Salary growth rate (including inflation) 3% 3% 3%
Inflation rate 2% 2% 2%

Assumptions regarding future mortality expectaticare set based on data in accordance with
published statistics and experience in France.

The liability recognized as at December 31, 20k&g&anto account the latest regulations in terms of
pension obligations.

The sensitivity of the overall pension liability ehhanges in the weighted principal assumption is as
follows:

Change in assumption Impact on overall liability
Discount rate Increase/decrease of 0.25 points Deerbrcrease de 4,5%
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24. Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions for other liabilities and charges brdatvn as follows:

(in thousand dollars) Employee relatec Customer Restructuring Others Total
litigations claims

As at January 1, 2011 213 397 - 75 685
Charges / (credited) to the income statement:

- Additional provisions - - - - -
- Unused amounts reversed - (163) - (61) (224)
- Used during the year - (130) - - (130)
Exchange differences 8) 4 - @) (13)
As at December 31, 2011 205 100 - 13 318
Charges / (credited) to the income statement:

- Additional provisions - 299 - 200 498
- Unused amounts reversed - - - - -
- Used during the year (21) (57) - - (78)
Exchange differences 6 6 - 4 15
As at December 31, 2012 190 348 - 217 754
Charges / (credited) to the income statement:

- Additional provisions 170 207 1,571 - 1,948
- Unused amounts reversed (221) (65) - (286)
- Used during the year (96) (40) - - (136)
Exchange differences 10 22 - - 32
As at December 31, 2013 53 472 1,571 217 2,312

Employee related litigation

The Group is subject to legal proceedings ariginpé ordinary course of business. Management does
not expect that the ultimate costs necessary tdveshese matters will have a material adverseceff
on the Group’s consolidated financial positionutesf operations or cash flows.

Provision for restructuring expenses

As announced on March 6, 2013, INSIDE Secure hascleed a plan to reorganize its worldwide
business activities. This plan aims to reduce djpgraxpenses (as part of the overall redefinitibn
the Group’s strategic priorities in its markets) lmpvering administrative and marketing costs,
refocusing its research and development activitg @mproving operational efficiency. As at
December 31, 2013, INSIDE Secure has finalizeg@las to reduce its workforce both in France and

in the various countries covered by the plan. Apemse for severance payments and other related
costs amounting to US$ 7,136 thousand was recomle2D13. The Group has also recorded a
provision for restructuring expenses amounting 86,571 thousand relating to the latest departures
announced before closing, which are expected ®pédce during the first half of 2014.

These items have been recorded within ‘Other gailesses), net’ (see note 27).
Other provisions
The Group records research tax credit in the incetagement when all conditions described in note

2.17 are respected. In certain cases, all the sagedocumentation may not be available. In thieca
the corresponding research tax credit is recordeathaasset but the receivable is provided for.
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25. Deferred income

Deferred income breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Maintenance - 1,122 1,899
Licenses 2,372 4,240 779
Non refundable advance on order backlog - 6,460 -
As at December 31, 2,372 11,822 2,678

Deferred income for maintenance mainly relates$& Business activity.
Deferred income for licenses mainly relates to pyepents received from Intel Corporation.

The Group entered into an agreement with a custaueng the second half of 2012 according to
which it received an advance related to order lwackb be delivered before June 30, 2013 at the
latest. As at December 31, 2013, the Group recednén amount of US$ 3,777 thousand in revenue,
corresponding to the products not delivered withimtime period specified in the agreement, with th
Group having no further obligation towards the oostr. At that date, an amount of US$ 2,683
thousand was recorded in “Advance payments fromooeys”, as not all of the conditions for
revenue recognition had been met at the balanat dhte.

26. Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses break dowrnasgsol

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Research and development expense 41,833 44,1012,368
Share base payment 328 369 181
Research tax credit (7,054) (8,154) (8,566)
Grants (571) (946) (30)
Total 34,536 35,370 33,953

The amount of the research tax credit varies aaugitt the corresponding research effort, which can
fluctuate significantly by period according to thature and progress of ongoing projects and the
grants received.
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27. Other gains / (losses), net

Other gains / (losses), net break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Transaction costs related to acquisition of ESS - (554) (220)
Restructuring program linked to acquisition of SMS 514) (232) -
Impairment of assets acquired as part of acquis@iothe SMS business (1,713) - (379)
Reversal of intangible liabilities non recurrent 829 - -
Impairment of assets as a consequence of the oésting - - (1,132
Restructuring expenses incurred to date - - (7,136)
Provision for restructruring expenses remainingédncurred - - (1,571)
Foreign exchange gains/ (losses) on operatingigesiv - (2,025) (557)
Profit on disposal of equipment - - 297
Total (1,398) (2,811) (10,698)

The impairment of assets as part of the restrugysian relates to the write-down of the building a
East Kilbride, following the Group’s decision dugithe year to relocate due to onsite workforce
reductions, and given that it was unable to idgratifnarket for the sale or rental of these premises

All of the costs incurred as part of the restrucmiplan have been recorded in the line item “Other

gains / (losses), net”.

Operating exchange gains and losses relate to egehdifferences affecting revenue and operating
expenses concluded during the year as well asnipadt of the revaluation at closing rates of
operating assets and liabilities denominated imetwies other than the functional currency of the
consolidated companies. The classification of dpegaexchange gains and losses within other
operating losses and gains, net which is the pefanethod under IFRS was applied for the firsetim
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28. Expenses by nature

Expenses by nature break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012

2013

Purchase of wafers including inventory variation
Semi finished goods and consumables used

176, 60,020

60,391

21,649 9615,8 18,920

Depreciation, amortization, impairment charges waritk offs 4,468 4,972 4,002
Employees and compensation benefits 45,461 47,432 , 7054
Restructuring costs - - 8,707
Subcontracting and temporary work force 10,318 7,982 5,979
External services 7,030 11,900 9,814
Travel expenses and entertainment 4,103 3,768 3,586
Buildings and office leases 2,950 2,921 3,510
Advertising, promotion and trade shows 1,112 1,158 1,299
Fees, commissions and royalties 5,349 5,835 6,926
Grants and research tax credit (7,625) (9,100) (8,596)
External transaction costs related to acquisition 6 43 533 179
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assets 7%,2 4,517 12,251
Others 3,292 1,491 720
Total

175,930 159,325 182,390

The increase in 2013 in the line item “Employeed aompensation benefits” mainly relates to the
consolidation of ESS since December 1, 2012. Tihis item is also impacted by the departures of

employees under the restructuring plan.

29. Employee benefit expense

Employee benefit expense breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Wages and salaries including termination benefits ,2080 33,715 38,389
Social security costs 11,063 11,697 15,527
Shared based payments 2,000 1,880 555
Retirement benefit obligation 190 141 231
Total 43,461 47,432 54,702
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30. Finance income and expense

Finance income and expense breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Foreign exchange loss (4,628) (1,394) (320)
Interest expense (876) (854) (271)
Finance costs (5,504) (2,248) (591)
Foreign exchange gain 6,936 1,118 874
Interest income 71 872 506
Finance income 7,007 1,990 1,381
Finance income / (loss) , net 1,503 (258) 790

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to diahtransactions settled during the year, as all
the impact of the revaluation at closing rates ahcdenominated in Euros into US Dollars, are

recognized in financial result.
31. Income tax expense

The income tax expense breaks down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Taxcalculated at domestic taxrates applicableradits in the
respective countries
- France - - (261)
- Netherlands - (8) (223)
- United Kingdom - 156 -
- USA (69) (90) (43)
- Singapore - 0) -
- Poland (5) (8) (10)
- Japan - - (13)
- Finland - - (34)
(74) 51 (584)

The effective income tax charge differs from thedtetical amount that would arise from applying the
income tax rate calculated based on rates apptiéalitrance as a result of the following elements:

In thousands of US$ 2012 2012 2013
Loss before income tax (22,959) (37,536) (26,976)
Theoretical income tax (tax rate of 34.43%) 7,905 922 9,288
Effect of different tax rates in foreign taxjudcions (44) (30) (130)
Tax effect of

Unrecognized taxlosses during the period (9,606) 188 (12,383)
Research tax credit not liable to income tax 2,519 ,642 2,778
Share based payment (688) (687) (191)
Other permanent differences (159) 37 315
Other taxes - (53) (261)
Effective income tax (74) 51 (584)
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The unrecognized deferred tax assets as at Dece3hb2013 amount to US$ 72,835 thousand (US$
56,773 thousand as at December 31, 2012 and U8%X4thousand as at December 31, 2011) mainly
corresponding to the tax effect on the net opegdtisses carried forward in the French companies
which can be used against future taxable profitaufounlimited number of years.

32. Earnings per share
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividimgprofit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordighayes in issue during the year:

2011 2012 2013
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Compényhousand dollars) (23,033) (37,485) (27,560)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 21,703,410 31,586,909 33,993,56:
Basic loss per share ($ per share) (1.06) 1.19) (0.81)

The variation in earnings per share mainly resiutim the share capital increases realized over the
year which have an impact on the weighted averag#er of shares.

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dadmshe weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding with the shares which would be issue@ a&onsequence of the exercising of dilutive

financial instruments.

The Group has three categories of dilutive potéfitiancial instruments: free shares, warrants, and
stock options.

The number of shares calculated as above is comhpatte the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercising of the dilutiverimaents:

2011 2012 2013
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 21,703,410 31,586,909 33,993,56:
Adjustments for:
- Free shares - 509,870 739,130
- Warrants 34,132 - -
- Stock options 187,620 - -
Adjustments for treasury method (157,506) - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fotetiiearnings per share 21,767,656 32,096,77%4,732,69:
Diluted loss per share ($ per share) (1.06) 2.17) (0.79)

The final vesting of certain free shares, warraamd stock options plans was conditional on the
occurrence of an initial public offering or a charig control. As the IPO was realized on February 1
2012, the free shares, warrants and options rglédirthe plans concerned have been included in the
calculation of the diluted earnings per share.
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Warrants and stock options related to on-goingglaave an exercise price exceeding the share price
as at December 31, 2013 and have therefore not taéen into account for the calculation of the
diluted earnings per share.

For the purposes of the table above, warrants to# sptions are included in the diluted earnings p
share calculation through the treasury stock metfde treasury stock method assumes that the
proceeds from the exercise of warrants and stottkrgpare used to repurchase common stock.

For accounting purposes, when dilutive instruméxatge the result that the dilutive loss per share is
less than the basic loss per share, the impagclutifvé instruments is not taken into account.

33. Commitments
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balaheesdate but not yet incurred is as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013

Equipment - 288 39
Intangible assets - Licenses - - -

Total - 288 39

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices under non-cancellableatipgr lease agreements. The majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the ledsé jpé market rates.

The Group also leases certain equipment under Balbleeoperating lease agreements.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments uraecancellable operating leases are as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013

Gross finance lease liabilities - minimum leas erpayt

No later than 1 year 1,356 738 1,048
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1,932 9 19 4,192
Later than 5 years - - 612
Total 3,288 937 5,852

The Group entered into an operating lease contra®tigust 2012 for a building which now serves as
its head office. The initial duration of the leasé years. The future lease payments over 6 yaars
included in the table above.
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(c) Other commitments

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Raw material purchasing - LFoundry 48,690 27,061

Committed finance lease - Material not yet receéive - - -
Security bonds 390 390 -
Total 49,080 27,451 -

A Wafer purchase agreement between Atmel Corp.thedCompany was signed as part of the
acquisition of the SMS division of Atmel on SeptemBO0, 2010, whereby the Company committed to
partially take on the obligation previously held Atmel to purchase a minimum number of wafers
from the company LFoundry on an annual basis foméBths beginning on the acquisition date and
on a declining basis, at prices predetermined endbntract. As at December 31, 2013, all of the
commitments have been respected. LFoundry has neased all operations and liquidation

procedures were initiated in December 2013.

34. Related party transactions
(a) Transactions with related companies

Three of the members of the Company’s Supervisooar® are also members of the Board of
Mobiwire (formerly Sagem Wireless, now in liquidat) in 2011. The Group conducted transactions
with Mobiwire in the first quarter of 2011. Eaclatisaction was for a non-significant amount and was
negotiated without the personal involvement of Sheervisory Board members and Management
believes that they were made on an arm’s lengtis Iratine with market practices and conditions.

The Group purchases audit and consulting services the company Leyton & Associés who share a
common shareholder with the Group in the investrfiemt GIMV. These services were negotiated on
an arm’s length basis, without the involvementhaf tommon shareholder, and amounted to US$ 219
thousand, US$ 201 thousand and US$ 227 thousaDi&, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(b) Key management compensation

Key management is composed of Management Board ersmbhe compensation paid or payable to
key management for employee services is as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2011 2012 2013
Salary 1,451 1,519 2,377
Share based compensation expenses 1,184 920 144
Total 2,635 2,439 2,522

35. Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events occurring sincedbdmer 31, 2013 to report.

36. Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements as at Dece8the2013 include the accounts of the Company

and the following entities:
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Country Entity Holding percentage First Acquisition/

! 2011 2012 2013consolidation  creation
USA INSIDE Secure Corporation 100% 100% 100% 2002 Creatio
Singapore INSIDE Secure (Asia) Pte Ltd 100% 100% 100% 0720 Creation
France Vault-IC France SA 100% 100% 100% 201¢ Acquisitior
United Kingdon  Vault-IC UK Ltd 100% 100% 100% 201(¢ Acquisttior
Poland INSIDE Secure Sp.z.0.0 100% 100% 100% 2008 Creatio
Holland INSIDE Secure B.V - 100% 100% 2012 Acquisition
Hollanc INSIDE Secure Amsterdam B - 100% 100% 201z Acquisttior
Finlanc INSIDE Secure C - 100% 100% 201z Acquisitior
Japan INSIDE Secure K.K - - 100% 2013 Creation

The Group acquired Embedded Security Solutions eceber 1, 2012. As part of the transaction
which was a combination of an asset and a sharke ttheaGroup acquired 100% of the shares of
INSIDE Secure B.V (formerly AuthenTec B.V), whicloeltds 100% of the shares of INSIDE Secure
Amsterdam B.V (formerly AuthenTec Amsterdam B.VH&t00% of the shares of INSIDE Secure Oy
(formerly AuthenTec Oy), companies dedicated to R&idl product engineering.

In January 2013, the Company created a wholly-ovauedidiary in Japan, INSIDE Secure KK.

20.2 Proforma financial information

Not applicable.

20.3 Financial statements

Not applicable.
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20.4 Verification of the annual historical financial information

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit Antoine Olanda
63 rue de Villiers 38 parc du Golf
92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine 13856 Aix-en-Provence

The report below is a free translation into Englishthe Statutory Auditors’ report issued in the
French language and is provided solely for the emi@nce of English speaking readers. This report
should be read in conjunction with, and construe@écordance with, French law and professional
auditing standards applicable in France.

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
To the Management Board,

In our capacity as statutory auditors of Inside UBecwe have audited the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2@IP, @nd 2013 which have been presented in
accordance with International Financial Reportingn8ards as adopted by the European Union, as
attached in chapter 20.1 of this present document.

These consolidated financial statements have begablshed under the responsibility of the
management board. Our role is to express an opondhese consolidated financial statements, based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with profesdicstandards applicable in France; those
standards require that we plan and perform thet éadibtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of r@tenisstatement. An audit involves performing
procedures, using sampling techniques or other adstlof selection, to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidateshfimal statements. An audit also includes evalgatin
the appropriateness of accounting policies usedladeasonableness of accounting estimates made,
as well as the overall presentation of the conatéid financial statements. We believe that thetaudi
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apat#pto provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteesstablished for the purposes of this reference
document, present fairly, and in all material aspet accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the Europeannptie assets and financial position as at
December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, and the resuheofwhole group constituted by all entities
included in the consolidation for each of the yeéhes ended.

Neuilly-sur-Seine and Aix-en-Provence, July 31,4201

The Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit ,
Philippe Willemin Antoine Olanda
Partner
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20.5 Date of most recent financial information

The most recent financial information availableeddrom June 30, 2014.

20.6 Interim financial statements

20.6.1 Interim Consolidated Financial Statement as of Bihe014

Interim consolidated income statement

In thousands of US$ Note 6-month period ended
June 30,2013 June 30,2014

Revenue 8 70 765 64 247
Cost of sales (49 945) (32 386)
Gross profit 20821 31 860

Research and development expenses 19 (19 263) (18 961)
Selling and marketing expenses (10 770) (10 659)
General and administrative expenses (4991) (6 422)
Other gains / (losses), net 20 (6 356) (1517)
Operating loss (20 559) (5 699)
Finance income / (loss), net 21 (222) 538

Loss before income tax (20 781) (5162)
Income taxexpense (221) (315)

Loss for the period (21 002) (5477)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (21 002) (5477)
Non-controlling interests - -

Earnings per share attributable to the equity holdes of the Company during the period

Basic earnings per share (0,62) (0,16)

Diluted earnings per share (0,62) (0,16)
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Interim consolidated statement of comprehensiverme

In thousands of US$ 6-month period ended
June 30,2013 June 30,2014

Loss for the period (21 002) (5477)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on retirement benefit obtipns - (3)
Non-reclassifiable components of other comprehensvncome - 3)
Financial instrument fair value changes (131) (372)
Currency translation differences (313) 79
Reclassifiable components of other comprehensivedome (444) (293)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the perned of tax (444) (296)
Total comprehensive loss for the period (21 446) (5773)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (21 446) (5773)
Non-controlling interest -

Total comprehensive loss for the period (21 446) (5773)

21¢



Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are exmess thousands of US$

Interim consolidated balance sheet — Assets

In thousands of US$ Note December 31,2013 June 30,2014
Goodwill 7 15 287 25 448
Investments accounted for under the equity method - 862
Intangible assets 10 32720 31945
Property and equipment 11 10411 7143
Other receivables 13 24 863 28 227
Non-current assets 83 282 93625
Inventories 12 14 830 10 857
Trade receivables 17 521 10550
Other receivables 13 7 652 8 746
Derivative financial instruments 587 57
Cash and cash equivalents 14 40 213 38771
Current assets 80 804 68 980
Total assets 164 086 162 605
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Interim consolidated balance sheet — Equity aralliiees

In thousands of US$ Note December 31,2013 June 30, 2014
Ordinary shares 15 17 822 17 836
Share premium 15 225 599 225 71€
Other reserves 14 140 14119
Retained earnings (134 053) (161 613)
Income / (loss) for the period (27 560) (5477)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Compary 95 947 90 580
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 95 947 90 580
Intangible liabilities - Non-current portion 7 7962 6 429
Borrowings 16 6 862 21050
Repayable advances 17 3592 6 348
Retirement benefit obligations 1596 1452
Non-current liahilities 20012 35278
Intangible liabilities - Current portion 7 3011 3235
Financial instruments 215 63
Trade and other payables 32525 28 227
Additional conditional payment 7 - 1013
Borrowings 16 7 386 500
Provisions for other liabilties and charges 18 2312 838
Unearned revenues 2678 2871
Current liabilities 48 127 36 747
Total liabilities 68 138 72025
Total equity and liabilities 164 086 162 605
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Interim consolidated statement of changes in equity

In thousands of US$ Attributable to equity holders of the Company Non- Total equity
Ordinary shares  Share premium Other Retained earnings Total controlling
resernes interests
Balance at January 1, 2013 17 822 225570 12 386 (134 053) 121725 - 121725
Loss for the period - - - (21 002) (21 002) (21 002)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on retirement benefit obfipns - - - - - -
Financial instrument fair value changes - - (131) - (131) (131)
Currency translation differences - - (313) - (313) (313)
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) - - (444) (21 002) (21 446) - (21 446)
Employee share option scheme: -
Value of employee services - - 375 - 375 - 375
Proceeds fromshares / warrants issued - 28 - - 28 - 28
Treasury shares - - 24 - 24 24
Balance as at June 30, 2013 17 822 225599 12 341 (155 055) 100 707 - 100 707
Balance at January 1, 2014 17 822 225599 14 140 (161 613) 95 947 - 95947
Loss for the period - - - (5477) (5477) (5477)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on retirement benefit obfipns - - ©)] - ©)] ©)]
Financial instrument fair value changes - - (372) - (372) (372)
Currency translation differences - - 79 - 79 79
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) - - (296) (5477) (5773) - (5773)
Employee share option scheme: -
Value of employee services - - 239 - 239 - 239
Exercise of stock options 14 117 - - 130 - 130
Treasury shares - - 37 - 37 37
Balance as at June 30, 2014 17 836 225716 14 119 (167 091) 90 580 - 90580
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Interim consolidated statement of cash flow

In thousands of US$

6-month period ended

Notes June 30,2013 June 30,2014
Loss for the year (21 002) (5477)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of tangible assets 11 2752 2010
Amortization of intangible assets 10 6 908 7079
Impairment of fixed assets 140 1684
Impairment of receivables 132 (754)
Impairment of inventories 12 32 (291)
Financial result - (910)
(Profit) / loss on disposal of property and equiptme (155) -
Share-based payment 375 239
Change in retirement benefit obligation (51) (136)
Income tax 221 315
Variation in provisions for risks 18 4 826 (1 463)
Cash generated by / (used in) operations before alges in working capital (5 886) 2297
Changes in working capital
Inventories (6 213) 4265
Trade receivables 1252 8274
Trade receivables transferred (4729) (603)
Other receivables (585) (1117)
Research taxcredit and grants (4 606) (3389)
Trade and other payables 6 683 1078
Non refundable advance on order backlog - (2 683)
Other payables (1 247) (3797)
Cash generated by / (usedin) changes in workingyatal (9 445) 2028
Cash generated by / (used in) operations (15 330) 4 325
Interest received, net 37 (252)
Income tax paid (106) (584)
Net cash usedin operating activities (15 399) 3489
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired - (13 036)
Additional payment related to the ESS acquisition (5188) -
Investments accounted for under the equity method (952)
Purchases of property and equipment 11 (1852) (506)
Purchases of intangible assets 10 (382) (523)
Research and development capitalized costs 10 (696) 55
Payments corresponding to intangible liabilities (592) (399)
Disposal of fixed assets 165 -
Net cash usedin investing activities (8 545) (15 361)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissuance of ordinary shares, nesofince costs 15 28 130
Repayable advance - 2 756
Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) borrowings, nessfiance costs 16 - 7 606
Principal repayment under finance lease (253) (245)
Treasury shares 24 36
Bank overdraft (276)
Net cash generated by / (usedin) financing actiiés 477) 10 283
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (24 421) (1 588)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 66 321 40 213
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (53) 147
Cash, cash equivalents at end of the period 14 41 846 38771
Elements with no cash impact:
New finance leases 312 -
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Notes to the interim consolidated financial statenmds
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Notes to the interim consolidated financial statenmds

1. General Information

Inside Secure (“the Company”) and its subsidiaftegether “the Group”) provide comprehensive
embedded security solutions for mobile and conmecdkevices. This offer is based on internally
developed intellectual property that can be licdnse sold as well as software solutions and
semiconductors produced through a fabless businedsl.

Shares of the Company are listed on the Euronestiaarge in Paris (compartment B) under the Isin
code FR0010291245.

The Company is a limited liability company (“soé@é&nonyme”). The address of its registered office
is Arteparc Bachasson, rue de la carriere de Baohadeyreuil (13590), France.

The interim consolidated financial statements fog six month period ended June 30, 2014 were
approved by the Management Board on July 30, 2014.

The half-year consolidated financial statementsewsubject to limited review by the Statutory
Auditors.

2. Basis of preparation

The Group has not filed any registration documentesits admission to the regulated stock market in
2012. The financial statements published by the psoty during the last two years include
comparisons with previous years. Therefore, in oraléacilitate their reading, the Group has pregar
financial statements over three years for the mepof this present registration document. These
financial statements are the same as those putlishehe previous two years, with the exception of
Note 8 “Segment information” in which informatioorf 2011 has been amended in order to be
presented consistently with the definition of opiegsegments implemented in October 2013.

These interim consolidated financial statementstiier six months ended June 30, 2014 have been
prepared in accordance with IAS 34, “Interim fin@hceporting”.

The interim consolidated financial statements shdad read in conjunction with the annual financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 20L8hwiere prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Presentation currency

The Group has elected to present its consolidéteddial statements in US Dollars. The US Dollar is
the functional currency of the Company, and theenay in which the majority of transactions within
the Group are denominated.

The exchange rates of the US Dollar against the,Ebe main currency used by the Group after the
US Dollar, are as follows for the six months endese 30, 2014 and 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2013:

Euro/ US Dollar June 20, 2013 December 31, June 30, 2014
2013
Closing rate 1.3080 1.3791 1.3658
Average rate 1.3135 1.3282 1.3705
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3. Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted by the Group initierim consolidated financial statements as at
June 30, 2014 are consistent with those of theiquevfiscal year, except for taxes on income in
interim periods which are accrued using the tas that would be applicable to expected total annual
profit or loss.

Standards, amendments and interpretations whodeatmm is mandatory from January 1, 2014 are
as follows:

* |IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

e IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement

* IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

« Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates amt Yentures

* Amendment to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets Bimtancial Liabilities

« Amendment to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount DisclostmedNon-Financial Assets
* Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recogniand Measurement

The standards, amendments and interpretations vepgieation is mandatory from January 1, 2014
do not have a significant impact on the interimsmidated financial statements for the six months
ended June 30, 2014.

Standards, amendments and interpretations whodieatmm is not mandatory from January 1, 2014
but which could be early adopted are as follows:

« Amendment to IAS 16/IAS 28 which offers clarificati on acceptable methods of
depreciation

* Amendment to IAS 19 Defined benefit schemes : stadfitributions

 Amendment to IFRS 11 Acquisition of an intereshijoint operation

 Amendments in 2010-2012 IFRS Cycle

 Amendments in 2011-2013 IFRS Cycle

* IFRIC 21, Tax.

The Group chose not to early adopt these standandsndments and interpretations in the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six merghded June 30, 2014, and considers that they
should not have a significant impact on its resoitBnancial situation.

The IASB has published the following standards, raaineents and interpretations which could be
early adopted from January 1, 2014 but which hateyet been adopted by the European Union:
 |FRS 9, Financial instruments ;
* IFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts
 |FRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

4, Estimates

The preparation of interim financial statementsunexzs management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of asting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expense. Actual resulhy differ from these estimates.

In preparing these interim consolidated financi@tesments, the significant judgments made by

management in applying the Group's accounting iesliand the key sources of estimation uncertainty
were the same as those that applied to the coasedidfinancial statements for the year ended
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December 31, 2013, with the exception of changesstimates that are required in determining the
provision for income taxes (see Note 3).

5. Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety official risks: market risk (including currency rigdr
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest réagk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

The interim consolidated financial statements dd mxlude all financial risk management
information and disclosures required in the annfi@ncial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group's annual financial stadats as at December 31, 2013.

There have been no changes in the risk managerkeiep since December 31, 2013.
Market risk

The Group operates internationally and is expoedoreign exchange risk arising from transactions
denominated in currencies other than the US ddher functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency of the Group.

The operating result and cash flows of the Growpadfected by foreign exchange rate fluctuations,
principally by fluctuations between the Euro ane US Dollar.

For example, the Group estimates that the impaabsolute terms of a variation of +10% or -10% of
this rate on its operating result for the six merghded June 30, 2014, would have been + /- U8$ 28
thousand. The impact on shareholders’ equity whialde been + / - US$ 359 thousand. To mitigate
this risk, the Group has implemented a hedgingcpdb preserve its profitability and cash levels.

The Group mitigates its exposure to foreign curyeftactuations by matching its cash inflows and
outflows denominated in the same currency to thenéxpossible, resulting in a natural hedge. The
Group also uses derivative financial instrumentshsas currency forward contracts and options to
hedge against foreign currency fluctuations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group wide basis. €nesk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
derivative financial instruments and deposits wiinks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding vabés and committed transactions.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the Finan@pagtment. Management monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirementsetasure it has sufficient cash to meet operational
needs.

6. Seasonality

The analysis of the data relating to the periocedridecember 31, 2013 and the period ended June 20,
2014 does not show any clear patterns in termseafanality aside from a slight structural
overweighting in the second half of the year coragato the first. However, bearing in mind the
industry in which the Company operates, its revatarebe significantly impacted over a given period
by the commercialisation of new products. As subh, financial information relating to the interim
periods presented are not necessarily representatinose which are expected for the whole year.
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7. Business Combinations
Metaforic

On April 5, 2014, the Group acquired 100% of tharshk of the the Metaforic Group, specializing in
the development of software obfuscation technokgied encryption-related security, its main focus
being on mobile payment and mobile banking markets.

This Group comprises two entities based in England in the USA. It encompasses research and
development teams as well as sales and marketiagnstededicated to the activity, patented
technology, tangible assets, working capital (nigtélventories, trade receivables and social amd ta
debts related to transferred employees) and cash.

On completion of the sale, INSIDE Secure transtemetotal of US$ 13,050 thousand taking into
account an initial estimation of working capitatjuerements and the reimbursement by the Group of a
debt relating to a shareholder loan on behalf efdgdller. Subsequently, a reduction on the purchase
price amounting to US$ 150 thousand was accordetiedGroup in order to account for the final
valuation of working capital requirements. The #fen of this price reduction should take placehia t
second half of 2014. Finally, subject to the achiegnt of different sales objectives fixed for 2014,
the Group could make a maximal additional payméht®$ 4.5 thousand in 2015.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchasee gliilecluding additional payments and price
adjustments) over the fair value of the identifiessets and liabilities being transferred. Goodwill
amounts to US$ 10,039 thousand and is primarilsibateble to the assembled workforce being
transferred and the expected synergies resultorg the combination of activities. This goodwill has
been fully allocated to the “Mobile security” diigs.

The Group proceeded with a temporary allocatiothefpurchase price over net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

The value of identified assets and liabilities, a&hé initial allocation of the purchase price are
presented as follows:

In thousands of

Note Us$

Cash paid at closing 11557
Reimbursement of a shareholder's loan on behéifeoseller 1493
Cash paid at closing 13 050
Final working capital adjustment (150)
Fair value of the additional payment conditionmeitie achievement of commercial objectives 1013
Purchase price consideration (i) 13912
Net book value Fair value Fair value

adiustments

Intangible assets - 4969 @) 4969
Property, plant and equipment 34 - 34
Inventory - - -
Other assets 67 - 67
Cash and cash equivalents 14 - 14
Other liabilities (893) - (893)
Deferred income (318) - (318)

Net assets acquired and liahilities assumed (i) (1 096) 4969 3873
Goodwill (i) - (ii) 10039

The initial goodwill shown above remains subjecfuidher evolution over the course of the 12 month
allocation period authorized by IFRS 3.
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(1) Intangible assets amounting to US$ 4,969 thousanespond to patented technology. This
patented technology has been valued using the uised royalties cash flow method based
on an estimated useful life of 5 years for techg@e concerned. This intangible asset will be
amortized on a straight line basis over its esthatseful life and amortization expenses for
this intangible asset will be shown under the itee“Cost of sales”.

The impact of the amortization of patented techgwlduring the six month period ended June 30,
2014 amounts to US$ 283 thousand.

The contribution of the Metaforic activity to Grougvenue and operating result is not significant fo
the period.

Embedded Security Solutions

On December 1, 2012, the Group acquired Embeddedri8eSolutions (“ESS”). ESS designs and
develops encryption-related security hardware ledalal property (IP) and software for a variety of
industries, including the mobile and networking keds. Revenue is generated through licenses,
royalties, services and maintenance fees.

As part of the acquisition, research and developraad sales and marketing teams were transferred
to the Group. The seller also transferred intaregamdsets, including intellectual property licensing
royalties and internally developed software, talegdssets, working capital (notably inventorieadé
receivables and social and tax debts related tsfeered employees) and cash.

Upon acquisition, Inside Secure paid a purchaseepsf $US 43,256 thousand based on an initial
estimate of working capital requirements. Subsetiyi@nreduction on the purchase price amounting
to US$ 503 thousand was accorded to the Grougk®itéo account the final amount of this working

capital requirement. The payment of this purchagse peduction was received by the Group during
the first half of 2013. Inside Secure paid an add#l amount of US$ 5,188 thousand during the first
half of 2013, linked to certain conditions that edully met as at April 1, 2013. The additionalgeri

is shown in the line item ‘Acquisition of ESS, atilohal price paid’ in the interim consolidated cash
flow statement.

The goodwill corresponding to the excess of thelpase price consideration (including any additions
to or potential purchase price adjustments) contpswethe combined total of the fair value of the
assets acquired, the identifiable intangible assetsthe liabilities assumed, amounts to US$ 11,906
thousand, and is mainly attributable to the expertf the assembled workforce and the expected
synergies that will result from the combination adtivities. This goodwill is allocated to the
“Embedded Security Solutions” business. The Graapried out impairment testing as at December
31, 2013 and concluded that there was no neecctwdémpairment on goodwill for possible loss of
value.

The impact of amortization of intangible assetstf@ six month periods ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 break down as follows (in thousands of US$):

6-month period  6-month period ended

ltem Income statement line item ended June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014
Amortization of intellectual property licensing ralies Cost of sales (5084) (5015)
Amortization of internally developed software Co$tales (259) (259)
Amortization of internally developed software Resdaand development expenses (158) (129)
Impact on operating loss (5501) (5 404)
Impact on loss for the period (5501) (5 404)
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Secure Microcontroller Solutions

On September 30, 2010 the Group acquired Atmel @atpn's (Nasdaq: ATML) Secure
Microcontroller Solutions (“SMS”). This businesssigns and markets microcontroller products and
solutions that protect data contained in embeddethanies against a wide variety of attacks and
offers firmware and turnkey solutions to customeits no security expertise.

Goodwill recognized at the date of the transactiorounting to US$ 2,993 thousand was assigned in
its entirety to “Secured Transactions”. The Growpried out impairment testing as at closing
December 31, 2013 and concluded that there waseed o record impairment on goodwill for
possible loss of value.

Regarding the allocation of the price of acquisitithe Group recognized a certain number of taagibl
and intangible assets, including; those linkecdetthology patents, a backlog of orders to be delde
and masks. Furthermore the Group recognized dityaborresponding to a disadvantageous license
agreement.

The impact of depreciation and amortization andreals related to licence agreement liabilities on

the income statement for the six months ended 30n2014 and June 30, 2013 can be analysed as
follows:

6-month period  6-month period ended

ltem Income statement line item ended June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014
Depreciation of masks Cost of sales (633) (366)
Depreciation of masks Research and development expenses (189) (109)
Amortization of patented technologies Research anctbpment expenses (694) (538)
Amortization of backlog Selling and marketing expenses - -
Reversal of intangible liability Cost of sales 592 399
Impact on operating loss (924) (615)
Undiscounting of intangible liabilities Finance irmoe, net 30 859
Impact on loss for the period (894) 244

8. Operating segment information

Management has determined the operating segmerdsd ban the reports reviewed by the
Management Board that are used to make strategisioles.

In October 2013, the Group redefined its operasegments so as to adapt to its reorganizationand t
the new internal reporting system to the managertearh. The Group now operates around two

complementary operating segments, which targeérdifit markets, products, solutions and customers
whilst maintaining a common platform for researold development, intellectual property, operations,

and a global sales force:

* Mobile security: this division gathers the Groupfger in all mobile communication matters,
to provide a comprehensive suite of embedded sgaoiutions for all mobile and connected
devices. The offer includes IPs, software solutiand semi-conductors capable of addressing
the growing needs for a full range of security §ohs on all mobile platforms, securing M-
payments, content, data communications and datagsto

e Secure transactions: this division unites the Goffer dedicated to address high security
issues for smart cards, ID, payments but alsoralisactions involved in the M2M and
Internet of Things universe. This division buildaildred solutions based on secure
microcontrollers, with embedded secure firmware asgbciated services.
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The segment information provided to the Managentodrd for the reportable segments for the
period ended June 30, 2013 and 2014 breaks dofali@ss:

In thousands of US$ Common Total per

Mobile Secure unallocated management Reconciliationto ~ Consolidated
As at June 30, 2013 security transactions *) reporting IFRS IFRS reporting
Revenue 26 843 43 922 - 70 765 - 70 765
Adjusted gross margin 13797 14 463 (1 410) 26 850 n KRS measure
Operating income (20 559) - (20 559)
Adjusted operating result (9 619) 4 493 (1187) (6)313 Non IFRS measure
EBITDA (9 101) 6 745 (1187) (3543) Non IFRS measure
Financial income - net (222) (222) - (222)
Income tax (221) (221) - (221)
Net income / (loss) (442) (21 002) - (21 002)

*Unallocated amount corresponds to restructurireggds (US$ 6,564 thousand), and industrial var&@a(ld&$ 1,409 thousand).

In thousands of US$ Common Total per

Mobile Secure unallocated management Reconciliationto ~ Consolidated
As at June 30, 2014 security transactions *) reporting IFRS IFRS reporting
Revenue 32 750 29 984 1513 64 247 - 64 247
Adjusted gross margin 28 441 7 868 1513 37822 IR&®E measure
Operating income (5699) - (5699)
Adjusted operating result 6 749 (5504) 1995 3240 on NFRS measure
EBITDA 7201 (3570) 1995 5627 Non IFRS measure
Financial income - net 538 538 - 538
Income tax (315) (315) - (315)
Net income / (loss) 223 (5477) - (5477)

* Unallocated amount corresponds to non recurretgevenue (US$ 1,513 thousand) and to the impairofeassets acquired as part of the acquisition
of business (US$ 1,683 thousand).

Adjusted operating result is not a measure of dgpgy@erformance or liquidity under IFRS.

Adjusted gross profit is defined as gross proffiobe (i) amortization of intangible assets relattog
business combinations and depreciation of masksir@ehas part of a business combination, (ii)
potential impairment of goodwill, (iii) expense kied to share-based payments and (iv) non-recurring
costs relating to restructuring programs and adtipris by the Group.

Adjusted operating result is defined as operategult before (i) amortization of intangible assets
relating to business combinations and depreciatbnmasks acquired as part of a business
combination, (ii) potential impairment of goodwi(iji) expense linked to share-based payments and
(iv) non-recurring costs relating to restructurprggrams and acquisitions by the Group.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating result befamortization and depreciation expenses not
relating to business combinations.

Adjusted gross profit, adjusted operating resutt adjusted EBITDA as presented may not be strictly
comparable to measures with similar names as pegbely other companies.

22¢



Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are exmess thousands of US$

The reconciliation from Company reporting to coidatled IFRS reporting (audited) is as follows:

(in thousands of US$)

6-month period ended
June 30,2014

June 30, 2013

Gross profit as per IFRS

Share based payments

Amortization and depreciation of acquired assamfEMS
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assetmfESS
Amortization and depreciation of acquired asseaimfMetaforic
Adjusted gross profit

20821
54
633
5343

26 850

31860

38
366
5274
284

37 822

(in thousands of US$)

6-month period ended
June 30, 2014

June 30, 2013

Operating loss as per IFRS (20 559) (5 699)
Share based payments 377 239
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assa@mfEM S 1516 1014
Amortization and depreciation of acquired assa@mfESS 5472 5404
Amortization and depreciation of acquired asseatmfMetaforic - 283
Restructuring expenses 6 564 (28)
Direct transaction costs related to the acquisiibBESS 179 -
Direct transaction costs related to the acquisitibi etaforic - 345
Impairment of assets 140 -
Impairment of assets acquired from SMS - 1683
Adjusted operating result (6 313 3240
Depreciation and amortization of tangible and igiaie assets which are not

related to the acquisition of business 2771 2 387
EBITDA (3542) 5627

The revenue by geographical region for the six im®ended June 30, 2013 and 2014 is as follows:

Europe Middle

East, Africa,
(In thousands of US$) Asia Latin America North America Total
6-month period ended June 30, 2013 10 717 33 445 26 603 70 765
6-month period ended June 30, 2014 6 770 21 024 36 453 64 247

Geographically, management has allocated revengedban the location where the goods are
delivered or the services are rendered, excepthiorsales with three major customers, which were

allocated based on the location of their head edfic

The top ten customers of the Group represented @6¥te total consolidated revenue for the period
ended June 30, 2013, and 65% of revenue for thedpended June 30, 2014.

Customers individually representing more than 100the total consolidated turnover for the six
month periods ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 breek ae follows:
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(In thousands of US$)

6-month period ended June 30, 20: Invoiced amount Segment
Client 1 9594 Mobile security
Client 2 8 034 Secure transactions
Client 3 6 947 All segments

Client 4 4 046 Secure transactions
Client 5 3806 All segments

Client 6 3342 All segments

(In thousands of US$)

6-month period ended June 30, 20: Invoiced amount Segment

Client 1 18 430 Mobile security

Client 2 5910 Secure transactions

Client 3 3970 Secure transactions

Client 4 3160 Secure transactions
9. Revenue

Revenue for the six month periods ended June 3B 26d 204 breaks down as follows:

6-month period ended

In thousands of US$ June 30,2013 June 30,2014
Revenue on products sold 57 363 32161
Revenue from development and licence agreements 5397 22110
Royalties 6 193 8 035
Maintenance 1812 1942
Total 70 765 64 247

Over the period the Group performed services redato a contract signed in 2011 with Intel
Corporation. On June 13, 2014 the Group and Inbep@ration finalized a new licensing agreement
relating to INSIDE’s technology and NFC patentsistheplacing the previous agreement.

Under the terms of the concluded agreement, INS3BEure has:

- Extended the pre-existing worldwide, perpetualdgzeit had with Intel into a broad, royalty-
free and fully paid-up license, with INSIDE Secuegaining ownership of most of the related
intellectual property assets and rights;

- Transferred to Intel its MicroRead-v5 next-genenatNFC hardware and software modem
technology currently under development togetheh wértain related tangible and intangible
assets, including certain IP assets.

INSIDE Secure received from Intel US$ 19.2 milliarcash at closing.
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This payment corresponds to the revenue recogffiteetthe initial contract and the new agreements,

from which:

- US$ 1,114 thousand was recognized as revenue duerfgurth quarter of 2013

- US$ 999 thousand was recognized as revenue dinenfiy$t quarter of 2014

- US$ 17,087 thousand was recognized as revenuggdhersecond quarter of 2014

10. Intangible assets

Intangible assets break down as follows:

In thousands of US$

Patented
technologies

Software
licenses

Royalties on intellectual

developed

Technologies in
development

6-month period ended June 30, 2013

Opening net book amount 3385 2895 31 346 2265 2161 42 052
Additions - 412 - - 412
Exchange differences (11) (11)
Work in progress - - - - 696 696
Depreciation charge (694) (770) (5084) (388) (6 937)
Closing net book amount 2691 2527 26 261 1876 2 857 36212
At June 30, 2013

Cost or valuation 1544 5651 9253 31576 2330 2857 53210
Accumulated depreciation (1 544) (2 960) (6 727) (5 315) (453) - (16 998)
Net book amount 2691 2526 26 261 1877 2 857 36 212
6-month period ended June 30, 2014

Opening net book amount 2153 2358 21177 1488 5543 32720
Additions 1369 17 - 1386
Acquisition of business 4969 - 4969
Exchange differences @ )
Work in progress - - - - (55) (55)
Depreciation charge (822) (848) (5015) (388) (7 074)
Closing net book amount 7669 1526 16 162 1100 5488 31945
AtJune 30,2014

Cost or valuation 1544 11989 8505 31576 2330 5488 61432
Accumulated depreciation (1544) (4 320) (6 979) (15 415) (1230) - (29 488)
Net book amount 7 669 1526 16 161 1100 5488 31945

Finance leases included in intangible assets lifeak as follows:

In thousands of US$

December 31, 2013

June 30,2014

Gross value 936 936
Accumulated amortization (746) (835)
Net book value 191 101
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11. Property and equipment

Property and equipment break down as follows:

In thousands of US$ Leasehold Equipment Furniture and Masks Total

improvements other office

equipment

6-month period ended June 30, 2013
Opening net book amount 1685 3549 2086 5490 108
Additions 30 121 369 732 1252
Exchange differences (76) (29 (49) (45) (200)
Impairment - (140) - - (140)
Retirement - (248) 27) - (275)
Work in progress 912 - - - 912
Depreciation charge (279) (1087) (449) (937) (2 752)
Depreciation retirement - 248 17 - 265
Closing net book amount 2272 2413 1947 5240 1138
At June 30, 2013
Cost or valuation 5271 10381 5779 14 425 35855
Accumulated depreciation (2999) (7 967) (3831) (9186 (23982)
Net book amount 2272 2414 1948 5239 11873
6-month period ended June 30, 2014
Opening net book amount 2218 2684 926 4584 10411
Additions 76 220 197 13 506
Acquisition of business 17 - 14 - 31
Exchange differences 34 2 3 (43) 5)
Impairment - - - (1 684) (1 684)
Retirement - (217) (129) - (346)
Scrap (net book amount) (13) @) - - (20)
Work in progress 8) - - - 8)
Depreciation charge (227) (559) (503) (721) (2 010)
Depreciation retirement - 155 114 - 268
Closing net book amount 2096 2278 621 2149 7143
At June 30, 2014
Cost or valuation 5483 9650 6 033 15 559 36 724
Accumulated depreciation (3387) (7 373) (5412 (18 40 (29 581)
Net book amount 2096 2277 621 2149 7143

Depreciation expenses of US$ 2,010 thousand haam teeognized within cost of sales, research and
development expenses, selling and marketing experss®l general and administrative expenses
according to the corresponding assets’ allocatié®$( 2,752 thousand for the six months ended June

30, 2013).

Finance leases included in property and equipnismteaare as follows:

In thousands of US$

December 31, 2013

June 30, 2014

Gross book value 1872 1872
Accumulated depreciation (1 063) (1307)
Net book value 809 565
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Expenses relating to the operating lease of bkliand furniture amounting to US$ 909 thousand
(US$ 1,498 thousand in the six month period endee B0, 2013) were accounted for in the income
statement for the six months ended June 30, 2014.

12. Inventories

Inventories break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) December 31, 2013 June 30, 201
Semi-finished and finished goods 21780 17704
Developements in progress 188 -
Less: provision for impairment of obsolete items 138) (6 847)
Total 14 830 10 857

Movements on the Group provision for impairmenbb$olete inventories are as follows:

(In thousands of US$) 2013 2014
At January 1 (4 038) (7 138)
Impairment of obsolete items (1 237) (1239)
Inventory written off during the year 605 907
Unused amounts reversed 664 623
At June 30, (4 006) (6 847)

13. Other assets

Other assets can be analyzed as follows:

(In thousands of US$) December 31, 2013 June 30, 2014
Deposits 527 501
Research tax credit 24 337 27726
Pre-payments 2116 4519
VAT receivables 2596 2 555
Other receivables 1049 880
Prepaid 736 556
Factoring reserve 172 159
Credit notes to be received 984 77
Total 32516 36 973
Other assets - Non current portion 24 863 28 227
Other assets - Current portion 7 653 8 746

The Group is not eligible to immediate reimburset@nthe Research Tax Credit (RTC) the RTC
receivable acquired during the period (US$ 3,538usland) is recorded in the line item “Other
receivables — Non-current portion”. In accordandth wwenerally accepted accounting principles, the
RTC receivable is not discounted. The Group hasitaigied, within “Other receivables — Non-current
portion” RTC receivable acquired in 2011 (US$ 7,1B0usand), 2012 (US$ 8, 441 thousand) and
2013 (US$ 8,566 thousand).
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Financing has been obtained and put in place wathking partners. It is recognized in financial
liabilities in accordance with IAS 39 and has tbkofving respective terms:

- RTC receivable 2011: June 2015
- RTC receivable 2012: July 2015
- RTC receivable 2013: June 2017

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) December 31,2013 June 30,2014
Cash at bank and on hand 23824 38611
Marketable securities (1) 10 389 160
Cash invested in short term securities (2) 6 000 -
Total 40 213 38771

(1) Marketable securities correspond to investmentsitual funds measured at fair value against
profit and loss. These securities are consideradgls equivalents as they are highly liquid, have
sensitivity to interest rates of less than 0.25;eha volatility of almost 0 and are part of an
investment strategy which excludes stocks.

(2) Short term securities correspond to investmentschvimeet the criteria of cash and cash
equivalents as specified by the AMF in 2012.

15. Share capital and premium

Variations in the number of shares, the share &laguitd the share premium are as follows:

Number of Ordinary Share

(In thousands of US$ except number of shares) shares shares premium Total

As at January 1, 2013 33993 562 17 822 225570 2392
Subscription of BSA - - 29 29
As at June 30, 2013 33993562 17 822 225599 243 421
As at January 1, 2014 33993562 17 822 225599 223
Exercise of stock options 24 276 14 117 130
As at June 30, 2014 34017 838 17 836 225716 243 551

During the six month period ended June 30, 201&kspurchase warrants amounting to US$ 29
thousand were subscribed for.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2014 hvmpany proceeded with an increase in capital
regarding the exercise of stock options by iss@i#h@76 new shares. This transaction led to a US$ 14
thousand rise in share capital and a US$ 117 tinousse in share premium.
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16. Financial debts

Financial debts break down as follows:

(In thousands of US$) December 31,2013 June 30, 2014
Non-current
Research tax credit financing 6 507 20872
Obligations under finance lease 355 177

6 862 21050
Courant
Research tax credit financing 6818 -
Obligations under finance lease 568 500
Bank overdrafts
Total 14 248 21550

The Group entered into factoring contracts withafioial institutions for the research tax credit
receivable for the years ended December 31, 20112 2nd 2013 as shown on the balance sheets.
This financing amounting to US$ 20,872 thousandesponds to 90% of the research tax credit
receivable. The remaining 10% will be paid to thep at the maturity of the contracts. Interest and
commissions have been recognized in prepaid expemseé are spread over the duration of the
contract. Given that the financing of the RTC is@minated in Euros, the amount presented on the
balance sheet can be affected by exchange ratediians. The different terms of the contracts are
detailed as follows:

- RTC receivable 2011 : December 2015
- RTC receivable 2012 : July 2015
- RTC receivable 2013 : December 2017

Obligations under finance leases are effectivebuse as the rights to the leased asset reveheto t
lessor in the event of default.

17. Repayable advances

(Inthousands of US$) December 31,2013 June 30, 201
Repayable advances Bpifrance 3592 6 348
Total 3592 6 348
Other liabilities - Non current portion 3592 6 348

Other liabilities - Current portion

The Group benefits from repayable advances fronfr&pie (formerly OSEQ) for research and
innovation programs. These advances are repaydbknd only if the contractually defined
commercial objectives are achieved. The Group vedeadditional repayable advances over the six
month period ended June 30, 2014 amounting to U%%62thousand. No advance was repaid or
recognized as definitively acquired during 20132044. The repayment of these advances is subject
to revenue objectives being achieved on the relptegcts. Repayable advances are accounted for at
nominal value and are non-interest-bearing. Theyadso recorded in Euros, thus the total amount
recorded on the balance sheet may be affectedubtufitions in the exchange rate. Discussions are
currently ongoing with Bpifrance relating to thedeaf a research and development project. The
accounting treatment of grants and repayable a@gafur this project reflects the best estimatenef t
outcome of these discussions at the balance saget d
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18. Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions for other liabilities and charges brdalwn as follows:

(in thousands of US$) Employee relatec Customer claims Restructuring Others Total
litigations
As at January 1, 2014 53 472 1571 217 2312

Accrued / (reversed) to the income statement:
- Additional provisions - - - -

- Unused amounts reversed - - - - -
(1 462)

- Used during the year - - (1 462) -
Exchange differences (1) (4) (5) (2) (12)
As at June 30, 2014 52 468 104 215 838

Employee related litigations

The Group is subject to legal proceedings arisinpe ordinary course of business. Management does
not expect that the ultimate costs necessary tiveshese matters will have a material adverseceff
on the Group’s consolidated financial positionufesf operations or cash flows.

Provision for restructuring expenses
In 2013, Inside Secure launched a plan to reorgatizvorldwide business activities. This plan aime
to reduce operating expenses (as part of the dvedsfinition of the Group’s strategic prioritigsits

markets) by lowering administrative and marketingts, refocusing its research and development
activity and improving operational efficiency.

Regarding employee departures which occured duhegsix month period ended June 30, 2014,
severance pay and other associated costs amotmtig$ 1,462 thousand have been recorded for the
period. The Group has maintained a provision fetrueturing expenses for accompanying residual
expenditure amounting to US$ 104 thousand.
These items have been recorded within ‘Other gajlosses), net'.

19. Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses break dowrnasgsol

6-month period ended

(in thousands of US$) June 30,2013 June 30,2014
Research and development expenses 23977 22 595
Share base payment 142 51
Research tax credit (4 576) (3389)
Grants (280) (296)
Total 19 263 18 961
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20. Other (losses)/gains, net
Other (losses)/gains, net break down as follows:

6-month period ended

(in thousands of US$) June 30,2013 June 30,2014
Impairment of assets acquired with the SMS business 21 (1683)
Transaction costs related to the acquisition of ESS 179) -
Transaction costs related to the acquisition ofaftaic - (342)
Restructuring expenses and provisions (6 565) 28
Impairment of assets (140) -
Foreign exchange gains/ (losses) on operatingitesiv 342 468
Profit on disposal of equipment 165 12
Total (6 356) (1517)

Operating exchange gains and losses relate to egehdifferences affecting revenue and operating
expenses concluded during the period as well agmpact of reversed at closing rates of operating
assets and liabilities denominated in currenciaésrothan the functional currency of the consolidate
companies.

As at June 30, 2014, the Group recorded a depi@tiaf assets purchased on acquisition of SMS,
these assets correspond to masks stored at aesupptler court-ordered liquidation and amount to
US$ 1,683 thousand.

21. Finance income and expense

Finance income and expense breaks down as follows:

6-month period ended

(in thousands of US$) June 30,2013 June 30,2014
Foreign exchange loss (383) (120)
Interest expense (158) (322)
Finance costs (540) (442)
Foreign exchange gain 123 46
Interest income 75 23
Reversal of intangible liabilities 120 910
Finance income 318 980
Finance income / (loss) , net (222) 538

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to diahtransactions settled during the period, ad wel
as the impact of the revaluation at closing ratesash denominated in Euros into US Dollars, are
recognized as finance income or expenses.

Interest related to license agreement liabilities@sponds to the unwinding of the discountingctffe
as well as reversals resulting from the differeniobesveen actual sales and forecasted sales which
were used to evaluate the liability.
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22. Earnings per share
(@) Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividieg profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordislaayes in issue during the year:

6-month period ended
June 30, 2013 June 30,2014

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Compényhousand dollars) (21 002) (5477)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 33993 562 33997 17:
Basic loss per share ($ per share) (0,62) (0,16)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dadmshe weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding with the shares which would be issue@ @onsequence of the exercising of dilutive
financial instruments.

The Group has three categories of dilutive potéfitiancial instruments: free shares, warrants, and
stock options

The number of shares calculated is then compar#d the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercising of the dilutiverimsents:

6-month period ended
June 30,2013 June 30,2014

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 33993 562 33997 17:
Adjustments for:

- Free shares 579 580 739 13C
- Warrants - -
- Stock options - -

Adjustments for treasury method - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fotetliearnings per share 34 573 142 34 736 30:

Diluted loss per share ($ per share) (0,61) (0,16)

Warrants and stock options related to on-going9laave an exercise price exceeding the share price
as at June 30, 2014 and have therefore not been tato account for the calculation of the diluted
earnings per share.

For the purposes of the table above, warrants tma#t sptions are included in the diluted earnings p
share calculation through the treasury stock metfd treasury stock method assumes that the
proceeds from the exercise of warrants and stotikrpare used to repurchase common stock.

For accounting purposes, when dilutive instruméxatge the result that the dilutive loss per share is
less than the basic loss per share, the impadhudifve instruments is not taken into account.
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23. Commitments
(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the datssdiance but not yet incurred is as follows:

(in thousands of US$) December 31, 2013 June 30, 2014
Equipment 39 41
Intangible assets - Licenses - 242
Total 39 283

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices under non-cancellableatipgr lease agreements. The majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the ledsé jpé market rates.

The Group also leases certain equipment under Balbleeoperating lease agreements.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments uraecancellable operating leases are as follows:

(in thousands of US$) December 31, 2013 June 30, 2014
Gross finance lease liabilities - minimum leasempegt

No later than 1 year 1048 1038
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 4192 4152
Later than 5 years 612 91
Total 5852 5281

In August 2012, the Group entered into a leasingegent for property which is the base for its
registered office. The initial duration of the leds six years. The future rent payments over sy
are detailed in the table above.

(© Other commitments

(in thousands of US$) December 31, 2013 June 30, 2014

Raw material purchasing - -
Committed finance lease - Material not yet reative - -
Security bonds - -
Royalties due - -

24, Related party transactions

The Group purchases audit and consulting services the company Leyton & Associés who share a
common shareholder with the Group in the investniiemt GIMV. These services were negotiated
under normal market conditions, without the invohent of the common shareholder, and amounted
to US$ 106 thousand and US$ 116 thousand for thmenth periods ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
respectively.
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25. Events after the reporting period

No significant events have occurred since the 302014 report.

26. Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements as at Jun@@D4 include the accounts of the Company and
the following entities:

Country Entity Holding percentage

December  June 30, First Consolidation Acquisition/

31, 2013 2014 consolidation method creation
USA INSIDE Secure Corporati 100% 100% 200z Globa Creatior
Singapore INSIDE Secure (Asia) Pte Ltd 100% 100% 2007 obadl Creation
France Vaul-IC France SA 100% 100% 201(C Globa Acquisitior
United Kingdon Vault-IC UK Ltd 100% 100% 201C Globa Acquisitior
Polanc INSIDE Secure Sp.z.c 100% - 200¢ Dissolutior Creatior
Holland INSIDE Secure B.V 100% 100% 2012 Global Acquisiti
Hollanc INSIDE Secure Amsterdam B 100% 100% 201z Globa Acquisitior
Finlanc INSIDE Secure O 100% 100% 201z Globa Acquisitior
Japan INSIDE Secure K.K 100% 100% 2013 Global Creation
USA Metaforic Corp - 100% 2014 Global Acquisition
United Kingdon Metaforic Ltc - 100% 201« Globa Acquisitior
Belgium Selinko SA - 18% 2014 Equity method Acquisition

As disclosed above, the Group acquired EmbeddedriBe&olutions on December 1, 2012. As part
of the transaction which was a combination of esetiand a share deal, the Group acquired 100% of
the shares of Inside Secure B.V (formerly AuthenBe€), which holds 100% of the shares of Inside
Secure Amsterdam B.V (formerly AuthenTec Amsterdard) and 100% of the shares of Inside
Secure Oy (formerly AuthenTec Oy), companies dedetcéo R&D and product engineering.

As at April 5, 2014 the Group acquired Metaforid Lvhich owns one subsidiary Metaforic Inc.
In April 2014 the Group acquired, for an amountug$ 952 thousand, 18% of capital and voting

rights of Selinko SA, a Belgium firm. This investntds accounted for under the equity method. The
share of loss in associate for the period is rgticant.
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20.6.2 Verification of the interim financial informatiorsaf June 30, 2014

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit Antoine Olanda
63 rue de Villiers 38 parc du Golf
92208 Neuilly-sur-Seine cedex, France 13856 Aix-en-Provence, France

STATUTORY AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT ON THE INTERIM CO NSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(Six months ended June 30, 2014)

The report below is a free translation into Englishthe Statutory Auditors’ report issued in French

and is provided solely for the convenience of Egtipeaking readers. This report should be read in
conjunction with, and construed in accordance wittench law and professional auditing standards

applicable in France.

Inside Secure
41 parc Club du Golf
13856 Aix-en-Provence

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to yshe Shareholders Meeting and in accordance
with the requirements of article L. 451-1-2 lll tffe French Monetary and Financial Code (“Code
monétaire et financier”), we hereby report to you o

- the review of the accompanying condensed interimsaldated financial statements of Inside
Secure, for the six months ended June 30, 2013;

- the verification of the information contained iretimterim management report.

These condensed interim consolidated financiaéstants are the responsibility of the Management
Board. Our role is to express a conclusion on tfiesacial statements based on our review.

1. Conclusion on the financial statements

We conducted our review in accordance with professistandards applicable in France. A review of
interim financial information consists of makinggiriries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying \dital and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conduateéccordance with professional standards
applicable in France and consequently does notlenebto obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be iafeed in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express
audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our atenthat causes us to believe that the
accompanying condensed interoonsolidated financial statements are not prepared|l material
respects, in accordance with IAS 34 - the standdirtFRS as adopted by the European Union
applicable to interim financial information.
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2. Specific verification

We have also verified the information given in théerim management report on the condensed
interim consolidated financial statements subjeciur review. We have no matters to report assto it
fair presentation and consistency with the condgirgerim consolidated financial statements.

Neuilly-sur-Seine and Aix-en-Provence, July 31,4201
The statutory auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit Antoine Olanda

Philippe Willemin
Partner

20.7 Dividend distribution

20.7.1 Dividendes paid out in the past three fiscal years
None.

20.7.2 Dividend distribution policy

There currently is no plan to introduce a dividetistribution policy due to the Company’s stage of
development.

20.8 Court and arbitration proceedings

At times, the Group is exposed to the filing of etstions against a certain number of its patent
applications or to opposition procedures againstesof its patents, in particular its European paten
before the European Patent Office. The Group © eposed to nullity actions filed with the natibna
courts with respect to some of its national pateNttably, the national parts (in Germany and the
United Kingdom) of one of the Group’s European ptieas well as the Korean (KR) patent from the
same patent family, were subject to nullity actitwysan important industrial player against which a
infringement action had been asserted in Germangsé& actions should be withdrawn as a result of a
recent settlement in the Group’s favor. Similatlyp other industrial players have initiated actions
aimed at obtaining, for the former, on the one hidwednullity of the German part of a European paten
containing claims regarding the NFC standard ameefby the NFC Forum and, on the other hand,
the revocation of a European patent application, amdeference to the latter, the nullity of the
German part of three European patents. AlthoughQGraup considers it has solid defenses for its
patents and patent applications enabling it testesich actions, it can neither guarantee the meco
nor exclude that these actions could be onerousimmedconsuming for its management.

In addition, in the normal course of business, @reup is exposed to various other claims and
litigation, including claims by current and formemnployees.

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetiite Group considers that the potential losses it
could incur in connection with such ongoing claiamg litigation could not alone have a significant
adverse impact on its financial position or prdfilidy, and considers that it provisioned, wheneiter
deemed it necessary, the sufficient amount of fudsover its liability based on the information
available on the day the financial statements \appoved.
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Therefore, there are no regulatory, legal, or eabiin proceedings, including any proceedings of
which the Company is aware, that are pending @atiened, which could potentially have or have had
over the past 12 months, a significant impact a @ompany’s or Group’s financial position or
profitability.

20.9 Significant change in the financial or commercial psition

To the Company’s knowledge, there has been nofgigni change in the Group’s financial or
commercial position since June 30, 2014.
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21.

21.1

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Share capital

21.1.1 Amount of share capital

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite share capital of the Company totals EUR
13,640,539.20, split up into 34,101,348 fully pajgeommon shares of par value EUR 0.4 each.

Not applicable.

21.1.2 Non-equity securities

21.1.3 Share repurchase program

The Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary Sharehesldgleeting of the Company dated June 26,
2014 authorized the Management Board to implenfent period of eighteen months from the date
of such Meeting, a share repurchase program unaeispns of articles L. 225-208t seq.of the
French Commercial Code and the market practicespaed by the AMF.

The principal terms of this authorization are doWs:

Maximum number of shares to be purchased: 10%eotdtal number of shares, at any time,

being specified that (i) when shares are acquitamder to improve the liquidity of the shares

of the Company, the number of shares used to edcthis limit will be the number of shares

purchased minus the number of shares sold duriagtithorized period and (ii) when the

shares are acquired to be held and subsequenitheidel as payment or in exchange during a
merger, division or contribution, the number of rlsapurchased may not exceed 5% of the
total number of shares;

Objectives of the share repurchase:

ensure the liquidity of shares under a liquidityttact to be concluded, as the case
may be, with an investment services provider, imgieance with the ethics charter
recognized by thAutorité des marchés financiers

meet obligations related to stock option planse fshare plans, employee savings
plans, or other grants of shares to employees amubate officers of the Company or
of the companies related to it ;

deliver shares in connection with the exerciseigliits attached to securities giving
access to the share capital,

acquire shares to be held and subsequently excthaogeused as payment in
connection with potential external growth transawcsi; or

cancel all or part of the shares acquired in thdg w

maximum purchase price (excluding fees and coman$sEUR 10 with an overall cap of
EUR 33,000,000.

Consequently to the above, on March 8, 2012, thepany entered into a liquidity agreement with
Natixis and allocated EUR 500,000 to it.
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Number of shares acquired and sold over the coafdhe 2013 fiscal year and the first half-year of
2014

In the context of the liquidity agreement, over tloairse of the 2013 fiscal year,
- 492,159 shares were purchased at the averageopiidéR 2.4907, and
- 497,599 shares were sold at the average price Bf EB433.

In the context of the liquidity agreement, over toeirse of the first half-year of the 2014 fiscay,
- 721,761 shares were purchased at the averageopiitéR 3.6189, and
- 711,714 shares were sold at the average price Bf E6322.

The Company did not repurchase any of its own shareother reasons.
Number of and value of own shares held as of Deeef8sth 2013 and June 30, 2014

Based on the acquisitions and sales completedtbgerourse of the 2013 fiscal year, the balance of
the liquidity agreement was equal to 20 912 shasesf December 31, 2013. As of that date, the value
of the portfolio of own shares was equal to EUR783,28, based on the closing price on December
31, 2013, or EUR 2.19.

Based on the acquisitions and sales completedtbeerourse of first half-year of 2014, the balaote
the liquidity agreement was equal to 30,959 shasesf June 30, 2014. As of that date, the value of
the portfolio of own shares was equal to EUR 14683, based on the closing price on June 30,
2014, or EUR 4.71.

21.1.4 Potential share capital
As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite securities and other currently outstanding
financial instruments granting the right to a petage of the share capital are the following. The
exercise of all these securities and financialrimsents and the vesting of all free shares wousdlte
in the issuance of 1,840,360 additional commoneshaf the Company.

21.1.41 Share warrantdBpns de souscription d’'actions

The main characteristics of the currently outstagdihare warrantd¢ns de souscription d’actions
or “BSA(s)”) issued by the Company are providethia following table.
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T Maximum number |Unit subscription price| . - —
1) . otal number of : | Timeframe for exercising the warrants| Expiration date of
Plan namé Date of issue of shares resulting | of the shares resulting 2
warrants 1 the warrants
from the warrants from the warrants
BSA 2005-1 June 16, 2005 1 43,332 €5.77 Fully ésebte July 8, 2015
BSA 2005-3 June 16, 2005 1 52,000 €5.77 Fully esebte July 8, 2015
BSA 2006-2 July 31, 2006 4,600 18,400 €3.9425 Fedlgrcisable November 20, 2016
BSA 2007-2 August 30, 2007 2,205 8,820 €7.055 FeMisrcisable June 4, 2019
BSA 2007-3 September 21, 2007 1,000 4,000 €7.055 Fully exercisable June 13, 2018
September 21, 2007 1,000 4,000 €7.055 Fully exercisable July 3, 2018
BSA 2007-4 August 30, 2007 750 3,000 €7.055 Fully exercisable November 6, 2017
December 18, 2008 750 3,000 €7.055 Fully exercisable May 4, 2019
BSA 2007-5 December 21, 2007 2,000 8,000 €10.0525 ully Exercisable August 22, 2018
BSA 8 December 18, 2008 3,200 12,800 €10.0525 fexitycisable March 24, 2019
BSA 12 October 1, 2010 50,000 226,878 €4.75 Fulgrasable October 1, 2015
BSA 13 December 29, 2010 12,500 50,000 €4.75 Vaiesrding to the holders December 29, 20156
78,007 434,230

(1) Only currently outstanding BSAs are listed above.
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The main characteristics of the BSAs granted tarieenbers of the Management Board and SupervisoaydBaf the Company are described in the following

table®.
Name Position Plan Date of issue Total Maximum number of shares| Unit subscription price Timeframe for Expiration of the
number of resulting of the shares resulting exercising the warrants
warrants from the warrant¥ from the warrants warrant&
Rémy de Tonnac Chairman of the BSA 12 October 1, 2010 18,500 83,945 €4.1872 Fully exercisable October 1, 2015
Management Board
Pascal Didier General Manager BSA 12 October 1, 2010 9,000 40,838 €4.1872 Fully exercisable October 1, 2015
Richard Vacher Member of the BSA 12 October 1, 2010 14,500 65,795 €4.1872 Fully exercisable October 1, 2015
Detourniére Management Board
Patrick Schwager Jones  Chairman of the BSA 2006-2 July 31, 2006 4,600 18,400 £3.9425 Fully exercisable November 20, 2016
Supervisory Board
BSA 13 December 29, 2,000 8,000 €4.75 Fully exercisable December 29, 2015
2010
Glenn Collinson Member of the BSA 8 December 18, 3,200 12,800 £€10.0525 Fully exercisable March 24, 2019
Supervisory Board 2008
BSA 13 December 29, 5,000 20,000 €4.75 Varies according to the| December 29, 2015
2010 holder§®
56,800 249,778

(1) Null and void BSAs and BSAs granted to corporéteass who have left the Group are not includethia above table.
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21.1.4.2 Free share grants

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite Management Board of the Company has
granted a total of 2,180,828 free shares to theug@soemployees and officers, pursuant to

authorizations granted at the General Shareholdi#estings dated June 16, 2005, October 20, 2005,
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2010.

Pursuant to their terms, as of the filing date o tRegistration Document, 1,591,260 shares have
definitively vested, 419,568 shares have becomkeamal void, and 170,000 shares have not yet fully
vested.

The main characteristics of these free share geaatprovided in the table below.
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(1) The holding period begins on the vesting dathe free shares.
(2) The shares will definitively vest for their tlets following the vesting period (on December28,4).
(3) The shares will not definitively vest unlessblume-weighted average of the stock market pifitee Company’s shares during the 20 French stoakket trading days preceding October 17, 2012k igast

equal to EUR 2.3.

Date of the Date granted by the | Number of shares granteq Number of voided shares| Number of vested| Number of shareq Vesting Date Length of the

Shareholders’ Meetindg Management Board shares in the process of holding
authorizing the grant vesting period”
June 16, 2005 July 28, 2005 92,184 23,046 69,138 0 March 6, 2012 2 years
21,016 0 21,016 0 July 28, 2007 2 years

June 16, 2005 July 28, 2005 112,600 112,600 0 0 N/A N/A
25 664 0 25,664 July 28, 2007 2 years
October 20, 2005 February 17, 2006 83,092 6,088 44,840 0 February 17, 2008 2 years
16,192 February 17, 2009 2 years
15,972 February 17, 2010 2 years

October 20, 2005 February 17, 2006 56,264 56,264 0 0 N/A N/A
12,832 0 12,832 0 February 17, 2008 2 years
October 20, 2005 June 2, 2006 76,096 0 38,048 0 June 2, 2008 2 years
19,024 June 2, 2009 2 years
19,024 June 2, 2010 2 years

June 30, 2008 November 3, 2008 20,900 0 20,000 vemsber 3, 2010 2 years

June 30, 2010 December 16, 201 1,116,000 0 1,116,000 0 December 16, 2012 2 years
110,000 0 110,006 0 December 16, 2014 2 years

January 20, 2012 April 6, 2012 151,370 151,370 0 0 N/A N/A

64,000 64,000 0 0 N/A N/A

June 29, 2012 July 26, 2012 2,200 2,200 0 0 N/A N/A

4,000 4,000 0 0 N/A N/A
63,510 63,510 0 July 26, 2014 2 years
June 29, 2012 October 17, 2012 160,000 0 0 80 000 October 17, 2012 2 years
40 000 October 17, 2018 2 years
40 000 October 17, 2018 2 years
June 29, 2012 December 20, 2012 10,000 0 0 5000 December 20, 2014 2 years
2500 December 20, 201% 2 years
2500 December 20, 201% 2 years

2,180,828 419,569 1,591,260 170 0p0

(4) The shares will not definitively vest unlessblume-weighted average of the stock market pifitee Company’s shares during the 20 French stoakket trading days preceding December 20, 204 lisast

equal to EUR 3.22.
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The main characteristics of the free shares grantdte members of the Management Board of the @osnpre described in the following table.

Number of shares

Name Position Date of issue allgjcuaTeb de;r?;res Numbsehra?fe\s/ested Nur;rt:)ecggl;s()r;eggsstilr?gthe Vesting Date Lsgﬁolﬁp to be kept duri_ng
the term of office
Rémy de Tonnac | Chairman of the June 2, 2006 76,096 38,048 0 June 2, 2008 2 years -
Management Boarg 19,024 0 June 2, 2009 2 years -
19,024 0 June 2, 2010 2 years -
December 16, 2010 316,000 316,000 0 December 16, 2012 2 years 10%
July 26, 2012 10,400 July 26, 2014 2 years 10%
Pascal Didier General Manager July 28, 2005 9,392 7,044 0 March 6, 2012 2 years -
February 17, 2006 6,960 3,480 0 February 17, 2008 2 years -
1,740 0 February 17, 2009 2 years -
1,740 0 February 17, 2010 2 years -
December 16, 2010 64,000 64,000 0 December 16, 2012 2 years 10%
July 26, 2012 2,950 2,950 0 July 26, 2014 2 years 10%
Richard Vacher | Member of the November 3, 2008 20,000 20,000 0 November 3, 2010 2 years 10%
Detourniére Management Board December 16, 2010 106,000 106,000 0 December 16, 2012 2 years 10%
Pierre Garnier Member of the October 17, 2012 120,000 d 60,00 October 17, 2014 2 years 10%
Management Boarg 30,000 October 17, 2018 2 years 10%
30,000 October 17, 2018 2 years 10%
731,798 609,450 120,00

(1) The shares will not definitively vest unlessblume-weighted average of the stock market pfitee Company’s shares during the 20 French stoakket trading days preceding October 17, 2012 igast
equal to EUR 2.30.
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21.1.4.3 Stock Options

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite Management Board of the Company has
granted a total of 2,490,932 stock options, eaemgiright to subscribe to one common share of the
Company, to the Group’s employees and officerssymmt to authorizations granted at the General
Shareholders’ Meetings dated of June 16, 2005, @ct®0, 2005, June 2, 2006, June 19, 2007, June
30, 2008, June 29, 2012, June 19, 2013, and JurkH28.

As of the filing date of this Registration Docume®®,836 stock options have been exercised by their

holders, 1,154,966 stock options have become mall\aid, and 1,236,130 stock options are still
outstanding.

The main characteristics of these stock optiongéae provided in the table below.
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Maximum
Number of Number of Number of | number of - . - L I
Name of the plan| Date of grant | granted stock forfeited stock|exercised stoq shares which Subscription | - Timeframe for exercising the stockExpiration date of Expiration date of
- - - price per unit options the vesting period the stock options|
options options options can be
subscribed
Options 2005-1 (P 3) July 28, 2005 113,200 113,200 (0 a €0.40 July 28, 2009 Jun@0s
Options 2005-1 (P 4) July 28, 2005 102,244 102,240 0 0 €0.40 July2289 June 16, 2015
Options 2005-2 February 17, 2004 96,908 6,712 21,770 68,426 €£38.94 exercisable in full February 17, 201 October2215
Options 2005-2 June 2, 2006 51,904 D 51,904 € 3.9425 exercigalfig® June 2, 2010 October 20, 2015
Options 2006-1 June 2, 2006 268,800 67,134 76,866 124,800 €3.9425 exercisable in fuf? June 2, 2010 June 2, 2016
Options 2006-1 June 2, 2006 4,40( D 4,400 €3.9425 exercisabigli June 2, 2010 June 2, 2016
Options 2006-1 February 2, 2007 93,500 92,300 1,200 0 € 7.055 bruzey 2, June 2, 2016
Options 2006-1 February 2, 2007 11,700 D 0 11,700 € 7.055 exdvieisa full February 2, June 2, 2016
Options 2007-1-A August 4, 2007 301,517 301,512 0 0 €7.055 Augugoll June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-A August 4, 2007 12,334 12,336 0 0 € 7.055 Augugbal June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-B August 4, 2007 189,834 189,832 0 0 €7.055 Augugoll June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-A |September 21, 2007 4,400 4,400 0 0 €7.055 September 21, 2011 June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-C | February 22, 200{13 52,000 52,000 0 0 € 10.0525 uep22, 2012 June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-D | February 25, 200$ 50,800 50,800 0 0 € 10.0526 usep25, 2012 June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-E | November 3, 200$ 20,000 20,000 0 q € 10.0525 November 3, 2012 Jan2017
Options 2007-1-F | November 3, 200$ 60,800 0 0 60,800 €10.0525 exercisable irfffull November 3, 2012 June 19, 2017
Options 2006-1-B | November 3, 200$ 21,600 0 0 21,600 €10.0525 exercisable irfffull November 3, 2012 June 2, 2016
Options 2008-1 November 3, 2008 30,000 30,000 0 q €10.0525 November 3, 2012 30n2018
Options juillet 2012  July 26, 2012 2,160 o q 2,16p €3.07 exercisabfalin July 26, 2016 July 26, 2022
Options juillet 2012 July 26, 2012 12,330 q 12,330 €3.07 exercisabigl July 26, 2016 January 26, 2027
Options février 2013 February 20, 2013 190,00D 0 0 190,0p0 €2.89 4708CRebruary 20, 208 N/A February 20, 2023
47 500 on February 20, 2095
47 500 on February 20, 2096
47 500 on February 20, 2097
Options février 2013 February 20, 2013 40,000 D 0 40,000 €2.89 10 @0Bebruary 20, 2012 N/A August 20, 2022
10 000 on February 20, 2095
10 000 on February 20, 2096
10 000 on February 20, 2037

252



Name of the plan

Date of grant

Number of

Number of

Number of

Maximum
number of

granted stock

forfeited stock|exercised sto

Subscription

Timeframe for exercising the stoc

Expiration date of Expiration date of

shares which

options

options

options

can be
subscribed

price per unit

options

the vesting period

the stock options

Options février 2013

May 3, 2013

100,000

75,000

25,000

€254

25 @0Babruary 20, 2012

N/A

May 3, 2023

Options juin 2013

June 20, 2013

20,000

15,000

0 5,0p0

€2.85

5 0Qioa 20, 2014

N/A

December 22, 2022

Options juin 2013

August 27, 2013

105,00

22,500

0 82,500

€245

5P60h August 27, 2014
18 750 on August 27, 2015
18 750 on August 27, 2016
18 750 on August 27, 2017

N/A

August 27, 2023

Options juin 2013

August 27, 2013

35,00(

35,000

€245

8 750 wguat 27, 2019
8 750 on August 27, 205
8 750 on August 27, 2086
8 750 on August 27, 207

N/A

February 27, 2023

Options janvier 2014 January 17, 2014

100,000

100,000

€211

33B3&nuary 17, 205
33333 on January 17, 2026
33334 on January 17, 2037

N/A

January 17, 2024

Options janvier 201

4 April 23, 2014

15,000

15,00p

€ 3.66

3 750 onil/g8, 201%
3 750 on April 23, 2018
3750 on April 23, 201%
3750 on April 23, 2018

N/A

April 23, 2024

Options juin 2014

July 22, 2014

230,000

230,00

o

€4.54

57 500ubn22, 2018
57 500 on July 22, 2085
57 500 on July 22, 207
57 500 on July 22, 2083

N/A

January 22, 2024

Options juin 2014

July 22, 2014

70,000

70,000

€4.54

17 500 &n2R; 201%
17 500 on July 22, 20%5
17 500 on July 22, 2087
17 500 on July 22, 2083

N/A

July 22, 2024

Options juin 2014

August 28, 2014

100,00

100,000

€421

33 3B8ugust 28, 2015
33 333 on August 28, 2016

33 334 on August 28, 2017

N/A

August 28, 2024

2,490,932

1,154,966

99,836

1,236,180

(1) Concerns residents of France for tax purposes.
(2) The exercise of the stock options is subjebetng either an employee or a corporate officethef Company on the exercise date.
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The main characteristics of the stock options ptifeyed to the members of the Management BoateoCompany are described in the following table.

Number of Maximum Number of
ranted number of |[Subscription Expiration date [shares to by Expiration
Name Name of the plan Date of grant gstock shares which| price per Timeframe for exercising the stock options | of the vesting |kept during| date of the
: can be unit period the term of| stock options
options : .
subscribed office
Rémy de Tonnac  |Options 2005-2 June 2, 2006 51,004 51,904 €3.9425 exercisable in fill June 2, 2010 - October 20, 2015
(Chairman of the - - -
Management Board Options 2006-1 June 2, 2006 48,00 48,000 € 3.9425 exercisable in fiil June 2, 2010 - June 2, 2016
Options 2007-1-B August 4, 2007 20,100 0 €7.055 August 4, 2011 50% June 19, 2017
Pascal Didier Options 2005-1 (P 3) July 28, 2005 9,392 0 €0.40 July 28, 2009 - June 16, 2015
(General Manager)) |5 ions 2005-1 (P 4) July 28, 2005 884 d €040 July 28, 2009 - June 16, 2015
Options 2005-2 February 17, 2006 5,040 5,040 €3.9425 exercisable in full February 17, 2010 - October 20, 2015
Options 2006-1 June 2, 2006 20,000 20,000 € 3.9425 exercisable in fiil June 2, 2010 - June 2, 2016
Options 2007-1-B August 4, 2007 17,648 0 €7.055 August 4, 2011 50% June 19, 2017
Options 2007-1-C February 22, 2008 20/000 0 €10.0525 February 22, 20{12 - June 19, 2017
Richard Vacher Options 2006-1-B November 3, 2008 21,600 21,600 € 10.0525 exercisable in f(f November 3, 2012 10% June 2, 2016
Detourniere Options 2007-1-F November 3, 2008 60/800 60,800 € 10.0525 exercisable in f@ November 3, 2010 10% June 19, 2017
(member of the
Management Board
Options juin 2014 August 28, 2014 35,p00 35,00 €4.21 11,666 on August 28, 2015 N/A 10% August 28, 2024
11,666 on August 28, 2016
11,667 | on August 28, 2017
Pierre Garnier Options janvier 2014 January 17, 2014 100,000 100,00 €211 33,333 on January 17, 2615 N/A 10% January 17, 2024
(Member of the 33,333 on January 17, 2016
Management Board 33,334 on January 17, 2017
Simon Blake-Wilson|Options février 2013 May 3, 2013 100,000 25,00 €254 25,000 on May 3, 2014 N/A 10% May 3, 2023
(Member of the
Management Board Options juin 2013 August 27, 2013 30,po0 7,500 €245 7,500 on August 27, 2014 N/A 10% August 27, 2023
547,968 439,344

(1) The exercise of the stock options is subject togoeither an employee or a corporate officer of @@npany on the exercise date.
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21.1.5 Authorized share capital

The delegations and authorizations granted to taeadgement Board at the General Shareholders’
Meetings dated June 19, 2013 and June 26, 2014hvare currently active as of the date of this
Registration Document, are summarized below, ihdpdiereby reminded that in order to use these

authorizations, the Management Board must requistapproval to the Supervisory Board:

Maximum nominal

Aggregate maximum

raising the par value of existing shares or byralination of
these two methods

June 19, 2013

Validity Period amount nominal amount
(in Euros) (in Euros)
Delegations and authorizations granted at the Géner
Shareholders’ Meeting dated June 19, 2013
Delegation of power granted to the Management Baard
increase share capital by issuing common sharasyor 26 months as from 6.500.000
securities granting access to the share capitt, pveferential June 19, 2013 e
subscription right
Delegation of power granted to the Management Baard
increase share capital by issuing common sharasyor 26 months as from
securities granting access to share capital withoeferential June 19. 2013 2,651,498
subscription rights and public offering as well@th the ability '
to establish a priority right
!Delegatlon of power grant'ed t_o the Management Btard 2,651,498, not to
increase share capital by issuing common sharasyor
i h . h . 26 months as from exceed 20% of the
securities granting access to share capital withoeferential .
LY . e June 19, 2013 share capital per 12-
subscription rights, for the benefit of qualifiet/éstors or a h
. ; ’ month period
restricted circle of investors
| ) ; 1o th q 6,798,712
!De egation of power grante t'o_t e Man_agement Btar not to exceed 15% of
increase the number of securities to be issuddeirevent of a 26 months as from the initial amount
share capital increase, with or without preferdrstigoscription June 19, 2013 .
. ; . - issued
rights, to be decided based on previous delegations
Delegation of power granted to the Management Baaissue
common shares or securities granting access tshtire capital 26 months as from 2 651.498
of the Company, in the event of a public offer uathg an June 19, 2013 B
exchange component initiated by the Company
1,359,742, not to
Delegation of power granted to the Management Baard exceed 10% of the
increase share capital in order to compensateibatitms in 26 months as from share capital as it
kind of shares or securities granting access tallee capital of| June 19, 2013 stands on the date of
third-party companies, excluding a public exchaoffier the considered
transaction
Delegation of power granted to the Management Baard
increase share capital by incorporating premiugsgmes,
profits or other, by the issue and grant of fregreh or by 26 months as from 2,000,000 2,000,000

Delegations and authorizations granted at the Géner
Shareholders’ Meeting dated June 26, 2014

Authorization granted to the Management Board imnection
with the Company'’s share repurchase program

18 months as from
June 26, 2014

10% of the share
capital

10% of the share
capital

Authorization granted to the Management Board tluce the
share capital by way of the cancellation of shareéke context

18 months as from
June 26, 2014

10% of share capital
amount per 24-month

10% of the share
capital amount per

free grants of existing shares or shares to bedssu

June 26, 2014

of the authorization to repurchase its own shares period 24-month period
Authorization granted to the Management Board tmgstock 38 months as from
- 468,000
options June 26, 2014
495,200
Authorization granted to the Management Board toyoaut 38 months as from 468.000
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Authorization granted to the Management Board imnection
with the issuance of share warrariisr{s de souscription
d’actiong without preferential subscription rights, for the 18 months as from
benefit of (i) members and censors of the SuperyiBoard in June 26, 2014
office as of the grant date who are not employeexecutives
of the Company or one of its subsidiaries

27,200

21.1.6 Information on the share capital of any memberhaf Group that is subject to an
option or to a conditional or unconditional agreatrte be put under option

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetat the Company’s knowledge there are none in
existence.

21.1.7 History of the share capital
21.1.7.hanges in share capital

The Company was registered with the Trade and Coimpdregistry on December 29, 1994, with an
initial share capital of 1,620,500 francs.

The share capital was subsequently increased $éwvees, reaching EUR 9,581,828.14 on June 16,
2005. A General Shareholders’ Meeting held on Hreesday decided to reduce the share capital of
the Company to zero and then to increase it to BE\IR5,865.60 by the issuance, at par, of 628,666
shares at a price of EUR 1.60 each. Both the remueind the increase were completed on July 8,
2005.

The table below provides a summary of the chanyshare capital since that date.
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Date Operation Number of | Par value (in Issuance or Par value of Cumulated Par value
shares Euros) contribution cumulated number of total | (in Euros)
issued or premium (in share capital outstanding
canceled Euros) (in Euros) shares
July 8, 2005 Decrease in share capital to zero (628,666) (9,581,828.14 None 0 0
July 8, 2005 Capital increase by consideratiorastc 628,666 1,005,865.6( 0 1,005,865.6( 628,660 1.60
November 14, | Capital increase by consideration in cash 380,472 608,755.20 5,391,288.24 1,614,620.8( 1,009,138 1.60
2005
March 3, 2006 | Capital increase by consideratiocesti 13,733 21,972.80Q 194,596.61 1,636,593.6( 1,022,871 1.60
March 31, 2006| Capital increase by consideratiorash (exercise of Warrarﬁs) 190,234 304,374.40Q 2,695,615.78 1,940,968.0( 1,213,105 1.60
June 2, 2006 Capital increase by consideratiomnid k 35,798 57,276.8Q 507,257.66 1,998,244.8( 1,248,903 1.60
July 19, 2006 | Capital increase by consideratioteish (exercise of warrarits) 6,865 10,984.00 97,277.0§ 2,009,228.8( 1,255,768 1.60
August 28, 2006 Capital increase by consideratiorash 465,390 744,624.00 12,388,681.80 2,753,852.8( 1,721,158 1.60
July 28, 2007 | Capital increase by definitive altoma of free shards 11,670 18,672.00 0| 2,772,524.8( 1,732,828 1.60
September 4, | Capital increase by consideration in cash (exeuﬁmrrants‘) 232,695 372,312.00 6,194,340.90 3,144,836.8( 1,965,523 1.60
2007
December 28, | Capital increase by consideration in cash 411,638 658,620.80 15,893,343.18 3,803,457.6( 2,377,161 1.60
2007
December 28, | Capital increase by consideration in cash 164,220 262,752.00 6,340,534.20 4,066,209.6( 2,541,381 1.60
2007
February 5, 2008 Capital increase by consideratiaast 45,878 73,404.80Q 1,771,349.58 4,139,614.4( 2,587,259 1.60
February 17, | Capital increase by definitive allocation of frémmed 14,418 23,068.80 0 4,162,683.2( 2,601,677 1.60
2008
June 2, 2008 Capital increase by definitive alliocadf free sharés 9,512 15,219.2(Q 0 4,177,902.4( 2,611,189 1.60
August 20, 2008 Capital increase by consideratiorash 66,595 106,552.00 2,571,232.9% 4,284,454.4( 2,677,784 1.60
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Date Operation Number of | Par value (in Issuance or Par value of Cumulated Par value
shares Euros) contribution cumulated number of total | (in Euros)
issued or premium (in share capital outstanding
canceled Euros) (in Euros) shares
December 17, | Capital increase by consideration in cash 99,478 159,164.80 3,840,845.58 4,443,619.2( 2,777,262 1.60
2008
February 17, | Capital increase by definitive allocation of frémee$ 4,048 6,476.80 0| 4,450,096.0(¢ 2,781,310 1.60
2009
June 2, 2009 Capital increase by definitive alliocaof free shards 4,756 7,609.60 0| 4,457,705.6( 2,786,066 1.60
July 29, 2009 Capital increase by consideratiorash (exercise of Warran‘ts) 12,392 19,827.2( 0 4,477,532.8( 2,798,458 1.60
February 17, | Capital increase by definitive allocation of frémee$ 3,993 6,388.80 0| 4,483,921.6( 2,802,451 1.60
2010
June 2, 2010 Capital increase by definitive alliocadf free sharés 4,756 7,609.60 0 4,491,531.2( 2,807,207 1.60
September 29, | Capital increase by consideration in ¢ash 2,426,017 3,881,627.2( 42,212,695.80 8,373,158.4( 5,233,224 1.60
2010
October 1, 2010 Capital increase by consideratiarashexercise of stock optiorf‘s) 210 336.00 2,975.70 8,373,494.4( 5,233,434 1.60
November 3, | Capital increase by definitive allocation of frémmed 5,000 8,000.00 0 8,381,494.4( 5,238,434 1.60
2010
November 8, | Capital increase by consideration in ¢ash 73,077 116,923.20 1,271,539.80 8,498,417.6( 5,311,511 1.60
2010
November 30, | Capital increase by consideration in ¢ash 107,894 172,630.40 1,877,355.60 8,671,048.0( 5,419,405 1.60
2010
May 11, 2011 | Split of the par value of the Comparshares D 0 0 8,671,048.0( 21,677,620 0.40
June 13,2011 | Capital increase by considerati@ash (exercise of warrarts) 46,704 18,681.60 165,448.92 8,689,729.6( 21,724,324 0.40
February 22, | Conversion of Class D preferred shares to commaresh 1,449,144 579,657.60 - 9,269,387.2( 23,173,468 040
2012
February 22, | Capital increase by consideration in cash (pulffeerimg) 8,313,250 3,325,300.0¢ 65,674,675.0 12,594,687.2( 31,486,718 0.40
2012
February 24, | Capital increase by consideration in cash (exedfisiee 1,246,986 498,794.40 9.851,189.40  13,093,481.6 32,733,704 0.40
2012 overallotment option)
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Date Operation Number of | Par value (in Issuance or Par value of Cumulated Par value
shares Euros) contribution cumulated number of total | (in Euros)
issued or premium (in share capital outstanding
canceled Euros) (in Euros) shares
April 6, 2012 | Capital increase by consideratiocash (exercise of stock options) 40,481 16,192.40 360,535.81  13,109,674.0( 32,774,183 0.40
April 6, 2012 Capital increase by definitive allocation of frémges 69,138 27,655.20 - 13,137,329.2 32,843,323 0.40
December 20. | Capital increase by definitive allocation of frdeaees 1,116,000 446,400.0Q - 13,583,729.2( 33,959,323 0.40
2012
December 20, | Capital increase by consideration in cash (exewfis¢ock options) 34,239 13,695.60 125,026.657%  13,597,424.8( 33,993,562 040
2012
July 8, 2014 Capital increase by consideratiorashdexercise of stock options) 24,276 9,710.40 85,997.73  13,607,135.2 34,017,838 0.40
August 25, 2014 Capital increase by definitive allocation of frémges 63,510 25,404.00 - 13,632,539.2( 34,081,348 0.40
Capital increase by consideration in cash (exedfisearrants) 20,000 8,000.00 35,800.00  13,640,539.2 34,101,348 0.40

August 25, 2014

O~NO O WNPE
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Class A preferred shares.

Common shares.

Class B preferred shares carrying the righttbscribe to Class B preferred shares.
Class B preferred shares.

Class C preferred shares.

Class D preferred shares.




21.1.7.Zhanges in the distribution of the share capitahefCompany since December 31, 2011

To the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s sharéatagstribution has changed in the following weigice December 31, 2011.

Situation as of December 31, 2011 Situation as oEBember 31, 2012 Situation as of December 31, 2013 Sltuat:gn as of 'the filing date of the
egistration Document
% of share % of share % of share % of share
Number of capital and Number of capital and Number of capital and Number of capital and
shares h . shares h . shares b . shares b .
voting rights voting rights voting rights voting rights
Members of the Management Board 138,432 0.64% 6832 1.86% 640,075 1.88% 617,027 1.81%
Rémy de TonnaChairman) 89,968 0.41% 406,494 1.20% 410,414 1.21% 406,476 .19%
Pascal Didie(General Manager) 24,440 0.11% 96,019 0.28% 97,019 0.29% 97,969 90.29
Richard Vacher Detourniére 24,072 0.11% 130,559 8%.3 132,582 0.39% 112,58p 0.33p6
Pierre Garnier 0 0.00% 0 0.00% q 0.00% D 0.00p6
Simon Blake Wilson 0 0.00% 0 0.00% e 0.00% D 0.000%
Members of the Supervisory Board 1,620,672 7.46% 47,614 7.20% 2,448,806 7.20% 2,437,806 7.18%
Patrick Schwager JonéShairman) 4 0.00% 4 0.00% 4 0.00% 4 0.00pb
Jean SchmittVice-Chairman) 4 0.00% 4 0.00% 4 0.00% 504 0.00%
Alex Brabers 4 0.00% 4 0.00% 4 0.00% a 0.00p6
Bpifrance Participations 1,598,72 7.36% 2,423,991 7.13% 2,423,991 7.13% 2,423,991 7.11%
Glenn Collinson 21,940 0.10% 23,611 0.07% 23,611 0.07% 12,111 0.04%
Joélle Toledano 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1,192 0.00% 1,192 0.00%
Olivier Sichel 0 0.00% 0 0.00% ¢ 0.00% D 0.00p6
Muriel Barnéoud 0 0.00% 0 0.00% e 0.00% D 0.000%
GIMV 3,919,880 18.04% 4,254,171 12.51% 4,254,171 12.51% 4,254,171 12.48%
FCPR Sofinnova Capital V 4,416,912 20.33Y 4,695,448 13.81% 4,695,488 13.819 4,695,488 13.77p6
Other shareholders 11,628,424 53.53% 21,963,217 .60 21,955,022 64.59% 22,096,856 64.80P0
Total 21,724,324 100.00% 33,993,562 100.00p6 33,993,562 0.0®% 34,101,348 100.009
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21.2 Incorporation documents and Bylaws
21.2.1 Corporate purpose
The purpose of the Company is to:

- design, manufacture and sell electronic and compuyteducts, especially in the
semiconductor industry, and

- generally, carry out all commercial, financial, weties or real property transactions, related,
directly or indirectly, to the purpose of the Compaor that may contribute to its
development.

21.2.2 Management and supervisory bodies
21.2.2.1 Management Board
21.221.1 Composition

The Company is managed by a Management Board cemepiof at most five members, which
exercises its duties under the control of the Stugery Board.

The members of the Management Board are physicedops. They are not required to be
shareholders.

The Supervisory Board appoints them for a four-yean, and nominates one of them as Chairman of
the Management Board.

The members of the Management Board cannot be thidarsixty-five years of age.
Any member of the Management Board can be reelected

The Shareholders’ Meeting or, as the case maybeStipervisory Board can remove members of the
Management Board from office. If the removal frofffice is carried out without due cause, it may
trigger the payment of damages. In the event thatcbncerned party had signed an employment
contract with the Company, the removal from offasea member of the Management Board does not
terminate such employment contract.

The members of the Management Board meet wheneigin the corporate interest to do so, upon
convocation of its Chairman or half of its membextsthe meeting location specified by the person
calling for the meeting. They can be contactedrpyraeans available, including verbally.

The Management Board’s decisions are taken basedneeyority vote of the members present at any
given meeting. No one within the Management Boait\ote by proxy.

21.2.2.1.2 Powers of the Management Board

The Management Board is invested with the brogoesters to act in all circumstances on behalf of
the Company. It exercises these powers within itm& bf the Company’s corporate purpose and
subject to those powers expressly attributed by fawthe Supervisory Board and the general
shareholders’ meetings. In relations with thirdtigar the Company is also bound by the Management
Board’s acts that fall outside its corporate puepasiless it can prove that the third party kneat th
the act exceeded such purpose, or that such thrty pnust have so known in light of the
circumstances. The publication of the Company’salg is not in itself deemed sufficient to establish
proof of such knowledge.
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The Chairman of the Management Board represent€timepany in its relations with third parties.
The Supervisory Board may also attribute this posferepresentation to one or more other members
of the Management Board who then carry the title“ggneral manager”. The Chairman of the
Management Board and the general manager(s), asafe may be, are authorized to partially
delegate their powers to any special agent(s)cteelat their discretion.

21.2.2.2 Supervisory Board
21.2.2.21 Composition
The Supervisory Board is composed of no less thieetand no more than nine members.

An employee of the Company can only be appointethipeg of the Supervisory Board if his or her
employment contract effectively represents an aatimployment. The number of Supervisory Board
members related to the Company through an emplolyc@niract cannot exceed one third of its
active members.

The term of office for members of the SupervisoryaRl is three years, and said office expires
following the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting appnovthe financial statements for the most recent
fiscal year and held in the year during which gt of office expires.

The number of Supervisory Board members who arerdlthn 70 years of age cannot exceed one
third of the members in office. Whenever this thadd is crossed while in office, the oldest member
Is automatically considered as resigning at theadride next General Shareholders’ Meeting held.

Under the terms of Article 3 of the Supervisory Bbsiinternal rules, the Supervisory Board must be,
insofar as possible, comprised of a majority ofepehdent members. The independence criteria
retained by the Company and the other provisiorte@fSupervisory Board’s internal rules relative to
its composition are described in section 16.1.2ledt“The Supervisory Board” of this Registration
Document.

21.2.2.2.2 Operation of the Supervisory Board

The Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Supervisorato or two of its members acting jointly, can
convoke its members to a meeting. The notificatibmeeting can be made by any mean available, in
writing or verbally.

The Supervisory Board appoints a Secretary, whd neenecessarily be a member of the Board.

The members of the Supervisory Board are convolidlde meeting of the Board by letter, facsimile,
or email, providing a description of the meetingigenda and sent to each member of the Board no
later than eight days before the date set for teetimg. However, the Board can be convened by any
means available, even verbally, if all membershef Board in office are present or representedeat th
meeting.

The Board can only deliberate validly if it was gened according to the stipulations provided for in
the preceding paragraph and provided it only dsesighose matters listed as on the agenda in the
meeting notification, except if all of the Boardisembers in office are present or represented and
provide their consent.

Decisions are taken based on the quorum and magmiiditions set forth in the French Commercial
Code.

The Supervisory Board's deliberations are recolidedhinutes prepared and archived in accordance
with the terms set forth in the French Commerciadl€
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The other main provisions of the Supervisory Boaridternal rules pertaining to its operation are
described in section 16.1.2 entitled “Supervisoopil” of the Registration Document.

21.2.2.2.3 The Supervisory Board’s mission
The Supervisory Board monitors the Management Boandnagement of the Company. To this end,
at any time of the year, the Supervisory Board mpesform the verifications and controls it deems
appropriate and obtain from the Management Boand dotuments that it deems useful in the
completion of its assignment.

At least once every quarter, the Supervisory Baoacgives a report from the Management Board on
the status of corporate affairs.

21.2.3 Rights, privileges and restrictions attached toGbenpany’s shares

21.2.3.1Voting Rights
At the Company’s General Shareholders’ Meetingsryeshareholder has as many voting rights as the
number of shares he or she holds or represents.Chmepany’s Bylaws explicitly disallow any
mechanism granting apso juredouble voting right to shares for which custodyregistered form
and under the same name can be proven for atleasears.

21.2.3.Rights to dividends and profits
Proportionally to the amount of existing sharegheshare grants the right to capital ownership and
entitlements to the distribution of profits, sultjexthe par value of the shares and to the varioinss
assigned to shares of different class.

21.2.3.3ime frame for claiming dividends
Dividends that have not been claimed within a gbdb5 years as from the date they are paid out wil
be transferred for the benefit of the State (Aeticl 1126-1 of the French General Code of Ownership
for Public Persons, arode général de la propriété des personnes puld)que

21.2.3.Right to the liquidation surplus

Proportionally to the amount of existing sharessheahare grants the right to a portion of the
liquidation surplus.

21.2.3.Freferential subscription right
The Company’s shares all carry a preferential sitigmn right for share capital increases.
21.2.3.&imitations on the right to vote
None applicable.
21.2.3.7dentifiable bearer securities
The shares are held either in registered or bdamar, at the shareholder’s discretion. When held in
registered form, the shares are registered in ariies account under the conditions and in
accordance with the terms set forth by the legdlragulatory provisions in force.
At any time, and in compliance with applicable llegiad regulatory conditions, the Company can pay

the central custodian in charge of the issuing aetof its securities to receive information on the
holders of securities granting immediate or futuwéng rights at its General Shareholders’ Meetings
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as well as the number of securities held by eacheh and, as the case may be, any restrictions tha
may apply to said securities.

21.2.3.&hare repurchase program

Please refer to section 21.1.3 entitled “Share Réjase Program” of this Registration Document for
further information.

21.2.4 Changes in the rights of shareholders

The rights of shareholders, as they appear in thpgany’s Bylaws, can only be amended at an
Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company.

21.2.5 General Shareholders’ Meetings

The General Shareholders’ Meeting is open to aredtolders, regardless of the number of shares
they own.

Based on the subject matter of the proposed réso#tordinary or extraordinary shareholders’
meetings can be convened at any time of the year.

General Shareholders’ Meetings are convened acaptdithe procedure and time frames set by law.

General Shareholders’ Meetings are held at the @owip registered office or any other location
indicated in the notice of meeting.

Each shareholder has the right to request recéifiteodocuments necessary to enable him or her to
speak knowledgeably and make an informed opiniontten management and direction of the
Company.

Any shareholder, regardless of the number of shhee®r she owns, can participate in General
Shareholders’ Meetings, either in person or viaxprby granting the necessary powers to another
shareholder, or to his or her spouse or partndn whiom he or she has executegarte civil de
solidarité (civil union agreement) or, if the company’s slsaage admitted to trading on a regulated
market, to any other physical person or legal gmfthis or her choice, or to the Company without
specifying an agent, or by mailing in his or heteyan accordance with the legal and regulatormnsger
and conditions in force.

Ordinary Shareholders’ Meetings are convened re@ggudkcisions that do not modify the Bylaws.

Only Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings have dhthority to modify stipulations in the Bylaws.
However, barring a unanimous shareholder votegrinot increase the commitments of shareholders,
subject to transactions resulting from an excharge consolidation of shares decided on and carried
out under normal conditions.

Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetindibéeate under the quorum and majority
conditions set forth in the legal provisions gowegreach of them, respectively.

21.2.6 Provisions that may delay, defer, or prevent a ghan control

The Company’s Bylaws do not provide for any mechiasi able to delay, defer, or prevent a change
in control.

21.2.7 Provisions concerning crossing statutory thresholds

None applicable.
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21.2.8 Specific provisions governing changes in the sbapital
There is no specific provision in the Company’sd@ys$ that governs changes in its share capital.
21.3 Pledging of the Group’s assets or shares

As of the filing date of this Registration Documethie Group has not pledged any shares or assets.
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22. KEY CONTRACTS

Beside the contracts entered into in the normatsmaf the Group’s business activities, the Company
entered into or took over various significant caots that would be subject to changes or terminatio
in the event of a change in the control of the Canyp

Core license agreemetetween Atmel Corp. and the Company dated Septemb&0, 2010

In connection with the acquisition of the Atmel SM&siness, pursuant to a contract dated September
30, 2010, Atmel granted to the Company several dwide, non-exclusive, non-transferable royalty
bearing licenses under the intellectual propergitd owned or licensable by Atmel, and relating to
the design of the transferred technologies. Trenges allow for the development, manufacturing, and
sale of licensed products (“Secure Microcontrofleesd “Smart Secure Chipshased on Atmel's
secure semiconductor AVR core and “Smart Card Readased on Atmel’'s standard AVR core).
The licensed products are some of the existingyrated circuits of the SMS business as well as new
products with respect to Secure Microcontrollerd &mart Secure Chips. The right to develop new
products is limited and subject to different céstifion and first commercialization deadlines based

the type of product. In addition, the products oaly be manufactured by Atmel-approved foundries.

Atmel’s liability pursuant to this license is sthiclimited to the amount of royalties received Aynel
under the license agreement. The license grantimedyde third party intellectual property rights fo
which the Company must obtain proper authorizations

The contract is in effect for the period during elhihe Company sells the products using the liaknse
technologies, it being understood that licensestirg) to the development of future products are
limited to 3 or 6 years based on the products estian. Since the initial three-year period apjliea

to Secure Microcontrollers expired on September283, the Company cannot continue to develop
new Secure Microcontrollers under this license. By, it can continue to sell the licensed products
that obtained the necessary certifications as aff date and that were first commercialized before
March 31, 2014. Also, until September 30, 2016, @mnpany can continue to develop and have
certified Smart Secure Chips. Each party can teatmithe contract in advance in the event that the
other party commits a material breach of the cafiigd terms, voluntarily petitions in bankruptcy,
otherwise seeks protection under any law for theegtion of debtors, has a proceeding instituted
against it under any provision of the United Stdtederal Bankruptcy Code or equivalent legislation
of a foreign jurisdiction which is not dismissedthim ninety (90) days, or is adjudged bankrupt,
ceases or suspends business, or makes an assigyfrti@nimajority of its assets for the benefittsf i
creditors.

The Company may not transfer the license agreemithbut Atmel’s prior approval. However,
Atmel's approval is not necessary in case of tmef the SMS business or in case of a change of
control of the Company, although in such eventscthreditions of the license could be restricted, in
particular with respect to the term of the agreemmen

The agreement is governed by the laws of the Sthtdew York and provides that any dispute
between the parties shall be submitted to a sblérator chosen by the parties pursuant to the JAMS
arbitration rules. Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedureshef ludicial Arbitration and
Mediation Services

Patent License Agreemerietween Atmel Corp. and Cryptography Research Incdated
August 12, 2009, transferred to the Company as padf the acquisition of Atmel
Corporation’s SMS business

Pursuant to this agreement, Cryptography Research (fCRI”) granted a worldwide and non-
exclusive license to Atmel (the initial beneficiany this license) under Differential Power Analysis
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("DPA”) patents and patent applications coveringid@rmeasures against power analysis attacks,
excluding patents designated as the CryptoFirguedénts.

Under the terms of this license, Atmel Corp. agreepay, in addition to an initial lump sum amount,
an annual fee based on the selling price of sonis pfoducts. An additional licensing fee couldaal

be due in the event that Atmel acquires a new\etiidt requires such license and does not already
have one.

The liability of the parties is limited as set foiin the agreement and does not cover consequential
damages or lost profits. However Atmel is liabletfte payment of all licensing fees.

The initial term of the agreement expired on Jandark014. Thereafter, the agreement automatically
renews for successive one-year periods until tbeeption afforded by the licensed patents termiate
unless otherwise notified by Atmel 90 days priotaomination. Thus, the contract tacitly renewed fo
a one-year period as from January 1, 2014. Eithely wan terminate the agreement in the event the
other party (i) commits a material breach of theeagient that has not been cured within 60 days
following notice of such breach or (ii) becomes lrapt, insolvent, subject to an order for liquidat
administration, winding-up or dissolution, or makesassignment for the benefit of creditors.

CRI may terminate the agreement in the event ApmnaVides false royalties reports or challenges a
DPA patent.

No party may transfer the agreement without therptbonsent of the other party, including in the
event of a change of control. In order to trandlfier agreement, a Replacement Agreement shall be
entered into between CRI and the acquiring entity.

The Company succeeded to Atmel’s rights and oliigatunder this license agreement in connection
with the acquisition of Atmel's SMS business.

This agreement is governed by the laws of the Sta@alifornia and is subject to the jurisdictioh o
the United States District Court for the Northeristbct of California.

In some cases, however, the parties may chooselimis a dispute to arbitration or any other
alternative means of dispute resolution.

Tamper Resistance License Agreement between thegamy and Cryptography Research,
Inc. dated July 1, 2009

Pursuant to this agreement, CRI granted a worldwaitk non-exclusive license to the Company and
its subsidiaries controlled as of the date of thie@ment, under Differential Power Analysis (“DPA”")
patents and patent applications excluding the OFfipgwall patents, for those Company
semiconductors covered by the licensed patentéistad in a schedule to the agreement.

Under the terms of the license, the Company ag@edy, in addition to an initial lump sum amount,
an annual fee based on the selling price of cedhits products. An additional licensing fee could
also be due in the event the Company acquires aenéty that requires such a license and does not
already have one.

The liability of the parties is limited as set foiin the agreement and does not cover consequential
damage or lost profits. The Company is liable fa payment of all licensing fees and CRI is liable
with respect to its representations and warranties.

The agreement expires on the later of the fifth\areary of the agreement and the date on which the
last licensed DPA patent expires. Either party teaminate the agreement in the event the othey part
(i) commits a material breach of the agreementhhatnot been cured within 60 days following notice
of such breach or (ii) becomes bankrupt, insolveulbject to an order for liquidation, administratio
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winding-up or dissolution, or makes an assignmenthe benefit of creditors. CRI may also terminate
the agreement in the event the Company providss falyalties reports or the Company or one of its
affiliates challenges a DPA patent.

Finally, as of July 1, 2014, and at each annivgrdate of the agreement, i.e. on July 1 of each,yea
the Company can terminate the agreement with 9@ gaipr notice, provided that none of the
Company’s products remain covered by the licensgents on the termination date of the agreement.

The Company cannot assign the agreement to aghitgl without the prior consent of CRI, including

in the event of a change of control. However, bmdhties can transfer the agreement to any person
acquiring almost all of the assets related to #Huseement, either by merger, sale of assets or
otherwise, provided that the transferee providesitien commitment to accept and comply with the
terms of the agreement. From the date of any assigh the assignee is deemed as the initial
signatory of the agreement.

This agreement is governed by the laws of the Stht€alifornia and provides that any dispute
between the parties shall be submitted to an atbitrpursuant to the JAMS arbitration rules
(Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Proceduresugficial Arbitration and Mediation Servicgs
However, any dispute regarding the validity, apgiitity or scope of the DPA patent license shall be
resolved by judicial proceedings.

Patent License Agreement for Near Field Communiaati Technologybetween the Company and
France Brevets

The Company and France Brevets entered into a tpitense agreement on June 19, 2012. This
agreement was subsequently amended on July 12, B@E2mber 19, 2012, November 28, 2013,
May 2, 2014, and July 29, 2014.

Under the terms of this agreement and its amendmehé Company grants France Brevets a
worldwide, exclusive, royalty bearing license taamjr non-exclusive licenses to third parties for
certain patent families owned by the Company in fiell of NFC (“near field communication”)
technology. This license neither applies to seeleenents nor “smart cards”, as defined under ETSI
standards and under the ISO 7816 standard, noBtwmster” technology, as claimed under the
Company’s patents. France Brevets is licensed gttute judicial proceedings to defend the rights
attached to the licensed patents.

The license provides that the Company and itsiati$ retain the right to directly use the licensed
patents, in particular, to manufacture and self firducts.

Except in relation to the transfer of the Company=C assets to a third party, France Brevets has a
right of first refusal if the Company decides tdl see of the licensed patents.

The license will remain in force until the expiaatiof the last licensed patent. The Company may
terminate the contragbso jure under certain conditions, especially if Francewts fails to reach the
contractual objectives, if France Brevets breadtsesontractual obligations, and/or if, in the it

of the potential transfer of the Company’s NFC tssine acquirer wishes to terminate the license
subject to the payment of an indemnity to Francev8is.

The contract is governed by French law and is stiltfethe competent jurisdiction of the courts of
Paris, France.
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Amended and restated NFC technology license agresrbetween the Company and Intel

On May 19, 2014, the Company and Intel entered antiocense agreement in effect as from June 16,
2014, relating to the NFC technology owned by tlem@any. This agreement replaces an initial
agreement dated August 23, 2011. This agreementttandncillary agreements were granted in
consideration of the payment of US$ 19,200,00@i¢0Qompany.

This new agreement broadens the scope of the &aggists initially granted to Intel and specifigall
extends the initial worldwide and perpetual liceimte to a broader license enabling Intel to fragg
Inside’s MRV5 technology without any recurring feEsconsideration of this license, Intel paid & on
time license fee to the Company upon the closinthisf new agreement. The Company remains the
owner of most of the intellectual property rightslaitles underlying the aforementioned licenses Th
Company transferred to Intel the semiconductor Nk@tiem and software technology for the next
generation MicroRead-v5 product that was under ldpment by the Company, as well as various
tangible and intangible assets associated withdlding some intellectual property rights.

Pursuant to an exclusivity undertaking, the Compagnged not to directly or indirectly use or licens
the licensed technology and some intellectual pigpeghts to a third party (with the exception
however of patents) for the development of a stam@aNFC microcontroller or a standalone NFC
technology that would be substantially similariie MRv5 product.

The license is transferable by both parties insaafi) the third party beneficiary accepts to barl

by the terms of the license agreement, (ii) théatdgto the licensed technology and intellectual
property rights are transferred to a third partyvtuch the Company assigns the license agreement,
and (iii) Intel does not transfer the license agrest to one of the Company’s competitors withoat th
prior approval of the Company.

All of the rights associated to any derivative woodeveloped and improvements made by Intel to the
transferred technology and licensed technologyttaeeexclusive property of Intel, and the Company
and its affiliates are not licensed under aforefneed derivative works and improvements.

In the event of a dispute that cannot be resolweidably, the license is subject to the laws of State
of New York and to the jurisdiction of the fedecalurts located in New York City.



23. THIRD PARTY INFORMATION, STATEMENTS BY EXPERTS, AND
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None applicable.
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24. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC

The Bylaws, minutes of General Shareholders’ Mestirand other corporate documents of the

Company, as well as historical financial informatior any evaluation or statement prepared by an
expert at the request of the Company and that beishade available to shareholders in accordance
with applicable law, can be accessed free of chargige registered offices of the Company.

As from the date of the admission of the shareh®fCompany to trading on the Euronext regulated

market in Paris, France, the regulated informatrothe meaning of the provisions of the AMF’s
General Regulations will also be available on tbenGany’s website (www.insidesecure.com).
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25. INFORMATION ON EQUITY HOLDINGS

Other than the Company’s subsidiaries and equitidilgs listed in the Group’s scope of
consolidation as described in the Notes to the @BsoQonsolidated Financial Statements (please refer
to sections 20.1 entitled “Historical Financial drhation” and 20.6 entitled “Interim Financial
Information” of this Registration Document for faer information), the Company and its subsidiaries
do not have equity holdings in other companies tlald have a significant impact on the valuation
of its their assets, financial position, or income.
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26. GLOSSARY

Android:

API (Application Programming

Interface):

Baseband:

Bluetooth:

BYOD (Bring Your Own Device):

Chip:

Cloud computing:

Company:

Cryptology:

Design in:

Google’s open source operating system and middeefar
smartphones, tablet and other mobile devices. kample,
it is used in TV sets, alarm clocks, connected hedc car
radios, and even cars.

set of routines, data structures, object clasges$ variables
available to computer programs via a software fran
operating system, or a service allowing for interability
between software components.

in the telecommunications industry, the mechaniérat t
communicates via baseband. For example, in a shoarg)

it's the chip responsible for the telephony parthaf device.

For a TNT password, it's the chip responsible fecating

the channel.

short-range, radio frequency, communication teatmpl
standard aimed at simplifying connections between
electronic devices. It is used primarily with mabphones,
wireless headsets, computers and peripherals.

the act of using personal equipment (mobile photadadets,
laptop computers) in a professional context.

electronic packaged component able to perform emaare
electronic functions of varying complexity, oftamegrating
several types of basic electronic components onsiguare
millimeters. Synonymous with integrated circuit.

concept of deporting to distant servers the conmpute
processing typically completed on local servergheruser’s
machine (e.g. computer or mobile phone). Usersongdr
manage their computer servers, but can still gagess to a
growing number of online services without having to
manage the underlying infrastructure.

INSIDE Secure.

encryption method by which a message is made
unintelligible in the absence of an appropriatergaoon
key. Keys are based on mathematical algorithms.

confirmation by a customer, often following a sél@t
process, that a product has been officially setediar
development of a project. The customer then forriss h
project team and starts the design phase of its paduct.
This design phase lasts, in the case of a mobitngh
between 6 and 12 months (“design-in to design-ypimése).
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Design win:

Dollar, US Dollar, USY and$:

DRM (Digital Right Management):

Dual Interface Technology:

EMV (Europay Mastercard Viga

ESS:

Fabless:

Fab-lite:

Finished product:

Firmware:

Foundry:

GPS (Global Positioning System

Group:
HCE (Host Card Emulation):

Inlay:

confirmation by a customer, at the end of the desigand

testing phase of a product, that a product canskd as part
of its solution and, therefore, purchase ordergHerproduct
are made in significant volumes.

legal currency in the United States.

secure technology that enables copyright holdeesaibject
subject to intellectual property (such as an audideo, or
text file) to specify what a user has the rightdto with it.
Generally, it is used to propose downloads witheoitrying
that the user will distribute the file freely thighout the
web.

single-chip based technology that allows both axingand
contactless payment.

international security and interoperability redard for
payment cards, in force since 1995.

Embedded Security Solutions.

business model, for semiconductor company, whicisists
of outsourcing its manufacturing function to one rore
foundries in order to focus on the development salé of
semiconductors.

business model, for semiconductor company, whictsists

of adopting a strategy that combines an in-house
manufacturing and the subcontracting of part of ghecess

to third-party foundries.

product that has undergone a transformation in rotde
provide it with added value and is ready for usehs end
customer.

software program embedded in a chip.

company specializing in the manufacturing of semitzactor
wafers for third-party companies.

satellite geo-positioning standard created l®y thS. army
that enables the location and identification ofoapatible
device supporting this standard.

the Company and its subsidiaries.

virtual representation of a smart card via softwiastalled
on the electronic equipment’s main processor.

chip connected to an antenna for contactless atigits.
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Integrated circuit (IC):

Interoperability:

ISO (International Organization for
Standardizatioh

Machine-to-machine:

Microcontroller:

Microelectronics:

Microprocessor:

Middleware:

Mobile devices:

Mobile payment:

Module:

NFC (Near Field Communicatign

electronic component performing one or more poddti
complex electronic functions, often integratingexey types
of basic electronic components on few square nélflars.
Synonymous with chip.

ability of a product or system based on a standarejork
with other products or systems without restrictafraccess
or implementation.

international  standards organization composed of
representatives from national standards organizatfoom
158 countries, the mission of which is to establish
international standards, called ISO standards, e t
industrial and commercial fields.

combination of information and communication tedoges
with smart objects able to communicate in ordeprwvide
them with the means to interact with the informatgystem
without human intervention.

integrated circuit incorporating the basic elemeirisa
system such as: a microprocessor core, memory (R®M
program, volatile and non-volatile memories for ajat
peripherals and input-output interfaces.

designing and manufacturing of electronic composient
initially at the micrometer, now at the nanometeals.
These components are made from semiconductor @igteri
such as silicon.

the part of a system that executes instructionspaodesses
program data.

software that creates an information exchange |agéxeen
the various applications and/or software layers.

mobile handsets, tablets and laptops.

payment method enabling transactions from a laobi
terminal (e.g. smartphone), with payment being teéebto
the credit card, the invoice from the operatormebectronic
purse. There are three categories of mobile paysnesote
payments; proximity payments in front of a termigaith
the NFC technology); or mobile-to-mobile money #f@ns
(peer-to-peer).

one or several chips packaged together with rmbeun of
discrete components (resistors, capacitors, etc.).

Short-range, radio frequency, wireless connégtistandard

that enables communication between devices wittshat
range of each other.
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NFC Forum:

Obfuscation:

ODM (Original Design
Manufacturej:

OEM (Original Equipment

Manufacturej:

Open source:

Operating system:

Operator:

OTT (Over The Top

Packaging:

Peer-to-Peer:

PKI (Public Key Infrastructure):

organization established to accelerate and prothetese of
NFC by developing specifications to guarantee
interoperability between electronic devices andises and,

in general, contributing to a better understandihthe NFC
technology and applications. Created in 2004, tbeufd

now has nearly 140 members, hardware manufacturers,
application developers and financial institutiomgio are
working together to promote the use of NFC in nmbil
devices, computers and consumer electronics.

the deliberate act of creating obfuscated codesaerce or
machine code that is difficult for humans to untkrd and
challenging to hack.

in the context of the Group’s activities, a compangviding
development and manufacturing services based on its
customers’ specifications, and which does not niarke
products to end consumers under its own brand.

in the context of the Group’s activities, a comp#mgt sells
products under its brand and may, as the case may b
subcontract the development and manufacturing 10RiNI.

software for which the license meets the critest@lalished
by the Open Source Initiative, i.e. offering thesgibility of
free redistribution and access to source code andative
works.

software that manages hardware and software resotnam
the device and provides common services for compute
programs.

companies operating in the mobile telecommunication
sector running the telecommunication service arfdriofy
subscription to this service to the end customer.

content distribution method via internet and heiit a
multiple system operator being involved beyond K8E’s
data routing services.

package used as the mechanical interface between th
component (integrated circuit or IC) itself and thented
circuit or the electronic card, which usually catsi of
plastic, sometimes of ceramic and less frequentlynetal
materials.

communication mode between two terminals using a
common communication standard, which enables, among
other things, file sharing and multimedia exchanges

all of the physical components, human procedured an

software needed to manage the life cycle of digaal
electronic certificates.
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Protocol: set of rules for establishing a communication betwevo
entities or two systems.

Reference design: elements and information relating to one system’s
engineering design, which is meant to be used apitd by
others. It includes essential elements of the sysheit third
parties can modify or improve their designs if reseey.

RFID (Radio Frequency technology that allows the remote storage and exghaf

Identification) data within a short-range based on markers caleadrenics
tags (RFID tags). Electronic tags are small itemshsas
adhesive tags that can be attached to or incogmbriat
objects, products or even living organisms (aniraad
human bodies). They include an antenna associaittdawv
chip that enables them to receive and respond goests
issued from a radio transceiver.

Semiconductor: material that has the same electrical properass an
insulator but can be used as a conductor by adaisgall
amount of impurities into it, and represents theibalement
for microelectronics.

Service de message col (SMS - mobile telephony standard that allows users to &xgh text
Short Message Service messages between their mobile handsets and otvieese
SIM card (Subscriber Identity smart card used in mobile handsets to store infiooma
Module): specific to the subscriber of a mobile network,tipatarly

for networks such as GSM or UMTS. It can also store
applications from the user, its operator or, in socases,
third parties.

Smart card: flexible card with an embedded integrated circ@signed
to process and store data. It contains at leasiruegrated
circuit capable of processing information. The dncard is
generally used for authentication or payments.

Smart meter: meter powered with advanced technologies that iigemith
increased accuracy, potentially real-time, the @per
consumption of a home, building or business, amdis¢he
data directly to a management system using thehetee
line or powerline communication. Smart meters allfow
real-time preparation of bills and identificatioh tbe most
costly items for the customer. They can inform ¢hetomer
for brownouts or losses on the grid and also beotelyn
programmable and equipped with a remote switchegoe.
Programmable meters are the basic element thawv dtio
significant changes for the entire grid, genericafid to as
“smart grid”.

SMS: Secure Microcontroller Solutions business aagliby the
Company from Atmel on September 30, 2010

Software stack: a set of programs that work together to producesalt (e.g.
an operating system and its applications).



SWP (single wire protocot) protocol that ensures communication between a NRIQ
and a SIM card or between a Secure Element and an
application processor.

Systen-on-chip: comprehensive system embedded on a chip thaimbde
memory, one or more microprocessors, interfacecesvor
any other components required to achieve the ietnd
function.

Terminal: electronic device capable of reading data from ymedmt
card, recording a transaction and communicatingh veit
remote authentication secure server.

Token: used in addition to or instead of a password ireotd prove
that the customer is the one he or she allegestorbe
token acts like an electronic key to gain acceskata.

Toolkit: all tools, libraries, and subprograms used to ifatd the
creation of computer programs and use interfaces.

Transistor: basic active electronic component used mainly éctebnics
as a control switch to produce a “0” or a “1”".

USB flash drive: storage device that uses flash memory and conitselsto
the USB port of a computer.

VPN (Virtual Private Network): extensive private network created by establishigmgnanent
custom connections between corporate networks widiqo
networks in order to share resources among itsuser

Wafer: relatively thin slice of semiconductor material lsuas
silicon, from which integrated circuits are madaslused to
support the manufacture of transistor-based miarosires
using processed such as doping, etching, depositthafr
materials (epitaxy, sputtering, chemical depositvapor
phase, for example) and photolithography.

Wi-Fi (Wireless Fidelity): communication and local network management stanfiard
wireless short-range connectivity (from few centiens to a
hundred meters).

Wireless LAN (wireless network): digital or computing network connecting differemvites or

systems together through the use of radiofrequevenyes.
Wi-Fi is the main standard for wireless LAN.
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